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This offering statement shall only be qualified upon order of the Commission, unless a
subsequent amendment is filed indicating the intention to become qualified by operation
of the terms of Regulation A.

Part I -- Notification

ITEM 1. Significant Parties

(@)

(b)

©
(d)

(e)

Director of Issuers

Paul E. Estridge, Jr.
Business:
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence:
15747 Oak Road
Carmel, Indiana 46033

Executive Officers of Issuers

The business and affairs of the Issuers are uiltimately directed by Paul E. Estridge,
Jr., as principal shareholder and sole director, pursuant to applicable state law.
Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the President of each of the Issuers. Michael J. Keller is
the Treasurer and Secretary of each of the Issuers. Their address is 14300 Ciay
Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200, Carmel, Indiana 46032.

Not applicable

Paul E. Estridge, Jr.
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
15747 Qak Road
Carmel, Indiana 46033

Paul E. Estridge, Jr.
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
15747 Oak Road
Carmel, Indiana 46033




by
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Paul E. Estridge, Jr.
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
15747 Oak Road
Carmel, Indiana 46033

Subsidiaries of The Estridge Group, Inc.

Ameritage Homes, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Estridge Design Services, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

First Mile Entertainment, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

First Mile Capital, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

First Mile Services, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

First Mile Investments, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Affiliates

BCE Associates, I, LLC

14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

BCE Associates II, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

BCE Associates III, LLC




)

()

14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

BCE Associates IV, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032 :

FirstSource Capital, LLC
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Estridge Investments, LLP
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Michael J. Messaglia Esq.
Business
Krieg DeVault LLP
One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
Residence
9453 North State Road 267
Brownsburg, Indiana 46112

Indiana Securities, LLC
1705 North Meridian Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202

Frank D. Neese

Business
Indiana Securities, LLC
1705 North Meridian Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202



(k)

M
(m)

Residence
4343 Manning Road
Indianapolis, Indiana 46228

Dawn Barringer
Business
Indiana Securities, LLC
1705 North Meridian Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202
Residence
3620 Katelyn Court
Indianapolis, Indiana 46228

Frank D. Neese
Business
Indiana Securities, LLC
1705 North Meridian Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46202
Residence
4343 Manning Road
Indianapolis, Indiana 46228

Not applicable

Karen Ball Woods, Esq.
Business
Krieg DeVault LLP
One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
Residence
3942 Channing Circle
Indianapolis, Indiana 46240

ITEM 2. Application of Rule 262

(@)
)]

ITEM 3.

No

Not applicable

Affiliate Sales

Not applicable




ITEM 4. Jurisdictions in which Securities are to be offered
(a) The securities will be registered in the following jurisdictions: Illinois, Indjana,
Ohio and Tennessee. The securities will be offered by a registered broker-dealer, Indiana
Securities, LLC, by direct telephone call and mail and not through a general solicitation.
(b) None
ITEM 5. Unregistered Securities issued or sold within one year
None
ITEM 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings
None
ITEM 7. Marketing Arrangements
None
ITEM 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement
None

ITEM 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

None
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
. 14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
(317) 846-7311

GUARANTEED BY:
ESTRIDGE DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, INC.
PAUL E. ESTRIDGE CORP.

SERIES 2007 SUBORDINATED NOTES DUE 2010
($1,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount)
SERIES 2007 SUBORDINATED NOTES DUE 2012
($2,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount)
SERIES 2007 SUBORDINATED NOTES DUE 2015
($2,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount)
$2,650,000 Minimum
$5,000,000 Maximum
Minimum Initial Purchase: $5,000

The Estridge Group, Inc. (the “Company”) is offering a minimum of $2,650,000 and a
maximum of $5,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Series 2007 Subordinated Notes Due
2010, Series 2007 Subordinated Notes Due 2012, and Series 2007 Subordinated Notes Due 2015
(collectively, the “Notes™) with an interest rate of 10.5%, 11% and 11.5% per annum,
respectively, and a maturity date of , 2010, , 2012, and
, 2015, respectively.

The Notes will bear interest from the date of issuance, payable semi-annually in arrears
on January 1 and July 1 of each year commencing on July 1, 2007 (for the period from the date
of issuance through June 30, 2007). The Notes will be issued only in denominations of $1,000
and integral multiples thereof, subject to a minimum initial purchase of $5,000.

The Notes are redecmable at any time on or after January 1, 2008, at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part at 100% of the principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date. The Notes do not provide for any sinking fund payments or
principal payments prior to maturity and have no conversion features.

The Notes are guaranteed, as described herein, by Estridge Development Company, Inc.
and Paul E. Estridge Corp. (collectively, the “Guarantors™).

The Notes and Guaranties will be subordinated to all Senior Indebtedness (as defined
herein). As of September 30, 2006, the total Senior Indebtedness was approximately $87.2
million. There is no limit on the amount of Senior Indebtedness that may be incurred. See “Risk
Factors” beginning on page 5 for a discussion of material risks that should be considered in
connection with the purchase of the Notes offered hereby, and “Description of the
Subordinated Notes--Subordination of the Notes and Guarantees.”

!
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The Company has been advised by the Placement Agent that it does not intend to make a
market in the Notes and the Notes will not be listed on any securities exchange. It is unlikely
that an active public market for the Notes will develop or be maintained after this Offering.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT
PASS UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES
OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE
ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OFFERING
SELLING LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE
COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE
SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR
OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING,
INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE
NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE
FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR
DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION
TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE
SECRETARY OF STATE OF ILLINOIS OR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, NOR HAS
THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF ILLINOIS OR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PASSED
UPON THE-ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

Price to Public P:i)licsi[:lf::sﬁ;m Ig::f;:;;?

Commissions
Per Note $1,000 $75 $925
Total Minimum : $2,650,000 $198,750 $2,451,250
Total Maximum $5,000,000 $375,000 $4,625,000

! The Placement Agent Commissions are equal to 5.5% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes plus a |
structuring fee earned at the rate of $20,000 per $1,000,000 of Notes sold.

? Before deducting expenses payable by the Company cstlmatcd at $200,000 (including Placement Agent’s altomcys
fees which the Company has agreed to reimburse to the Placement Agent).
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The Notes are offered by Indiana Securities, LLC, as Placement Agent, on a best efforts,
minimum-maximum basis as specified herein. If at least $2,650,000 in any combination of
Notes are not sold within sixty (60) days of the date of this Offering Circular, or within an
additional thirty (30) days upon the agreement of the Company and the Placement Agent (the
“Termination Date™), then this Offering will not be consummated. Any Notes purchased by
officers or directors of the Company will not be counted in determining whether the Offering
minimum has been satisfied. Pending the closing of the sale of the Notes, all funds received
from subscribers will be held in escrow by the Escrow Agent, MainSource Bank, Greensburg,
Indiana. If this Offering is not consummated by the Termination Date, subscribers’ funds will be
returned promptly with a pro rata share of any net interest earned while in escrow. See “Plan of
Distribution.” This offering will terminate on , 2007 or such later date as the
Company and the Placement Agent shall agree.

INDIANA SECURITIES, L1LC

Offering Circular Date: , 2007
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY

The following summary information is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed
information and consolidated financial statements (including the notes thereto) appearing
elsewhere in this Offering Circular. Prospective subscribers are urged to read this Offering
Circular in its entirety.

The Estridge Companies

The Estridge Companies build single family homes and develop residential communities
in the Indianapolis, Indiana metropolitan area. The companies were founded in 1967, when Paul
E. Estridge, Sr. started building custom homes. In 1983, Paul E. Estridge, Jr. joined the family
business and started The Estridge Group, Inc. to build family homes in neighborhoods it
develops. In 1992, Paul E. Estridge, Jr. purchased his father’s interest in these companies. In
2006, the Estridge Companies delivered 285 homes in the Indianapolis area. Additionally, the
Estridge Companies are currently operating sales offices in 20 communities in the Indianapolis
area, Several additional communities are in the ptanning and development stages.

For financial reporting purposes the Company combines entities in which it has a
significant ownership interest and exercises management control. Accordingly, the Consolidated
Summary Financial Data and the discussion of the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company contained in this Offering Document include the Company, the Guarantors and
the subsidiaries of the Company, Ameritage Homes, LLC (a builder of single family homes),
First Mile Services, LLC (a provider of telecommunications, security monitoring, data and cable
television services) and Estridge Design Services, LLC (a design study home décor retail
operation), and affiliates of the Company, FirstSource Capital, LLC (a mortgage brokerage
operation), BCE Associates I, LLC, BCE Associates II, LLC, BCE Associates Ill, LLC (each, a
provider of development financing for specific residential developments), and Estridge
Investment Co., LLP (a commercial real estate leasing company), (collectively, the “Estridge
Companies”). References in this Offering Circular to “we,” “us” or “our” means the Estridge
Companies. The Estridge Companies’ most recent fiscat year ended September 30, 2006. Each
of the Estridge Companies were incorporated or organized, as appropriate, in the State of
Indiana.

In 2006, the Company, consolidated with its subsidiaries, experienced a net loss of $3.0
million compared to net income of $2.8 million for 2005. This loss was less for the Company
consolidated with both its subsidiaries and its variable interest entities (defined in this Offering
circular as the “Estridge Companies”), or $2.0 million on a consolidated basis, due to the
variable interest entities experiencing net income of $993,000. In 2005, the Estridge Companies
reported consolidated net income of $5.3 million. The loss experienced by the Company in 2006
results primarily from market conditions, development delays and investments in start-up ’
operations. Prior to 2006, the Company had not incurred a loss since 1986.
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Consolidated Summary Financial Data
(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year
Ended September 30,
2006 2005
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Homes, land and construction in progress $ 114940 §$§ 85,493
Total assets 132,237 102,356
Notes payable ‘ 87,184 66,761 ;
Total liabilities 106,183 83,784
Total stockholders’ equity 26,054 18,573

Consolidated Statements of Operations '
Net revenues $109,732  $143,329 y

Cost of revenues 88,483 111,901
Gross profit 21,249 31,428
Operating expenses 25,249 24,010
Income (loss) from operations (4,000) 7,418 3
Other income (expense) 71 (109) :
Net income (loss) before taxes and minority  (3,928) 7,310 '
interest in variable interest entities
Income tax expense (benefit) (1,907) 2,050
Net income (loss) before minority interest in (2,021) 5,259 ! |
variable interest entities : ; |
Minority interest in variable interest entities® 993 2,503 ;
Net income (Loss)’ (3,014) 2,756 i |

See the Financial Statements and accompanying footnotes beginning on Page F-1 of this
Offering Circular.

? Represents the net income {loss) of the Estridge Companies consisting of the Company consolidated with its
subsidiaries and its variable interest entities.

* Represents the net income (loss) of the Estridge Companies excluding the Company consolidated with its
subsidiaries.

? Represents the net income (loss) of the Company consclidated with its subsidiaries.

OFFERING CIRCULAR — THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC. 2




GUATAMIEES.....cceeererrrrrrersirsneerersssessssssnseesssnresasan

Coansideration for Purchase of Notes ...............

Payment of Interest ........ccovveveneneiencvccecccrnnn,

INtETESt RALE o..evveeieeririererereersrcsssrssnvessssssessmsmmenes

A maximum of $5,000,000 of Notes will be
sold. Notes will mature , 2010,

, 2012, and , 2015, and will
bear interest from the date of issuance. At
least $2,650,000 in Notes must be sold before
this Offering will be consummated. The
minimum initial purchase is $5,000.

The Notes are guaranteed by Estridge
Development Company, Inc. and Paul E.
Estridge Corp. See “Description of the
Subordinated Notes--Guarantees of the
Notes.”

The Company will accept readily available
funds for purchase of the Notes.

Semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each
year, commencing July 1, 2007 (for the period
from date of issuance through June 30, 2007).

10.5% per annum for 2007 Subordinated Notes
due 2010

11% per annum for 2007 Subordinated Notes
due 2012

11.5% per annum for 2007 Subordinated Notes
due 2015

Interest will be computed on the basis of a
360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day
months.

Redeemable at any time on or after January 1,
2008, at the option of the Company, subject to
specified limitations set forth herein, in whole
or in part, at 100% of the principal amount,
together with accrued interest.

No sinking fund payments.

The Notes and Guarantees will be unsecured
general obligations of the Company and the
Guarantors and will be subordinated in right of
payment to all existing and future Senior
Indebtedness, as defined in the Indenture. As
of September 30, 2006, the Senior
Indebtedness of the Estridge Companies was
approximately $87.2 million. There is no limit
on the amount of Senior Indebtedness that

OFFERING CIRCULAR -~ THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
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Offer to Purchase

............................................

Redemption on Death

......................................

Debt Service Reserve Fund.......veeeeevveveereenennnns

Use of PIOCEEAS.....uviivvrieecrernrsnsesieeeenersesssossunses

Certain COVENANLS ....cvcvveeeerreerecsareeesersressssrssnne

may be incurred. See “Description of the

Subordinated Notes--Subordination of the
Notes and Guarantees,”

The Company will be obligated to make an
offer to purchase Notes in certain
circumstances described herein. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--
Certain Covenants.”

Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control
(as defined in the Indenture), each holder of
Notes will have the option to cause the
Company to repurchase such holder’s Notes, in
whole or in part, at par plus accrued but unpaid
interest to the date of repurchase. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--
Certain Covenants--Offer to Purchase on
Change of Control.”

Upon the death of a noteholder, Notes held by
the deceased noteholder may be tendered to the
Company for redemption at a price of par plus
accrued but unpaid interest; however, the
Company will only be obligated to redeem up
to $100,000 in Notes pursuant to such requests
during any twelve-month period. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--
Redemption at Death.”

The Company will create a debt service
reserve fund  (the “Reserve Fund”™) equal to
six (6) months interest on the Notes. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--
Debt Service Reserve Fund.”

The Company intends to use the net proceeds
from the sale of the Notes for working capital
of the Estridge Companies and to create the
Reserve Fund. See “Use of Proceeds.”

The Indenture under which the Notes will be
issued contains certain restrictive covenants
that will, among other things, limit the
Company’s ability to make certain Restricted
Payments (as defined in the Indenture). The
Indenture also restricts the Company’s ability
to consolidate or merge with or into, or transfer
all or substantially all of its assets to, another
person and requires the Company in certain

OFFERING CIRCULAR — THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC,
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circumstances to make an offer to purchase
Notes at 100% of the principal amount plus
accrued but unpaid interest. These restrictions
and requirements are subject to a number of
important qualifications and exceptions. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--
Certain Covenants.”

Risk Factors .....ccoocenverunevenniincmrnnienesisonsrvinnnnnes An investment in the Notes involves a
significant degree of risk. The Notes and
Guarantees are unsecured general obligations
of the Company and the Guarantors, are
subordinate in right of payment to all existing
and future Senior Indebtedness, which is not
limited in amount, and do not contain
provisions for sinking fund payments. See
“Risk Factors” for a discussion of material
risks that should be considered in connection
with an investment in the Notes,

RISK FACTORS

In analyzing this offering, prospective subscribers should carefully consider certain risks
entailed in an investment in the Notes as set forth below, as well as the other information
contained in this Offering Circular.

Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Offering Circular contains statements that constitute forward-looking statements.
Those statements appear in a number of places in this Offering Circular and include projections
of financial condition, cash flow or operating performance and statements regarding the intent,
belief or current expectations of the Estridge Companies or management with respect to (i) the
Estridge Companies’ strategic plans, (ii) the policies of the Estridge Company regarding capital
expenditures, financing or other matters, and (iii) industry trends affecting the Estridge
Companies’ financial condition or results of operations. Prospective investors are cautioned
that any such forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those in the forward
looking statements as a result of various factors, including the Risk Factors below.

The Notes are unsecured and subordinated to any Senior Indebtedness. In the event of the
bankruptcy or liquidation of the Estridge Companies, the Note holders will recover, if at
all, only after the Senior Indebtedness has been paid.

OFFERING CIRCULAR — THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC. 5



The payment of principal and interest on the Notes and Guarantees will be unsecured
general obligations of the Company and the Guarantors, subordinated in right of payment to all
present and future Senior Indebtedness. Senior Indebtedness is defined generally in the
Indenture to include indebtedness created, incurred, assumed or guaranteed by the Company for
money borrowed other than (i) the Notes, (ii) indebtedness of the Company and the Guarantors
to any of their Insiders (as defined in the Indenture), (iii) indebtedness of the Company to any of
the other Estridge Companies (or from one subsidiary or affiliate to another) or (iv) indebtedness
for amounts owed for goods, materials or services purchased in the ordinary course of business.
There is no limitation on the amount of Senior Indebtedness that may be incurred. See
“Description of the Subordinated Notes--Subordination of the Notes and Guarantees.”

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition, limit our
growth and make it more difficult for us to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms
and to satisfy our debt obligations.

Our business is capital intensive and often involves significant up-front expenditures
including the cost of acquiring land. To fund our ongoing operations, we use cash flow from
operations, bank borrowings, and project based joint ventures. As of September 30, 2006, we
had shareholders’ equity of approximately $26.1 million and total indebtedness of approximately
$87.2 million, which is secured by substantially all of our interest in real estate. Our business
and earnings are substantially dependent on our continuing ability to obtain bank or other
financing on acceptable terms. Lenders generally require substantial equity commitments by
borrowers in connection with loans secured by real estate. Additionally, such loans generally
contain restrictive covenants related to our operations. Although we believe that cash flow from
operations and our ability to borrow from various lenders will provide adequate cash to satisfy
our capital requirements for the foreseeable future, there can be no assurance that additional
sources of financing will not be required or that, if required, such financing will be available on
terms acceptable to us. If we are unable to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms it will
limit our growth and we may have difficulties satisfying our existing debt obligations.

The Estridge Companies have experienced losses, may continue to do so and may have
difficulty generating sufficient cash to make payments on the Notes when due.

In 2006, the Company, consolidated with its subsidiaries, experienced a net loss of
approximately $3 million. For that same period, the Company, consolidated with its subsidiaries
and variable interest entities experienced a net loss of approximately $2 million. The losses
resulted primarily from market conditions, delays in the development of new communities and
investments in several startup operations in 2006, including Ameritage Homes and the
HomExperience. Unless the Company and the Estridge Companies are able to increase the sale
of homes during 2007 and thereby generate increased revenues, losses to the Company and the
Estridge Companies may continue. In light of the uncertainties relating the housing market, the
ability to generate these additional sales is also uncertain. If losses continue for the Company

and the Estridge Companies, the Company may have difficulty discharging its obligations with
respect to the Notes.
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The Company is not required to make any payments to a sinking fund and may need to
obtain additional financing to retire the Notes '

No principal payments are due with respect to the Notes prior to their maturity nor is
there any requirement for the Company to make payments to a sinking fund or otherwise
periodically set aside funds for the retirement of the Notes, other than the Reserve Fund.
Retirement of the Notes will, thercfore, be dependent upon the Company generating sufficient
excess cash flow or obtaining other financing at the time the Notes mature, neither of which can
be assured. See “Description of the Subordinated Notes.”

The Estridge Companies’ home sales and revenues could decline due to general and local
economic factors outside of its control.

Our industry is cyclical and is significantly affected by changes in generat and local
economic conditions such as interest rates, employment levels, consumer confidence and income
and availability of financing, as well as changes in government regulation. Homebuilders such
as us are also subject to various risks including conditions of supply and demand in local
markets, availability and cost of land, materials and labor, adverse weather conditions, delays in
construction schedules caused by strikes and other factors not within our control, the government
approval and permit process, the effects of moratoriums and environmental controls and
increases in real estate taxes and other local government fees.

An increase in mortgage interest rates or unavailability of mortgage financing may reduce
our ability to sell homes.

Our business depends in part upon the availability and cost of mortgage financing. Any
limitations or restrictions on the availability of mortgage financing could adversely affect the
Company’s operations. Housing demand is also affected by mortgage interest rate levels. The
recent increase in interest rates has adversely impacted the number of homes sold by us and our
results of operations. See “Business.”

Because the Estridge Companies are subject to extensive governmental and environmental
regulation, they may incur significant liabilities or restrictions on their business activities.

Our home building operations are subject to federal, state and local statutes and rules
regulating environmental and developmental matters, wetland preservation, zoning, building
design and density requirements. These requirements can limit the number of homes built within
a particular community and can delay the progress of developing a particular community.

We must obtain numerous government approvals, licenses, permits and agreements
before we can begin development and construction. In addition, the continued effectiveness of
permits already granted is subject to factors such as changes in policies, rules and regulations and
their interpretation and application. Such regulation affects construction activities and may
result in delays or cause us to incur substantial compliance costs.

We may be subject to additional costs or delays or may be precluded entirely from
developing our communities because of government regulations that could be imposed in the
future due to unforeseen health, safety, welfare or environmental concerns. Environmental -
regulations can also have an adverse impact on the availability and price of certain raw materials
such as lumber. See “Business--Government Regulation and Environmental Matters” and
“Land Acquisition and Development.”
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Fluctuations in the availability and price of the raw materials upon which the Estridge
Companies depend may negatively affect the ability of the Company to profitably operate.

Although the principal raw materials used in the home-building industry, including
lumber, drywall, brick and concrete, generally are available from a variety of sources, those
materials are subject to periodic shortages and price fluctuations. This volatility may adversely
affect profitability to the extent that any increases in material costs cannot be offset by
corresponding home price increases. The costs of these raw materials may also increase as the
result of natural disasters, such as hurricanes, and increases in oil prices. See “Business--
Construction.” While labor shortages have not had a material effect on our operations, there is
no assurance that such shortages will not adversely affect us in the future.

If the Estridge Companies are unsuccessful in competing against their competitors, many
of which are larger and have greater resources, their market share could decline and
financial results could suffer.

Homebuilders compete for desirable properties, financing, raw materials and skilled
labor. We compete for home sales with national, regional and local homebuilders, individual
resales of existing homes and condominiums and available rental housing. Most of our
competitors have greater financial and other resources than us. If we are unsuccessful in
competing against our competitors, our market share and financial results may suffer. See
“Business--Competition and Market Factors.”

Because the operations of the Estridge Companies are concentrated in one geographic area,
the Estridge Companies may be negatively effected by changes in the local economic
conditions.

Our operations are currently concentrated in the Indianapolis metropolitan area. Because
of this lack of geographic diversification, adverse general economic, weather or home-building
conditions in the Indianapolis market could have a material adverse impact on us.

The Estridge Companies are subject te construction defect, product liability and home
warranty claims

As a homebuilder, we have been, and continue to be, subject to construction defect,
product liability and home warranty claims, including moisture intrusion and related mold

claims, arising in the ordinary.course of business. These claims are common to the homebuilding
industry and can be costly.

We have been, and continue to be, named as defendants in various construction defect
claims, product liability claims, complaints and other legal actions that include claims related to
moisture intrusion and mold. Furthermore, plaintiffs may in certain of these legal proceedings
seek class action status with potential class sizes that vary from case to case. Class action
lawsuits can be costly to defend, and if we were to lose any class action suit, it could result in
substantial liability for us.

Although we have obtained insurance for construction defect claims, such policies may
not be available or adequate to cover any liability for damages, the cost of repairs, and/or the
expense of litigation surrounding current claims, and future claims may arise out of uninsurable
events Or circumstances not covered by insurance and not subject to effective indemnification
agreements with our subcontractors.
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The Company and the Guarantors may not be able to satisfy their repurchase or payment
obligations under the Notes and Guarantees.

While the Indenture contains certain covenants which obligate the Company to
repurchase or offer to repurchase the Notes upon the occurrence of certain events, there can be
no assurance that the Company and the Guarantors will have sufficient funds available at any
given time to discharge such obligations. Further, the ability of the Trustee or holders of the

Notes to effect collection should an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) occur wilt be

adversely affected by the subordination provisions of the Indenture and the existence of
substantial Senior Indebtedness, as well as other indebtedness of the Company and the
Guarantors. See “Capitalization” and “Description of the Subordinated Notes.”

If a court voids the guarantees or finds them unenforceable, Note holders will not have a
claim against the Guarantor and will only be a creditor of the Estridge Companies.

The Notes are guaranteed by the Guarantors. The Guarantees may be subject to review
and possible avoidance under U.S. federal bankruptcy law and comparable provisions of state
fraudulent conveyance and fraudulent transfer laws if a bankruptcy or reorganization case is
commenced by or against such Guarantor or a lawsuit is commenced or a judgment is obtained
by an unpaid creditor of such Guarantor. If a Guarantee is voided as a fraudulent conveyance or
fraudulent transfer or found to be unenforceable for any other reason, you will not have a claim
against that Guarantor and will only be a creditor of ours or any Guarantor whose obligation was
not set aside or found to be unenforceable.

The loss of the services of Paul E. Estridge Jr. and the senior management team would
negatively effect the ability of the Estridge Companies to operate.

Our success is highly dependent upon the performance of Paul E. Estridge, Jr. and the
senior management team. See “Management” for information concerning the senior
management team. Neither the Company nor the Guarantors have “key-man” insurance for or
employment agreements with any of their senior management. The loss of key personnel or an

inability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our
business. '

If the Estridge Companies are unable to sell at least $2,650,000 of Notes, the offering will be

terminated,

This Offering is being made on a best efforts, minimum-maximum basis by the
Placement Agent as agent for and at the risk of the Company. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that all or any portion of the Notes will be sold. Al proceeds from subscribers will be
deposited into an escrow account and should the minimum amount of Notes not be sold by the
Termination Date, subscribers will lose the use of their funds until they are returned following
the Termination Date. See “Plan of Distribution.”

Subscribers may encounter difficulties reselling the Notes.

The Notes are being offered for sale only in Indiana, Illinois, Ohio and Tennessee. Only
subscribers residing in those states may purchase the Notes. Further, the Notes will not be listed
with any securities exchange. Accordingly, it is unlikely that there will be an active secondary
market for the Notes. The absence of such a market will render it difficult for a holder to resell
the Notes, or a holder may be able to do so only at discounted prices.
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THE ESTRIDGE COMPANIES

We build single family homes in the Indianapolis, Indiana metropolitan area with a
primary emphasis on Hamilton County, Boone County and Hendricks County, Indiana. We also
develop residential communities through Estridge Development Company, Inc. (the
“Development Company”). The Company offers high-quality homes, many with custom
features, designed principally for First and Second Time Move-up Buyers as well as First Time
Homebuyers (see¢ “Glossary of Terms”). The Company’s homes range in size from
approximately 1,500 to 4,500 square feet and range in price from approximately $170,000 to
over $500,000. Paul E. Estridge Corp. (the “Custom Company”) is a custom builder of single
family homes with sizes from 3,000 to 25,000 square feet and prices from $600,000 to over $5
million.

We also originate and broker residential mortgages, primarily for homes sold to our
customers, generating income from yield spread premiums.

For additional information regarding the ownership and management of the Estridge
Companies, see “Management--Security Ownership of Management and Certain
Securityholders.”

The Estridge Companies’ principal executive offices are located at 14300 Clay Terrace
Boulevard, Suite 200, Carmel, Indiana 46032, and the telephone number is (317) 846-7311.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Company from the sale of the Notes offered hereby after
deducting placement agent commissions, structuring fees and expenses payable by the Company
(“Offering Expenses™), are estimated to be approximately $2,251,250 million if the minimum
amount of Notes is sold and $4,425,000 million if the maximum amount of Notes is sold.

The Company will use $147,075 at the minimum (assuming the sale of a pro rata portion
of each of the three-year, five-year and eight-year Notes at each maturity date), and $277,500 at
the maximum to create the Debt Reserve Fund as required by the Indenture. The Company
intends to use the remainder of the net proceeds to repay a portion of a short-term loan from
Billy Creek Associates, LLC in the amount of $4,500,000. This short-term loan was used by the
Company to pay land development expenses, expenses related to construction in process and
general and administrative expenses incurred by the Company in the development of its various
subdivisions.

The following table summarizes the anticipated use of proceeds from this Offering,
assuming sale of both the minimum and maximum amounts and the order in which those
proceeds will be applied:
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Minimum' Maximum
Placement Agent Commissions, Structuring Fees and Offering Expenses $ 398,750 $§ 575,000

Debt Service Reserve Fund.........ccovumeveeeennnnirmeninressesresenns 147,075 271,500
Discharge of Short-Term Loan.....occcvrreveeevoiniveienrcnnrenoinnns 2,104,175 4,147,500
Total

$ 2,650,000 $ 5,000,000
! Assumes the sale of $530,000 of Notes due 2010, $1,060,000 of Notes due 2012 and
$1,060,000 of Notes due 2015.

CAPITALIZATION

The following sets forth, at September 30, 2006, the consolidated capitalization of the
Company and the pro forma capitalization of the Company, as adjusted, to give effect to this
Offering, assuming sale of only the minimum amount and the anticipated use of the proceeds
from this Offering. See “Use of Proceeds.”

As of As Adjusted for
September 30, 2006 Minimum®
(in thousands)

Notes payable and other debt $87,184 $87,184
Subordinated notes offered hereby e 2,650
Total debt $87,1 $89,834
Stockholders’ Equity : 26,054 26054
Total capitalization $113.238 $115.888

BUSINESS

General. We build single family homes in the Indianapolis, Indiana metropolitan area,
with a focus on Hamilton County, Boone County, Marion County and Hendricks County. Our
business is primarily operated through the Company which is the builder of single family homes
in residential communities developed by the Development Company. The Custom Company
builds custom homes in residential communities other than those developed by the Development
Company. The other companies within the Estridge Companies compliment the businesses of
the Company and Custom Company but do not materially contribute to our financial results.

The key elements of our business strategy are:

Customer-Experience. We strive to make the home building process an experience our
customers will enjoy. All through the process we keep the customer informed and hold

¢ Pro forma capitalization of the Company assumes the sale of $2,650,000 of the Notes.
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;
orientation meetings to better educate them and set expectations. This continues into the

warranty period as we offer our exclusive HomeLife Maintenance and Reliability Program that
provides nearly maintenance free living for three full years from completion of the house.

Product Design and Quality. The design of our homes incorporates spacious floor plans
and includes the luxurious amenities that customers demand. We offer numerous distinct
designs and specification levels geared to specific buyer profiles. Through our attention to detail
and our building process we strive to deliver a superior end product. Based upon the results of
customer satisfaction surveys conducted by an independent consulting company retained by the

Company, this has resulted in satisfaction ratings by our customers over 95% and referral rates of
over 40%.

Customization of Home Designs. We are prepared to customize our designs to meet the
individual preferences and tastes of homebuyers. Upon request, we will make a variety of
modifications that are important to the homebuyer. Such modifications might include changes to
dimensions, floor plans, exterior and interior finish materials, fixtures and appliances. We are
able to offer this level of customization while maintaining the efficiencies of a volume builder,
which management believes provides us with a competitive advantage in our target market.
During 2006, we moved into our new design studio that houses over 7,000 feet of space devoted
to the personalization of the home. A customer can choose from hundreds of cabinet samples,
kitchen lay outs, flooring, bath options, audio and video selections and many other features.

Land Acquisition and Development. One of our most important strategies involves the
development of unique neighborhoods. We carefully research our new locations to ensure we
are marketing our homes in the high demand areas. The land is selected based on a variety of
factors including (1) demographic and marketing studies; (ii) proximity to concentrated job
markets, quality school districts, retail centers and local traffic corridors; (iii) infrastructure
requirements for grading, drainage, utilities, sanitary and storm sewers and streets; (iv)
competition for the proposed community; (v} ability to obtain zoning, platting and other
government approvals; and (vi) projected profitability of the project.

After control of a parcel of raw land has been obtained, our development staff oversees
the preparation of preliminary and final plans for the community, providing for infrastructure,
wetland preservation, recreational facilities and open space. Once pretiminary plans have been
prepared, we must obtain numerous government approvals, licenses, permits and agreements
before we can begin development and construction. For a description of the government
approval and permit process, see “Government Regulation and Environmental Matters.”

Through the creative land planning process within each development, we seek to create a
sense of community. The management team works with consultants to create the best possible
land plan that includes sweeping entry ways and lush landscaping. We also incorporate a
variety of complementary front elevations and architectural designs in our communities. We
seek to create continuity within each community by coordinating the exterior colors and trim of
neighboring homes. The homes offered in a particular community depend upon many factors
including the housing alternatives generally available in the area, the needs of the target buyers
in the community and our cost per lot in the community. '

In a few communities, we acquire our finished lots from other independent land
developers. We will generally enter into an agreement with the developer pursuant to which we
agree to purchase a specified number of lots per month or per quarter. We are generally required
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to provide an initial cash deposit or letter of credit that generally constitutes the developer’s sole
remedy in the event of a default. In this way we are able to secure access to attractive
communities without taking on all the risks of developing the communities internally.

Integrated Operations. Our vertically integrated operations generate operating
efficiencies and enhance profitability. These operations begin with the acquisition of land and
the development of our residential communities by the Development Company. Next, the
Company constructs and sells the single family homes within the residential communities
developed by the Development Company. Finally, we provide our customers with the additional
products and services that they desire through Estridge Design Services, LLC which provides
design studio services, FirstSource Capital, LLC which provides mortgage brokerage services
and First Mile Services, LLC which provides technology services.

For communities we develop, we rely on the substantial land acquisition and
development experience of our management team to acquire unimproved land in central Indiana
locations where management perceives buyer demand. As our own general contractor, we select
subcontractors with which we have substantial experience and which comply with our strict
quality standards. We train our sales staff to communicate the distinct features of each of our
home collections to potential customers, and our mortgage affiliate provides added convenience
and value to homebuyers by offering “one-stop” financing of home purchases.

Strict Cost Controls. We strictly control the cost of developing our communities by: (i)
utilizing our internal land development staff to develop a significant percentage of our lots; (ii)
pricing our homes at competitive levels in order to sell out our communities quickly; (iii)
adhering to strict construction schedules; and (iv) obtaining favorable pricing on construction
-materials from our suppliers and labor from our subcontractors as a result of long-standing
relationships and our position as a leading homebuilder in the Indianapolis area.

We intend to focus our future operations on: (i) continuing to open new communities in
the Indianapolis area; (ii) improving operating efficiencies to reduce costs and enhance earnings;
and (iit) increasing sales by improving marketing and advertising and increasing training of our
sales consuitants. We are not currently considering any expansions through merger or
acquisition or expansion into different marketplaces; rather, we intend to continue our
incremental growth within our current marketplace.

Home Design. In most of our communities we offer homebuyers a choice of homes
from one or more of our five distinct collections, each of which offers a variety of floor plans,
exterior elevations and features targeted to a specific buyer profile.

* The Springmill Collection contains seven two-story floor plans ranging from 2,200 to
2,800 square feet and is designed primarily for First Time Move-up Buyers.

* The Meridian Collection contains seven two-story floor plans ranging from 2,800 to
3,300 square feet and is designed primarily for Second Time Move-up Buyers.

* The Designer Gallery Collection contains four floor plans ranging from 3,600 to 4,500
square feet and is designed primarily for Second Time Move-up Buyers.

* The Irvington Collection contains seven ranch floor plans ranging from 1,500 to 2,150
square feet and is designed primarily for Empty Nesters.
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* The Lockerbie Collection contains five town home floor plans ranging from 1,400 to
2,200 square feet and is designed primarily for Empty Nesters.

In addition to the aforementioned collections we offer a wide range of custom home
designs through the Custom Company. The Architectural Galleries homes are traditional custom
homes ranging from 5,000 to 8,000 square feet. The Renaissance Galleries homes are marketed
to Empty Nesters and range from 2,500 to 4,000 square feet. The Paul E. Estridge Corp. homes
are one-of-a-kind designs that range from 10,000 to 25,000 square feet.

We continually review customer preferences and reports from our sales personnel to
ensure that our home designs and features address the preferences of our targeted customers. We
closely monitor the designs and features chosen by buyers of our homes as well as those offered
by competitors in our market and by homebuilders in other markets. Our architectural team and

in-house draftsmen use this information in a continuing effort to make our home designs more
 attractive to homebuyers.

Construction. We act as the general contractor for the development and construction of
our communities. We employ full-time construction superintendents, each of whom supervises
construction within one specific community. Each superintendent is responsible for coordinating
the activities of the subcontractors, suppliers and building inspectors and for ensuring that the
homes conform to our quality control standards.

Subcontractors typically are retained on a community-by-community basis to complete
construction at a fixed price per house plan for a term of one year. Agreements with our
subcontractors are generally entered into on an individual community basis after competitive
bidding. We have long-standing relationships with many of our subcontractors. We sometimes
negotiate price and volume discounts with manufacturers and suppliers on behalf of
subcontractors to take advantage of our production volume.

Although we currently purchase materials and supplies from a limited number of
suppliers on a regular basis, those materials are generally available from a number of suppliers,
and therefore we are not dependent upon a single supplier for any of our materials. Similarly, we
are dependent upon services performed by our subcontractors, particularly our mechanical
(plumbing, heating and electrical) and drywall subcontractors; however, we do not rely on any
single subcontractor whose services, if withdrawn, could not be replaced.

We generally develop and build our communities in phases in order to create efficiencies
in land development and construction and improve customer satisfaction by reducing the number
of vacant lots and other homes under construction in the immediate vicinity of a completed
home. We typically complete the construction of a home within five months from
commencement of construction, although the custom homes generally take longer.

Marketing and Sales. We place a strong emphasis on effectively marketing our homes to
our target buyers.

We attract initial interest in our communities through an advertising program using media
such as newspapers, direct mail, billboards, radio and television. We believe that we have a
reputation for developing high quality homes, which helps generate interest in our communities.

Management believes that the effective use of model homes demonstrates the advantages
of our home designs and features to prospective homebuyers. We first create a buyer profile for
each community. We then select one or more model homes representative of the product line for
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that community and designed to appeal to the preferences of target buyers. Based on the buyer
profile, we then complete the model home with furniture, fixtures and amenities that generally
appeal to the target buyers.

In February, 2006, we opened the HomExperience, a design studio and home decor retail
operation in a leased retail facility comprised of over 7,400 square feet. With our new
HomEzxperience, we are able to guide our customers through the selection and decision making
process with experienced design consultants in an atmosphere that enables buyers to customize
their new home with creativity, taste and personal style. In the HomExperience, customers can
see, touch and feel large sized samples of everything from exterior materials, such as paint,
siding, brick and roof shingles, to interior items, such as cabinets, countertops, carpet, tile, trim,
lighting, plumbing fixtures and other special features, options and upgrades that go into a home.

Substantially all of our homes are sold by full-time commissioned sales personnel who
work from the on-site sales offices (open seven days a week) of each community. We conduct
continuous training for our sales personnel so that they are prepared to direct each customer to
the appropriate model home and explain the features and benefits of each model. Sales personnel
assist prospective buyers by providing them with information on the available home type,
pricing, options and upgrades, mortgage financing (including qualifying criteria), construction
and warrantics. We survey all buyers at closing as part of our effort to continuously monitor and
adapt to customer preferences. Management believes that maintaining such relations also
contributes to our reputation for customer satisfaction and loyalty.

Generally, construction of a home is begun only after a sales contract has been executed
and the customer has received preliminary mortgage approval. The sales contract requires a cash
deposit of 2% of the purchase price which is refundable only if the contingencies in the sales
contract (such as mortgage financing or the sale of an existing home) are not met. Once the
contingencies in the sales contract are satisfied, we typically require an additional, nonrefundable
cash deposit (which ranges from 1 to 3%, depending on the type of financing being used by the
purchaser) as a condition to starting construction of the home.

Customer Relations and Quality Control. We recognize that for many customers, the
purchase of a home represents the single largest investment they will ever make. We strive to
ensure the soundness of this investment through the delivery of quality homes located in
attractive communities. Accordingly, through every phase of our operation from the beginning
of the sales process through construction, closing and post-closing service, we strive to educate
and involve the customer in the home-building process.

Each community under development has one or two sales representatives who assist the
customer from the initial meeting through the closing. Initially, the sales representative helps the
customer select a floor plan from the appropriate home collection that meets the customer’s
desires. Thereafter, the sales representative is available throughout the entire building process to
answer questions and direct concerns to the appropriate persons.

We inspect the home with the customer several times prior to the closing. We also
require the home pass an internal quality assurance inspection before the home is delivered to the
customer. In addition, customers are asked to complete customer satisfaction surveys at the time
of the closing. The results of these surveys are used to monitor the preferences of our customers
and modify our home designs as necessary to meet these preferences.
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Each home is covered by our three year HomeLife Maintenance and Reliability Program.
This program includes a three year warranty covering workmanship and materials and provides,
at no cost to the homeowner, warranty insurance from Residential Warranty Corporation. The
Residential Warranty Corporation provides coverage for ten years for structural matters, four
years for the roof of the home and two years for other specified items. We are ultimately
responsible for all repairs covered under the HomelLife program and the Residential Warranty
Corporation insurance policy.

Morgage Origination. We have an affiliated mortgage brokerage operation, FirstSource
Capital, LLC. We are approved by the Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development
and are qualified to process FHA, VA and conventional loans and sell the servicing rights. We
originate and broker residential mortgages, primarily for homes sold to our customers. We
generate income from yield spread premiums paid by the institutions which purchase the loans.
The loans are sold without recourse, and FirstSource Capital does not warchouse, package or
service the loans. We will not commit to make a loan without a guaranteed firm commitment in
place, with a set interest rate and price from the lender who will purchase the loan. As a result,
FirstSource Capital does not incur any credit risk or market risk associated with loans that it
originates.

Competition and Market Factors. The home-building industry is highly competitive and
fragmented. We compete for home sales with national, regional and local developers and
homebuilders, individual resales of existing homes and condominiums and available rental
housing. We also compete for the acquisition of developed and undeveloped land on which to
build homes or from which to sell lots. Our primary competitors are Pulte Homes, Drees Homes,
and Centex Homes, one of which is privately owned and two of which are publicly owned
entities. We are one of the leading builders in the Indianapolis area, and management believes
we compete favorably as a result of quality construction and features, land development
expertise, knowledge of the local real estate market and governmental permitting and approval
process, and a favorable reputation in the Indianapolis area.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters. In order to develop land in the
Indianapolis area, we must obtain numerous government approvals, licenses, permits and
agreements before we can begin development and construction. Obtaining the many necessary
government approvals and permits for residential developments in the Indianapolis area is an
extended process that generally takes approximately nine to twelve months and can involve a
number of different governmental jurisdictions and agencies and considerable expense. We
generally do not have any rights to develop a community until after we have received all required
government approvals and permits. As with many other states throughout the country, Indiana
has recently adopted legislation that allows municipalities to impose impact fees as a means of
defraying the costs of providing certain governmental services and improvements to developing
areas.

OFFERING CIRCULAR — THE ESTRIDGE GROUFP, INC, 16

4




Additionally, we, through our mortgage broker affiliate, FirstSource Capital, LLC, are
subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s insured mortgage program. FirstSource Capital is also subject to the Indiana
Department of Financial Institution’s rules relating to mortgage brokers as it is a licensed
mortgage broker under, and subject to the rules and regulations of the Indiana Loan Brokers Act,
Ind. Code Sec. 23-2-5 et seq. Although FirstSource Capital originates mortgage loans, neither it
nor we are required to be licensed as a financial institution, thus neither is subjcct to federal or
state laws for the regulation of financial institutions.

We are also subject to a variety of federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules and
regulations concerning protection of health, worker safety and the environment. These laws may
result in delays, cause us to incur substantial compliance costs and prohibit or severely restrict
development in certain environmentally sensitive regions or areas. Prior to purchasing a parcel
of land, we generally evaluate such land for the presence of hazardous or toxic materials, wastes
or substances. To date, we have not experienced any material delays as a result of these laws,
and our operations have not been materially affected by the presence or potential presence of
such materials.

Employees. Within the Estridge Companies, all employees are employed by the
Company. As of September 30, 2006, the Company had 138 full-time employees. None of our
employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements, and management believes that few
of the subcontractors that we engage are represented by labor unions or are subject to collective
bargaining arrangements. Management believes that our relations with our employees and
subcontractors are good.

Legal Proceedings. From time to time the Company and its affiliated entities become
involved in legal proceedings. Such proceedings generally consist of construction defects,
products liability and home warranty claims, including moisture intrusion and related mold
claims, arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company is generally successful in
reaching an amicable resolution of these claims with the affected homeowners. Further, the
Company does not believe that these claims have a material adverse impact on its financial
condition or results of operations.

2006 Financial Results. During 2006, the Company experienced a net loss of
approximately $3.0 million and the Estridge Companies experienced a net loss of approximately
$2.0 million, compared to net income of approximately $2.8 million and $5.3 million in 2005,
respectively. Our operating results in 2006 were adversely affected by three factors: (i)
softening of the residential real estate market, (ii) delays in opening new developments, and (iii)
investment in start-up operations.

Housing Market. The Indianapolis housing market has experienced a slow down
since the summer of 2605. Permits for new home construction were off by
approximately 16% for the first nine months of calendar 2006. These market conditions
have adversely affected sales in our existing communities. Our closings and backlog
through September 30, 2006, in communities open in both of the last two years are down
by approximately 18%, which is indicative of the market. '

Development Delays. In fiscal 2006, we opened seven new communities. Six of
these communities represented replacements of existing communities and one was a new
community. We had planned to open models in all of these locations in time for the
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spring 2006 selling season. However, the openings of all of these models were delayed
due to development issues, including weather, delays caused by municipalities and
construction delays. Much of the spring sales season in these communities was spent in
temporary sales trailers and models in nearby communities. We believe these delays cost
us approximately 30 sales in these new communities. By the end of our third quarter in
2006, these new communities were fully opened.

Start-up Operations. In 2006, Ameritage Homes and The HomExperience (our
design studio) began operations, and we began the planning and development of Estridge
Designer Gallery (a new product line). As a result of start-up expenses, each contributed
to a higher loss experienced by the Company. Ameritage Homes, offering homes in the
low to mid $200,000s, is open in its first community and had seven closings in fiscal year
2006. Estridge Designer Gallery, offering homes in the $600,000 to $800,000 range, will
open for sales in January, 2007 and is expected to begin closing homes in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2007. The HomExperience began operating in February 2006. As a
result of the HomExperience, options and upgrades to Estridge Collections homes have
increased by an average of over $10,000 per home. Few home sales closed in fiscal year
2006 that were fully integrated into the new design studio process.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Estridge Companies (“the Company”) build single family homes and develop
residential communities in the Indianapolis, Indiana metropolitan area with a primary emphasis
on Hamilton County, Boone County and Hendricks County, Indiana. The Company has been in
operation for 40 years. In 2006, the Estridge Companies delivered 285 homes in the Indianapolis
area, making it one of the largest homebuilders in the area. The Estridge Companies are
currently operating sales offices in 20 communities in the Indianapolis area. Several additional
communities are in the planning and development stages.

Results of Operations

For the year ended September 30, 2006, the Company reported a consolidated net loss of
$3,014,141 on revenues of $109,731,946. For the year ended September 30, 2005, the Estridge
Companies reported consolidated net income of $2,756,333 on revenues of $143,329,298. Prior
to fiscal 2006, the Company had not incurred a loss in 20 years. The loss experienced by the
Company in fiscal 2006 resulted primarily from the lower volume of homes delivered.

Homes delivered declined in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005, from 409 in 2005 to
283 in 2006. The decline in homes delivered was due to due to: i) the Company experienced a
20% decrease in homes delivered in communities operating in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006.
We believe that this decrease is primarily attributable to market conditions. At average margins
per home, the impact from market conditions is estimated to be a decrease in contribution margin
of approximately $2,280,000; ii) the second major factor affecting volume and fiscal 2006
operating results is delays in opening new communities. We believe these delays negatively
impacted our contribution margins by approximately $2,100,000; and, iii) the third major factor
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negatively impacting volume and fiscal 2006 operating results is approximatel)} $1,750,000 of
contribution margin received from communities operating in fiscal 2005 that were closed and not
intended to be replaced in fiscal 2006.

The Company’s homes are offered for sale in advance of their construction, except for a
program under which the Company builds a limited number of speculative homes per
community to market to buyers who need a home to be available immediately (e.g., relocations.)
The Company’s backlog represents the number of homes for which a purchase contract has been
executed and an initial deposit received. Backlog can be considered to reflect the number of in-
process homes sold at a given point in time. The backlog of homes declined from 101 at
September 30, 2005 to 92 at September 30, 2006. This is reflective of market conditions.
Challenging market conditions in the housing industry have placed downward pressure on the
Company’s new home contract sales. The major factors contributing to these challenging market
conditions include increasing levels of existing and new home inventory, decreasing consumer
confidence as reluctant homebuyers delay their purchase decisions, and rising interest rates.

Gross Margin for fiscal 2006 was $21,249,012 or 19.4%, compared to $31,428,286 or
21.9% for 2005. The primary factor driving this decrease on a percentage basis was increased
concessions and discounts incurred during fiscal 2006 in response to market conditions. These
concessions and discounts primarily took the form of increased customer specifications and
upgrade allowances as well as paying certain finance and closing related costs. It is the policy of
the Estridge Companies not to discount base retail home prices in response to market conditions.
Management believes this increases both the long-term value proposition to the purchaser of an
Estridge home as well as allowing the Company to maintain pricing position for its homes in the
market. Although the gross margin, on a percentage basis, could deteriorate slightly in fiscal
2007. This deterioration should reverse once market conditions improve.

Operating Expenses (including Selling and General and Administrative expenses)
increased from $24,009,917 during fiscal 2005 to $25,248,550 in 2006. There were no
significant changes or shifts in the composition or amounts of these expenses between the two
periods. During fiscal 2007, management restructured certain areas of the Company in order to
reduce operating expenses. On an annual basis, we believe these savings will amount to
approximately $1,000,000. No restructuring charge is anticipated related to this effort.

Income Tax Expense for fiscal 2005 was $2,050,247 or 39.1% of income related to
taxable entities before minority interest entities. For 2006, the income tax benefit on the loss
from taxable entities before minority interest entities was $1,907,425 or 42%. The Estridge
Companies’ net deferred tax asset increased to $2,726,814 as of September 30, 2006 from
$870,609 at September 30, 2005 related primarily to net operating losses. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires a valuation allowance to
reduce the deferred tax assets reported if the Company had federal tax operating loss. Based on
the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. After consideration of the evidence, both positive and negative,
management has determined that no valuation allowance is necessary to reduce the deferred tax
assets. '
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In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a
more-likely than not recognition threshold as well as a measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Management has
determined that no valuation allowance is necessary to reduce the deferred tax asset. See notes
A and J of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional disclosure and discussion
regarding income taxes.

Inflation. Our business is significantly affected by general economic conditions of the
Indianapolis metropolitan area and, particularly, by the impact of interest rates. Higher interest
rates may decrease our potential market by making it more difficult for homebuyers to qualify
for mortgages or to obtain mortgages at interest rates that are acceptable to them.

In recent years, we have generally been able to raise prices by amounts at least equal to
our cost increases and, accordingly, have not experienced any detrimental effect from inflation.
As we develop lots for our own use, inflation may increase our profits because land costs are
fixed well in advance of sales efforts. We are generally able to maintain costs with
subcontractors from the date construction is started on a home through the delivery date.
However, in certain situations, unanticipated costs may occur between the time of start and the
delivery date,

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. In January 2003, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 517 (“FIN 46”). The FASB issued a revised FIN
46 (“FIN 46-R”) in December 2003 which modifies and clarifies various aspects of the original
interpretations. Variable interest entities are entities controlled by another entity through means
other than voting rights. We have fully implemented Fin 46-R in the presentation of the
accompanying financial statements. See note S in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional disclosure and discussion regarding the implementation of FIN 46-R.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires the
Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going

basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to revenue recognition,
impairment of real estate assets, capitalization of costs, environmental liability exposure,
miscellaneous litigation reserves, and income taxes. The Company bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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The Company believes the following critical accounting policies reflect the more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Estimates. Reserves for the estimated cost of homes under warranty are recorded in the
period in which the related home is closed and are based on historical experience and trends.
Should actual warranty experience change, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be
required. |

Estimates for the costs to complete land development are recorded upon completion of
the related iand development project. Estimates for land and land development costs are
allocated to development phases based on the total number of lots expected to be developed
within each subdivision and are based on detailed budgets for the land development project and
historical experience and trends. If actual costs or the total number of lots developed changes,
significant variances may be encountered.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues for the Estridge Group and Ameritage are recognized in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 66 (SFAS 66). Revenues are
recognized when a formal closing has occurred, the buyer has made the required minimum down
payment, the buyer has obtained necessary financing, the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer, and the Companies have no continuing involvement with the property.

Revenues for Paul E. Estridge Corp. are recognized in accordance with SFAS 66: (a)
when a formal closing has occurred, the buyer has made the required minimum down payment,
the buyer has obtained necessary financing, the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to
the buyer, and the Companies have no continuing involvement with the property, or (b) under the
percentage of completion method based on the costs incurred relative to total estimated costs ;
where Paul E. Estridge Corp. is a general contractor. !

Estridge Development Company, BCE 1, BCE 11, and BCE III recognize revenues upon
the sale of completed lots. Ali revenues are from companies included in The Estridge Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, all of these revenues have been climinated in
consolidation. Completed lots generally include site acquisitions, surveys, land development and
other items necessary prior to commencement of residential building.

Capitalization of Costs. Capitalized costs are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net
realizable value. Home construction costs consist of materials, subcontracts, and certain indirect
costs associated with the construction of a residential unit. Capitalized interest is included as a
component of construction in process and lot inventory and land development costs on the
Company’s consotidated balance sheets.

Lot Inventory, Land Development Costs and Construction in Progress. The Companies
use the specific identification method for the purpose of accumulating costs associated with '
home construction. Lot inventories and land development costs are recorded at cost, unless they
are determined to be impaired, in which case the impaired assets are written down to fair vatue
less cost to sell in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No.
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144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). In
addition to the costs of direct land acquisition, land development and related costs (both incurred
and estimated to be incurred) and home construction costs, inventories include capitalized
interest, real estate taxes and certain indirect costs incurred during land development and home
construction. Such costs are charged to cost of sales simultaneous with revenue recognition.
Land Development Costs are allocated to individual lots on a pro-rata basis. Home construction
costs are also recorded at cost and are included in construction in process. When a home is
closed, all incurred costs necessary to complete the home may have not been paid. As homes
close, home construction budgets and contracts are compared to actual recorded costs to date to
estimate the additional costs to be paid to subcontractors related to the home. A liability is
recorded and a corresponding charge to cost of sales is recognized for the amount estimated to be
ultimately paid related to that home. The accuracy of this estimate is monitored by comparing
actual costs incurred in subsequent months to the estimate. Although actual costs to complete in
the future could differ from the estimate, this method has historically produced consistently
accurate estimates of actual costs to complete closed homes.

Consolidated Land Inventory Not Owned. In order to ensure the future availability of
land for homebuilding, the Companies enter into option purchase agreements (agreements) for
undeveloped land and developed lots with unaffiliated third parties and variable interest entities
described in Note A under Nature of Operations. Under these agreements, the Companies pay
stated deposits or provide letters of credit in consideration for the right to purchase land at a
future time at predetermined prices. These options generally do not contain performance
requirements from the Companies nor obligate the Companies to purchase the land. Deposits
related to these agreements are included in the consolidated balance sheet in other assets. To the
extent the Companies do not exercise the option to purchase such land, the amount of the land
optton deposit, any letters of credit, as well as development costs incurred to date, generally
represent the Companies maximum exposure to loss.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. In January 2003, the Financial Accounting .
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 517 (“FIN 46”). The FASB issued a revised FIN
46 (“FIN 46-R”) in December 2003 which modifies and clarifies various aspects of the original
interpretations. Variable interest entities are entities controlled by another entity through means
other than voting rights. FIN 46-R provides guidance on determining whether and how a
business enterprise should consolidate a variable interest entity. FIN 46-R requires significant
use of judgment and estimates in determining its application.

Environmental Liability Exposure. Development and sale of real property creates a
potential for environmental liability on the Company’s part as owner and developer, for its own
acts as well as the acts of prior owners of the subject property or owners or past owners of
adjacent parcels. If hazardous substances are discovered on or emanating from any of its
properties, the Company and prior owners may be held liable for costs and liabilities relating to
those hazardous substances. The Company generally undertakes environmental studies in
connection with its property acquisitions. In the event the Company incurs environmental
remediation costs, including clean up costs, consulting fees for environmental studies and
investigations, monitoring costs, and legal costs relating to clean up, litigation defense, and the
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pursuit of responsible third parties, if these costs are incurred in connection with properties the
Company previously sold, then they are expensed. The Company capitalizes costs relating to
land under development and undeveloped land as part of development costs. Costs incurred for
properties to be sold are deferred and charged to cost of sales when the properties are sold.
Should a previously undetected, substantial environmental hazard be found on the Company’s
properties, significant liquidity could be consumed by the resulting clean up requirements and a
material expense may be recorded. Further, governmental regulation on environmental matters
affecting residential development could impose substantial additional expense on the Company,
which could adversely affect its results of operations or the value of properties owned under
contract, or purchased by the Company.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in
the consolidated financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes.
Deferred taxes are recognized for the differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for
financial statement and income tax purposes. Those differences relate primarily to fixed assets
(use of different depreciation methods and lives for financial statement and income tax
purposes), and certain accrued expenses (use of accrual method for financial statement purposes
and cash method for income tax purposes). The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the
future tax consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the
assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taxes are also recognized for any
operating loss carryforwards, charitable contribution carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards
that are available to offset future income taxes. Adjustments may be required by a change in
assessment of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes due to audit adjustments by Federal and
State tax authorities, and changes in tax laws. To the extent adjustments are required in any given
period, the adjustments would be included within the tax provision in the statement of operations
and/or balance sheet. These adjustments could materially impact our financial position and
results of operations and liquidity.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our financing needs depend on sales volume, asset turnover, land acquisition, inventory
balances and growth targets. We have incurred substantial indebtedness, and may incur
substantial indebtedness in the future, to fund the growth of our land development and
homebuilding activities. A detailed summary of the Company’s indebtedness as of fiscal years
ending September 30, 2005 and 2006 is set forth in Note D on pages F-14 through F-20 of this
Offering Circular. During fiscal 2007, we currently intend to purchase additional land, funded
by secured borrowings. We continue to purchase some lots from outside developers under
agreements.

On an ongoing basis, the Company requires capital to purchase and develop land, to
construct units, to fund related carrying costs and overhead and to fund various advertising and
marketing programs to facilitate sales. These expenditures include site preparation, roads, water
and sewer lines, impact fees and earthwork, as well as the construction costs of the homes and
amenities. The Company’s sources of capital include funds derived from operations, various
bank borrowings, most of which are secured, and limited liability partnerships.
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The Company obtains its land acquisition and development funding on a project-by-
project basis. Land acquisition and development loans are secured by the related project’s real
property. The annual interest rate on each of these loans range from prime to prime plus 1%.
These loans are scheduled to mature at various times through June 2008. The {oan agreements
contain customary representations and covenants, including loan to value limitations and
limitations on the maximum principal amount that can be outstanding at any time.

The Company’s current construction loans are revolving credit arrangements provided by
established commercial lenders in the Indianapolis area. These loans are secured by the homes
under construction. The Company draws down available funds from these credit facilities from
time to time throughout the construction process, generally up to 80% of the value of the new
home. The credit facilities are repaid in the normal course of business as each home closes with
the amount of the repayment equal to 100% of the construction }oan attributable to that home.
Annual interest rates on these credit facilities range from LIBOR plus 300 basis points to prime
plus 1% and are scheduled to mature in increments from time to time between April 2007 and
February 2009. The loan agreements contain customary representations and covenants,
including loan to value limitations, limitations on the maximum principal amount that can be
outstanding at any time and limits on the number of speculative and model homes at any one
time. '

The Company has no planned extraordinary capital expenditures or future material
funding requirements outside the normal course of business. Consistent with the historical
results of the company, current obligations will be funded through ongoing operations, including
proceeds from future home closings and borrowings under its available credit facilities. The
Company believes that funds generated from these sources will provide sufficient capital for the
Company to meet its existing operating needs.

On November 14, 2006, the Company was notified by a financial institution of a
covenant default for advances on certain homes built pursuant to purchase contracts and
speculatively built homes. The default has since been cured.

Cash Flow Statement. Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended September
30, 2006 was $28,230,974, compared to net cash used in operating activities for the year ended
September 30, 2005 of $14,630,708. This increase was primarily attributable to the swing in
profitability ($7.278 million), the change in construction in process ($3.902 million), and the
change in the deferred tax asset ($3.656 million.) Construction in process increased due to the
homes in backlog and speculative homes at September 30, 2006 being generally more complete
on a percentage of cost basis than were the homes in backlog and speculative homes at
September 30, 2005. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended September 30, 2006
was $2,974,180, compared to $2,006,114 for the year ended September 30, 2005. This decrease
was evenly attributable to the purchase of property and equipment and payments for start-up and
pre-development costs. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended September
30, 2006 was $29,506,928, compared to $17,690,743 for the year ended September 30, 2005.
The increase in net cash provided by financing activities in the current year is primarily
attributable to capital contributions in minority equity in variable interest entities during the year
ended September 30, 2006.
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Lot Positions

As of September 30, 2006, the Company owned or controlied approximately 1,132
building lots with an aggregate purchase price of approximately $86,758,000. Included in the
aforementioned lots are 695 lots which are controlled through variable interest entities with a
purchase price of approximately $51,675,000. As of September 30, 2006, the Company also
owned approximately 640 acres of undeveloped land with an aggregate purchase price of "
approximately $25,952,000. This land is expected to yield approximately 1,351 building lots. A
variable interest entity also owns approximately 120 acres with a purchase price of $3,700,000
and is expected to yield approximately 240 building lots.

Undeveloped Land Acquisitions. Generally, the Company structures its land acquisitions
so that it has the right to cancel its agreements to purchase undeveloped land by forfeiture of its
deposit under the agreement. As of September 30, 2006, all of the Company’s agreements to
purchase undeveloped land were structured in this manner. At September 30, 2006, overall
undeveloped parcels of land under contract had an aggregate purchase price of approximately
$6,225,000 and were expected to yield approximately 375 building lots.

RECENT EVENTS

Loan Covenants. The Company received a letter from National City Bank dated
November 14, 2006, which indicated that as of October 17, 2006, the Company was not in
compliance with the terms of certain covenants in its borrowing documents. Specifically, the
letter stated that the Company was in violation of a covenant limiting the length of time that its
homes could remain financed and unsold, in that three of the Company’s homes exceeded the
allowed repayment period. Additionally, the Company was informed that it exceeded the
limitations related to the aggregate financing from all sources for speculative housing.

Following receipt of the letter, the Company refinanced the three houses identified in the
letter with another bank. On February 9, 2007, National City Bank waived the non-compliance
identified in its November 14, 2006 letter to the Company. In connection with this waiver,
National City Bank limited the amount of borrowings by the Company with National City Bank
to $5,000,000 and extended until June 30, 2007, the maturity of the borrowings with National
City Bank.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Facilities. We currently lease approximately 21,000 square feet of office space for our
headquarters in Carmel, Indiana, pursuant to a lease with Clay Terrace Partners, LLC, an
unrelated party, for an aggregate annual rent of approximately $400,000. The term of this lease
ends on November 30, 2015, subject to certain extensions.

We entered into a lease with Clay Terrace Partners, LLC, an unrelated third party, for the
HomExperience, our design studio. The HomExperience is a retail facility which contains
approximately 7,400 square feet. The term of this lease ends on May 31, 2015, subject to certain
extensions.
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Though the facilities used for our headquarters and for the design studio are fully utilized,

management believes that these facilities are suitable and adequate for the conduct of our
business for the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers and Managers

Our business and affairs are ultimately directed by Paul E. Estridge, Jr. who is the sole
sharcholder and the sole director of the Development Company and the Custom Company.
Additionally, he is the sole director and owns 95% of the capital stock of the Company.

Board of Directors —

Officers -

Board of Directors —

Officers ~

Board of Directors —

Officers —-

The Estridge Group, Inc.

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the sole director of the Company (since
1983)

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the President of the Company (since 1983)

Michael Keller is the Treasurer and Secretary of the Company
(since 1989)

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

(the “Development Company”)

Paul E. Estridge, Ir. is the sole director of Estridge Development
Company, Inc. (since 1983)

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the President of Estridge Development
Company, Inc. (since 1983)

Michael Keller is the Treasurer and Secretary of Estridge
Development Company, Inc. (since 1989)

Paul E. Estridge Corp.
(the “Custom Company”)

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the sole director of Paul E. Estridge Corp.
(since 1983)

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. is the President of Paul E. Estridge Corp.(since
1983)

Michael Keller is the Treasurer and Secretary of Paul E. Estridge
Corp. (since 1989)

The following is a list of the Senior Management Team of the Estridge Companies:
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Paul E. Estridge, Jr., age 49 — President and Chief Servant (since 1983)

Mr. Estridge founded the Company in 1983, the Development Company in 1989, First Mile
Technologies in 1999, Lockerbie Townhomes in 2000, FirstSource Capital in 2001, and
Ameritage Homes in 2004. He purchased the Custom Company from his father in 1992. He is
active in the Young President’s Organization, Grace Community Church, and many charitable
and civic organizations. He is a graduate of the University of Evansville with a degree in
Business Administration — Real Estate. Mr. Estridge is the brother-in-law of Gary McNutt.

Michael Keller, age 45 — Managing Partner and General Manager (since 1989)

Mr. Keller has been with the Estridge Companies for 17 years, previously serving in the
positions of Controller and CFO of the Company. He is a graduate of the University of
Evansville with a degree in business administration.

Randy McNutt, age 48 — Executive VP Sales (since 1985)
Mr. McNutt is responsible for sales management. He has been with the Estridge Companies for
21 years, previously serving in the roles of sales consultant, sales manager, marketing, and

general management of the Company. He has a business degree from Indiana University. Mr.
McNutt is the brother of Gary McNutt.

Paul Hayes, age 44 - VP Finance and Controller (since 1997)

Mr. Hayes is responsible for corporate finance, as well as all accounting functions of the
Company. He holds an accounting degree from Ball State University and is a CPA. He has been
with the Estridge Companies for nine years. Prior to joining the Estridge Companies, Mr. Hayes
was financial reporting controller for Simon Property Group.

Todd Fenoglio, age 43 — VP Product Development and Internal Production (since 2005)
Mr. Fenoglio is responsible for product development, internal production, and architectural
services. He has a degree in architecture from Ball State University and is a registered architect
and member of AIA. Todd has been with the Estridge Companies for five years. He also served
as President of Precedent Homes in Indianapolis.

Gary McNutt, age 49 — Executive VP Paul E. Estridge Corp. (since 1983)

Mr. McNutt has been employed by the Estridge Companies for 22 years. He is responsible for
the sales and marketing of Paul E. Estridge Corp. Gary graduated from Indiana University with
a degree in business. Mr. McNutt is the brother-in law of Paul E. Estridge and the brother of
Randy McNutt.

Brad Love, age 47 — Executive VP Paul E. Estridge Corp. (since 1987)

Mr. Love is responsible for the external and internal operations of the Estridge Companies. He
has been with the Estridge Companies for 18 years, also serving in management of internal
production for the Company. Brad holds a degree in civil engineering from the University of
Evansviile. '
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Remuneration of Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth information with respect to the aggregate annual
remuneration paid by the Estridge Companies for services rendered during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 to the three most highly compensated executive officers of the Estridge
Companies. The Estridge Companies are not a party to an employment agreement with any of
the executive officers of the Estridge Companies.

Summary Compensation Table

Name of Individual and Annual
Principal Capacities in Which Served Year Remuneration
Paui E. Estridge, Jr.
President and Chief Servant 2006 $600,000
Gary McNutt 2006 $241,194

Executive Vice President, Paul E. Estridge Corp.

Brad Love 2006 $236,194
Executive Vice President, Paul E, Estridge Corp.

Description of Companies and Security Ownership of Management and Certain
Securityholders

The Estridge Group, Inc,

The Estridge Group, Inc. (also referred to herein as the “Company”) is an Indiana
corporation engaged in the business of constructing single family homes.

The following table sets forth the names and addresses of each of the shareholders of the
Company and their respective ownership interests:

Number of Percent of
Title of Class Name and Address of Owner Shares Class

Common Stock Paul E. Estridge, Jr. 1,512,014 95%
Business )
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
15747 Oak Road
Carmel, Indiana 46033
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Common Stock = Michael J. Keller 15,501 1%
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
1531 Redwood Drive
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Common Stock Randy McNutt 15,501 1%
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
3093 West 166th Street
Westfield, Indiana 46074

Common Stock Gary McNutt 15,501 1%
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
856 Wedgewood Lane
Carmel, Indiana 46033

Common Stock Brad Love ' 15,501 1%
Business
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Residence
15925 Oak Park Court
Westfield, Indiana 46074

Common Stock Charlie Scott ' 15,501 1%
Residence
12040 Durbin Drive
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Common Stock Officers and Directors as a Group 1,589,519 100%

There are no outstanding options, warrants or rights to purchase capital stock of the
Company.

The Company has the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: Ameritage Homes, LLC,
First Mile Services, LLC, and Estridge Design Services, LLC. The officers and directors of the
Company serve in the same capacities as the officers and directors of Ameritage Homes, LLC,
First Mile Services, LLC, and Estridge Design Services, LLC.,
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Estridge Development Company, Inc.

Estridge Development Company, Inc. (also referred to herein as the “Development
Company”) is an Indiana corporation engaged in the business of land acquisition and the
development of residential communities in which the Company will be the home builder.

The following table sets forth the name and address of the sole sharcholder of Estridge
Development Company, Inc. and his ownership interest:

Number of Percent of

Title of Class Name and Address of Owuer .Shares - Class
Common Stock Paul E. Estridge, Jr. 100 100%
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

There are no outstanding options, warrants or rights to purchase capital stock of Estridge
Development Company, Inc.

Paul E. Estridge Corp.

Paul E. Estridge Corp. (also referred to herein as the “Custom Company™) is an Indiana
corporation engaged in the business of building custom homes generally outside of communities
developed by the Development Company.

The following table sets forth the name and address of the sole shareholder of Paul E.
Estridge Corp. and his ownership interest:

Number of Percent of

Title of Class Name and Address of Owner Shares Class
Common Stock Paul E. Estridge, Jr. 100 100%
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

There are no outstanding options, warrants or rights to purchase capital stock of Paul E.
Estridge Corp.

The following is a summary of the ownership, management and description of the
remaining Estridge Companies:

BCE Associates I, LLC, BCE Associates II, LLC, BCE Associates III, LLC, BCE
Associates IV, LLC

These Indiana limited liability companies are each managed by their manager, the
Development Company. The Development Company and third-party equity investors are the
only members of these companies. The purpose of these companies is to provide development
financing for specific residential developments in which the Company is the exclusive builder.
These companies own and develop the real estate and sell finished lots to the Company pursuant
to lot sales agreements. Each development is financed through a loan from a financial institution
which is guaranteed by the Company, the Guarantors and Mr. Estridge. The Development
Company expects no distributions or returns from the limited liability companies. The limited
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tiability companies and the lot sales agreements are structured so that the third-party equity
investors are paid a fixed priority return of 19.5% per annum with no cash flow remaining for the
Development Company. The Company through the lot sales agreements and the Development
Company through the operating agreement are obligated to provide the funds necessary for the
equity investors to receive the priority return. Further, Mr. Estridge has guaranteed substantially
ail of the priority return. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Development Company and
a third-party equity investor established BCE Associates IV, LLC to finance the acquisition of
real estate to be held for development. The Development Company is the manager of BCE
Associates IV, LLC. The third-party equity investor will receive a fixed priority return of 19.5%
per annum from BCE Associates IV, LLC with no cash flow remaining for the Development
Company.

Estridge Investment Co., LLP
Estridge Investment Co., LLP is an Indiana limited liability company engaged in the

business of holding a single parcel of commercial real estate. This real estate housed the former
headquarters of the Estridge Companies which are now being subleased to third-parties.

This company is currently owned 50% by Paul E. Estridge, Sr. and 50% by Paul E.
Estridge, Jr. The Company currently leases its former headquarters from Estridge Investment
Co., LLP and guarantees the borrowing of Estridge Investments.

FirstSource Capital, LLC

FirstSource Capital, LLC is an Indiana limited liability company engaged in the business
of providing mortgage brokerage services to the customers of the Company.

This company is owned and managed by Paul E. Estridge, Jr.
Subsidiaries of The Estridge Group, Inc. |

The subsidiaries of the Company are their related business are provided below.
Ameritage Homes, LLC

Ameritage Homes, LLC is an Indiana limited liability company engaged in the business
of single family home construction in the low to mid $200,000s which is a lower price point
from the homes built by the Company. Ameritage Homes, LLC is wholly-owned by the
Company and managed by the officers of the Company.

Estridge Design Services, LL.C

Estridge Design Services, LLC is an Indiana limited liability company engaged in the
business of operating a design studio for our customers and related retail operation. Estridge
Design Services, LLC is wholly-owned by the Company and managed by the officers of the
Company.

First Mile Services, LL.C i

First Mile Services, LLC is an Indiana limited liability company engaged in providing
phone, internet, cable television and security monitoring services to a limited number of the
communities developed by us. First Mile Services, LLC is wholly-owned by the Company and
operates its business through its subsidiaries: First Mile Entertainment, LLC, First Mile Capital,
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LLC, and First Mile Investments, LLC. The First Mile entities are managed by the officers of !
the Company.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Affiliate Transactions

It has been the policy of the Company and the Guarantors that any transaction between
the Company or the Guarantors and an officer, director or affiliate, including any future loans
between the Company or the Guarantors and an officer, director or affiliate, be on terms no less
favorable to the Estridge Companies than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party.
Future loans to officers, directors and shareholders who hold greater than 5% of the outstanding |
stock of the Company will be for bona fide business purposes and will be approved by a majority
of the directors including a majority of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Because Paul E. Estridge is currently the sole director of the Company, the
Company will not be able to enter into a loan with him unless an additional director is added.

Paul E. Estridge Corp. has various notes payable to related parties accruing interest at
rates from prime to prime plus 1% that expired in December 1996. The notes are payable on
demand after thirty days notice from the related parties. The balance of this related party debt
was $785,865 for both years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

Estridge Development Company, Inc. has a note payable to Estridge Development
Company’s stockholder at a rate of prime plus 1.75% with annual principal payments of
$220,000. The balance on this stockholder note payable amounted to $1,100,000 and $0 at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBORDINATED NOTES

-

The Notes will be issued under an indenture (the “Indenture”) dated 2007,
between the Company and MainSource Bank, as Trustee, a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to |
the Offering Statement of which this Offering Circular is a part. The Indenture will not be
qualified under the Trust Indenture Act under claim of exemption for issuances of $10,000,000
or less. The Trustee will also act as Paying Agent with respect to the Notes. The following
statements are brief summaries of the material provisions of the Indenture and are subject to, and
are qualified in their entirety by reference to, all of the provisions of the Indenture, including the
definitions therein of certain terms. Wherever particular provisions or defined terms of the 1
Indenture are referred to in this Offering Circular, it is intended that such provisions or defined
terms be incorporated herein by reference. Article or section references in parentheses indicate
the particular locations in the Indenture in which additional or more specific information canbe
found. ;.‘l

General

The Notes will be issued in an aggregate principal amount limited to $5,000,000. The
interest rates and maturity dates are as follows: 3

i

2007 Subordinated Notes Due 2010 - interest rate of 10.5% per annum and a maturity
date of , 2010
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2007 Subordinated Notes Due 2012 - interest rate of 11% per annum and a maturity date

of 2012
2007 Subordinated Notes Due 2015 - interest rate of 11.5% per annum and a maturity
date of 2015

The Notes will bear interest from the date of issuance payable semi-annually in arrears on
January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing July 1, 2007 (for the period from the date of
issuance through June 30, 2007) to the holders of record on the day preceding the interest
payment date. (Sections 2.01, 2.02 and 4.01) The Notes are not convertible into common stock
or other securities of the Company or any of the Guarantors.

Principal (and premium, if any) and interest will be payable at the office or agency
maintained by the Company for such purpose in Carmel, Indiana, provided that payment of
interest may be made at the option of the Company by check mailed to the address of the person
entitled thereto as it appears in the register maintained by the Trustee. (Sections 2.03,2.12 and -
4.01)

The Notes will be issued only in registered form in denominations of $1,000, subject to a
minimum initial purchase of $5,000, and any integral multiple thereof. (Section 2.02). At any
time after the execution and delivery of the Indenture and upon the request of the Company, the
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Notes executed by the Company as provided in the
Indenture. No Note shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless so authenticated.
(Section 2.02). The Company may charge a reasonable fee for registering transfers of the Notes
and the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other
governmental charge payable in connection therewith., (Sectlon 2.06)

Subordination of the Notes and Guarantees

The Notes and Guarantees represent unsecured general obligations of the Company and
the Guarantors. The Notes and Guarantees are subordinated in right of payment to all Senior
Indebtedness, whether outstanding as of the date of this Offering or thereafter incurred. Senior
Indebtedness is defined generally in the Indenture to include indebtedness created, incurred,
assumed or guaranteed by the Company or the Guarantors for money borrowed other than (i) the
Notes, (ii) indebtedness of the Company to any of its Insiders, (iii) indebtedness of the Company
to any of its subsidiaries or affiliates (or from one subsidiary or affiliate to another), or (iv)
indebtedness or amounts owed for goods, materials or services purchased in the ordinary course
of business. There is no limit on the amount of Senior Indebtedness the Company or the
Guarantors may incur or have outstanding at any given time. (Article 6)

Guarantees of the Notes

The Notes will be guaranteed by the Guarantors (the “Guarantees”™). The Guarantees will
be unsecured obligations of the Guarantors and will be subordinated in right of payment to all
existing and future Senior Indebtedness. Except for the Guarantors, no othcr of the Estridge
Companies will guarantee the Notes.
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Under the Guaranty Agreements the Guarantors irrevocably and unconditionally
guarantee to each Noteholder the due and punctual payment in full of (i) the principal and
interest on, and any other amounts due under, the Notes when and as the same shall become due
and payable and (ii) any other sums which may become due under the terms and provisions of
the Offering Circular, the Indenture or the Notes. Further, the Guarantors agree to pay and to
indemnify and save each Noteholder harmless from and against any damage, loss, cost or
expense which such Noteholder may incur or be subject to as a consequence, direct or indirect,
of (i) any breach by the Guarantors or the Issuer of any warranty, covenant, term or condition in,
or the occurrence of any default under the Guaranty Agreements, the Indenture or the Notes, and
(i1) any legal action commenced to challenge the validity or enforceability of the Guaranty
Agreements, the Indenture or the Notes.

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. has entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with each of the
Guarantors of the Notes. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, Paul E. Estridge,
Jr. has agreed to reimburse the Guarantors for all losses, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities,
judgments, costs and expenses which the Guarantors may incur arising out of or relating to the
Guaranty Agreements and which the Guarantor is unable or unwilling to satisfy for any reason.
~ In the event that the Guarantors are unable to satisfy their obligations under the Guaranty
Agreements, Paul E. Estridge, Jr. shall assume and satisfy such obligations as if he were
primarily liable for such obligations under the Guaranty Agreements.

Redemption at the Estridge Companies’ Option

The Notes will not be redeemable prior to January 1, 2008. Thereafter, the Notes will be
redeemable at the Estridge Companies’ option as a whole or from time to time in part on not less
than 60 nor more than 90 days’ notice by mail at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued
interest to the date fixed for redemption (Section 3.01).

No Sinking Fund

No principal payments will be due with respect to the Notes prior to their maturity, The
Indenture does not require, and the Company does not plan to, make any payments to a sinking
fund for either principal or interest other than the Debt Service Reserve Fund described below.

Redemption at Death

Upon the death of a noteholder, Notes owned by the deceased noteholder may be
tendered to the Company for redemption within sixty (60) days after the date of death. Notes
tendered for redemption under this provision will be redeemed at par plus accrued interest,
provided the Company shall not be obligated to redeem more than $100,000 in Notes in the
aggregate from the noteholders under this provision in any twelve-month period. The Company
shall have sixty (60) days to redeem the Notes. (Section 3.02)

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Company will establish the Reserve Fund under the Indenture with cash equal to six
(6) months interest on the Notes. The Reserve Fund shall be used to pay principal and interest
on the Notes in the event other monies provided by the Company for such purpose are
insufficient. The Reserve Fund shall be maintained by the Trustee as a separate and distinct trust
fund to be held, managed, invested, disbursed and administered as provided in the Indenture.
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The Trustee shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to the Reserve Fund, and all
disbursements therefrom. If the amount in the Reserve Fund is at any time less than six (6)

months interest on the Notes, the Company is required to deposit sufficient monies with the

Trustee to bring the balance equal to six (6) months interest within ninety (90) days. (Section

4.02) !

Upon deposit with the Trustee of monies sufficient to pay all principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on all Notes then outstanding, and upon satisfaction of all claims against the
Company under the Indenture, or upon making of adequate provisions for the payment of such
amounts as permitted by the Indenture, all monies remaining in the Reserve Fund, except monies
necessary to pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the outstanding Notes, shall be
remitted to the Company. (Section 4.02)

Certain Covenants

Maintenance of Total Shareholders’ Equity. If the total consolidated shareholders’ equity
(“Equity”) of the Estridge Companies is less than $20.0 million for two (2) consecutive quarters,
the Indenture provides for the engagement of a consultant or financial advisor to assist in
increasing Equity. If, after the consultant’s engagement, the Equity then drops to less than $13.0
million for four (4) consecutive quarters, the Indenture requires the Company to offer to
repurchase ten percent (10%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes then outstanding
per fiscal quarter until such time as the Equity is equal to or greater than $13.0 million.

Offers to repurchase will be at 100% of principal plus interest accrued and unpaid to the
repurchase date. The Notes to be repurchased will be selected by lot and will be repurchased on
the last day of each fiscal quarter the Company is required to redeem such Notes. (Section 3.03)

Other than with respect to shareholders’ equity as described above, the Indenture does not
contain any provistons requiring the maintenance of any financial ratios.

Restricted Payments. The Indenture provides that the Company may not make any
distribution or payment on its common stock or to its shareholders (other than distributions to
sharcholders to the extent necessary to pay the shareholders’ respective income tax liabilities
associated with the Company and distributions payable in additional shares of common stock), or
purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire or retire for value any shares of common stock of the
Company (collectively, “Restricted Payments™) if, at the time of such Restricted Payment, or
after giving effect thereto, a Default or an Event of Default under the Indenture shall have
occurred and be continuing.

Offer to Purchase on Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control
(as defined in the Indenture), the Company must make an offer to repurchase all of the then
outstanding Notes in multiples of $1,000 within thirty (30) days of the Change of Control. This
offer shall be mailed by the Trustee not less than thirty (30) days nor more than forty-five (45)
days before the Redemption Date to the holders of the Notes. The offer shall remain open from
the time of mailing until five (5) days before the Redemption Date. (Section 3.04)

Annual Reports. The Company must file with the Trustee and the Placement Agent
audited financial statements no later than 120 days from the end of its fiscal year. Holders of the
Notes may receive copies of such financial statements upon written request by such Holders to
the Placement Agent. (Section 4.03)
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Payment of Taxes and Other Claims. The Company must pay or discharge, before the
same shall become delinquent, (1) all taxes, assessments and governmental charges levied or
imposed upon it or upon its income, profits or property, and (2) all lawful claims for labor,
materials and supplies which, if unpaid, might by law become a lien upon its property, unless the
same is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings. (Section 4.05)

Maintenance of Properties. The Company must cause all of its properties used or useful
in the conduct of its business to be maintained and kept in good condition, repair and working
order and must cause to be made all necessary repairs, renewals, replacements and improvements
thereof, as in the judgment of the Company may be necessary to carry on its business. However,
the Company is not prevented from discontinuing the maintenance and operation of its properties
if the discontinuance is, in the judgment of the Company, desirable in the conduct of its business
and not disadvantageous in any material respect to the holders of the Notes. (Section 4.06)

Transactions with Affiliates. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary may enter into a
transaction, loan, advance, capital contribution or transfer with any Affiliate of the Company
unless such transaction is reasonably determined in good faith by the Board of Directors to be
fair and reasonable to the Company or such Subsidiary and not materially adverse to the interests
of a Holder (as defined in the Indenture). (Section 4.10)

Transfer of Material Assets. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary may seil or
otherwise dispose of any material portion of its property or assets outside the ordinary course of
business unless such transaction is reasonably determined in good faith by the Board of Directors
to be fair and reasonable to the Company or such Subsidiary (including interest in its
Subsidiaries). (Section 4.11)

Restrictions on Merger or Sale. The Indenture provides that the Company may not
merge into or consolidate with another entity or transfer substantially all of its assets to another
entity unless (i) the surviving Company is a U.S. entity, (ii) the surviving Company is bound by
all the terms of the Indenture, (iii) no default (as defined below) or Event of Default would exist
as a result of the transaction, and (iv) the consolidated net worth of the surviving entity is at least
equal to the consolidated net worth of the Company immediately prior to such transaction.
(Section 5.01) '

Events of Default

Events of default are defined in the Indenture as being: (a) default in payment of any
interest installment due on the Notes; (b) default in payment of principal, or premium, if any; (c)
default in performance of any other covenant in the Indenture that continues for thirty (30) days
after notice to the Company by the Trustee or to the Company and the Trustee by the holders of
25% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes; (d) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency
and reorganization of the Company; () a default under any bond, note or other evidence of
indebtedness (other than nonrecourse indebtedness) for borrowed money in excess of $25,000;
and (f) a judgment in excess of $25,000 (or judgments aggregating $250,000 or more) is entered
against the Company and such judgment is not satisfied or appealed (and execution stayed)
within sixty (60) days. (Section 7.01) -
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The Indenture provides that, if an Event of Default shall have happened and be
continuing, either the Trustee or the holders of 25% in principal amount of the Notes then
outstanding may declare the principal of all the Notes to be due¢ and payable immediately. Upon
certain conditions, such declaration may be annulled and past defauits (except, unless theretofore
cured, a default in the payment of principal or premium, if any, or interest on the Notes) may be
waived by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Notes then outstanding. (Sections
7.02 and 7.04)

The Indenture contains a provision entitling the Trustee, subject to the duty of the Trustee
during default to act with the required standard of care, to be indemnified by the Note holders
before proceeding to exercise any right or power under the Indenture at the request of the Note
holders. (Section 8.06). The Indenture also provides that the holders of a majority in principal
amount of the outstanding Notes may direct the time, method and place of conducting any
proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on
the Trustee, provided that the Trustee may decline to act if such direction is contrary to law or if
the Trustee determines in good faith that proceeding in the manner directed would be illegal or
would involve it in personal liability or would be unjustly prejudicial to the holders of the Notes
not consenting. (Section 7.05)

The Indenture provides that no Note holder may institute any action against the Company
under the Indenture (except actions for payment of overdue principal, interest or any premium)
unless such Note holder previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of default and
continuance thereof, and unless the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of Notes then
outstanding shall have requested the Trustee to institute such action and shall have offered the
Trustee reasonable indemnity, the Trustee shall not have instituted such action within 60 days of
such request and the Trustee shall not have received directions inconsistent with such written
request by the holders of not less than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then
outstanding. (Section 7.06)

The Indenture requires the Company to file annually with the Trustee a certificate either
stating the absence of any default or specifying any default that may exist, and deliver to the
Trustee within ten (10) days of the occurrence thereof, notice of any default described in clause
(c) of the events of Default above. (Section 4.03). The Indenture provides that the Trustee shall,
within sixty (60) days after the occurrence of a default, give to the holders of the Notes notices of
all uncured defaults known to it; provided that, except in the case of a default in the payment of
principal or premium, if any, or interest on any of the Notes, the Trustee shall be protected in
withholding such notice if the Trustee in good faith determines that withholding such notice is in
the interest of the holders of the Notes. The term “Default” for the purpose of this provision
shall mean the happening of any Events of Default specified above excluding any grace periods.
(Section 8.05)

Modification of the Indenture

The Indenture contains provisions permitting the Company and the Trustee with the
consent of the holders of 66 2/3% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes, to execute
supplemental indentures adding any provisions to or changing or eliminating any of the
provisions of the Indenture or modifying the rights of the Note holders, except that, without the
consent of the holders of all outstanding Notes, no such supplemental indenture may (i) extend
the stated maturity of any Note, or reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of interest
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thereon or reduce the principal amount thereof or premium thereon, or the amount payable
thereon in the event of acceleration or the amount thereof payable in bankruptcy, or (ii) reduce
the aforesaid percentage of Notes, the holders of which are required to consent to any such
supplemental indenture. (Section 10.02)

Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture

The Company may terminate its obligations, with certain exceptions, under the Indenture:
(i) if all Notes previously authenticated and delivered (other than destroyed, lost or stolen Notes
which have been replaced or paid) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation and the
Company has paid all sums payable by it under the Indenture; or (ii) if the Notes not already
delivered to the Trustee for cancellation have matured or will mature within one year or all of
them are to be called for redemption within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the
Trustee for giving notice of redemption and the Company irrevocably deposits in trust with the
Trustee money or United States government obligations sufficient to pay principal of and interest
on the Notes to maturity or redemption, as the case may be, and to pay all sums payable to the
Trustee under the Indenture. (Section 9.01)

Defeasance

If the Company shall deposit with the Trustee, in trust, at or before maturity, money or
United States government obligations in such amounts and maturing at such times that the
proceeds of such obligations to be received upon the respective maturities and interest payment
dates will be sufficient, in the opinion of the Trustee, to pay the principal of and interest to
maturity, or to the redemption date, as the case may be, with respect to the outstanding Notes to
be paid or redeemed, as such principal and interest become due (provided that, if the Notes are to
be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall have been given as
provided in the Indenture or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the
giving of such notice), then all liabitity of the Company under the Indenture and in respect of the
Notes (other than certain specified provisions such as those relating to transfers and exchanges,
registrars and paying agents and payment of the Trustee’s fees and expenses) shall cease to be of
further effect, and the holders thereof shall thereafter be entitled to payment out of the money or
securities deposited with the Trustee as aforesaid, unless the Estridge Companies’ obligations are
revived and reinstated because the Trustee is unable to apply such trust fund by reason of any
legal proceeding, order or judgment. (Sections 9.01, 9.02, and 9.04)

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The Transfer Agent and Registrar for the Notes is the Trustee.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Indiana Securities, LLC, 1705 North Meridian Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46202 (the
“Placement Agent”), has agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of the Placement Agent
Agreement (a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement of which this
Offering Circular is a part), to place the Notes for the Company on a best efforts, minimum-
maximum basis. The Placement Agent has the right, pursuant to the Placement Agent
Agreement, to establish co-agency relationships with other placement agents or dealers for
purposes of obtaining subscriptions for the Notes and may allow a commission equal to up to
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5.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes sold by such co-agents. No placement
agent intends to sell Notes to any discretionary accounts,

Proceeds from this offering will be deposited by noon of the next business day after
receipt in an escrow account established with MainSource Bank, for the benefit of the
subscribers. If the minimum number of Notes (at least $2,650,000 in Notes) has not been sold on
or before the Termination Date, subscribers will promptly receive a refund of their subscription.
In addition, subscribers will receive a pro rata share of any interest earned on the escrow account
less a pro rata share of the fees and expenses of the escrow agent (such fees and expenses may
only be deducted from interest). The escrow agent may invest the proceeds received by it in
short term United States Government obligations or short-term certificates of deposit issued by
any bank, including the escrow agent if competitive. The Company has agreed to hold the
escrow agent harmless from any and all liabitity regarding the administration of the escrow
account and, if the interest earned thereon is insufficient, to pay the fees and expenses of the
€scrow agent.

If subscriptions for the minimum of $2,650,000 of Notes are received and accepted by the
Termination Date, the Offering may be continued until all of the Notes are sold or the Company
decides to terminate the Offering. The Company will pay the Placement Agent a commission
equal to 5.5% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes sold, plus a structuring fee eamed
at the rate of $20,000 per $1,000,000 of Notes sold. The Company has also agreed to reimburse
the Placement Agent for certain accountable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Placement
Agent in connection with this offering up to a maximum of $100,000.

The offer and sale of the Notes are being registered in Indiana and certain other states.
Only residents of states in which the Notes have been registered will be permitted to purchase the
Notes. Purchases of Notes by persons affiliated with the Company will not be counted for
purposes of determining whether the minimum contingency has been met. Further, any
purchases by affiliated persons must be made for investment purposes only, and not with the
view toward the redistribution of the Notes.

The Placement Agent Agreement provides for reciprocat indemnification and
contribution between the Company and the Placement Agent and their respective controlling
persons against certain liabilities in connection with the Offering Statement of which the
Offering Circular is a part, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act”), as
amended.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Act may be permitted to
directors, officers and controlling persons of the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions,
or otherwise, the Company has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is,
therefore, unenforceable.

In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than payment
by the Company of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlting person of the
issuer in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director,
officer or controlling person in connection with the Notes, the Company will, unless in the
opinion of its counse! the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy
as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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The issuance of the Notes is subject to certain conditions, including the conditions that no

stop order suspending the qualification of this Offering Statement is in effect, no proceedings for
such purpose are pending before or threatened by the Securities and Exchange Commission, that
there has been no material adverse change in the condition of the Company from that set forth in
the Offering Statement and that subscriptions for the minimum number of Notes have been
received by the Termination Date.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to the Notes being offered hereby are being passed upon for |

the Company and for the Placement Agent by Krieg DeVault LLP, Indianapolis, Indiana. Krieg
DeVault LLP also generally provides legal services to MainSource Bank which will serve as
both Trustee and Escrow Agent, but is not doing so in connection with this Offering. Krieg
DeVault LLP also provides legal services to Indiana Securities, LLC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 2006, and
2005 and for each of the two years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, included in this
Offering Circular are unaudited. Such financial statements were, in the view of the Company,
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United
States.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission an Offering
Statement under Regulation A of the Act, with respect to securities offered hereby. This
Offering Circular does not contain all of the information set forth in the Offering Statement and
the exhibits thereto. For further information with respect to the Company and the securities
offered hereby, reference is hereby made to the Offering Statement and the exhibits filed
therewith, which may be obtained from the principal office of the Commission in Washington,
D.C., upon payment of the fees prescribed by the Commission.

The Offering Statement may be inspected without charge at the Commission’s principal
office at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

“Affiliate” means a person who, directly or indirectly, conirols, is controlled by, or is
under common control with the person specified herein.

“Cash Flow” means the Estridge Companies’ earnings that are derived from our normal
operations, exclusive of extraordinary and nonrecurring items, less interest and dividends, plus
certain noncash charges against earnings such as depreciation, depletion and amortization,
determined according to generally accepted accounting principles.
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“Control” means the power to direct or influence the direction of the management or
policies of a person, directly or indirectly, through the ownership of voting securities, by contract
or otherwise.

“Empty Nester” means a person whose children are no longer living in the home.

“Equity Securities” means shares of common stock or similar securities and convertible
securities, warrants, options or rights that may be converted into, or exercised to purchase, shares
of common stock or similar securities.

“First Time Home Buyer” means a person who has not previously owned a home.

“First and Second Time Move-up Buyer” means a person who has previously owned a
home (or more than one home) who is seeking a new, more expensive and generally larger home.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, limited liability Company, partnership,
association, joint-stock Company, trust, unincorporated organization, government or political
subdivision of government, or any other legal entity.
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No dealer, salesman, or any other person has been authorized to give any
information or to make any representation not contained in this Offering Circular in
connection with the offer made by this Offering Circular; and, if given or made, such
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
Estridge Companies or any placement agent. This Offering Circular does not constitute an
offer of any securities, other than those to which it relates, or an offer or solicitation by
anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or an offer
to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy to any person in any jurisdiction where such an
offer would be unlawful.
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The Estridge Group, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(Unaudited)

2005 °

2006
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 803,871 2,502,097
Accounts receivable, net 552,821 739,881
Related party receivables 515,202 27,121
Costs and estimated earnings in excess f

of billings 1,790,099 3,449,866
Lot inventory and land development costs 89,522,613 66,191,343
Construction in-process 25,416,939 19,401,791
Consolidated land inventory not owned 50,423,360 44,814,809
Property and Equipment

Land 356,000 356,000

Building 1,128,921 1,096;211

Leasehold improvements 1,981,972 653,414

Office fumiture, fixtures and equipment 2,707,878 2,342,884

Model home furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,073,589 4,263,179

Motor vehicles 239,293 275118

Telecommunications equipment 5,305,117 4,642,651

Construction in progress - 810,457

Accumulated depreciation (6,766,107) (7,625,899)

Total Property and Equipment, net 9,026,663 6,814,015
]
Deferved {ax assetls ' 2,726,814 870,609
Other assets . 1,186,715 1,669,594
Total Assets $ 181,965,097 $ 146,481,126

See accompanying notes
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The Estridge Group, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2006 and 2005

(Unaudited)

2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Notes payable $ 85298428 65,974,665
Capital lease obligations 957,712 129,364
Obligations related to consolidated land inventory not owned 49,728,360 44,124,809
Notes payable to related parties 785,865 785,865
Note payable to stockholder 1,100,000 1.
Accounts payable 5,298,235 5,783,586
Due to stockholder 175,000 375,000
Estimated completion costs 1,069,800 1,167,061

Billings in excess of costs and
estimated earnings 881,391 1,105,154
Customer deposits 648,496 486,651
Estimated warranty costs 1,566,560 1,723,595
Other liabilities 8,401,317 6,252,728
Total Liabilities 155,911,164 127,908,478
Common stock 1,000 1,000
Additional paid-in capital 9,550,100 9,550,100
Retained eamings 3,754,379 6,768,521
Minority equity in variable interest entities 12,748,454 2,253,027
Total Stockholders’ Equity 26,053,933 18,572,648
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 181,965,097 146,481,126

See accompanying notes
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The Estridge Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

Net revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operaling expenses

Income (loss) from operations
Other income (expense)

Net Income (loss) before taxes and
minority interest in variable interest entities

Income tax expense {(benefit)

Net Income {loss) before minority interest
in variable interest entities

Minority interest in variable interest entities

Net Income {Loss)

(Unaudited)

2006 2005
109,731,946 143,329,298
88,482,934 111,901,612
21,249,012 31 ,428,é86
25,248,550 24,009,'917
(3.999,538) 7,418,369
71,436 ( 03,621)
(3,928,102) 7,309,548
{1,907,425) 2,050,247
y

(2,020,677) 5,259,301
993,464 2,502,_"968
(3.014,141) 2,756,333

See accompanying notes
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The Estridge Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

(Unaudited)

2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
Net income (loss) $ (3.014141) § 2,756,333
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
Net income attributable to minority equity in variable interests 993,464 2,502,968
Depreciation expense 1,659,204 1,632,592
Deferred income taxes (1,856,205) 1,800,349
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and related party receivables (201,021) (598,476)
Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings 1,659,767 (1,784,305)
Lot inventory and land development costs (23,131,288) (23,163,907)
Construction in process {6,015,105) {2,112,981)
Other assets 327,327 851,302
Accounts payable {485,351) {246,790)
Estimated completion costs (97,261) 214,185
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings (223,763) 576,187
Other liabifities 2,153,399 2,941,835
Net cash used in operating activities (28,230,974) (14,630,708)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
Purchase of property and equipment (2,974,180) (2,006,114)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,974,180) {2,006,114)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings on short-term notes payable 7,870,636 12,253,504
Proceeds from long term notes payable 27,620,033 19,864,146
Principal payments on long term notes payable (16,166,906) (11,923,549)
Principal payments on capital lease obligations - (218,797) (91,895)
Distributions paid - {10,393,709)
Capital contributions - 9,550,100
Stockholder advance 900,000 375,000
Distributions paid in minority equity in variable interests (1,598,038) (1,942,854)
Capital contributions in minority equity in variable interests 11,100,000 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 29,506,928 17,690,743
NET INCREASE (DECREASE]) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,698,226) 1,053,921
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,502,097 1,448,176
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 803,871 $ 2,502,097
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES ‘
Interest paid 7,917,933 % 4,687,853
Income taxes paid - $ 137,458

See accompanying notes
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THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Operations

The Estridge Group, Inc. (TEG), was incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana in July
1983. TEG, its subsidiaries and consolidated variable interest entities, collectively (the
Companies) are primarily engaged in the homebuilding industry in Indianapolis, Indiana and
surrounding communities. TEG, Ameritage Homes, LLC (Ameritage), a wholly owned
subsidiary of TEG and Paul E. Estridge Corp. (PEEC), a consolidated variable interest entity all
build residential homes in Central Indiana. First Mile Services and its whaolly owned
subsidiaries, First Mile Entertainment, LLC, First Mile Capital, LLC and First Mile Investments,
LLC (First Mile), collectively an additional wholly-owned subsidiary of TEG, telecommunication
services, including cable television, internet, and phone service to certain homeowners in the
same geographical region as TEG. Estridge Design Services, LLC (EDS), a third wholly-owned
subsidiary of TEG, is a retail store and design studio serving TEG, Ameritage and PEEC
customers. In addition to PEEC, the following entities are related parties of TEG and are
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Companies in accordance with FASB |
Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities™ (FIN 46). BCE Associates I,
LLC (BCE I}, BCE Associates il, LLC (BCE II), BCE Associates Ill, LLC (BCE IIl), and Estridge
Development Company (EDC) acquire and develop land specifically for use by TEG,
Ameritage and PEEC; Estridge Investments, LLP (EIP) owns an office building in Carmel,
Indiana and rents space to unrelated tenants. Firstsource Capital, LLC (FSC), provides
mortgage and lending services specifically for customers of TEG, Ameritage and PEEC. See
note S for additional information regarding consolidation of PEEC, EDC, BCE 1, BCE I}, BCE iil,
EIP, and FSC in accordance with FIN 46.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TEG and its
wholly owned subsidiaries Ameritage and First Mile; and its variable interest entities, BCE |,
BCE li, BCE ill, EDC, PEEC, EIP, and FSC (the Companies). All significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain entities above have been
consolidated due to implementation of FIN 46 as further described in Note S.

Entity

These consolidated financial statements contain only the assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenses specifically related to the business activities of the Companies. They do not include
the personal assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses of the stockholders or partners.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenues for TEG and Ameritage are recognized in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” (SFAS 66). Revenues are
recognized when a formal closing has occurred, the buyer has made the required minimum
down payment, the buyer has obtained necessary financing, the risks and rewards of ownership
are transferred to the buyer, and the Companies have no continuing involvement with the
property. Cash received from buyers pursuant to sales contracts is included in the
consolidated balance sheets under “Customer deposits™.
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THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Revenue and Cost Recognition (Continued)

Revenues for PEEC are recognized in accordance with SFAS 66: (a) when a formal closing
has occurred, the buyer has made the required minimum down payment, the buyer has
obtained necessary financing, the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer,
and the Companies have no continuing involvement with the property, or (b) under the
percentage of completion method based on the costs incurred relative to total estimated costs
where PEEC is acting as general contractor.

EDC, BCE |, BCE Il, and BCE lll recognize revenues upon the sale of completed lots. All
revenues are from companies included in TEG's consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, all of these revenues have been eliminated in consolidation. Completed lots
generally include site acquisitions, surveys, land development and other items necessary prior
to commencement of residential building. v

Lot Inventory, Land Development Costs and Construction in Progress

The Companies use the specific identification method for the purpose of accumulating costs
associated with home construction. Lot inventories and land development costs are recorded at
cost, unless they are determined to be impaired, in which case the impaired assets are written
down to fair value less cost o sell in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(SFAS 144). In addition to the costs of direct land acquisition, land development and related
costs (both incurred and estimated to be incurred) and home construction costs, inventorties
include capitalized interest, real estate taxes and certain indirect costs incurred during land
development and home construction. Such costs are charged to cost of sales simultaneous with
revenue recognition. Land Development Costs are allocated to individual lots on a pro-rata
basis. Home construction costs are also recorded at cost and are included in construction in
process. When a‘home is closed, all incurred costs necessary to complete the home may have
not been paid. As homes close, home construction budgets and contracts are compared to
actual recorded costs to date to estimate the additional costs to be paid to subcontractors
related to the home. A liability is recorded and a corresponding charge to cost of sales is
recognized for the amount estimated to be ultimately paid related to that home:. The accuracy of
this estimate is monitored by comparing actual costs incurred in subsequent months to the
estimate. Although actual costs to complete in the future could differ from the estimate, this
method has historically produced consistently accurate estimates of actual costs to complete
closed homes.

|



THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
Lot Inventory, Land Development Costs and Construction in Progress {Continued):
Lot inventory and construction in process include 92 and 101 properties subject to sales

contracts at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Amounts related to these properties .
subject 1o these sales contracts are as follows:

September 30,
2006 2005
Lot inventory $ 4397793 $§ 3,827,364
Construction in process 6,627,576 5,461,654
Totat Subject to Sales Contracts $ 11,025369 § 9,289,018

Consolidated Land Inventory Not Owned

In order to ensure the future availability of land for homebuilding, the Companies enter into
option purchase agreements {agreements} for undeveloped land and developed lots with
unaffiliated third parties and variable interest entities. Under these agreements, the Companies
pay stated deposits or provide letters of credit in consideration for the right to purchase land at
a future time at predetermined prices. These options generally do not contain performance
requirements from the Companies nor obligate the Companies to purchase the land. Deposits
related to these agreements are included in the consolidated balance sheet in other assets. To
the extent the Companies do not exercise the option to purchase such land, the amount of the
land option deposit, any letters of credit, as well as development costs incurred to date,
generally represent the Companies maximum exposure to loss.

The Companies have evaluated those entities with which the Companies enter into land option
agreements in accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as revised (FIN 46). The
provisions of FIN 46 require the Companies to consolidate the financial results of a variable
interest entity if the Companies are the primary beneficiary of the variable interest entity.
Variable interest entities are entities in which (1) equity investors do not have a controlling
financial interest and/or (2) the entity is unable to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support from other parties. The primary beneficiary of a variable interest
entity is the owner or investor that absorbs a majority of the variable interest entity’s expected
losses and/or receives a majority of the variable interest entity’s expected residual returns.




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
Consolidated Land Inventory Not Owned (Continued)

The Companies determine if it is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities based upon
analysis of the variability of the expected gains and losses of the variable interest entity.
Expected gains and losses of the variable interest entity are highly dependent on
management’s estimates of the variability and probabilities of future land prices, the
probabilities of expected cash flows, and the entitlement risks related to the underlying land,
among other factors. Based on this evaluation, if the Companies are the primary beneficiary of
those entities with which the Companies have entered into land option agreements, the variable
interest entity is consolidated. For purposes of consolidation, to the extent financial statements
are available, the Companies consolidate the assets and liabilities of the variable interest entity.
If financial statements for the variable interest entity are not available, the Companies record
the remaining purchase price of land in the Consolidated Balance Sheets under the caption,
“Consolidated land inventory not owned”, with a corresponding liability in “Obligations related to
consolidated land inventory not owned”.

Under agreements without specific performance obligations, the Companies’ liability is generally
limited to forfeiture of the non-refundable deposits, letters of credit and other non-refundable
amounts incurred, which aggregated approximately $1,250,000 and $1,545,000 at

September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This amount includes non-refundable letters of
credit of approximately $555,000 and $555,000 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The total remaining purchase price, net of cash deposits, committed under all agreements was
$101,403,324 and $95,026,845 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Of this fotat
remaining purchase price, $51,674,964 and $50,902,036 are obligations to consolidated
variable interest entities and are eliminated in the Companies’ Consolidated Financial
Statements. The balance of this total remaining purchase price of $49,728,360 and
$44,124,809 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is included in “Consolidated land
inventory not owned”. Although the Companies do not have legal title to the optioned land; for
those agreements for which the Companies are the primary beneficiary, the Companies are
required to consolidate the land under option at fair value. The Companies believe that the
exercise prices of these option contracts approximate their fair value.

Capitalized Costs and Interest Expense

Capitalized costs are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Home
construction costs consist of materials, subcontracts, and certain indirect costs associated with
the construction of a residential unit. Interest costs charged to expense amounted to
$4,734,647 and $3,148,375 for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Capitalized interest is included as a component of “Construction in process” and “Lot inventory
and land development costs” on the Companies’ consolidated balance sheets at September 30,

2006 and 2005, and amounted to $5,806,217 and $2,619,911, respectively.




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment is carried at cost and includes expenditures for new additions and
those that substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets. Depreciation is computed at
various rates by use of the straight-line method and certain accelerated methods over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally ranging from 3 to 15 years.

Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. The
cost of property and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts in the year of disposal, with the resulting gain or
loss reflected in earnings or in the cost of the replacement asset.

The provision for depreciation amounted to $1,659,204 and $1,632,592 for the years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Advertising

The Companies charge advertising costs to expense as incurred. Advertising expenses
amounted to $1,728,220 and $2,302,825 for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Reserve for Warranty Costs

The Companies have established a reserve for accrued warranty and inspection costs incurred
on homes closed. The Companies provide customers with warranty coverage on the home and
fot (excluding landscaping) for a period of three years from the closing date. This warranty
coverage includes a provision which requires the Companies to provide customers with home
inspections, as defined in the warranty plan. The Companies also provide customers with
supplemental coverage purchased from an independent warranty corporation which covers
structural matters for ten years, roof matters for four years, and other specified items for two
years. The Companies are ultimately responsible for all costs incurred under the three year
warranty and the supplemental coverage, and, accordingly have established warranty reserves
by charging cost of sales and crediting a warranty liability. The amounts charged are estimated
by management to be adequate to cover expected warranty-related costs under all unexpired
warranty obligation periods. Warranty cost accruals are based upon historical warranty cost
experience and are adjusted as appropriate to reflect qualitative risks associated with the types
of homes built.




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):
Reserve for Warranty Costs (Continued)

The following table presents the activity in the Companies’ warranty liability account:

For the Years Ended
September 30,
2006 2005
Estimated warranty costs, beginning of year $ 1723595 $ 1,530,083
Warranty costs accrued and incurred 441,655 707,400
Warranty costs paid 598,690 513,888
Estimated warranty costs, end of year $ 1,566,560 $ 1,723,595

Estimated Completion Costs

Home contracts under the deposit method use a purchase order system, which indicate costs
yet to be billed by vendors for materials and services provided. Estimated completion costs
represent those costs incurred that have not yet been billed by vendors. Estimated compietion
costs amounted to $1,069,800 and $1,167,061 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively
and is included in the Companies’ consolidated balance sheet in Liabilities.

Accounts Receivable

The Companies carry accounts receivable at invoiced amounts less an allowance for doubtful
accounts. On a periodic basis, the Companies evaluate accounts receivable and establish
allowances for doubtful accounts, based on history of past write-offs and collections and current
credit conditions. Management has established an allowance for doubtful accounts of
approxirmately $40,000 as of September 30, 2006 and 2005. The Companies' policy is not to
accrue interest on past due trade receivables. '

Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Companies consider all highly liquid
instruments that are purchased within three months or less of an instrument's maturity date to
be cash equivalents,

Non-cash transactions consist of the following at September 30, 2006 and 2005:

The Companies entered into agreements to purchase approximately $1,047,000 of equipment
under capital lease obligations during the year ended September 30, 2006.




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note A - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):

Cash Flows (Continued)

The Companies entered into agreements to purchase approximately $179,000 of equipment
under capital lease obligations during the year ended September 30, 2005.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the consolidated
financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
recoghized for the differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement
and income tax purposes. Those differences relate primarily to fixed assets (use of different
depreciation methods and lives for financial statement and income tax purposes), and certain
accrued expenses (use of accrual method for financial statement purposes and cash method
for income tax purposes). The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax
consequences of thase differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets
and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taxes are also recognized for any operating
loss carryforwards, charitable contribution carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards that are
available to offset future income taxes.

TEG and its wholly owned subsidiaries are Corporations and subject to federal and state income
taxes. All variable interest entities included in the consolidated financial statements are pass-
through entities and are taxed at the stockholder or partner fevel.

Segment Information

The Companies design, construct and sell a wide range of homes designed to meet the specific
needs of each of its markets. TEG, Ameritage, PEEC, EDC, BCE |, BCE Ii, and BCE Hll
operates in a single geographic and land region. Accordingly, the Companies operating resuilts
have been aggregated into a single segment in accordance with SFAS 131, “Disclosure About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” Other entities including First Mile, EDS,
EIP, and FSC combined represent less than 3% of consolidated revenues.

All revenues are from external customers and are of origin in the United States. There were no
customers that contributed 10% or more of the Companies total revenues during the year
ended September 30, 2006. All of the Companies assets are in Indiana, United States.




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note B - Deposits:

Deposits intended to be applied to the future purchase price of lots in certain housing
developments amounted to $450,000 for both years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, and
is included as a component of “Consolidated land inventory not owned” in the Companies’
consolidated balance sheets.

Note C - Contracts in Progress:

Information with respect to contracts in progress is summarized as follows:

2006 2005
Costs incurred $ 10,042,162 $ 12,764,310
Estimated earnings thereon 2,494 538 2,848,383
‘ 12,536,700 15,612,693
Less applicable billings (11,627,992) (13,267,981)

$ 908,708 § 2344712

Included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets under the following captions:

Costs and estimated eamnings in excess of billings $ 1,790,099 § 3,449,866
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings (881,391) (1,105,154)

3 808,708 $ 2,344,712




THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2006 and 2005
(Unaudited)

Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements:

The Companies have various loans available from several sources, which allow the Companies
to finance land acquisition and development and home construction. These notes are secured
by land and land development costs, residential lots and homes in various stages of
completion.

2006 2005

Landmark Savings Bank:
Due at various dates through October 2007.
Interest at the Bank's prime rate plus 1%. Available
draws limited to a combined total of approximately
$1,000,000 between TEG and PEEC. $ 734259 % 666,126

Fifth Third Bank:
Due June 2008. Interest at the Bank's prime rate.
Available draws limited to a combined total of
$5,000,000 between TEG, PEEC, and EDC.
Further secured by personal guarantee of the
majority stockholder. 1,403,656 468,095

National City Bank:
Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime rate
plus .75%. Available draws [imited to a maximum of
$16,000,000 between TEG and PEEC. Further
secured by corporate guarantee of EDC and
personal guarantee of the majority stockholder. 3,503,939 4,040,644

First Indiana Bank: .
Due June 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime rate.
Available draws limited to a combined total of
$17,000,000, among TEG and PEEC. Further
secured by corporate guarantee of EDC and
personal guarantee of the majority stockholder. 13,444,186 11,732,685

Star Financial Bank:
Due May 2007. interest at the Bank's prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to a combined
total of $5,000,000 among TEG, EDC, and PEEC.
Further secured by personal guarantee of the _
majority stockholder. 2,842,150 1,474,011
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(Unaudited)

Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

Salin Bank: .
Due February 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime
rate plus .5%. Available draws limited to a
combined total of $5,000,000 between TEG and
PEEC.

Shelby County Bank:
Due March 2008. Interest at the Bank's prime rate
plus 1.5%. Further secured by guarantee of
the majority stockholder.

Royal Bank of Canada:
Due May 2008. Interest at 30 day LIBOR + 300
basis points. Available draws limited to a combined
total of $15,000,000 between TEG, EDC, and
PEEC. The loan is further secured by a personal
guarantee of the majority stockholder.

High Grove Capitai:
Due April 2007. Interest at the Wall Street Journal
published prime rate plus .5%. Available draws are
limited to $1,750,000. The loan is further secured
by a corporate guarantee of PEEC.

Charter One:
Due September 2005. Interest at bank prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to a combined
- total of $5,000,000 between TEG and PEEC. The
loan is further secured by a personal guarantee of
the majority stockholder.

First Indiana Bank:
Due February 2009. interest at the Bank's prime
rate plus 1%. Available draws are limited to
$600,000. Further guaranteed by the majority
stockholder.

Old National Bank:
Due March 2007. Interest charged at 5.5%.
Secured by equipment.

2006

2005

3,665,432

925,000

11,725,268

1,326,548

130,393

516,665

7,583

611,800

1,063,630

9,860,282

1,750,000

570,383

22,132
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Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

Convertible Note Payable, Brookfield, Inc.:
Due April 2009. Interest at 6%. Available draws are
limited to $300,000. Convertible to First Mile
preferred stock at a strike price of $10 per share.

Community Bank:
Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank'’s prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $2,693,000.
Further secured by the majority stockholder.

Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $486,150.
Further secured by the majority stockholder.

Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $1,137,548.
Further guaranteed by the majority stockholder.

Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $2,693,000.
Further guaranteed by the majority stockholder.

Due February 2006. Interest at the Bank'’s prime
rate plus .5%. Available draws limited to
$3,058,000. Further guaranteed by the majority
stockholder.

First Merchants Bank:
Due October 2007. interest at the Bank's prime
rate pius .25%. Available draws limited to
$3,200,000. Further guaranteed by the majority
stockholder.

High Grove Capital Partners, LLC:
Due October 2008. Interest at the Bank'’s prime
rate plus .5%. Available draws fimited to
$1,672,650, among TEG and EDC.

Due December 2006. Interest at the Bank’s prime
rate plus .5%. Available draws limited to
$1,000,000 among TEG and EDC.

2006 2005
172,001 172,001
628,790 628,790
486,150 -
508,758 508,758

2,693,000 -

- 3,058,000
2,720,790 -
1,672,650 -
1,000,000 -
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Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

2006

2005

House Investments Real Estate Opportunity Fund ill, L.P.:
Due July 2010. Interest at a rate of 15%. Available
draws limited to $1,400,000. 1,400,000

TriCapital, LLC:
Due January 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime
rate plus 1%. Available draws limited to
$2,450,000. 2,397,888

255 Associates, LLC:
Due February 2007. Interest at the Bank'’s prime
rate plus 6%. Available draws limited to $280,000.
Further guaranteed by the majority stockholder. 280,000

Third Party:
Due February 2007. Interest at prime rate plus 6%.
Available draws limited $1,325,000. Further
guaranteed by the majority stockholder. 1,325,000

First Indiana Bank:
Due June 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $2,000,000.
Further guaranteed by the majority stockholder. 2,000,000

Due October 2008. Interest at the Bank’s prime

rate plus .25%. Available draws limited to

$7,350,000. Further guaranteed by the majority

stockholder. 7,350,000

First Indiana Bank:
Due October 2008. Interest at the Bank’s prime
rate plus 1%. Available draws limited to a total of
$650,000. Monthly payments of $2,500 principal
plus interest, with the remaining principal due at
maturity. Further guaranteed by the majority
stockholder. 650,000

1,400,000

896,990

280,000

1,325,000

2,000,000
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Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

Salin Bank:
Due November 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime
rate plus .75%. Available draws limited to
$3,683,200. Further guaranteed by the majority
stockholder.

Third Party:
Due August 2007. Interest at a rate of 2%.
Available draws limited to $2,240,549. Annual
variable principal payments, with balance due at
maturity.

Third Party:
Due August 2007. Interest at a rate of 2%.
Available draws limited to $2,405,426. Annual
variable principal payments, with balance due at
maturity.

Shelby County Bank:
Due May 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime rate
plus 1.5%. Available draws limited to $3,556,180.

Busey Bank:
Due August 2006. Interest at the Bank’s prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $1,950,000.

Foudray Farms Estates, LLC: :
Due May 2006. interest at the prime rate. Available
draws limited to $550,375.

Third Party:
Due August 2007. Interest at the prime rate.
Available draws limited to $1,297,600.

Fifth Third:
Pue December 2005. Interest at the Bank’s prime
rate. Available draws limited to $3,240,000. Further
guaranteed by the majority stockholder.

2006

2005

3,563,186

1,524,858

1,649,858

3,390,000

1,297,600

863,977

2,220,549

2,405,426

2,500,000

1,950,000

550,325

1,297,600

3,240,000
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Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

Silver Birch Investments |, LLC:
Due October 2005. Interest at a rate of 20%.
Available draws limited to $1,000,000. Further
guaranteed by the majority stockholder.

Third Party:
Due October 2005. Interest at a rate of 20%.
Available draws limited to $500,000. Further
guaranteed by the majority stockholder.

Irwin Union:
Due March 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime rate.
Available draws limited to $1,393,600.

trwin Union:
Due March 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime rate
pius .5%. Available draws limited to $1,393,600.

Provident Bank:
Due March 2006. Interest at the Bank's prime rate
plus .5%. Available draws limited to $7,500,000.

Fifth Third Bank:
Due December 2007. Interest at the Bank's prime
rate. Available draws limited to $4,400,000. Further
secured by guarantee of TEG.

Busey Bank:
Due December 2007. Interest at the Bank’s prime
rate plus .25%. Available draws limited to
$3,500,000. Further secured by guarantee of EDC
and personal guarantee by the majority stockholder.

Third Party: :
Due December 2006. Interest at a rate of 13%.
Available draws limited to $275,000.

2006 2005

- 1,000,000

- 200,000

- 1,393,600

- 1,393,600

- 590,039
3,345,996 -
2,905,446 2,216,500
275,000 275,000
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Note D - Debt and Credit Arrangements (Continued):

2006 2005

Sun Life:
Due August 2018. Interest at a rate of 8%.
Available draws limited to $1,300,000. Further
secured by guarantee of TEG. 1,000,378 1,048,712

Wawasee Real Estate Development, LLC:
Due October 2007. interest at the prime rate plus
2%. Available draws limited to $836,000. Further
guaranteed by the majority stockholder. 836,000 -

Total Debt Obligations § 85298428 $ 65,986,695

Covenants under the First Indiana Bank, National City Bank, Salin Bank and Royal Bank of
Canada credit agreements require TEG (independently and together with related parties) to
meet certain financial covenants.

Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the Companies were notified by a financial institution of a
covenant default for advances on certain new and spec homes. This default has since been
cured by the financial institution’s removal of the covenant.

Principal payments due on debt outstanding at September 30, 2006, are as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2007 $ 52,051,776
2008 21,180,306
2009 9,836,404
2010 1,466,492
2011 72,012
Thereafter 691,438
$ 85,298,428
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Note E - Notes Payable to Related Parties:

PEEC has various notes payable to related parties accruing interest at rates from prime to
prime plus 1% that expired in December 1996. The notes are payable on demand after thirty
days notice from the related parties. The balance of this related party debt was $785,865 for
both years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

Note F - Notes Payable to Stockholder:
EDC has a note payable to EDC’s stockholder at a rate of prime plus 1.75% with annual

principal payments of $220,000. The balance on this stockholder note payable amounted to
$1,100,000 and $0 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note G - Capital Leases:

Long-term leases relating to the financing of certain furniture and equipment are accounted for
as installment purchases. The capital lease obligations reflect the present value of future rental
payments, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease and a corresponding amount is
capitalized as the cost of the fumniture and equipment. The furniture and equipment is being
depreciated over a period of five years.

The following is an analysis of furniture and fixtures under capital leases for the years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Furniture and fixtures $ 1,083,814 $ 291,907
Accumulated depreciation (176,841) (87,418)

$ 906,973 § 204,489
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Note G - Capital Leases (Continued):

Following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments due under the capital lease
obligations together with the present value of net minimum lease payments as of
September 30, 2006:

Year Ending September 30,

2007 _ $ 279,533
2008 272,736
2009 250,200
2010 250,200
2010 48,322
Total minimal lease payments 1,100,991
Less amounts representing interest 143,279
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 957,712

Note H - Retirement Plans:

The Companies maintain a profit-sharing plan that covers all employees who meet the eligibility
requirements set forth in the plan. The Companies' contributions are made at management’s
discretion and are allocated based upon each participant's eligible compensation.

The plan includes a 401(k) savings plan whereby employees can contribute and defer taxes on
compensation contributed to the plan. The Companies’ match, within prescribed limits, the
contributions made by employees.

The following summarizes the Companies’ contributions for the years ended September 30,
2006 and 2005: '

2006 2005

Profit-sharing contribution $

401(k) matching confribution 125,015 117,935

$ 125,015 _§ 117,935
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Note H - Retirement Plans {(Continued):

The Companies also have an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP). Although labeled as an
ESOP, the plan is currently operating as a profit-sharing plan. At some date in the future to be
determined by management, the plan shall be converted from a profit-sharing plan into an
ESOP. Funds in the plan at the time of conversion to an ESOP may be used to purchase
stock. Contributions to the Plan were $0 for both years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.
Note | - Stockholder and Variable Interest Entities Equity:

Common Stock

TEG has voting stock with equal voting rights. All of the stock is no par value.

The following summarizes the TEG's shares of common stock at September 30, 2006 and
2005:

2006 2005
Authorized 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued 1,591,584 1,591,594
Outstanding 1,691,584 1,591,594

During the year ended September 30, 2005, the Companies issued 491,274 shares of stock in
exchange for $9,550,100 of cash to fund an equal distribution of $9,550,100 related to a
change in tax status from a subchapter “S” Indiana Corporation to an Indiana corporation. This
distribution is included in the $10,393,709 of distributions declared in 2005. The difference
represents distributions to owners necessary to pay shareholder personal income taxes as
2004 represents the final year in which the Companies was a pass through S-Corporation
entity. The transaction did not affect the ownership structure of the Companies as the new
shares issues were allocated to existing shareholders based on their respective ownership.
Management estimated no additional value was received from the issued shares since there
was no trading market for the Companies’ stock and the transaction did not change the
ownership percentages of the current shareholders.

Equity of Variable Interest Entities
TEG and its wholly owned subsidiaries are corporations. All other entities included in the

consolidated financial statements are pass-through entities. Refer to Notes A and S for
disclosures required for variable interest entities.
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Note J - Income Taxes:

Federal and state income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended September 30, 2006 and

2005, is summarized as follows:

2006 2005
Federal
Current expense $ (15,741) $ 1,182,960
Deferred expense (benefit) (1,446,332) 455,857
(1,462,073} 1,638,817
State
Current expense (35,479) 283,163
Deferred expense (benefit) {409,873) 128,267
(445,352) 411,430
$ (1,907,425) § 2,050,247

The Companies’ deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, are

summarized as follows:

2006 2005
Federal:
Deferred {ax assets $ 2390685 % 949,153
Deferred tax liabilities (252,225) (257,015)
2,138,460 692,138
State:
Deferred tax assets 603,864 201,156
Deferred tax liabilities {15,510) {22,685)
588,354 178,471
Net deferred tax asset included in the Companies _
consolidated balance sheets $ 2726814 $

870,609
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Note J - Income Taxes (Continued):

The Companies have an alternative minimum tax credit of approximately $213,000 to offset
future federal tax liabilities. The life of the credit is indefinite. The Companies also have
charitable contribution carryforwards of approximately $148,000, of which $84,000 expire in
2010 and the remaining $64,000 expire in 2011. At September 30, 2006, the Companies have
federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $5,200,000 and state tax operating
loss carryforwards of approximately $5,300,000. Other components of the Companies’ tax
assets include accrued warranty costs, accrued health insurance, and accrued executive
bonuses. Depreciation timing differences constitute the majority of the Companies’ tax
liabilities. SFAS 108, “Accounting for income Taxes,” requires a valuation allowance to reduce
the deferred tax assets reported if, at September 30, 2006, the Companies had federal tax
operating loss and based on the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. After consideration of the evidence,
both positive and negative, management has determined that no valuation allowance is
considered necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets.

Note K - Leasing Commitments:

The Companies lease office facilities, certain vehicles, model homes, and computer hardware
and software and related peripheral equipment under operating leases expiring at various dates
through December 2015. Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating
leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of September 30, 2006 are
summarized as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2007 $ 1,161,077

2008 963,837

2009 ' 800,304

2010 588,639

2011 554,040

Thereafter 2,501,210
$ 6,569,107

Rent expense with respect to all operating leases amounted to approximately $1,589,189 and
$1,500,234 for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note L - Self-Funded Health Insurance:

The Companies' Employee Benefit Plan provides employees and their dependents with
comprehensive health care coverage.' A portion of that coverage is self-funded by the
Companies. Under the insurance policy with the Plan's underwriter, the Companies' self-funded
liability is {imited for each plan year to $45,000 per employee, with an aggregate liability limit of
approximately $1,000,000. The liability limitations are adjusted on an annual basis. For this
purpose, the plan year runs on a calendar year basis, and the $45,000/$1,000,000 limits apply
through December 31, 2006.
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Note L - Self-Funded Health Insurance (Continued):

In addition, the Companies pay a monthly fee to provide for administrative, cost containment,
prescription card, and preferred provider organization fees.

Note M - Related Party Transactions:

The Companies are related to various entities not consolidated in these financial statements as
a result of common ownership. Transactions with these entities are minimal and immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

Note N - Concentration of Credit Risk:

The Companies’ financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivables. The Companies place cash
and cash equivalents with high credit quality institutions. At times, such amounts may be in
excess of the FDIC insured limit. The Companies routinely assess the financial strength of
customers and, as a consequence, believe that accounts receivable credit risk exposure is
limited.

Note O - BCE |, BCE II, BCE lll Operating Agreements:

The BCE |, BCE I, and BCE |l partnerships were formed as joint ventures between EDC, Billy
Creek Associates, LP (BCA 1), Billy Creek Associates Il, LP, (BCA Il) and Billy Creek
Asscociates lil, LP (BCA lil). The purpose of these entities is to serve as land holding and
development companies to supply TEG with lots for future home construction. The agreements
outline the original capital contributions of the Billy Creek entities (BCA [ - $4,000,000, BCA If -
$3,600,000, and BCA Il - $3,500,000). All agreements state that BCA I, BCA Il, and BCA IlI
will receive a guaranteed 19.5% internal rate of return on these capital contributions over the
life of the project. TEG and EDC have guaranteed payment of these amounts and have
guaranteed certain debt obligations included in Note E. The Estridge Group, Inc. has agreed to
purchase lots at specified prices from the BCE partnerships within a specified time interval. In
addition, TEG’s majority stockholder has personally guaranteed an internal rate of return of
18% for the BCA entities.

Note P - Business Concentration:

The Companies’ revenues are substantially derived from construction of residential homes in
Indianapolis, Indiana and surrounding communities. i
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Note Q - Commitments and Contingencies:

The Companies are aiso parties to various non-environmental legal proceedings and
administrative actions, all arising from the ordinary course of business. Althoughitis
impossible to predict the outcome of any legal proceeding, the Companies believe any liability
that may finally be determined with respect to such legal proceedings should not have a
material effect on the Companies' consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows, although resolution in any year or quarter could be material to the consolidated results of
operations for that period.

EIP has entered into a Voluntary Remediation Agreement with the indiana Department of
Environmental Management with respect to ground water contamination caused by a former
tenant of the building under a prior owner. EIP, based on a review of all relevant facts and
reports from an independent environmental consultant, has accrued its best estimate of its
obligation under this Agreement. This accrual amounts to $854,261 and $935,629 at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and is included in “Other liabilities.” itis
reasonably possible that EiP’s recorded estimate of its obligation may change in the near term.
With respect to this obligation, insurance providers for the former tenant and prior building
owner reimbursed EIP for the entire amount of the estimated obligation.

Note R - Contingent Convertible Securities:

TEG has outstanding debt, the terms of which enable the holder, under certain conditions, to
convert such securities into shares of the Company subsidiary's (First Mile) preferred stock at a
fixed conversion price of $10 per share. See Note D for further description of debt instrument.

Note S - Implementation of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46:

In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
FIN 46 explains the concept of a variable interest entity and requires consoclidation by the
primary beneficiary where the variable interest entity does not have sufficient equity at risk to
finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. This
interpretation applies immediately to variable interest entities created after December 31, 2003,
and applies in the first year or interim period beginning after December 15, 2004, to variable
interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before
December 31, 2003. Due to the presence of cross guarantees of debt between related entities
and guarantees of debt by TEG and its majority stockholder of other related entities, TEG
believes certain related entities are variable interest entities (See Notes E and M for description
of related party arrangements and debt guaranteed by TEG and its majority stockholder).
Specifically, TEG considers BCE t, BCE I, BEC lll, EDC, PEEC, EIP, and FSC to be variable
interest entities. FIN 46 is implemented in these financial statements and therefore these
entities have been consolidated for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.
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Note S - Implementation of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46
{Continued):

Based on the provisions of FIN 46, the Companies have concluded that under certain
conditions when the Companies (i) enter into option agreements for the purchase of land or lots
from an entity and pays a non-refundable deposit, (i} enters into certain leasing arrangements
with related parties, or {iii) guarantees debt of related party entities or enters into co-borrowing
arrangements with related parties, a variable interest entity may be created. Under condition (i}
above, the Companies reported land under option agreements and the related liabilities in its
consolidated balance sheet, as described in Note A.  Under condition (ii and iii) above, the
Companies may be deemed to have provided subordinated financial support, which refers to
variable interests that will absorb some or all of an entity’s expected losses if they occur. For
each variable interest entity created, the Companies have computed expected losses and
residual retums based on the probability of future cash flows as outlined in FIN 46. If the
Companies are determined to be the primary beneficiary of the variable interest entity, the
assets, liabilities and operations are consolidated in the Companies’ financial statements.

Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and operations of (ii and iii) have been consolidated with the
Companies consolidated financial statements as of Septernber 30, 2006 and 2005 and for the
periods then ended. Supplemental consolidating financial information of the Companies,
specifically including information for (ii and iii) and just the 1ot option arrangements from (i) are
consolidated under FIN 46. The variable interest entities analysis is presented below to allow
investors to determine the nature of assets held and the operations of the consolidated entities.

Amounts included in “Consolidated land inventory not owned” are excluded from the analysis
below and include land deposits under option agreements or land banking arrangements of
$695,000 and $690,000 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Companies’
remaining total contractual obligations for land purchases and option commitments was
approximately $49,728,360 and $44,124,809 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Note S - Implementation of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46
(Continued):

Condensed financial information for the variable interest entities, before eliminating entries, is as
follows:

September 30,
2006 2005

Assets

Lot inventory and land development costs $ 79,391,497 57,093,599

Construction in process 4,691,471 4,156,542

Property and equipment, net 1,948,352 1,997,181

Other assets 10,929,037 9,354,179

Total Assets $ 96,960,357 72,601,501
Liabilities and Equity

Notes payable $ 57,510,673 44,416,975

Related party payables 16,818,872 18,638,368

Other liabilities 8,970,971 6,686,155

Total Liabilities 83,300,516 69,741,498

Total Stockholders' Equity 13,659,841 2,860,005

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 96,960,357 72,601,503
Revenue and Expenses

Revenue $ 40,195,179 42,922,794

Expenses 38,897,302 40,176,995

Net income of variable interest entities $ 1,297,877 $ 2,745,799

The equity related to consolidation of these variable interest entities is included in the
Companies consolidated balance sheet as “Minority equity in variable interest entities” as a
separate line item in Stockholders’ Equity, consistent with the FASB Exposure Draft dated
June 30, 2005, “Consolidated Financial Statements, Including Accounting and Reporting of
Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries”, a replacement of ARB No. 51; which provides for the
accounting and reporting in equity interests of noncontrolling stockholders to be accounted and
reported as equity separately from the primary beneficiary’s equity. The Companies
implemented the exposure draft during the year ended September 30, 2006, as management
believes classification of “Minority equity in variable interest entities” as a separate component
to Stockholders’ Equity is the most accurate representation of its interests in these variable
interest entities.
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Modification Agreement between The Estridge Group, Inc., Paul E.
Estridge Corp., and National City Bank of Indiana, dated June 23, 2004*
Promissory Note Modification Agreement between The Estridge Group,
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Opinion of Kneg DeVault LLP
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BCE ASSOCIATES 1, LLC,
an Indiana limited lability company
OPERATING AGREEMENT
among

Estridge Development Company, Inc.
an Indiana corporation

as a Member and the Manager
and

Billy Creek Associates, LP,
an Indiana limited partnership

as a Member




BCE ASSOCIATES I, LLC

OPERATING AGREEMENT

This Operating Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of November 2, 2005 by and
between Estridge Development Company, Inc., (“Estridge™), and Billy Creek Associates, LP, an
Indiana limited partnership (“Billy Creek”)(Billy Creek, collectively with its Permitted
Transferees, referred to as the “Investors™).

Definitions of certain terms used in this Agreement are set forth in the Glossary of
Defined Terms attached to and forming a part of this Agreement.

On October 31, 20035, Estridge formed the Company to develop a planned residential
community located in Hamilton County, Indiana, known as Grandin Hall (as further defined
below, the “Project”), on property previously owned by Estridge. Estridge has previously
contributed all of its right, title and interest in and to the Project to the Company. Substantially
all of the stock of Estridge and The Estridge Group, Inc. (“Builder”) is owned by Paul E.
Estridge, Jr. (the “Guarantor™). As of the date of this Agreement, the Company and Builder are
entering into a Residential Lot Sales Agreement (the “Lot Sales Agreement”) pursuant to which
Builder will purchase from the Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Lot Sales
Agreement all of the lots developed by the Company (the “Lots”) in accordance with the
Proforma Financial Information attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Proforma”). Estridge and
Builder have represented and warranted to the Investors on Exhibit G hereto that each of the
Investors will receive an Internal Rate of Return on its investment in the Company of 19.5%
based on the distributions the Company will make to the Investors hereunder from the Revenues
the Company will receive from Builder. Builder and Estridge acknowledge that their covenants

and other obligations under this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement, the representations and

warranties set forth on Exhibit G, and the personal guaranty of the Guarantor, are the primary
inducement for the Investors' investment in the Company.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Agreement and
intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1
The Company

Section 1.1  QOrganization and Continuation. The Members hereby agree to continue
the Company as a limited liability company under the Act as of the day and year first above
written, for the purposes and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Section 1.2  Name. The name of the Company shall continue to be BCE Associates I,
LLC and all business of the Company shall continue to be conducted in such name. The

Manager shall cause to be filed such certificates as may be required to ensure that the Company

is in compliance with the Act, any relevant assumed or trade name laws and other applicable
laws.

)



Section 1.3 Place of Business. The principal office of the Company shall be located at
1041 West Main Street, Carmel, Indiana, or at such other place as may be approved by the
Manager.

Section 1.4 Purpose. The sole purposes of the Company shall be to acquire that
certain real estate located in Hamilton County, Indiana described on Exhibit B (the “Property™),
and to improve, own, and dispose of the Property in accordance with the Plans and
Specifications and the Business Plan attached as Exhibit D and as otherwise provided in this
Agreement (the “Project”).

Section 1.5  Purposes Limited. The Company’s activities shall be only for the
purposes specified in Section 1.4. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the
Company shall not engage in any other activity or business and no Member shall have any
authority to hold itself out as an agent of another Member in any other business or activity.

Section 1.6  No Payments of Individual Obligations. The Company’s credit and assets

shall be used solely for the benefit of the Company. No asset of the Company shall be
transferred or encumbered for or in payment of any individual obligation of a Member.

Section 1.7  Statutory Compliance.

(8  The Company shall exist under and be governed by, and this Agreement
shall be construed in accordance with, the applicable laws of the State of Indiana. The
Manager shall make all filings and disclosures required by, and shall otherwise comply
with, all such laws. Additionally, the Company shall make all filings and pay all fees
required to qualify the Company as a foreign limited liability company in each state in
which the Company conducts any business and such qualification 1s necessary for the
Members to maintain limited liability status.

(b) The Manager shall execute and file in the appropriate records any assumed
or fictitious name certificate or certificates required by law to be filed in connection with
the formation, qualification and continuation of the Company as a limited liability
company, and shall execute and file such other documents and instruments and pay such
fees as may be necessary or appropriate with respect to such formation, qualification and
continuation of, and conduct of business by, the Company.

Section 1.8  Title to Property. All real and personal property owned by the Company
shall be owned by the Company as an entity and, insofar as permitted by applicable law, no
Member shall have any ownership interest in such property in its individual name or right except
as expressly provided in this Agreement and each Member’s interest in the Company shall be
personal property for all purposes.

Section 1.9  Duration. The duration of the Company shall be perpetual, until dissolved
pursuant to Article 9 of this Agreement.



Section 1.10 Registered Office and Registered Agent. The Company’s initial registered
agent for service of process and the registered office shall be that Person and location reflected in
the Articles of Organization filed with the Indiana Secretary of State. The registered office and
registered agent may be changed from time to time by filing the address of the new registered
office and/or the name of the new registered agent with the Indiana Secretary of State pursuant to
the Act.

Article 2
The Members

Section2.1  Identification. Estridge and Billy Creek shall be the initial Members of
the Company. No other Person may become a Member except by way of a Transfer specifically
permitted under and effected in compliance with Article 8 of this Agreement.

Section22  Withdrawals. A Member may not withdraw from the Company except
upon liquidation of the Company pursuant to Article 9 or by a permitted Transfer pursuant to
Article 8. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Member shall not have the right to demand or
withdraw all or any portion of its capital contributions or any other distribution until the time of
(and on the same terms as) any such return or distribution is required to be made pursuant to
Section 4.1. In no event shall a Member have a right to demand or receive property other than
cash in return for capital contributions or otherwise.

Section 2.3  Conflicts.

(a) The Members and their Affiliates may conduct any business or activity
whatsoever that is unrelated to the Property or the Project (including the acquisition,
development, leasing, operation and sale of other real property) without any
accountability to the Company or to any Member even if such business or activity
competes with the business of the Company. Each Member understands that the other
Members and their Affiliates may be interested, directly or indirectly, in various other
such businesses and undertakings and each Member waives any rights it might otherwise
have to share or participate in such other interests or activities of the other Members and
their Affiliates. '

(b)  No Member or its Affiliates shall enter into any transaction with the
Company or related to the Property or the Project unless the material facts of the
transaction and the Member's (or its Affiliate's) interest is disclosed to the other Members
and the transaction is authorized, approved or ratified by the Majority Investors an
Estridge. '

Section 2.4  Reimbursement and Fees. Unless expressly provided for in the Proforma
or in this Agreement, no Member and no Affiliate of a Member shall be paid any compensation
by the Company for services to the Company or be reimbursed by the Company for any expenses
whatsoever including, without limitation, overhead or general administrative expenses; provided,
however, that the Company will reimburse the Investors for (a) all reasonable legal, accounting
and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with (i) enforcing or defending
(or determining whether or how to enforce or defend) any rights of the Investors under this
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Agreement, the Lot Sales Agreement or any Related Document or (i) any insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company, Estridge or the Builder or in connection with any work-out or
restructuring of the transactions contemplated hereby and (b) one-half of all reasonable legal,
accounting and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the
structuring, negotiation and documentation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
the Lot Sales Agreement, any Related Document or the Project, or any subsequent amendments
thereof.

Section 2.5  No Liability of Members. No Member shall be liable as such for any acts,
debts or liabilities of the Company. The failure of the Company to observe any formalities or
requirements relating to the exercise of its powers or management of its business or affairs under
this Agreement or the Act shall not be grounds for imposing personal liability on the Members
for any acts, debts or liabilities of the Company.

Section 2.6  Duties of Members. Each Member shall have the duties (a) to act openly,
honestly and reasonably with each other Member and with the Company; (b) not to misap-
propriate any property or assets of the Company for such Member's own benefit or for the
benefit of any other Person; and (c) not to make any willful misrepresentation, or any statement
that effectively constitutes a willful misrepresentation because of misleading omissions, to any i
other Member of the Company that could reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect
the business, properties, assets, condition (financial or other) or prospects of the Company.
Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, no Member, as such, shall have any duty of loyalty,
duty of care or any other fiduciary duty of any character whatsoever to the Company or to any
other Member. No Member as such shall be required to devote any time to the business of the
Company.

Section2.7  Indemnification of Investors. The Company shail indemnify, to the fullest
extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as the same may hereafter be amended, any
Person made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether criminal,
civil, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such Person is or was an Investor
or an Affiliate of any Investor. To the fullest extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as
the same may hereafter be amended, expenses incurred by any such Person in defending any
such action, suit or proceeding shall be paid or reimbursed by the Company promptly upon
receipt by it of an undertaking of such Person to repay such expenses if it shall ultimately be
determined that such Person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Company. The rights
provided to any Person by this Section shall be enforceable against the Company by such Person,
who shall be presumed to have relied upon it in continuing to be a Member of the Company.
The indemnification provided by this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights /
to which a Person seeking indemnification may be entitled. No amendment of this Section shall
impair the rights of any Person arising at any time with respect to events occurring prior to such
amendment.




Article 3
Capital of the Company

Section 3.1  Initial Capital Contributions. The Members have made or shall make
contributions to the capital of the Company of cash and property in the amounts, at the agreed
values and at the times set forth opposite their respective names on Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference. No interest shall accrue on any contributions to the capital of
the Company, and no Member shall have the right to withdraw or to be repaid any capital
contributed by it, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 3.2 Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the capital contributions made
by the Investors to immediately repay in full the Company's debt to Fifth Third Bank set forth on
Schedule C to Exhibit G hereto (an shall immediately obtain a release of Fifth Third Bank's
' mortgage on the Property), and otherwise solely to pay other Project Expenses provided for in
the Proforma.

Section 3.3  No Further Capital Contributions. Except for the cash and property
| required to be contributed pursuant to Section 3.1, the Members shall not be required to
| contribute additional capital to the Company.

‘ Section 3.4  Member Loans. In the event that funds are needed by the Company for its
operations, any Member may (but shall not be required to) loan such funds to the Company
under such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the Member and the Company,
with the prior written consent of the Majority Investors.

Article 4
Distributions

Section4.1  Distribution of Available Cash. All Available Cash shall be distributed at
least quarterly on the first business day of each calendar quarter in the following order of

' priority:

(a)  First, to the Investors in an amount, if any, equal to the Quarterly
Distribution Payment;

(b)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Capital
Contributions as of the date of such distribution;

(¢)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Priority Return
as of the date of such distribution; and

(d)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

All distributions to the Investors hereunder shall be payable to them pro rata in
proportion to the capital contributions made by them (or their predecessors) to the Company
pursuant to this Agreement.




Section 4.3  In-Kind Distrbution. Assets of the Company shall not be distributed in
kind to the Members, without the prior written approval of the Manager and the Majority
Investors.

Section 4.4  Restriction on Distributions. The Company shall not make any
distribution to the Members unless (a) immediately after giving effect to the distribution, the
Company shall have sufficient cash available to meet the reasonably anticipated needs of the
Company; and (b) such distribution is made in compliance with the Act.

Article 5
Allocations and Tax Matters

Section 5.1  Allocation of Net Profits and Net Loss in General. Except as otherwise
provided in this Article 5, Net Profits or Net Loss of the Company (and each item thereof) for
each Fiscal Year or other period shall be allocated to the Members as follows:

(a)  Net Profits shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

(i) First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(b){iv) exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(a)(i);

(i)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(b)(iii)
exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(i);

(11i))  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their

accrued Net Priority Return for all years of the Company’s operations exceeds the

aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to the Investors pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(iti) for all years of the Company’s operations; and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.
(b)  Net Loss shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

@) First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(iv), exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(i);

(i)  Next, to the Investors, and to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(iii),
exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Section 5.1{b)(ii);
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(iti)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their
Undistributed Capital Contributions exceed the excess of (1) the aggregate Net
Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(iii), over {2) the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(ii);
and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

Section 5.2 Income Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
no Net Loss or item of deduction or loss shalt be allocated to a Member to the extent such
allocation would cause or increase a deficit balance in such Member’s capital account. In
determining the extent to which the previous sentence is applicable in any Fiscal Year, each
Member’s capital account also shall be reduced by (i) allocations of loss and deduction that, as of
the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are expected to be made to such Member pursuant to
Section 704(e)(2) of the Code, Section 706(d) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section
1.751-1(b)}(2)(i1), and (ii) distributions that, as of the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are
expected to be made to such Member to the extent they exceed offsetting increases to such
Member’s capital account that reasonably are expected to occur during (or prior to) the Company
taxable years in which such distributions reasonably are expected to be made. Any deduction
denied to a Member because of this Section 5.2 shall be allocated to the other Members in
proportion to their respective Interests. If any Member unexpectedly receives an allocation or
distribution described in clause (i) or (ii) above, which causes a deficit balance in such Member’s
capital account (as modified pursuant to this Section 5.2), such Member will be allocated items
of income and gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income and gain
for such year) in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate such deficit, as quickly as
possible.

Section 5.3  Compliance with Regulations. The foregoing provisions of this
Agreement relating to the allocation of Net Profit and Net Loss are intended to comply with
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner
consistent with such regulations. The Members expect and intend that upon the liquidation of
the Company, after giving effect to all contributions and all allocations for all periods, and to
distributions of the Undistributed Capital Contributions plus all Undistributed Priority Returns,
the Members’ capital accounts will have positive balances in proportions that are consistent with
the manner in which distributions will be made under Section 4.1. If at any time it becomes
apparent that this would not be the result, then the allocations provided for in this Article 5 shall
be modified in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and 1.704-2(b)
and Approved by the Members to the extent necessary to cause the Members’ capital account
balances to be in such proportions.

Section 5.4  Special Basis Adjustment. In connection with any Transfer of an Interest
permitted by the terms of this Agreement, or any distribution of Company property to a Member,
the Company (at the written request of any Member) shall elect under Section 754 of the Code,
at the time and in the manner provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.754-1(b) (or any like
statute or regulation then in effect), to adjust the basis of the Company’s assets, provided that in
the case of a Transfer the transferee pays all costs incurred by the Company in connection
therewith, including reasonable attomeys’ and accountants’ fees.
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Section 5.5  Tax Matters Partner. The Manager is hereby designated as the “Tax
Matters Partner” pursuant to the Code and, to the extent authorized or permitted under applicable
law, the Tax Matters Partner shall represent the Company in connection with all examinations of
Company affairs by taxing authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial '
proceedings.

Article 6
Accounting and Records

Section 6.1 Books and Records.

(a) The Manager shall keep at the Company’s principal office separate books
of account for the Company which shall show a true and accurate record (including bills
and invoices) of all costs and expenses incurred, all charges made, all credits made and
received and all income derived in connection with the operation of the Company
business. Such books and records shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied.

(b)  Each Member shall, at its sole expense, have the right, at any time during
normal business hours and without notice to the others, to examine, copy and audit the
Company’s books and records. As often as may be reasonably requested, the Manager
shall permit any authorized representative designated by any Member, at such Member's
own expense, to visit and inspect the Project and to discuss the Company's affairs,
finances and accounts with the Manager and its representatives and the Accountants, all
upon reasonable advance notice and at reasonable times during normal business hours.

Section 6.2 Reports.

(a) The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a sales report to be prepared
on a quarterly basis which contains traffic information and a sales analysis of the Project.
The Manager shall distribute these quarterly reports to each Investor by within thirty (30)
days after the end of each quarter.

(b)  The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a report to be prepared on a
quarterly basis which contains relevant information regarding the Project, including
summaries of significant actions and events taken by the Company, a statement of
sources and uses of funds, income statement and balance sheet, a comparison of the
Company’s financial results from the inception of the Company to the date of the report
with those in the Proforma, a schedule of projected taxable income for the Company and
any other information the Majority Investors may reasonably request and which can be
obtained and presented without undue effort and expense. The Manager shall distribute
these quarterly reports to the Investors within thirty (30) days afier the end of each
quarter.



(c) Within forty five (45) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, the Manager
shall furnish each Member with financial statements of the Company which shall contain
a balance sheet as of the end of the Fiscal Year, statements of profit and loss, Available
Cash, and a statement of changes in the capital accounts and financial position for the
Fiscal Year then ended.

(d) The Manager shall promptly deliver to the Investors such additional
financial and other information regarding the business and affairs of the Company and
the Project as the Majority Investors may reasonably request.

Section 6.3  Proforma. Attached as Exhibit C is a “Proforma” setting forth, on a
monthly basis, among other information, the anticipated costs of completing the Project in
accordance with the Business Plan and anticipated Revenues from sales of Lots pursuant to the
Lot Sales Agreement.

Section 6.4  IRR Analysis.

{(a) The Manager and the Builder have prepared an analysis of the expected
Internal Rate of Return on the capital to be contributed by the Investors (the “Original _
IRR Analysis™), which is included in the Proforma. The Original IRR Analysis projects ;
that, over the life of the Project the Investors will receive at a 19.5% Internal Rate of "
Return on the capital to be contributed by them hereunder. Not later than thirty (30) days
after the end of each calendar quarter or more frequently as required in Section 6.4(b), the
Manager shall prepare and deliver, at its own expense, to the Investors a revised analysis

“of the projected Internal Rate of Return to the Investors, as of the last day of that calendar
quarter, prepared in accordance with this Section {a “Revised IRR Analysis™). Each
Revised IRR Analysis shall calculate the expected Internal Rate of Return to the
Investors (the “Projected IRR”) using (i) Revenues actually received from closed sales of
Lots as of the effective date of the report, (ii) Revenues projected for unsold Lots to be
sold in accordance with the Proforma, (iii) Project Expenses paid as of the effective date
of the report, (iv) unpaid Project Expenses which will be required to complete the Project
in accordance with the Proforma. Each Revised IRR Analysis shall contain at least as
much detatl about incurred and projected Project Expenses and sales of Lots, as the
Original IRR Analysis contains.

(b) At any time that the Manager believes that a Revised IRR Analysis will
show a Projected IRR of less than a 19.5%, it shail immediately notify the Investors and
deliver a Revised IRR Analysis, together with a calculation of the Projected Increased
Sales Prices for Lots which are scheduled to be purchased by the Builder during the
remainder of the Project, and such other information reasonably necessary to understand
the cause or causes for the decrease in the Projected IRR. Nothing in this paragraph shall
relieve the Manager from delivering the regularly scheduled Revised IRR Analysis .
required above.




Section 6.5  Tax Returns. The Manager shall cause the Accountants to prepare, at the .
Company’s expense, on a cash or accrual basis, as Approved by the Members, all income and !
other tax returns of the Company and, subject to the provisions of Section 7.5, cause the same to
be filed in a timely manner. Within 60 days after the end of each tax year of the Company, the
Manager shall deliver to each Person that is or was a Member at any time during such tax year,
such tax information as shall be necessary for the preparation by such Persons of their federal
income tax returns. Upon the reasonable request of any such Person, the Manager shall furnish
to such Person such additional information as is reasonably available to the Manager with respect
to the Company as may be necessary to file other required returns or reports with governmental
agencies. The Manager shall notify the Members and Assignees of any available tax refunds,
credits or exemptions promptly in writing after the Manager becomes aware thereof.

Section 6.6  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company (its “Fiscal Year) shall be
the calendar year or any other period approved by the Manager. As used in this Agreement, a
Fiscal Year shall include any partial Fiscal Year at the beginning or end of the term of the
Company.

Section 6.7 Bank Accounts.

(a)  The Manager shall have responsibility for the safekeeping and use of all
funds and assets of the Company. The funds of the Company shall not be commingled
with the funds of any other Person and the Manager shall not employ, or permit any other
Person to employ, such funds in any manner except for the benefit of the Company.

(b)  The bank accounts of the Company shall be maintained in such banking
institutions selected by the Manager, and withdrawals shall be made only in the regular
course of Company business and as otherwise authorized in this Agreement on such
signature or signatures as the Manager may determine.

(c)  All funds of the Company shall be invested in such investments as are
Approved by the Members other than for cash management in the normal course of
business.

Article 7
Management and Operations

Section 7.1  Management. The day to day business and affairs of the Company
including, site planning and engineering, and completion of infrastructure, hardscape and
landscape on or ahead of schedule and at or below costs in the Proforma, shall be managed by its
Manager. The Manager shall direct, manage, and control the day to day business of the
Company to the best of its ability. Except for situations in which the approvai of the Investors or
the Members is required by this Agreement or by nonwaivable provisions of applicable law, the
Manager shall have the authority, power, and discretion to manage and control the business,
affairs, and properties of the Company, to make all decisions regarding those matters and to
perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incident to the management of the
Company’s business and to otherwise implement the Proforma, including, but not limited to:
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(a)  To do and perform all acts as may be necessary or appropriate to the
conduct of the Company’s business;

(b)  To purchase liability and other insurance to protect the Company’s
property and business;

(c)  To execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents,
mcluding, without limitation, checks, drafts, notes and other negotiable instruments,
mortgages or deeds of trust, security agreements, financing statements, documents
providing for the acquisition, mortgage or disposition of the Company’s property,
assignments, bills of sale, leases, partnership agreements, operating agreements of other
limited liability companies and any other instruments or documents necessary to the
business of the Company; and

(d}  To enter into any and all other agreements on behalf of the Company, with
any other person for any purpose, in such forms as the Manager may approve; provided,
that any such agreements (whether or not written) between the Manager and any of its
Affiliates shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Majority Investors.

Section 7.2 Standard of Care. The Manager shall use its best efforts to cause the

Company to timely complete the Project in accordance with the Business Plan, the Plans and
Specifications and the Proforrna. The Manager shall discharge its duties as Manager in good
faith, with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar
circumstances, and in a manner the Manager reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the
Company.

Section 7.3  Insurance.

(a) Coverage. The Manager shall procure and maintain, or cause to be
procured and maintained, at its expense, insurance in amounts that are customary and
reasonable for the Company’s business and in any event in amounts sufficient to enable
the Company to comply with applicable laws, regulations and requirements, provided
that the Company shall be responsible for the costs of liability insurance to the extent set
forth in the Proforma.

(b) Policy Standards. All policies of insurance shall be issued by an insurer,
shall be in form and for amounts (including deductible and/or indemnity provisions)
approved by the Majority Investors, and shall name the Members and the Manager as
additional insureds. :

(c) Administration. The Manager shall act on behalf of all named insureds
under each such insurance policy with respect to all matters pertaining to the insurance
afforded by each such policy, including the giving and receipt of notice of cancellation,
the payment of premiums and the receipt of return premiums, if any, and of such
dividends as may be declared by any of the insurance companies issuing any of such
policies.
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| Section 7.4  Personnel. The Manager is authorized to exercise its powers and
discharge its duties hereunder through its officers and/or employees and representatives. Neither
the Manager nor any Affiliate of the Manager shall be required to devote its full time to the
business of the Company, but shall only be obligated to devote such time and attention to the
conduct of the business of the Company as shall be reasonably required for the conduct of such
business.

Section 7.5  Major Decisions.

authority to do any of the following acts on behalf of the Company without the prior
written approval of the Majority Investors:

(i) acquire, by purchase, lease, or otherwise, any direct or indirect
interest in any property in addition to the Property, or make any capital
improvements;

(i)  sell or convey the Project or any portion thereof or any interest

(a) Unless specifically set forth in the Proforma, the Manager shall have no
therein;

(iii)  confess a judgment against the Company, submit a Company claim
to litigation or arbitration, or settle any litigation or arbitration;

(iv)  enter into any lease or other occupancy arrangement;

(v) admit a new Member to the Company or issue any profits interest
in the Company to any Person;

(vi)  do any act in contravention of this Agreement or which would
make it impossible or unreasonably burdensome to carry on the business of the
Company;

(vii) enter into, modify, terminate, or waive any breach of or default
under or give any consent under any agreement with the Manager or any Affiliate
of the Manager, including the Lot Sales Agreement;

(viii) acquire an interest in or transfer property to another Person, except
pursuant to the Lot Sales Agreement;

(ix)  give any consent or approval under any contract or agreement if
the subject of such consent or approval would require approval of the Investors
under this Section were it to be undertaken directly by the Company;

(x)  effect any reorganization of the Company into any other legal
form, or any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other
Person;
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(xi)  incur any debt for borrowed money other than as provided in the
Proforma; or

(xit)  petition or apply to any tribunal for the appointment of a trustee or
receiver or for the liquidation of any of its assets or commence any proceeding on
behalf of the Company under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debts law of any jurisdiction or consent to the filing
of any such proceedings by any other person.

Section 7.6  Fees. The Company shall pay to the Manager a fee equal to three
thousand ($3,000) at the time of closing of each Lot from the proceeds received by the Company
from the Builder under the Lot Sales Agreement. This fee shall be used by the Manager solely to
pay Administrative Expenses; provided, however, that if the Projected IRR for any Revised IRR
Analysis is less than 19.5%, the Manager shall not be paid any fee unless the Projected IRR
calculated for the next quarter has been increased to 19.5% in accordance with Section 10.3.

Section 7.6. No Resignation by Estridge. Estridge may not resign as Manager without
the prior written consent of the Majornity Investors in their sole discretion.

Article 8
Transfer of Interests

Section 8.1  Restrictions on Transfer. Except as expressly provided for in this
Agreement, no Member may Transfer all or any portion of its Interest or withdraw from the
Company. Any such attempted Transfer, withdrawal or retirement not permitted hereunder shall

be null and void.

Section 8.2  Permitted Transfers. Subject to Section 8.4 below, the following
Transfers of Interests are permitted by this Agreement:

(a) a Transfer made by an Investor to its Affiliates;

(b) a Transfer made by an Investor who is a natural person, (i) upon the death
or disability of the Investor his personal representatives, guardians, executors,
administrators, testamentary trustees, legatees or beneficiaries (the “Estate”); (ii) to a
trust, partnership, limited liability company or other estate planning vehicle the
beneficiaries, partners or members of which are only the Investor and his spouse,
siblings, stepchildren or direct lineal ancestors or descendants (a “Trust”); (iii) made as a
gift to the Investor's spouse, lineal descendants or stepchildren (the “Family”™); or (iv) by
the Estate, a Trust or the Family (the “Family Group”) to any other member of that
Family Group; or

(¢)  aTransfer made with the prior written consent of the Manager and the
Majority Investors in their discretion.
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Section 8.3  Assignee Not A Member in Absence of Approval. Notwithstanding
Section 8.2 or anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any transferee of an Interest shall be
an assignee and have no right to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the
Company, to exercise any voting power with respect to the transferred Interest, or to become a
Member, unless the Manager and the Majority Investors approve the admission of the transferee
as a Member; provided, however, that no approval for such admission shall be required if the
transferee is an existing Member, or an Affiliate or the member of the Family Group of an
existing Member, at the time of such Transfer (unless such Transfer is to a Family Group
member in connection with a divorce proceeding).

Section 8.4  General Transfer and Compliance Provisions.

(a) All permitted Transfers shall be by instrument in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to counsel for the Manager, shall contain an expression by the
assignee of its intention to accept the assignment and to accept and adopt all of the terms
and provisions of this Agreement, as the same may have been amended, and shall provide
for the payment by the assignor of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Company in
connection with such assignment, including the amendments to this Agreement necessary
to reflect such Transfer.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in no event shall any
Member Transfer an Interest or permit any Transfers by its direct and indirect owners if,
as a result, the Company would terminate under Section 708 of the Code if such
termination would cause any Member or the Company to recognize a material amount of
Income or gain or incur a material amount of expense.

Section 8.5  Tax Allocations and Cash Distributions. If any Interest is Transferred
during any Fiscal Year, Net Profits and Net Loss, or each item thereof, and all other items
attributable to such Interest for such Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the transferee in accordance
with Section 706(d} of the Code, using any conventions permitted by law and selected by the
Manager. All distributions paid on or before the date of a Transfer shall be paid to the transferor,
and all distributions paid thereafter shall be made to the transferee. Any reference in this
Agreement to a capital contribution of| or distribution to, a Person shall include all capital
contributions or distributions previously made by or to any predecessor of such Person on
account of its Interest so transferred. If a Transfer does not comply with the provisions of this
Article 8, then all of such items shall be allocated to the Person who attempted to make the
Transfer.

Article 9
Termination of the Company

Section 9.1  Events of Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve upon the first to occur
of the following events:

(a) at the election of the Majority Investors at any time after the Majority
Investors notify Estridge that an Event of Default has occurred, whether or not the
Majonty Investors have exercised their right to remove Estridge;
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(b) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company with the prior written approval of the Majority Investors, unless such sale or
other disposition involves any deferred payment of the consideration for such sale or
disposition, in which case the Company shall not dissolve until the last day of the
calendar year during which the Company shall receive the balance of such deferred

payment;

(c) the mutual written determination of the Manager and the Majonty
Investors to dissolve the Company;

(d) at any time that there ceases to be at least one Member; or

(e) the issuance of a decree of dissolution by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Section 9.2 Effect of Dissolution. Upon dissolution of the Company pursuant to
Section 9.1, the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of liquidating all of the assets
owned by the Company (until all such assets have been sold or liquidated) and collecting the
proceeds from such sales and all receivables of the Company or until the same have been written
off as uncollectible. Upon such dissolution, the Company shall engage in no business thereafter
other than that necessary to cause the Project to be operated on an interim basis and for the
Company to collect its receivables, liquidate its assets and pay or discharge its liabilities.

Section9.3  Sale of Assets by Liquidating Trustee.

(a) Upon dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall, as “Liquidating
Trustee”, proceed diligently to wind up the affairs of the Company and distribute its
assets, unless the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a) in
which case the Majority Investors may, in their discretion, designate another Person to be
Liquidating Trustee. Another Person may be selected by the Majority Investors to
succeed the original Liquidating Trustee, or to succeed any subsequently selected
successor, whenever the Person originally selected or any such subsequently selected
successor, as the case may be, fails for any reason to carry out such purpose. The
Liquidating Trustee may be an individual or Entity.

(b)  The Liquidating Trustee shall promptly after dissolution offer all of the
assets of the Company, other than cash, (either as an entirety or on an asset-by-asset
basis) promptly for sale, upon such terms as the Liquidating Trustee shall determine.

(c) The fact that a Person is a Member or its Affiliates shall not preclude the
Person from bidding for any or all of the assets being offered for sale.

(d) The decision to accept or reject an offer to purchase assets of the
Company (a “Purchase Offer”) shall be made solely by the Liquidating Trustee, provided,

however, that if the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a)
the Liquidating Trustee shall not accept a Purchase Offer without the approval of the
Majority Investors.




(e) In winding up the affairs of thé Company, the Liquidating Trustee shall
pay the liabilities of the Company in such order of priority as provided by law.
Distributions to the Members shall be made in accordance with their positive capital
account balances, taking into account all capital account adjustments for the Company's
taxable year in which the liquidation occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
distributions made pursuant to this Article 9 are intended to be in strict compliance with
the priority of distributions required by Section 4.1 hereof and if distributions pursuant to
this Article 9 do not comply with the requirements Section 4.1, the capital account
balances of the Members will be adjusted by reallocating allocations of gross income and
deductions to the full extent permitted under Section 704 of the Code until such capital
account balances are in such amounts to cause the final distribution pursuant to this
Article 9 to conform to the requirements of Section 4.1.

) Liquidation proceeds shall be paid within 60 days of the end of the
Company's taxable year or, if later, within 90 days after the “date of liquidation” (as such
term is defined in the Treasury Regulations). Such distributions shall be in cash unless
the Majority Investors agree otherwise.

{g) The Builder’s obligations under Section 10.3 shall terminate upon the
Majority Investors' election to dissolve the Company under Section 9.1(a), as provided in
the Lot Sales Agreement.

Article 10
Removal of Estridge

Section 10.1 Removal of Estridge. Notwithstanding anything contained in this

Agreement to the contrary:

(a) The Majority Investors shall have the right to remove Estridge pursuant to
this Section at any time after the occurrence of any of the following events {each an
“Event of Default™):

@) the Majority Investors have issued an Unmatured Event of Default
Notice to Estridge and Builder has failed to pay the entire Projected Increased
Sales Prices when due in accordance with Section 10.3;

(i)  Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor has failed to cure an
Unmatured Event of Default (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within
thirty (30) days after the Majority Investors have notified Estridge that the default
must be cured (the “Cure Period”);

(i)  Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor (i) is generally not paying,
and admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due, (i1) files, or
consents by answer or otherwise to the filing against it of, a petition for retief or
reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation
or to take advantage of any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or other similar law of any jurisdiction, (i) makes an assignment for the benefit
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of its creditors, (iv) consents to the appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or
other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any
substantial part of its property, (v) is adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated,
or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

(iv)  acourt or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters
an order appointing, without consent by Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor, as
applicable, a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with
respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting
an order for relief or approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other
petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or
insolvency law of any jurisdiction, or ordering its dissolution, winding up or
liquidation, or any such petition shall be filed against Estridge, the Builder or the
Guarantor and such petition shall not be dismissed within thirty (30) days.

(b)  The Majority Investors may exercise their right to remove Estridge at any
time afier the occurrence of any Event of Default, by giving Estridge notice of the
exercise of this right, which notice will set forth the basis for removal and the effective
date, which may be immediately upon delivery of the notice (the “Removal Notice™).

(c) Unless the Removal Notice specifies otherwise, upon delivery of the
Removal Notice Estridge shall cease to be the Manager and a Member of the Company
and shall have no further right to participate in the Company’s business, Net Profits, Net
Loss or distributions. Upon removal of Estridge, Estridge’s entire Interest in the
Company and its rights under this Agreement shall automatically and immediately cease
without the payment of any consideration therefore. Such removal shall not relieve
Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their Affiliates from any liability that any
of them may have for breach of this Agreement, the Lot Sales Agreement, the Guaranty
of the Guarantor or any other Related Document. Upon such removal, Estridge shall
immediately turn over to the Majority Investors or their designee possession of all of the
Company's books, records, properties and assets.

Section 10.2 Unmatured Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following

shall constitute an “Unmatured Event of Default™:

(a) Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their respective Affiliates
has breached or otherwise failed to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Lot
Sales Agreement, the Guaranty of the Guarantor or any of the other Related Documents;
or

(b) the Guarantor dies, ceases to own a controlling interest tn Estridge or the
Builder, or ceases to be the chief executive officer of Estridge and the Builder active in
the full time management of their business.




Estridge shall notify the Investors immediately upon learning that any Unmatured Event
of Default has occurred. At any time after leaming that an Unmatured Event of Default has
occurred, the Majority Investors may notify Estridge that they intend to remove Estridge if the
Unmatured Event of Default is not cured (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within the
Cure Pernod (an “Unmatured Event of Default Notice™).

Section 10.3 Obligation to Cure Projected IRR Deficiency. If any Revised IRR
Analysis shows a Projected IRR of less than 19.5%, then Builder shall acquire Lots during the
remainder of the Project for purchase prices which will cause that Revised IRR Analysis to yield
a 19.5% Projected IRR (the purchase prices as increased are referred to in this Agreement as the
“Projected Increased Sales Prices”).

Section 10.4 No Waiver. Failure of any Member to insist upon compliance with any
provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the nghts of such Member to
subsequently insist upon compliance with that provision or any other provision of this
Agreement.

Article 11
Miscellaneous

Section 11.1 Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in
writing and may be delivered in person to any party or may be sent by registered or certified
mail, with postage prepaid, retum receipt requested and with a copy by telefacsimile, or may be
transmifted by telegraph, commercial overnight carrier service, personal delivery, telefacsimile
or other commercially reasonable means and addressed:

in the case of Estridge, to:

The Estndge Development Company, Inc.

1041 West Main Street

Carmel, Indiana 46032 ;
Attention: Michael J. Keller

Fax number: 317/582-2452

with a copy to:

Krieg DeVault LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Attention: Michael J. Messaglia, Esq.
Fax number: 317/636-1507
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and in the case any Investor, to such Investor:

¢/o Brian J. Brunner
CenterPoint Consulting LLC
P.O. Box 280

56 North Main Street
Zionsville, IN 46077

Fax number: 317/733-3555

with copies to:

Baker & Daniels LLP

600 East 96™ Street, Suite 600
Indianapolis, IN 46240
Attention: J. Jeffrey Brown
Fax number: 317/569-4613

or to such other address as shall, from time to time be supplied in writing by any party to the
others. Notice sent by registered or certified mail, postpaid, with return receipt requested,
addressed as above provided, shall be deemed given on the day of actual receipt or four (4)
business days after deposit in the United States mail, whichever is earlier. If notice is
telegraphed or faxed the same shall be deemed given the first business day after the transmission
thereof. If notice is sent by commercial overnight carrier, the same shall be deemed given the
first business day after such notice is receipted by such carrier for next day delivery. Any notice
or other document sent or delivered in any other manner shall be deemed given only if and when

received.

Section 11.2 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on Transfer set forth
herein, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.

Section 11.3 No Oral Modifications; Amendments. No oral amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding on the Members. This Agreement may be amended only by a
written instrument executed by Estridge and the Majority Investors.

Section 11.4 Captions. Any article, section or paragraph title or caption contained in
this Agreement and the table of contents are for convenience of reference only and shall not be
deemed a part of this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the Person or Entity may in the
context require. Any reference to the Code, Act or other statutes or laws shall include all
amendments, modifications or replacements of the specific sections and provisions concerned.
The term “include” and derivatives thereof shall be construed in an illustrative and not a
limitative sense.
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Section 11.6 Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, it
shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.

Section 11.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in the original or by
telecopy in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an onginal and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Members, and the
signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended
to, any other counterpart.

Section 11.8 Further Assurances. The parties hereto agree that they will cooperate with
each other in good faith and will execute and deliver, or cause to be delivered, all such other
instrurnents, and will take all such other actions, as either party hereto may reasonably request
from time to time in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes hereof.

Section 11.9 Compiete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and
exclusive statement of the agreement between the Members with respect to the matters covered
hereby. This Agreement supersedes all prior written and oral statements and no representation,
statement, condition or warranty not contained in this Agreement shall be binding on the
Members or have any force or effect whatsoever.

Section 11.10 Enforcement Rights. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges and
agrees that the agreements set forth herein are fundamental to the other parties’ willingness to
enter into and be bound by this Agreement. Accordingly, each party hereby agrees that each
other party, jointly and/or severally, may institute and maintain any action, suit or proceeding, at
law or in equity (including, without limitation, specific performance or temporary and permanent
injunctive relief (without any requirement to post any bond or other security)), against any party
to enforce, or otherwise act in respect of, the agreements of such party set forth in this
Agreement. Such relief shall not be exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
damages and any other rights or remedies otherwise available at law or in equity.

Section 11.11 Attomeys’ Fees. If any proceeding is brought by one Member against
another to enforce, or for breach of, any of the provisions in this Agreement, the prevailing
Member shall be entitled in such proceeding to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees together with
the costs of such proceeding therein incurred from the nonprevailing Member. Except as
provided in Section 2.4 hereof, each Member shall pay its own attoreys’ fees and expenses in
connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Agreement.

Section 11.12 Goveming Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

Section 11.13 No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement and any other agreement
among the Members to pay any amount and any assumption of lability herein or therein
contained, express or implied, shall be only for the benefit of the Members and their respective
heirs, successors and assigns, and neither this Agreement nor such other agreement or
assumption shall inure to the benefit of the obligees of any indebtedness or any other party
whomsoever, it being the intention of the Members that no one shall be deemed to be a third
party beneficiary of this Agreement or such other agreement.
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Section 11.14 Exhibits and Glossary. Each of the Exhibits and the Glossary attached
hereto are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes, and references
thereto in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation.

Section 11.15 Estoppels. Each Member shall, upon not less than fifteen (15) days’
written notice from another Member specifying the purpose for and the addressee of such
statement, execute and deliver to that other Member a statement stating whether or not there are,
to such Member’s knowledge without independent investigation, any uncured defaults under this
Agreement on the part of any other Member and its Affiliates and specifying such defaults if any
are claimed. Any such statement may be relied upon by third parties, but shall not otherwise
release the Member for whose benefit such statement is delivered from the consequences of any
uncured defaults hereunder whether or not disclosed in such statement.

Section 11.16 References to this Agreement. Numbered or lettered articles, sections and
subsections herein contained refer to articles, sections and subsections of this Agreement unless
otherwise expressly stated. The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “this
Agreement” and other similar references shall be construed to mean and include this Agreement
and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto unless the context shall clearly indicate or
require otherwise.

Section 11.17 Consents and Approvals. Whenever the consent or approval of a Member
is required by this Agreement, such Member shall have the right to give or withhold such
consent or approval in its sole discretion, unless otherwise specified.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first above written.

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estnidge, Jr. its president

Billy Creek Associates, LP

By: , its general partner
Otto N. Frenzel II1

By: , it general partner
Eleanor F. Bookwalter

For purpose of joining in making the representations attached as Exhibit G and agreeing to be
bound to the terms of this Agreement the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the
date and year first above written.

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President

The Estridge Group, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

BCE Associates I, LLC
Operating Agreement

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings set forth in this
Glossary or in the sections of this Agreement referred to after each term.

Accountants: Somerset CPAs, P.C. or such other firm of nationally-recognized independent
certified public accountants as may be Approved by the Members.

Act: The Indiana Business Flexibility Act as from time to time in force.
Administrative Expenses: Expenses described on Exhibit F.

Affiliate: A Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Person in question and any officer, director,
manager, managing member, partner, trustee, employee, stockholder (fifteen percent (15%) or
more) or direct or indirect owner of any Person referred to in the preceding clause or their
respective family members, which includes children of a spouse and of a former spouse. For
purposes of this definition, the term “control” means the ownership of beneficial interests in an
Entity which in the aggregate give the owner thereof the right to cast fifteen percent (15%) or
more of the votes with respect to any question that may be decided by owners of interests in such
Entity. However, in no event shall any Investor or its Affiliates be deemed an Affiliate of the
Company, Estridge or their Affiliates and in no event shall Estridge or its Affiliates be deemed
an Affiliate of any Investor or its Affiliates.

Agreement: As defined in the Preamble.

Approved by (or Approval of) the Members: That the action in question has been approved in
writing by Estridge and the Majority Investors.

Available Cash: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, Revenues plus any proceeds
from debt used to fund the payment of the Quarterly Distribution Payment less the sum of the
following:

(a)  Project Expenses paid during such period; plus

(b)  aprovision for reasonable working capital reserves and a reserve for projected
Project Expenses, in each case in the amount set forth in the Proforma.

Code: The Intermal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time and all published
rules, rulings and regulations thereunder at the time of reference thereto.

Company: The limited liability company governed by the Agreement as said limited liability
company may from time to time be constituted and amended.




Entity: Any general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited
liability company, corporation, joint venture, trust, business trust, cooperative or association.

Events of Default: Section 10.1(a).
Fiscal Year: Section 6.6. |
Improvements: As defined in Exhibit C.

Interest: The entire interest {(which may be segmented into and/or expressed as a percentage of
various rights and/or liabilities, as applicable) of a Member in the Company at any particular
time, including the right of a Member to any and all benefits to which a Member may be entitled
as provided in this Agreement and in the Act, together with the obligations of such Member to
comply with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement and of the Act.

Internal Rate of Retumn or IRR: The annual discount rate that results in a net present value equal
to zero when the discount rate is applied to all capital contributions made by, and all distributions
received by, a Person (with all cash flows recorded on the actual day that such funds were
disbursed), all calculated in accordance with accepted financial practice.

Liquidating Trustee: Section 9.3.

Lot Sales Agreement: That certain agreement between the Company, as seller, and the Builder,
as buyer, pursuant to which the Builder has the exclusive right and obligation to purchase the
Lots at the prices set forth therein and herein for the sole purpose of constructing single family
residences and selling them to the public.

Maijority Investors: Those Investors that have made a majority of the capital contributions made
by the Investors. Co

Manager: Estridge, provided that, if Estridge is removed in accordance with Section 10.1, the
Majority Investors shall have the right, in their sole discretion, to appoint any other Person to
become a successor Manager hereunder.

Member: Estridge, Billy Creek and such successors, assigns or additional members as may be
admitted as members of the Company, from time to time, pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.

Net Priority Return: The amount by which an Investor's Priority Return exceeds the Investor's
capital contributions to the Company.

Net Profits and Net Loss: “Net Profit” and *“Net Loss” shall mean, for each Fiscal Year or other
period, an amount equal to the Company’s taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year or period,
determined in accordance with Code Section 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of income, gain,
loss or deduction required to be stated separately pursuant to Code Section 703(a)(1) shall be
included in taxablie income or loss), with the following adjustments:




(a) any income of the Company that is exempt from Federal income tax and not
otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be added
to such taxable income or loss;

(b)  any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) or
treated as Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) expenditures under Code Section 704(b) and
not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be
subtracted from such taxable income or loss; and

(c) any amount that is allocated pursuant to Section 5.2 shall be excluded from the
determination of Net Profit and Net Loss.

Person: Any individual or Entity, and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns of such Person where the context so admits.

Permitted Transferee. A transferee in a Transfer of an Interest permitted by Section 8.2 hereof.

Plans and Specifications: All architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working
drawings, designs, models and other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for
or in connection with the Project (or any portion thereof).

Priority Return: The amount of cash distributions which, if received by the applicable Investor

on the date of determination, would result in an Intemal Rate of Return to the Investor of 19.5%
(computed in accordance with the definition of “Internal Rate of Return™ herein and taking into

consideration the timing and amounts of ali capital contributions and distributions in respect of

such Investor's Interest in the Company).

Proforma: The Proforma attached as Exhibit C with such revisions as are approved in
accordance with Section 6.4.

Project Expenses: All expenditures, expenses and charges relating to the acquisition,
improvement or development of the Property, or any portion thereof, and the operations of the
Company, including the fee payable pursuant to Section 7.6,

Projected Increased Sales Prices: Section 10.3.

Projected IRR: Section 6.4(a).

Purchase Offer: Section 9.3(d).

Quarterly Distribution Payment: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the product
of (x) 3% per quarter (i.¢., a rate of 12% per annum) multiplied by (y) the amount of the
Investor's Undistnibuted Capital Contributions (calculated prior to giving effect to any
distribution pursuant to Section 4.1(b) for such quarter).

Revenues: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, the total cash receipts of the
Company from sales of Lots or otherwise.




Revised IRR Analysis: The reports required under Section 6.4.

Tax Matters Partner: Section 5.5.

Transfer: Any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, gift, conveyance, security
interest or other encumbrance, or any contract therefor, any voting trust or other agreement with
respect to the transfer of voting rights or any other beneficial interest in, or any other transfer or
disposition (including, without limitation, any disposition that would constitute a “sale” within
the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) whatsoever affecting the right, title,
interest or possession in or to any Interest, whether direct or indirect, voluntary, involuntary, by
operation of law or otherwise. ‘

Treasury Regulations: Regulations promulgated pursuant to.the Code by the United States
Treasury Department, as amended from time to time.

Undistributed Capital Contnibutions: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the
excess of (a) the aggregate capital contributions to the Company made by such Investor (or its
predecessors), minus (b) the sum of all previous distributions received by such Investor (or its
predecessors) pursuant to Section 4.1(b).

Undistributed Priority Return: With respect to each Investor, the remaining amount the Investor
would need to receive on the date of determination in order to achieve the Priority Return on the
date of determination, taking into account the sum of all distributions received by such Investor
(or its predecessor) pursuant to Section 4.1 for all periods up to the date the determination is
being made.

Unmatured Event of Default: Section 10.2.

Unmatured'Event of Default Notice: Section 10.2,
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EXHIBIT A

Capital Contributions

Member Capital Contribution
Billy Creek Associates, LP $4,000,000
Estridge Development Company, Inc. Estridge has contnibuted to the Company the

Property and its entire right, title and interest in the
Project, including those assets described on Exhibit
E. In addition, Estridge will contribute to the
Company from time to time 100% of the cash equity
required to complete the Project in excess of the
capital contributions of the other Members set forth
above.




EXHIBIT B
Legal Description of Property

See attached four (4) pages.




ALTA Camminnent Schedule A Stewart Fitle Guoavunty Company
Hamillon Title Sccurity, LLC
COMMITMENT FOR TI'TLE INSURANCE

Commitment No.: 2042846

Legal Description:
Tract 1;

Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeust Quanter of Scetion 21, Township 18 North, Range
4 Bast of tho Sccond Principal Meridian in Clay Township of Hamillon County, Indiana, being
more particularly described as follows:

Comuencing at the Northwest Comer of the Northeast Quarter of Section 21, Township 18
North, Range 4 Bust of the Sccand Principal Mcridien in Clay Township of Hamilton County,
Tadizna: hence South 00 Jegrees 1) minutes 29 seconds West {assumed bearing) 320.00 feot
along the West line of sald Nonheast Quarter to the Point of Beginning of the following
deseried real estate, said point being murked with o 5/8 inch dismetor rebar with o yellow cup
stamped (WEH{E ENGR LS 0012"("capped rebar™); theaee continue South 00 doproees 1
minutcs 29 scconds West 1000.83 fect alang said West linc (o o “capped rohac™, sald point being
on the North ling of Woaodficld Subdivision-Scction Four; thence Seuth 89 degrees 33 mioutes
24 seconds Gast 130.57 feel along the North line of sald Wood(icld Subdivision and Lhe same
beitg the Sonth line of said quter quarter section lo a “espped rebx™, theace North 00 degrees
11 minutes 29 scconds Tast 1000.89 fixd parallel with said West line to o “capped roba™; thence
North 89 degrees 335 mrinutes 01 seconds West 130.57 fect paraliel with the Nerth line of said
Northeusi Quarter to the Point of Beginning. Contalning 3.000 acres, more ur loss.

Tract 2:

Part of the Nogthwest Quarter of the Nertheast Quanter of Section 21, Township 18 North, Range
4 Eas of the Second Principal Merldion in Cloy Township of Hamilten County, Indisna, being
mare puriicularly deseribed as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the Norikeast Quarter of Sectica 21, Fownslip 18
Narth, Range 4 East of the Sccond Principal Meridian in Clay Township of Hamilton County,
Tndinna; thenee South 89 degrevs 35 minvtes 01 seconds Gast (Assumed Bearing) 272.25 foet
olong the Norta line of mid quarter section to the Point of Beginning of the folfowing described
real cslate; thence South 00 degroes 11 minutes 29 scconds Wes 320.00 feol parallel with the
West Jing of said Nertheast Quarter fo a /8 inch diameter rebar with a yellow cap marked
(WETHE ENGR LS 0012"(capped rebar™); thence North 89 degrees 35 minutes 01 scconds
Wosl 141.68 feet paralic! with the North line of sald quarter section to & “capped rebar™; thenco
South 00 degrees 11 mirutes 29 soconds Wost 1000.89 feet paralle]l with the West line of said




ALTA Commitmend Schalule A Stewar! Tide Guaranty Company

Hamilton Title Sccurity, LLC
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE

Commitment No.: 2042846

quirier soction {0 o “capped rebar” on the north line of Woodfield Subdivision-Section Four:
thienee South 89 degreus 33 minutes 24 seconds East 121001 feet along the Noeth fies of
Woodfield Subdivision-Scction Pour and Five the same being the South line of suid yuarar
quarter to the center of the Northesst Quarier of sald Section 21, said point being marked with a
“eapped rebar™; thenee North 00 degrees 11 minutes 25 seconds East 1321.46 feot along the Hast
line of the West Half of said quarter quarter to the Nartheast comer of the Northwest Quarter of
the Northeust Qurrler of said Section; theaco North 89 degrees 35 minutes 01 sccoads West
1069.30 feet aleng the North line of said quorter quarter to the Point of Beginning. Containing
35.688 acres, move or less,

BXCEPT: A part of the Nonhwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 21, Township 13
North, Range 4 East, Hamilton County, Indinna, and being that part of the grantor's landl lying
within the right of way fines depicted on the attached Right of Way Parcel Plat, marked Fxhibil
“A”, described as follows: Begioniog of a pojnt on the porth line of sald section South 89
degroes 43 minutes 03 sovonds East 82.982 mutery (272,25 fect) from the norfhwest comer of
said guarter section, which polnt of beglaaing Js the notthwest comer of the grantor’s land;
thence South 89 degrees 43 minutes 03 soconds Bt 325,942 meters (1,069.36 feet (1.069.30
fect by Instrument Y6026G48253)) nluny the north ling of said section to the portheust comer of
said quarter-Quarter section; thence South € dagrees 04 minutes 25 seconds Bast 14.500 moters
(47.57 foet) ulony the cast line of suld quarter-quarter section lo point 254" designated on said
plal; thence South §7 degroes 00 minutes 55 sccords West 61.420 meters (201,52 foct) to polnt
253" designatcd on said plat; thenee North 84 deprecs 00 minutes 25 seconds West 20,100
meiors (63,94 [oct) to point “252" designated on said plit; thence paratlel with the north no of
said scetion North 59 dogroes 43 minulcs 03 soconds West 244.575 melers (302.41 fuet) lo point
“251" designated on suid plat on the west line of the gmntor’s land; thence North 0 degrees 12
miputes 32 seconds West 16,001 meters (52,50 fect) along soid wost line to the point of
bepinning and containing 0.5250 heetares {1.297 scres), more or less.

Tract 3:

Past of the Nerthwvest Quarter of the Northeast Quattee of Soctlon 21, Township 18 Morth, Range
4 Fast of the Sccond Principal Meridian in Clay Tawnship of Hamilton County, Indiana, being

more particutarly describod as follows:

Beginning ot the Northwest Comer of the Nartheast Quarter of Section 21, Township 18 North,
Range 4 Bast of the Second Principal Meridian in Clay Township of Hamilton County, Indianp:




ALTA Commitment Schedulo A Stewart Title Caaranty Company

Hamilton Title Security, LLC
COMMITMENT FOR "F1'FLE INSURANCE

Comwltment No.: 2042846

thence South 89 degrocs 35 minuies 01 sveunds Bast (Assumed Bearing) 27225 fect along the
North line of said quarier; thence South 00 dogrees 11 minutes 29 seconds West 320.00 fect
parallel with the Wext linc of mid Nodheast Quarter 1o 2 5/8 inch diameter rebar with a yollow
cap marked “WEIIE ENGR 1S 0012 - (capped rebar’™); thence North 89 degrees 33 minutes 01
seconds West 272.25 oot paralle] with the North line of soid quuter section to a “capped rebar™
on the Weat line of said Northeast Quarter; thunce North 00 degrees 11 minutes 29 scconds Gast
320.00 feet to the Beginning. Containing 2.000 acres, more or less,

EXCEPT: A pan of the Northwest Quanter of the Nontheast Quarter of Section 21, Townstip {8
Notth, Range 4 Kast, Hamilton Counly, fndiana, and being that part of the grantor's tamld lying
within the right of way lincs depicied on the attached Right of Way Parecl Plat, marked Fxhibit
“A", desedbed 3s follows: Beginning at tho northwest somer of said quarter section; thenee
South 89 degrecs 43 minutes 03 scconds East 82.982 meters (27225 fect) alung the north line of
said section W the nurtheist comer of the grmfor's land; thenco South O degrees 12 minutes 32
seconds East 15.001 meters (42.22 feet) along tho enst ling of the grantor’s Jand to point “246™
designated on said plar; thence parallel with the north line of said section North 89 degroes 43
mioulcs 03 scconds West 82.982 mctars (27225 fect) to point “196” designated vn said plat on
the west line of said quarter section; thence Morth O degrees 12 minates 32 seconds West 15.001
meters (40,22 feet) along said wost tipe 1o the point of begtinning and containing 0.1245 hectarcs
{0.20% acres), more or loss,

The above three (3) tracts may now be described as follows:

Part of the Northwest Quirter of the Nertheast Quarter of Section 21, Township 18 North, Range
4 East, Hamilton Cousty, Indiona, described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest cormer of suid Northwest Quarter; thenee South 00 dogroee 03
minules 41 seconds West afong the West line of said Northovest Quarter a distance of 49.22 feet
to the Point of Beginning, being the Southwest comer of the Righl-ofWay of 1467 Stroet
described in Instrument No. 200000009024 o the Office of the Recorder of Hamilton County,
Indiana; thence Soulh 89 degroes 42 minutca 59 scconds Hast along the South line of said Right-
vEWay a distanoe of 272.25; thence South 0D degrees 03 minutes 31 scconds West aloay the
Waest tine of tho Right-ofWay of 146™ Street described as Instrument No. 199909958408 a
distance of 328 fet; theney South 89 dogrees 43 minutes 00 scconds East along said Right-of-
Way a.distance of 802.54 feet: thence South 84 degrees 00 mimutes 22 seconds Ersl along enid




AT TA Commitment Schedule A Stewart Titls Guarsaty Company
Hamiiton Title Sccurity, LLC
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE

Commitment No.: 2042846

Right-of-Wauy a distance of 802.53 feel; thence South 84 Jogrees 00 minutes 22 soconds Bast
slony snid Right-of-Wiy a distance of 65,94 feek: thence North 87 degress 00 minuics 58 seconds
East along sald Righi-of-Way o distanco of 201.52 foud to the Bast line of suid Northwest
Cnaarter; thence Sauth 00 degrees 03 minutos 42 soconds West afony suid East line a distance of
1272.89 feet 10 the South tine of said Northwest Quarter; thence Nocth §2 deprees 41 minutes 19
seconds West olong said South ling a distance of 1341,01 feet 10 the West linc of said Northwest
Quarter; thenee North 00 degrees 03 minutes 41 soconds Bast alony said West line o distance of
1271.592 fect to the Puint of Beginaing, containing 39.08 acree, morc or fess,

NOTE: The acrenge shown above is inchuded for descriptive purposes only. The peficics, when
issned, should not be construed as to fasuring the amoun of screage included therein,

End of Legnl Description




EXHIBIT C
Proforma

The Company will engage in the acquisition and development of 40 acres located at 5333
East 146th Street in Carmel, Indiana (see Exhibit B). The Project will be developed for lots
suitable for single family residential construction. The Company will not engage 1n the business
of constructing residences and townhouses and, consequently, the capital requirements of the
Company do not and will not include or reflect any costs incurred or to be incurred in connection
with such stage of development.

The Property currently includes a total of 56 Lots which the Company presently intends
to sell to the Builder on an “as-is” basis for the prices determined in the Lot Sales Agreement.
The Builder is acquiring the Lots for the sole purpose of constructing residential dwelling units
thereon. Each residence will fall into one of the following product types: Estridge Designer
Series. The sale of the Lots to the Builder will take place in one or more takedowns in
accordance with the schedules attached to the Proforma.

The Company will provide the Builder a building pad that will include water, sewer, gas
and electric hook-up. The Company will also be responsible for roads, entry ways, entry walls
and common area landscaping and the development of the community’s amenity center and
parkway, as outlined in the Proforma (the utility improvements, amenity center and parkway are
referred to as the “Improvements™).

The Builder will provide and maintain merchandised models within the Project for each
product type, will construct all roads and_provide all other infrastructure for the Project.

The Proforma attached as Exhibit C sets forth costs previously incurred and Estridge’s
and the Builder’s current estimate of the costs anticipated to be incurred with respect to the
acquisition of the Property and the construction of the Improvements on the Property and the
anticipated sales proceeds to be derived from the sale of the Property.

li




EXHIBIT D
Business Plan

(See Exhibit C and Proforma)




EXHIBIT E

List of Contracts and other Personal Property
Assigned to the Company by Estridege

All rights to use the name “Grandin Hall.”

All rights of Estridge and its Affiliates in any master plans, land use plans/models,
architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working drawings, designs, models and
other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for the Project (or any
portion thereof).

All rights or benefits of Estridge and its Affiliates in and to all prior discussions with
governmental bodies, entities and agencies with respect to the Project (or any portion
thereof} and the Development Plan. '

All right, title and interest of Estridge and its Affiliates to continue the negotiations,
discussions and business arrangements with respect to the Project (or any portion thereof)
and the Development Plan.

All agreements for utility services for the Project (or any portion thereof).
All other rights, licenses and permits related to the Project (or any portion thereof).

All rights or benefits in all professional studies on evaluating the Project (or any portion
thereof).

All rights or benefits on bonds, security deposit or letters of credit required in connection
with the Project {or any portion thereof).

The following Contracts: {(See attached list)




Description of Work

Site Work (excavation of ponds, balance site, construct pads)

Storm & Sanitary Sewer Installation
Water Installation

Erosion Control

Curbs

List of Contracts

Vendor

Poindexter
Poindexter
Poindexter
Gwinnuips

Kamns




EXHIBITF
Administrative Expenses
{to be paid by Estridge out of its Fee)

All costs of administering this Project shall be paid by Estridge except to the extent

otherwise specifically provided in the Proforma. Administrative expenses to be paid by Estridge
include:

1. general office expenses, including overhead and compensation of office employees,

2. on site project supervision.




EXHIBIT G
Estridge and the Builder Representations and Warranties

As an inducement to Brunner and Billy Creek to enter into this Agreement, Estridge and
the Builder, jointly and severally with Estridge, represent and warrant to the Investors that:

Warranty of Title. The Company is the record and beneficial owner in fee simple of the
Property, together with all easements appurtenant and all land use, development, water, drainage
and zoning rights applicable thereto, free and clear of ali liens, charges, easements, covenants,
conditions, restrictions and encumbrances whatsoever, other than those set forth in Schedule A
(“Permitted Exceptions™). The Company has the power and authority to convey, transfer and
assign fee simple title to the Property. Neither the Company, nor Estridge, nor the Builder has
granted any options, rights of first refusal or rights of first opportunity to purchase fee simple
title or any other interest in the Property, except that the Company has agreed to sell the Lots to
the Builder in accordance with the terms of the Lot Sales Agreement.

Authority. The Company, Estridge, and the Builder each have full right, power and
authority to execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and all
other documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by it pursuant to this Agreement
or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Related
Documents™). This Agreement and the Related Documents, when executed and delivered, will
constitute the duly authorized, valid and legally binding obligation of the Company, Estridge,
and the Builder and will be enforceable strictly in accordance with their respective terms. All
action, including the obtainment of consents and approvals required to authorize execution and
performance of this Agreement and the other instruments herein provided, have been obtained.

Conflicts. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Documents, the
consummation of the transactions herein or therein contemplated, and compliance with the terms
and provistons hereof or thereof, will not (i) violate any presently existing provisions of law or
any presently existing applicable regulation, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, or (ii) conflict
or be inconsistent with, or result in any breach of, any of the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, instrument,
document, agreement or contract of any kind to which the Company, Estridge or the Builder is a
party or by which it may be bound.

Pending Litigation. There are no petitions, actions, suits, proceedings or investigations
pending against the Company, Estridge or the Builder relating to the execution and delivery of
this Agreement or any Related Document, the Property, the Project, the Governmental
Commitments, Permits or that could otherwise affect the Project or the Property, before any
court or any governunental, administrative, regulatory, adjudicatory or arbitrational body or
agency of any kind (including, without limitation, any actions or petitions to alter or declare
invalid any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, permits, certificates, restrictions, leases or
agreements authorizing or relating to the Project or the Property). None of the foregoing is
subject to the terms of any previously entered and final orders, writs, injunctions, decrees or
arbitration awards which continue to be binding and in full force and effect.




Potential Litigation. No notices have been received that this Agreement, any Related
Document, the Government Commitments, the Permits, the Property, the Project, the Company,
Estridge, or the Buiider is the subject of any threatened investigation, action, litigation, or
proceeding, either judicial or administrative. No notices have been received or process served or
other action taken with respect to the existence or enforcement of any outstanding orders, writs,
injunctions, or decree of any court, government, governmental authority, or arbitration against or
affecting all or any portion of the Property, the Project, the Company, Estridge, or the Builder.

Compliance. The Property and the Project are in compliance with all Permits, laws,
ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations, restrictions, and orders applicable thereto. No notice has
been received from any governmental authority that the Project or Property is in violation of any
of the foregoing or that remedial action is required to regain compliance. There is no pending or
threatened investigation or inquiry by any governmental authority with respect to the Property
and the Project. No law, ordinance, statute, rule, regulation, restriction, or order is pending
which, if enacted, would adversely affect the Property and the Project. Neither the Property nor
the construction of the Project on the Property nor the use of the Project when completed will
then violate, any presently existing applicable statute, law, regulation, rule, ordinance or order of
any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any presently existing zoning or building
laws or ordinances, any presently existing environmental protection laws or regulations, or any
presently existing rules, regulations or orders of any governmental agency), or any Permit issued
with respect to the Project or any condition, easement, right-of-way, covenant or restriction of
record affecting the Property.

Utilities. The Company has entered into binding agreements with the providers of water,
storm and sanitary sewer, gas, electric and telephone services to provide such services in
sufficient quantities for the construction and the operation of 56 Lots in the Project and nothing
will prevent the Company from entering into similar agreements for such services in sufficient
quantity to complete the remainder of the Project. The Company has obtained all Permits and
approvals necessary to extend such lines and mains to bring such utility services to the Property.
Such Permits and approvals are in full force and effect. The Company holds all rights to such
Permits and approvals, has assigned no interests therein to others and has not contracted to assign
or grant rights therein to others. Such agreements and Permits provide for no extraordinary or
special (unique to the Property) tap-on charges and user fees. The plat of subdivision as
recorded or separate recorded instruments provide recorded easements to service every Lot
within the Project with all utilities. No easement for technology services (e.g. telephones, cable
television, alarm systems, and intra/internet service) shall be granted unless the form of such
easement has received the prior written approval of the Majority Investors and no such easement
shall be granted across unsubdivided portions of the Property.

Documents furnished. Neither this Agreement, nor any Related Document, nor any

exhibit or Schedule thereto or any document, report, financial statement, schedule, certificate, or ;
other statement required herein or therein furnished or to be furnished contains any untrue :
statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact relating to the Property, the Project,

the Purchase Contract, Government Commitments, Permits, the Company, Estridge, the Builder

or otherwise, and each of the foregoing is true and correct in all material respects. The financial
statements of Estridge and the Builder previously delivered to the Investors have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied (except as may



be noted therein) and fairly reflect the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
Estridge and the Builder for the periods presented.

Zoning. The Property is duly and validly zoned for the construction of the Project. Such
zoning s unconditional, in full force and effect, and no attacks are pending or threatened with
respect thereto. The transfer of the Property will cause no change in such zoning.

Contracts. There are no contracts or agreements (either oral or written) affecting the
Property and the Project, including, without limitation, leases, tenancies or other contracts or
agreements relating to the design, engineering, construction, maintenance, development or
management thereof (collectively “Contracts™) other than those listed in Exhibit E. All right
title and interest in the Contracts is owned by the Company, free and clear of any liens or rights
and interests of third parties, Estridge, and the Builder (except for Estridge’s and the Builder’s
rights expressly contemplated by this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement). Heretofore true,
correct, and complete copies of all of such Contracts and all of the Plans and Specifications have
been fumished to Brunner and Billy Creek. Such Contracts are in full force and effect, are
unamended and no defaults or potential claims for default exist thereunder. The Company has
not previously assigned or contracted to assign the Contracts or any interests therein.

Brokerage Commissions and Finders Fees. No person is entitled to any brokerage fees
or commissions in connection with the Property, the Project or the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement which have not previously been paid in full.

Condemnation. No notices have been received from any governmental or quasi-
governmental body or agency or from any person or entity with respect to (and none are
expected or contemplated) any actual or threatened taking of the Property, or any portion thereof,
for any public or quasi-public purpose by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent
domain.

Proforma. The Proforma sets forth all expenses and costs incurred or estimated to be
incurred, in connection with the acquisition of the Property and the completion of the Project,
including all costs and expenses incurred or estimated to be incurred, established and maintained
in connection with the construction of the Improvements. All estimates set forth in the Proforma
are based on reasonable assumptions in light of the prior experience of Estridge and the Builder
in connection with other projects similar to the Project.

Priority Return. Each of the Investors will receive an Internal Rate of Return on its
investment in the Company of 19.5% based on the distributions the Company will make to the
Investors hereunder from the Revenues the Company will receive from Builder.

Existing Permits and Applications. All building, zoning and other permits (“Permmits™)
heretofore issued for the Project and all applications submitted and pending for the Project are
listed and described on Schedule B. All of the Permits are issued in favor of and are owned
solely by the Company. The Permits may be assigned and transferred without the imposition of
additional conditions except for the payment of a scheduled re-issue fee. All issued Permits are
in full force and effect, all fees required for the issuance thereof have been paid, and no actions
to revoke such Permits are pending or threatened. The Company has entered into no other




agreements to assign and transfer the Permits or to grant other rights to use the Permits.

Claims. There are no claims or liabilities (whether accrued, contingent, or otherwise)
relating to the Property and the Project, including recaptures and impact fees, other than those
described on Schedule C. There are no facts in existence that might reasonably serve as the
basis now or in the future for any liabilities or obligations with respect to the Property and the
Project, other than as described in Schedule C.

Taxes. All federal, state, local, and other governmental agencies, tax returns, information
returns, and reports required to be filed that relate to any tax or assessment levied, assessed, or
due have been filed with respect to the Property and the Project, and all taxes, assessments and
penalties, or deficiencies have been paid. There is no pending action or proceeding by any
governmental authority for assessment or collection of taxes and no claim for assessment or
collection of taxes has been asserted against the Company or the Property or the Project.

Not a Foreign Person. Neither the Company nor the Builder are a “foreign person”
under Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and each of them shall
satisfy the requirements of said statute.

Name, Logos, Trademarks and Trade names. The Company has exclusive rights to
use the name “Grandin Hall,” in connection with the Property and the Project, which it can
assign and transfer so that such name may be used without the payment of fees, royalties or
charges. The Company owns and has authority to assign all rights to use the logos, trademarks
and trade names, plus any applications filed or pending, previously obtained or filed for the
Project and the Property.

Assessments. The Property is not subject to any existing or proposed assessment liens
and is not now or in the future to be included in any utility, drainage, service or other assessment
district affecting the Property, other than assessments that may be levied by the Centennial
Homeowner’s Association, Inc.

Governmental Commitments. Except as listed on Schedule D, no commitments,
undertakings, or agreements have been made (or will be made or are required to be made) with
any governmental authority, utility company, or any other person or entity that would require any
contribution or dedication of money or land, annexation or disconnection of any portion of the
Property into any municipality, district, or governmental unit or construction and installation of
improvements of a public or private nature on or off of the Property. The foregoing are
collectively called the “Govemmental Commitments.”

Environmental Matters. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has ever
caused or permitted anyone to store, place, dump, release or bury any materials or substances,
including hazardous material (as hereinafter defined), on, under or into the Property or used the
Property as a treatment, storage, or disposal (whether permanent or temporary) site for any
hazardous material. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has or has permitted
others to store, place, dump, release or bury any hazardous materials on the Property. To the
knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, the Property contains no underground storage tanks and
no underground storage tanks have been removed from the Property.




For purposes hereof, “hazardous material” means (i) “hazardous substances” as defined
in 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (i1) petroleum, including but not limited to crude oil or any
fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees
Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute); (ii1) asbestos in any form or condition, and
(iv) any radioactive material, including but not limited in any source, special nuclear, or by-
product material as defined at 42 U.S.C. et seq. and (v) urea formaldehyde foam insulation and
polychlorinated biphenyis (PCBs).

The Schedules attached to this Exhibit are an integral part hereof.

SCHEDULE OF SCHEDULES
Schedule A - Permitted Exceptions
Schedule B - Permits
Schedule C - Liabilities

Schedule D - Government Commitments




Schedule A ’

Permitted Exceptions

Taxes for 2005, payable 2006, not yet due and payable.

Possible future assessments for repair and maintenance of the Emily Vestal Legal Drain.
None due at this time.

Annual assessment of $34.80 for repair and maintenance of the Fremont Randall Legal

Drain. First installment due May 10, 2005 is paid in the amount of $17.40 for Parcel No.
17-10-21-00-00-008.000. Installment due May 10, 2005 is paid in full for Parcel No. 17- ”
10-21-00-00-008.004. !

Easement for electric underground line and incidental purposes in favor of Public Service
Company of Indiana, Inc., recorded May 26, 1989, as Instrument 89-10672 over a twenty
foot strip along the east side of Tract 2.




None.

Schedule B

Permits




Fifth Third Bank Loan
Estridge Development Co.

Total Liabilities

Schedule C

Liabilities
$3,259,687.50
$1.368,320.00

$4,628,007.50




Schedule D

Government Commitments

1. Commitments Concerning the Use and Development of Real Estate by Estridge
Development Company to the Plan Commission of the City of Carmel.

KD_IM-651504_3.00C
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BCE ASSOCIATES II, LLC,
an Indiana limited hability company
OPERATING AGREEMENT
among

.Estridge Development Company, Inc.
an Indiana corporation

as a Member and the Manager
and

Billy Creek Associates [I, LP,
an Indiana limited partnership

as a Member
and
Brian J. Brunner

as a Member




BCE ASSOCIATES II, LLC

OPERATING AGREEMENT

This Operating Agreement (“Agreement”) 1s made as of , 2005 by
and between The Estridge Development Company, Inc., (“Estridge”), Brian J. Brunner
(“Brunner”™), and Billy Creek Associates II, LP an Indiana limited partnership (“Billy
Creek”)(Brunner and Billy Creek collectively referred to as “BCA I11”).

Definitions of terms used in this Agreement are set forth in the Glossary of Defined
Terms attached to and forming a part of this Agreement. '

On , 2005, Estridge formed the Company to develop a planned residential
community located in Hamilton County, Indiana, known as Murphy Hall (*Development” or
“Project”), on property previously owned by Estridge. Estridge has previously contributed all of
its right title and interest in and to the Development to the Company. Substantiaily ali of the
stock of Estridge and the Estridge Group, Inc. (“Builder”) is owned by Paul E. Estridge, Jr. As
of the date of this Agreement, the Company and Builder are entering into a Residential Lot Sales
Agreement (the “Lot Sales Agreement”) pursuant to which Builder will purchase from the
Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Lot Sales Agreement all of the lots
developed by the Company.in accordance with the Proforma Financial Information attached
hereto as Exhibit B (the “Proforma”). Estridge, and Builder have represented and warranted to
BCA 1I that BCA II will receive a compounded cumulative 19.5% return on its investment based
on the revenues the Company will receive from Builder as projected in the Proforma. Builder
and Estridge acknowledge that their covenants and other obligations under this Agreement and
the Lot Sales Agreement, and the representations and warranties set forth on Exhibit L are the
primary inducement for BCA I's investment in the Company.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Agreement and
intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1
The Company

Section 1.1  Organization and Continuation. Estridge and BCA II hereby agree to
continue the Company as a limited liability company under the Act as of the day and year first
above written, for the purposes and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Section 1.2 Name. The name of the Company shall continue to be BCE Associates II,
LLC and all business of the Company shall continue to be conducted in such name. The
Manager shall cause to be filed such certificates as may be required to ensure that the Company
is in compliance with the Act, any relevant assumed or trade name laws and other applicable
laws.




- Section 1.3 Place of Business. The principal office of the Company shall be located at
1041 West Main Street, Carmel, Indiana, or at such other place as may be approved by the
Manager.

Section 1.4  Purpose. The sole purposes of the Company shall be to acquire that
certain real estate located in Hamilton County, Indiana described on Exhibit A (the “Property™),
and to improve, own, and dispose of the Property in accordance with the Business Plan attached
as Exhibit B (the “Project”) and as otherwise provided in this Agreement. '

Section 1.5  Purposes Limited. The Company’s activities shall be only for the
purposes specified in Section 1.4. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the
Company shall not engage in any other activity or business and no Member shall have any
authonty to hold itself out as an agent of another Member in any other business or activity.

Section 1.6  No Payments of Individual Obligations. The Company’s credit and assets
shall be used solely for the benefit of the Company. No asset of the Company shall be
transferred or encumbered for or in payment of any individual obligation of a Member.

Section 1.7  Statutory Comp-liance.

(a) The Company shall exist under and be governed by, and this Agreement
shall be construed in accordance with, the applicable laws of the State. The Manager
shall make all filings and disclosures required by, and shall otherwise comply with, all
such laws. Additionally, the Company shall make all filings and pay all fees required to
qualify the Company as a foreign limited liability company in each state in which the
Company conducts any business and such qualification is necessary for the Members to
maintain limited liability status.

(b) The Manager shall execute and file in the appropriate records any assumed
or fictittous name certificate or certificates required by law to be filed in connection with
the formation, qualification and continuation of the Company as a limited liability
company, and shall execute and file such other documents and instruments and pay such
fees as may be necessary or appropriate with respect to such formation, qualification and
continuation of, and conduct of business by, the Company.

Section 1.8 Title to Property. Allreal and personal property owned by the Company
shall be owned by the Company as an entity and, insofar as permitted by applicable law, no
Member shall have any ownership interest in such property in its individual name or right except
as expressly provided in this Agreement and each Member’s interest in the Company shall be
personal property for all purposes.

Section 1.9  Waiver of Partition. No Member shall, either directly or indirectly, take
any action to require partition of the Company or of any of its assets or properties or cause the
sale of any Company property, and notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, each
Member (and its legal representative, successor or assign) hereby irrevocably waives any and all
right to maintain any action for partition or to compel any sale with respect to its Interest, or with
respect to any assets or properties of the Company, except as expressly provided in this
Agreement.




Section 1.10  Duration. The duration of the Company shall be perpetual, until dissolved
pursuant to Article 9 of this Agreement.

Section 1.11  Registered Office and Registered Agent. The Company’s initial registered
agent for service of process and the registered office shall be that Person and location reflected in
the Articles of Organization filed with the Indiana Secretary of State. The registered office and
registered agent may be changed from time to time by filing the address of the new registered
office and/or the name of the new registered agent with the Indiana Secretary of State pursuant to
the Act.

Article 2
The Members

Section 2.1  Identification. Estridge and BCA II shall be the Members of the
Company. No other Person may become a Member except by way of a Transfer specifically
permitted under and effected in compliance with Article 8 of this Agreement. As used in this
Agreement, the term BCA II refers to Billy Creek and Brunner. All decisions and actions of
BCA II pursuant to this Agreement shall be made and controlled by Billy Creek which decisions
and actions shall be binding upon Brunner. All contributions, distributions and allocations to
BCA II pursuant to this Agreement shall be prorated 97.23% to Billy Creek and 2.77% to
Brunner.

Section2.2  Withdrawals. A Member may not withdraw or retire from the Company
except upon liquidation of the Company pursuant to Section 9.2 or by a permitted Transfer
pursuant to Article 8. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Member shail not have the right to
demand or withdraw all or any portion of its capital contributions or any other distribution until
the time of (and on the same terms as) any such return or distribution is required to be made
pursuant to Section 4.1. In no event shall a Member have a right to demand or receive property
other than cash in return for capital contributions or otherwise.

Section 2.3 Conflicts. The Members and their Affiliates may conduct any business or
activity whatsoever (including the acquisition, development, leasing, operation and sale of real
property) without any accountability to the Company or to any Member even if such business or
activity competes with the business of the Company. Each Member understands that the other
Members and their Affiliates may be interested, directly or indirectly, in various other such
businesses and undertakings and each Member waives any rights it might otherwise have to
share or participate in such other interests or activitics of the other Members and their Affiliates.

Section 2.4  Reimbursement and Fees. Unless expressly provided for in the Proforma
or in this Agreement, no Member and no Affiliate of a Member shall be paid any compensation
by the Company for services to the Company or be reimbursed by the Company for overhead or
general administrative expenses.




Article 3
Capital of the Company

Section 3.1  Imitial Capital Contributions. The Members have made or shall make
contributions to the capital of the Company of cash and property in the amounts, at the agreed
values and at the times set forth opposite their respective names on Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference. No interest shall accrue on any contributions to the capital of
the Company, and no Member shall have the right to withdraw or to be repaid any capital
contributed by it, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 3.2  No Further Capital Contributions. Except for the cash and property
required to be contributed pursuant to Section 3.1, the Members shall not be required to
contribute additional capital to the Company.

Section 3.3  Member Loans. In the event that funds are needed by the Company for its
operations, any Member may loan such funds to the Company under such terms and conditions
as may be agreed to between the Member and the Company.

Article 4
Distributions

Section 4.1  Distribution of Available Cash. Available Cash shall be distributed at
least quarterly on the first business day of the calendar quarter in the following order of priority:

(a) First to BCA 1l in an amount, if any, equal to the Quarterly Distribution
Payment.

(b) Next to BCA II to the extent of its Undistributed Priority Return as of the
date of such distribution;

{¢)  Nextto BCA Il to the extent of its Undistributed Capital Contributions as
of the date of such distribution; and

(d)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

Section4.3  In-Kind Distribution. Assets of the Company shall not be distributed in
kind to the Members, without the approval of the Manager and BCA 11

Section 4.4  Restriction on Distributions. The Company shall not make any
distribution to the Members unless (a) immediately after giving effect to the distribution, the
Company shall have sufficient cash available to meet the reasonably anticipated needs of the
Company; and (b) such distribution is made in compliance with the Act.




Article 5
Allocations and Tax Matters

Section 5.1  Allocation of Net Profits and Net Loss in General. Except as otherwise
provided in this Article 5, Net Profits or Net Loss of the Company (and each item thereof) for
each Fiscal Year or other period shall be allocated to the Members as follows:

(a)  Net Profits shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

(1) First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(b)(iv) exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(a)(i);

(1))  Next, to BCA II to the extent of the amount by which the aggregate
Net Loss previously allocated to BCA II pursuant to Section 5. 1(b)(iii) exceeds
the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to BCA II pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(i);

(iii)  Next, to BCA II to the extent of the amount by which its accrued
Priority Return for all years of the Company’s operations exceeds the excess of
(1) the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to BCA H pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(iii) for all years of the Company’s operations; and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.
(b)  Net Loss shall be allocated in the following order of prionty:

() First, to Estnidge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(iv), exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(i);

(1)  Next, to BCATI, and to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to BCA II pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(iii), exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to BCA I
pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(ii);

(it1)  Next, to BCA II to the extent of the amount by which its
Undistributed Capital Contributions exceed the excess of (1) the aggregate Net
Loss previously allocated to BCA II pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(iii), over (2)
the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to BCA II pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(ii); and

(iv})  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

Section 5.2  Income Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
no Net Loss or item of deduction or loss shall be allocated to a Member to the extent such




allocation would cause or increase a deficit balance in such Member’s capital account, unless all
Members have zero or negative balances in their capital accounts. In determining the extent to
which the previous sentence is applicable in any Fiscal Year, each Member’s capital account also
shall be reduced by (i) allocations of loss and deduction that, as of the end of such Fiscal Year,
reasonably are expected to be made to such Member pursuant to Section 704(e)(2) of the Code,
Section 706(d) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.751-1(b)(2)(i1), and (i1)
distributions that, as of the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are expected to be made to such
Member to the extent they exceed offsetting increases to such Member’s capital account that
reasonably are expected to occur during (or prior to) the Company taxable years in which such
distnbutions reasonably are expected to be made. Any deduction denied to a Member because of
this Section 5.2 shall be allocated to the other Members in proportion to their respective

Interests. If any Member unexpectedly receives an allocation or distribution described in clause
(t) or (ii) above, which causes a deficit balance in such Member’s capital account (as modified
pursuant to this Section 5.2), when the other Members have a positive capital account balance,
such Member will be allocated items of income and gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each
item of Company income and gain for such year) in an amount and manner sufficient to
climinate such deficit, as quickly as possible.

Section 5.3  Compliance with Regulations. The foregoing provisions of this
Agreement relating to the allocation of Net Profit and Net Loss are intended to comply with
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner
consistent with such regulations. The Members expect and intend that upon the liquidation of
the Company, after giving effect to all contributions and all allocations for all periods, and to
distributions of the Undistributed Capital Contributions plus all Undistributed Prionty Returns,
the Members’ capital accounts will have positive balances in proportion to the percentages in
which distributions will be made under Section 4.1(d). If at any time it becomes apparent that
this would not be the result, then the allocations provided for in this Article 5 shall be modified
in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and 1.704-2(b) and
Approved by the Members to the extent necessary to cause the Members’ capital account
balances to be in such proportions.

Section 5.4  [Tax Allocations; Code Section 704(c).

(a) In accordance with Code Section 704(c) and the Treasury Regulations
thereunder, gain and loss, as determined for tax purposes, with respect to any
property (“Section 704(c) Property”) contributed to the Company shall, for tax
purposes, be allocated among the Members so as to take account of any variation
between the adjusted basis of such property to the Company for Federal income tax
purposes and its fair market value at the time of contribution.

(b) Any elections or other decisions relating to such allocations shall be
made by the Members in any manner that reasonably reflects the purpose and
intention of this Agreement.

(c) In the event of any termination of the Company under
Section 708(b)(1)(B) of the Code, the Company’s deemed liquidating distributions to
each Member shall be deemed to include any Section 704(c) Property theretofore
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contributed by such Member to the Company and still owned by the Company at
the time of such termination, provided, however, that the balances in the Members’
respective capital accounts in the Company as reconstituted after such deemed
liquidation shall in any event equal what such capital account balances would have
been in the absence of this Section 5.4(c).]

Section 5.5  Special Basis Adjustment. In connection with any Transfer of an Interest

permitted by the terms of this Agreement, or any distribution of Company property to a Member,

the Company (at the written request of any Member) shall elect under Section 754 of the Code,
at the time and in the manner provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.754-1(b) (or any like
statute or regulation then in effect), to adjust the basis of the Company’s assets, provided that in
the case of a Transfer the transferee pays all costs incurred by the Company in connection
therewith, including reasonable attorneys” and accountants”’ fees.

Section 5.6  Tax Matters Partner. The Manager is hereby designated as the “Tax
Matters Partner” pursuant to the Code and, to the extent authonized or permitted under applicable
law, the Tax Matters Partner shall represent the Company in connection with all examinations of
Company affairs by taxing authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial
proceedings.

Article 6
Accounting and Records

Section 6.1  Books and Records.

(a) The Manager shall keep at the Company’s principal office separate books
of account for the Company which shall show a true and accurate record (inciuding bills
and invoices) of all costs and expenses incurred, all charges made, all credits made and
received and all income derived in connection with the operation of the Company
business. Such books and records shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied.

(b)  Each Member shall, at its sole expense, have the right, at any time during
normal business hours and without notice to the others, to examine, copy and audit the
‘Company’s books and records.

Section 6.2  Reports.

(a) The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a sales report to be prepared
on a quarterly basis which contains traffic information and a sales analysis of the project.
The Manager shall distribute these quarterly reports to BCA II by within thirty (30) days
after the end of each quarter.

(b)  The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a report to be prepared on a
quarterly basis which contains relevant information regarding the Project, including
summaries of significant actions and events taken by the Company, a statement of
sources and uses of funds, income statement and balance sheet, a comparison of the




Company’s financial results from the inception of the Company to the date of the report
with those in the Proforma, a schedule of projected taxable income for the Company,
The Manager shall distribute these quarterly reports to BCA II within thirty (30) business
days after the end of each quarter.

Section 6.3  Proforma. Attached as Exhibit B is a “Proforma” setting forth, on a
monthly basis, the anticipated costs of completing the Project in accordance with the Business
Plan and anticipated revenues from sales of the Property.

Section 6.4 IRR Analysis.

(a) The Manager and the Builder have prepared an analysts of the expected
internal rate of return on the capital to be contributed by BCA II (the “Original IRR
Analysis™}, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit E. The Original IRR Analysis projects
that BCA II will receive at a 19.5% Internal Rate of Return on the capital to be
contributed by BCA 1I over the life of the Project. Not later than thirty (30) business
days after the end of each calendar quarter or more frequently as required in
Section 6.4(b), the Manager shall prepare and deliver, at its own expense, to BCA Il a
revised analysis of the projected internal rate of return, as of the last day of that calendar
quarter, on the capital contributed and to be contributed by BCA 1I qver the life of the
Project, prepared in accordance with this Section (a “Revised IRR Analysis”). Each
Revised IRR Analysis shall calculate the expected internal rate of return on the capital
contributed as of the effective date of the report and additional capital to be contributed
by BCA Il over the life of the Project (the “Projected IRR”) using (i) Revenues actually
received from closed sales of Lots as of the effective date of the report, (i1) Revenues
projected for unsold Lots to be sold in accordance with the Proforma, (111) Project
Expenses paid as of the effective date of the report, (iv) unpaid Project Expenses which
will be required to complete the Project in accordance with the Proforma. Each Revised
IRR Analysis shall contain at least as much detail about incurred and projected Project
Expenses and sales of Lots, as the Original IRR Analysis contains.

(b) At any time that the Manager believes that a Revised IRR Analysis will
show less than a 19.5% Projected IRR, it shall immediately notify BCA Il and deliver a
Revised IRR Analysis, together with a calculation of the Projected Increased Sales Prices
for Lots which are scheduled to be purchased by the Builder during the remainder of the
project, and such other information reasonably necessary to understand the cause or
causes for the decrease in the Projected IRR (the “Back-up Data™). Nothing in this
paragraph shall relieve the Manager from delivering the regularly scheduled Revised IRR
Analysis required above.

Section 6.5 Books and Records.

(¢)  The Manager shall keep at the Company’s principal place of business true
and accurate books of account with respect to the operation of the Company. All
Members, and their duly authorized representatives, shall at all reasonable times have
access to such books. The books of the Company shall be kept on the cash basis of
accounting, or on such other basis of accounting as the Manager may determine, and




otherwise in accordance with accounting methods employed for federal income tax
reporting purposes, and shall be closed and balanced at the end of each Fiscal Year of the
Company and at such other times as the Manager may determine is appropriate.

(d)  Withan forty five (45) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, the Manager
shall furnish each Member with financial statements which shall contain a balance sheet
as of the end of the Fiscal Year, statements of profit and loss, Available Cash, and a
statement of changes in the capital accounts and financial position for the Fiscal Year
then ended.

Section 6.6  Tax Returns. The Manager shall cause the Accountants to prepare, at the
Company’s expense, on a cash or accrual basis, as Approved by the Members, all income and
other tax retumns of the Company and, subject to the provisions of Section 7.4, cause the same to
be filed in a timely manner.

Section 6.7  Fiscal Year. The Fiscal Year of the Company shall be the calendar year or
any other period Approved by the Manager. As used in this Agreement, a Fiscal Year shall
include any partial Fiscal Year at the beginning or end of the term of the Company.

Section 6.8 Bank Accounts.

(e) The Manager shall have responsibility for the safekeeping and use of all
funds and assets of the Company. The funds of the Company shall not be commingled
with the funds of any other Person and the Manager shall not employ, or permit any other
Person to employ, such funds in any manner except for the benefit of the Company.

(f) The bank accounts of the Company shall be maintained in such banking
institutions selected by the Manager, and withdrawals shall be made only in the regular
course of Company business and as otherwise authorized in this Agreement on such
signature or signatures as the Manager may determine.

(g)  All funds of the Company shall be invested in such investments as are
Approved by the Manager other than for cash management in the normal course of
business.

Article 7
Management and Operations

Section 7.1  Management. The day to day business and affairs of the Company
including, site planning and engineering, and completion of infrastructure, hardscape and
landscape on or ahead of schedule and at or below costs in the Proforma, shall be managed by its
Manager. The Manager shall diréct, manage, and control the day to day business of the
Company to the best of its ability. Except for situations in which the approval of BCA I or the
Members is required by this Agreement or by nonwaivable provisions of applicable law, the
Manager shall have the authority, power, and discretion to manage and control the business,
affairs, and properties of the Company, to make all decisions regarding those matters and to




perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incident to the management of the
Company’s business and to otherwise implement the Proforma, including, but not limited to:

(a) To do and perform all acts as may be necessary or appropriate to the
conduct of the Company’s business;

(b)  To purchase liability and other insurance to protect the Company’s
property and business;

(c) To execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents,
including, without limitation, checks, drafis, notes and other negotiable instruments, mortgages
or deeds of trust, security agreements, financing statements, documents providing for the
acquisition, mortgage or disposition of the Company’s property, assignments, bills of sale,
leases, partnership agreements, operating agreements of other limited liability companies and
any other instruments or documents necessary to the business of the Company; and

) To enter into any and all other agreements on behalf of the Company, with any
other person for any purpose, in such forms as the Manager may approve.

Section 7.2 Insurance.

(a) Coverage. The Manager shall procure and maintain, or cause to be
procured and maintained, at its expense, insurance in amounts that are customary and
reasonable for the Company’s business and in any event in amounts sufficient to enable
the Company to comply with applicable laws, regulations and requirements, provided
that the Company shall be responsible for the costs of liability insurance to the extent set
forth in the Proforma.

(b)  Policy Standards. All policies of insurance shall be issued by an insurer,
shall be in form and for amounts (including deductible and/or indemnity provisions)
approved by BCA II, and shall name the Members and the Manager as additional
insureds.

(c)  Administration. The Manager shall act on behalf of all named insureds
under each such insurance policy with respect to all matters pertaining to the insurance
afforded by each such policy, including the giving and receipt of notice of cancellation,
the payment of premiums and the receipt of return premiums, if any, and of such
dividends as may be declared by any of the insurance companies issuing any of such
policies.

Section 7.3  Personnel. The Members are authorized to exercise their powers and
discharge their duties hereunder through their respective officers and/or employees and
representatives. Neither a Member nor any Affiliate of any Member shall be required to devote
its fuil time to the business of the Company, but shall only be obligated to devote such time and
attention to the conduct of the business of the Company as shail be reasonably required for the
conduct of such business.
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Section 7.4  Major Decisions.

(a) Unless specifically set forth in the Proforma or the most current Approved
Annual Budget, the Manager shall have no authority to do any of the following acts on
behalf of the Company without the approval of BCA II:

() acquire, by purchase, lease, or otherwise, any direct or indirect
interest in real property in addition to the Property, or make any capital
improvements;

(i)}  sell or convey the Project or any portion thereof or any interest
therein;

(it}  confess a judgment against the Company, submit a Company claim
to litigation or arbitration, or settle any litigation or arbitration;

(iv)  .enter into any lease or other occupancy arrangement;
(v)  admit a new Member to the Company;

(vi)  do any act in contravention of this Agreement or which would
make it impossible or unreasonably burdensome to carry on the business of the
Company;

(vii) enter into, modify, terminate, or waive any breach of or default
under or give any consent under any agreement with the Manager or any Affiliate
of the Manager, including the Lot Sales Agreement;

(viii) acquire an interest in or transfer property to another Entity;

(ix)  give any consent or approval under any contract or agreement if
the subject of such consent or approval would require approval of BCA 1I under
this Section were it to be undertaken directly by the Company; or

(x)  petition or apply to any tribunal for the appointment of a trustee or
receiver or for the liquidation of any of its assets or commence any proceeding on
behalf of the Company under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debts law of any jurisdiction or consent to the filing
of any such proceedings by any other person.

(b)  If BCA II does not notify the Manager of its approval or disapproval of
any matter submitted for its approval within thirty (30) days after its receipt of a request
for approval made in accordance with Section 11.1 (or, if later, within five (5) business
days after the day on which the Manager complies in all matenial respects with any
request from BCA II for additional information related to such matter), the matter shall
be deemed approved.
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Section 7.5  Fees. The Company shall pay to the Manager a fee equal to three
thousand ($3,000) at the time of closing of each Lot received by the Company from the Builder
under the Lot Sales Agreement. This fee shall be shall be used by the Manager to pay for
Supervisory & Administrative Expenses; provided, however, that if the Projected IRR for any
Revised IRR Analysis is less than 19.5%, the Manager shall not be paid any fee unless the
Projected IRR calculated for the next quarter has been increased to 19.5% in accordance with
Section 10.3.

Article 8
Transfer of Interests

Section 8.1  Restrictions on Transfer. Except as expressly provided for in this
Agreement, no Member may, without the consent of the other Members, sell, convey, transfer,
assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise encumber in any way (“Transfer”) all or any
portion of its Interest or withdraw or retire from the Company. In addition, each Member shall
take such action as is required to prevent Transfers of direct and indirect ownership interests in
such Member which result in a Change in Control of that Member. Any such attempted
Transfer, withdrawal or retirement not permitted hereunder shall be null and void.

Section 8.2  General Transfer and Compliance Provisions.

(a) All permitted Transfers shall be by instrument in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to counsel for the nontransferring Member, shall contain an
expression by the assignee of its intention to accept the assignment and to accept and
adopt all of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, as the same may have been
amended, and shall provide for the payment by the assignor of all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Company in connection with such assignment, including the amendments
to this Agreement necessary to reflect such Transfer. .

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in no event shall any
Member Transfer an Interest or permit any Transfers by its direct and indirect owners if,
as a result, the Company would terminate under Section 708 of the Code if such
termination would cause any Member or the Company to recognize a material amount of
income or gain or incur a material amount of expense.

Section 8.3  Tax Allocations and Cash Distributions. If an Interest is Transferred in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Net Profits or Net Loss allocable, and cash
distributable, to the holder of such Interest for the then Fiscal Year shall be allocated
proportionately between the transferor and the transferee based upon the number of days during
such Fiscal Year on which each party was the owner of the transferred Interest. However, if
such parties agree that such Net Profits or Net Loss and cash are to be allocated and distributed
based upon an interim closing of the Company books, and such parties agree to pay all expenses
incurred by the Company in connection therewith and so notify the non-transferring Member,
then all such Net Profits or Net Loss and cash shall be allocated and distributed between the
transferor and transferee based upon an interim closing of the Company’s books and records.
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Article 9
Termination of the Company

Section 9.1  Events of Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve upon the first to occur
of the following events:

(a)  at the election of BCA II at any time after BCA II notifies Estridge that a
Major Event of Default has occurred, whether or not BCA II has exercised its right to
remove Estridge;

(b)  the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company, unless such sale or other disposition involves any deferred payment of the
consideration for such sale or disposition, in which case the Company shall not dissolve

* until the last day of the calendar year during which the Company shall receive the
balance of such deferred payment;

(c) the issuance of a decree of dissolution by a court of competent
Jjurisdiction.

Section9.2  Effect of Dissolution. Upon dissolution of the Company pursuant to
Section 9.1, the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of liquidating all of the assets
owned by the Company (until all such assets have been sold or liquidated) and collecting the
proceeds from such sales and all receivables of the Company or until the same have been written
off as uncollectible. Upon such dissolution, the Company shall engage in no business thereafter
other than that necessary to canse the Project to be operated on an interim basis and for the
Company to collect its receivables, liquidate its assets and pay or discharge its liabilities.

Section 9.3  Sale of Assets by Liquidating Trustee.

(a)  Upon dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall, as “Liquidating
Trustee”, proceed diligently to wind up the affairs of the Company and distribute its
assets, unless the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(b) in
which cases BCA 11 shall be the Liquidating Trustee or within ninety (90) days of the
date of such event shall designate another Person to be Liquidating Trustee. Another
Person may be selected by Approval of the Members to succeed the original Liquidating
Trustee, or to succeed any subsequently selected successor, whenever the Person
originally selected or any such subsequently selected successor, as the case may be, fails
for any reason to carry out such purpose. The Liquidating Trustee may be an individual
or Entity.

(b)  The Liquidating Trustee shall promptly after dissolution offer all of the
assets of the Company, other than cash, (either as an entirety or on an asset-by-asset
basis) promptly for sale, upon such terms as the Liquidating Trustee shall determine.

(c)  The Members and their Affiliates shall have the right to negotiate or bid
for any or all of the assets being offered for sale.
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(d) Subject only to the Members’ rights to match offers below, the decision to
accept or reject an offer to purchase assets of the Company (a “Purchase Offer”) shall be
made solely by the Liquidating Trustee, provided, however, that the Liquidating Trustee
shall not, without the approval of BCA II, accept a Purchase Offer unless:

(1) the offeror is a Qualified Person and the Purchase Offer contains
an agreement of the offeror to provide such additional information to all Members
as any Member may reasonably request concerning the offeror or the terms of the
offer;

(1)  no sale of assets pursuant to the Purchase Offer would be a, or
would cause the Company to be in, breach of or default under any agreement by
which the Company is bound;

(iii))  the Purchase Offer includes a firm non-contingent price, payable in
cash and does not require any action on behalf of the Company or any Member or
any Affiliate of any Member.

(e) In winding up the affairs of the Company, the Liquidating Trustee shall
pay the liabilities of the Company in such order of priority as provided by law.
Distributions to the Members shall be made in accordance with the capital accounts of the
Members.

H The Builder’s obligations under Section 10.3 shall terminate upon BCA
II’s election to dissolve the Company under Section 9.1(b), as provided in the Lot Sales
Agreement. '

Article 10
Removal of Estridge

Section 10.1 Removal of Estridge. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Agreement to the contrary:

(a)  BCA Ii shall have the rnight to remove Estridge pursuant to this Section at
any time after the occurrence of any of the following events (“Major Events of Default™):

(1) BCA 1I has issued a Pre-Removal Notice to Estridge and Builder
has failed to pay the entire Projected Increased Sales Prices when due in
accordance with Section 10.3; or

(i)  Estridge or the Builder has failed to cure an Unmatured Event of
Default (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within thirty (30) days after
BCA H has notified Estridge that the default must be cured (the “Cure Period”).

(b)  BCA Il may exercise its right to remove Estridge at any time after the
occurrence of any Major Event of Default, by giving Estridge notice of the exercise of
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this right, which notice will set forth the basis for removal and the effective date, which
may be immediately upon delivery of the notice (the “Removal Notice™).

(c) Unless the Removal Notice specifies otherwise, upon delivery of the
Removal Notice to Estridge, BCA 11, or any other person appointed by BCA 11, shall
immediately become the new Manager and Estridge shall cease to be the Manager and
shall have no further right to participate in the Company’s business, Net Profits, Net Loss
or distributions. Upon removal of Estridge, Estridge’s Interest in the Company and its
rights under this Agreement shall cease.

Section 10.2 Unmatured Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following
shall constitute an “Unmatured Event of Default™

(a) Estridge has taken any action or is failing to take any action which
requires the approval of BCA 1I to take or refrain from taking, without obtaining the
approval of BCA II;

(b)  an Event of Withdrawal with respect to Estridge has occurred; or

(c) if conditions are such as to authorize BCA 1] to exercise its right of first
refusal for the lots under the Lot Sales Agreement, whether or not that right is exercised,
or if the Builder fails to comply in any material respect with the Lot Sales Agreement
(other than Builder’s failure to make a payment described in Section 10.3).

Estridge shall notify BCA II immediately upon learning that any Unmatured Event of
Default has occurred. At any time after leaming that an Unmatured Event of Default has
occurred, BCA 1I may notify Estridge that BCA II intends to remove Estridge if Estridge or the
Builder do not cure the Unmatured Event of Default (whether or not it is capable of being cured)
within the Cure Period (an “Unmatured Event of Default Notice™). Estridge may, at any time
after learning that an Unmatured Event of Default has occurred, request that BCA II issue an
Unmatured Event of Default Notice. If Estridge requests that BCA Il issue an Unmatured Event
of Default Notice, then BCA II shall have thirty (30) business days after Estridge has provided
all Requested Information to BCA II, to notify Estridge of BCA II’s decision to remove or not
remove Estridge if the Unmatured Event of Default is not cured within the Cure Period.
Estridge’s request to BCA I to issue an Unmatured Event of Default Notice shall be
accompanied by a representation that to Estridge’s knowledge, after diligent inquiry, there are no
other Unmatured Events of Default. For purposes of this paragraph, “Requested Information”
means all information requested by BCA II which is reasonably necessary to its determination of
whether or not to remove Estridge if the Unmatured Event of Default is not cured within the
Cure Period. )

‘ Section 10.3  Obligation to Cure Projected IRR Deficiency. If any Revised IRR
Analysis shows a Projected IRR of less than 19.5% (i.e. projects an internal rate of return over

the life of the Project on the capital contributed and to be contributed by BCA II, of less than a
19.5%), then Builder shall acquire Lots during the remainder of the project for purchase prices ‘
which will cause that Revised IRR Analysis to yield a 19.5% Projected IRR (the purchase prices

as increased are referred to in this Agreement as the “Projected Increased Sales Prices”).
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Section 10.4 No Waiver. Failure of either Member to insist upon compliance with any
provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the rights of such Member to
subsequently insist upon compliance with that provision or any other provision of this
Agreement.

Article 11
Miscellaneous

Section 11.1 Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in
writing and may be delivered in person to any party or may be sent by registered or certified
mail, with postage prepaid, return receipt requested and with a copy by telefacsimile, or may be
transmitted by telegraph, commercial overnight carrier service, personal delivery, telefacsimile
or other commercially reasonable means and addressed:

in the case of Estridge, to:

The Estndge Development Company, Inc.
1041 West Main Street
Carmel, Indiana 46032
Attention: Michael J. Keller
" Fax number: 317/582-2452

with a copy to:

Krieg DeVault LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Attention: Michael J. Messaglia, Esq.
Fax number: 317/636-1507

and in the case of BCA I to;

Attention;
Fax number:

with copies to:
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Attention:
Fax number:

or to such other address as shall, from time to time be supplied in writing by any party to the
others. Notice sent by registered or certified mail, postpaid, with return receipt requested,
addressed as above provided, shall be deemed given on the day of actual receipt or four (4)
business days after deposit in the United States mail, whichever is earlier. If notice is
telegraphed or faxed the same shall be deemed given the first business day after the transmission
thereof. If notice is sent by commercial overnight carrier, the same shall be deemed given the
first business day after such notice is receipted by such carrier for next day delivery. Any notice
or other document sent or delivered in any other manner shail be deemed given only if and when
received.

Section 11.2  Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on Transfer set forth
herein, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.

Section 11.3 No Oral Modifications; Amendments. No oral amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding on the Members. This Agreement may be amended only by a
written instrument executed by all of the Members.

Section 11.4 Captions. Any article, section or paragraph title or caption contained in
this Agreement and the table of contents are for convenience of reference only and shall not be-
deemed a part of this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the Person or Entity may in the
context require. Any reference to the Code, Act or other statutes or laws shall include all
amendments, modifications or replacements of the specific sections and provisions concemed.
The term “include” and derivatives thereof shall be construed in an illustrative and not a
limitative sense.

Section 11.6 Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shail be held invalid, it
shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.

Section 11.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and
the same instrument, binding on the Members, and the signature of any party to any counterpart
shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.

Section 11.8  Further Assurances. The parties hereto agree that they will cooperate with
each other in good faith and will execute and deliver, or cause to be delivered, all such other
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instruments, and will take all such other actions, as either party hereto may reasonably request
from time to time in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes hereof.

Section 11.9 . Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and
exclusive statement of the agreement between the Members with respect to the matters covered
hereby. This Agreement supersedes all prior written and oral statements and no representation,
statement, condition or warranty not contained in this Agreement shall be binding on the
Members or have any force or effect whatsoever.

Section 11.10 Attorneys’ Fees. If any proceeding is brought by one Member against
another to enforce, or for breach of, any of the provisions in this Agreement, the prevailing
Member shall be entitled in such proceeding to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees together with
the costs of such proceeding therein incurred from the nonprevailing Member. Each Member
shall pay its own attorneys’ fees and expenses in connection with the negotiation, preparation
and execution of this Agreement.

Section 11.11 Governing [.aw. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State.

Sectiont 11.12 No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement and any other agreement
among the Members to pay any amount and any assumption of liability herein or therein
contained, express or implied, shall be only for the benefit of the Members and their respective
heirs, successors and assigns, and neither this Agreement nor such other agreement or
assumption shall inure to the benefit of the obligees of any indebtedness or any other party
whomsoever, it being the intention of the Members that no one shall be deemed to be a third
party beneficiary of this Agreement or such other agreement.

Section 11.13 Exhibits and Glossary. Each of the Exhibits and the Glossary attached
hereto are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes, and references
thereto in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation.

Section 11.14 Estoppels. Each Member shall, upon not less than fifteen (15) days’
written notice from another Member specifying the purpose for and the addressee of such
statement, execute and deliver to that other Member a statement stating whether or not there are,
to such Member’s knowledge without independent investigation, any uncured defaults under this
Agreement on the part of the other Member and its Affiliates and specifying such defaults if any
are claimed. Any such statement may be relied upon by third parties, but shall not otherwise
release the Member for whose benefit such statement is delivered from the consequences of any
uncured defaults hereunder whether or not disclosed in such statement.

Section 11.15 References to this Agreement. Numbered or lettered articles, sections and
subsections herein contained refer to articles, sections and subsections of this Agreement unless
otherwise expressly stated. The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “this
Agreement” and other similar references shall be construed to mean and include this Agreement
and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto unless the context shall clearly indicate or
require otherwise.
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Section 11.16 Consents and Approvals. Whenever the consent or approval of a Member
is required by this Agreement, such Member shall have the right to give or withhold such
consent or approval in its sole discretion, unless otherwise specified.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first above written.

The Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:
Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its president

Brian J. Brunner

Billy Creek Associates II, L.P.

By: , its general partner

By:

For purpose of joining in making the representations attached as Exhibit F and agreeing to be
bound to the terms of this Agreement the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the
date and year first above written.

The Estridge Development Company, Inc. .

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President

The Estridge Group, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President

KD_IM-639023_2.DOC

20




GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

BCE Associates II, LLC
Operating Agreement

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings set forth in this
Glossary or in the sections of this Agreement referred to after each term.

Accountants: or such other firm of nationally-recognized independent
certified public accountants as may be Approved by the Members.

Act: The Indiana Business Flexibility Act as from time to time in force.

Administrative Expenses: Expenses described on Exhibit D.

Affiliate: A Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Person in question and any officer, director,
trustee, employee, stockholder (fifteen percent (15%) or more) or direct or indirect owner of any
Person referred to in the preceding clause or their respective family members, which includes
children of a spouse and of a former spouse. For purposes of this definition, the term *control”
means the ownership of beneficial interests in an Entity which in the aggregate give the owner
thereof the right to cast fifteen percent (15%) or more of the votes with respect to any question
that may be decided by owners of interests in such Entity. However, in no event shall BCA Il or
its Affiliates be deemed an Affiliate of the Company, Estridge or their Affiliates and in no event
shall Estridge or its Affiliates be deemed an Affiliate of the Company, BCA II or its Affiliates.

Agreement: As defined in the Preamble.

Approved by (or Approval of) the Members: That the action in question has been approved in
writing by Estridge and BCA IL

Available Cash: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, Revenues plus any proceeds
from debt used to fund the payment of the Quarterly Distribution Payment less the sum of the
following:

(a) Project Expenses paid during such period; plus

(b) a provision for reasonable working capital reserves and a reserve for projected
Project Expenses in the amount set forth in the Proforma.

Code: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time and all published
rules, rulings and regulations thereunder at the time of reference thereto.

Company: The limited liability company governed by the Agreement as said limited liability
company may from time to time be constituted and amended.

Entity: Any general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited
liability company, corporation, joint venture, trust, business trust, cooperative or association.




Event of Withdrawal: The death, withdrawal, retirement, resignation, expulsion, bankruptcy, or
Incapacity of a Member.

Events of Default: Section 10.1(a).

Fiscal Year: Section 6.8.
Improvements: Exhibit B.
Incapacity: The legal incapacity of a natural person or the dissolution or liquidation of an Entity.

Interest: The entire interest (which may be segmented into and/or expressed as a percentage of
various rights and/or liabilities, as applicable) of a Member in the Company at any particular
time, including the right of such Member to any and all benefits to which a Member may be
entitled as provided in this Agreement and in the Act, together with the obligations of such
Member to comply with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement and of the Act.

Liquidating Trustee: Section 9.3.

Lot Sales Agreement: That certain agreement between the Company, as seller, and the Builder,
as buyer, pursuant to which the Builder has the exclusive right and obligation to purchase the
Lots at the prices set forth therein and herein for the sole purpose of constructing single family
residences and selling them to the public.

Manager: Estridge, provided that, if Estridge is removed in accordance with Section 10.1, BCA
II shall become or may select any other Person to become successor to Estridge as Manager
hereunder.

Member: Estridge and BCA II and such successors, assigns or additional members as may be
admitted to the Company, from time to time, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

Proforma: The Proforma attached as Exhibit B with such revisions as are approved in
accordance with Section 6.4.

Net Profits and Net Loss: “Net Profit” and “Net Loss” shall mean, for each Fiscal Year or other
penod, an amount equal to the Company’s taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year or period,
determined in accordance with Code Section 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of income, gain,
loss or deduction required to be stated separately pursuant to Code Section 703(a)(1) shall be
included in taxable income or loss), with the following adjustments:

()  any income of the Company that is exempt from Federal income tax and not
otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be added
to such taxable income or loss;

(b)  any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) or
treated as Code Section 705(a)(2)}(B) expenditures under Code Section 704(b) and
not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shatl be
subtracted from such taxable income or loss; and




| (c) any amount that is allocated pursuant to Section 5.2 shall be excluded from the
determination of Net Profit and Net Loss.

Person: Any individual or Entity, and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns of such Person where the context so admits.

Plans and Specifications: Any architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working
drawings, designs, models and other similar architectural or engineering materiais prepared for
or in connection with the Project (or any portion thereof).

Priority Return: .An amount equal to a cumulative return determined on a monthly basis, at a rate
equal to 19.5% per annum compounded monthly on the aggregate amount of BCA II’s average
Undistributed Capital Contributions and Undistributed Priority Return from time to time during
the period to which the Priority Return relates.

Project Expenses: All expenditures, expenses and charges relating to the acquisition,
improvement or development of the Property, or any portion thereof, and the operations of the
Company, including the fee payable pursuant to Section 7.6.

Projected Increased Sales Prices: Section 10.3.

Projected IRR: Section 6.2(b).

Projected 19.5% Percent IRR: The 19.5% Internal Rate of Return projected under the Proforma
and the Original IRR Analysis.

Purchase Offer: Section 9.3(d).

Qualified Person: A Person having a net worth equal to or greater than 3 times the firm
non-contingent price referred to Section 9.3(d)(iit).

Quarterly Distribution Payment: An amount equal to the product of (x} 3% multiplied by (y) the .
amount of BCA II’s Undistnbuted Capital Contributions. ' h

Revenues: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, the total cash receipts of the
Company from sales of Lots.

Revised [RR Analysis: The reports required under Section 6.5.

Section 704(c) Property: Section 5.4(a).

Lots: Exhibit B.
State: Indiana.

Tax Matters Partner: Section 5.6.




Transfer: Section 8.1.

Treasury Regulations: Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Code by the United States
Treasury Department, as amended from time to time.

Undistributed Capital Contributions: Of BCA 11 is equal to the excess of the aggregate
contributions to the capital of the Company by BCA II, over previous distributions to BCA II
pursuant to Section 4.1(c).

Undistributed Prionty Return: Of BCA II is equal to the excess of:

(a)  BCA II’s Priority Return for all periods up to the date the determination is being
made, over

(b)  all distributions to BCA II pursuant to Section 4.1(a) and Section 4.1(b) for all
periods up to the date the determination is being made.

Unmatured Event of Default: Section 10.2.

Unmatured Event of Default Notice: Section 10.2
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Description of Project




EXHIBIT B
Proforma

The Company will engage in the acquisition and development of 55 acres located at 141
Street and Towne Road in Carmel, Indiana (see Exhibit A). The Project wilt be developed for
lots suitable for single family residential construction and townhouses. The Company will not
engage in the business of constructing residences and townhouses and, consequently, the capital
requirements of the Company do not and will not include or reflect any costs incurred or to be
incurred in connection with such stage of development.

The Property currently includes a total of ____ lots (the “Lots”) which the Company
presently intends to sell to the Builder on an “as-is” basis for the prices determined in the Lot
Sales Agreement. The Builder is acquining the Lots for the sole purpose of constructing
residential dwelling units thereon. Each residence will fall into one of the following product
types: 800 series (more particularly described below). The sale of the Lots to the Builder will
take place in one or more takedowns in accordance with the schedules attached to the Proforma.

The Company will provide the Builder a building pad that will include water, sewer, gas
and electric hook-up. The Company will also be responsible for roads, entry ways, entry walls
and common area landscaping and the development of the community’s amenity center and
parkway, as outlined in the Proforma (Exhibit B) (the utility improvements, amenity center and
parkway are referred to as the “Improvements”).

The Builder will provide and maintain merchandised models within the Project for each
product type, will construct all roads and provide all other infrastructure for the Project.

The Proforma attached as Exhibit B sets forth costs previously incurred and Estridge’s
and the Builder’s current estimate of the costs anticipated to be incurred with respect to the
acquisition of the Property and the construction of the Improvements on the Property and the
anticipated sales proceeds to be derived from the sale of the Property.




EXHIBIT C
List of Contracts and other Personal Property
Assigned to the Company by Estridge

"

All nghts to use the name *

All nights of Estridge and its Affiliates in any master plans, land use plans/models,
architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working drawings, designs, models and
other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for the Project (or any
portion thereof).

All rights or benefits of Estridge and its Affiliates in and to all prior discussions with
governmental bodies, entities and agencies with respect to the Project {or any portion
thereof) and the Development Plan.

All right, title and interest of Estridge and its Affiliates to continue the negotiations,
discussions and business arrangements with respect to the Project (or any portion thereof)
and the Development Plan.

All agreements for utility services for the Project (or any portion thereof).
All other rights, licenses and permits related to the Project (or any portion thereof).

All nghts or benefits in all professional studies on evaluating the Project (or any portion
thereof).

All nghts or benefits on bonds, security deposit or letters of credit required in connection
with the Project (or any portion thereof).

The following Contracts: (See attached list)




EXHIBIT D
Administrative Expenses
(to be paid by Estridge out of its Fee)

All costs of administering this Project shall be paid by Estridge except to the extent

othetwise specifically provided in the Proforma. Administrative expenses to be paid by Estridge

include:
1. general office expenses, including overhead and compensation of office employees,
2. on site project supervision.



EXHIBITE
Original IRR Analysis
r See Proforma .
|
|
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EXHIBITF
Estridge and the Builder Representations and Warranties

As an inducement to BCA Il to enter into this Agreement, Estridge and the Builder,
jointly and severally with Estridge, represent and warrant to BCA I that:

Warranty of Title. The Company 1s the record and beneficial owner in fee simple of the
portion of the Property described on Schedule A together with all easements appurtenant and all
land use, development, water, drainage and zoning rights applicable thereto and is holder of all
rights to purchase fee simple title to the portion of the Property described on Schedule B
pursuant to the terms of the (the “Purchase Contract”), free and clear
of all liens, charges, easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions and encumbrances
whatsoever, other than those set forth in Schedule C (“Permitted Exceptions”). The Company
has the power and authority to convey, transfer and assign fee simple title to, and, pursuant to the
terms of the Purchase Contract, the power and authority to convey, transfer and assign the rights
to purchase fee simple title in, the Property. Neither the Company, nor Estridge, nor the Builder
has granted any options, rights of first refusal or rights of first opportunity to purchase fee simple
title or any other interest in the Property or in and to the purchase rights arising under the
Purchase Contract, except that the Company has sold those portions of the Property described on
Schedule D to the Builder in accordance with the terms of the Lot Sales Agreement.

Authority. The Company, Estridge, and the Builder each have full rnght, power and
authority to execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and all
other documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by it pursuant to this Agreement
or otherwise referred to in this Agreement (the “Related Documents™). This Agreement and the
Related Documents, when executed and delivered, will constitute the duly authorized, valid and
legally binding obligation of the Company, Estridge, and the Builder and will be enforceable
strictly in accordance with their respective terms. All action, including the obtainment of
consents and approvals required to authorize execution and performance of this Agreement and
the other instruments herein provided, have been obtained.

Purchase Contract. The Purchase Contract is in full force and effect and has been duly
and validly assigned to the Company by Estridge, neither the seller nor the purchaser therein is
now or has ever been in default thereunder and all payments due to be made thereunder have
been paid in full. The Purchase Contract is fully assignable and transferrable without seller’s
consent or approval and without the payment of any fees or charges payable to the seller.
Closing on the purchases contemplated by the Purchase Contract can be accelerated by the
giving of notices setting earlier closing dates. The Purchase Contract provides for the acquisition
of all easements appurtenant, land use, development, water, drainage and zoning rights
applicable to the lands to be purchased thereby. The Purchase Contract sets forth all of the terms
and conditions applicable to the purchase of the lands therein described and no requests for a
further amendment to or modification of any of the Purchase Contract have been made by the
seller or purchaser. No dispute currently exists between the seller and purchaser and no
condition has been discovered upon the land or which exists with respect thereto which, if not
resolved or remedied by the seller, would result in a default or give either party the unilateral
right to terminate the Purchase Contract. Upon closing of the purchases provided for by the
Purchase Contract, al! of the Property required for the Project shall have been acquired by the




Company together with all easements appurtenant thereto and all land use, development, water,
drainage and zoning rights applicable thereto.

Conflicts. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Documents, the
consummation of the transactions herein or therein contemplated, and compliance with the terms
and provisions hereof or thereof, will not (i) violate any presently existing provisions of law or
any presently existing applicable regulation, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, or (ii) conflict
or be inconsistent with, or result in any breach of, any of the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, instrument,
document, agreement or contract of any kind to which the Company, Estridge or the Builder is a
party or by which it may be bound.

Pending Litigation. There are no petitions, actions, suits, proceedings or investigations
pending against the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any Related Document, the
Property, the Project, the Purchase Contract, Governmental Commitments, Permits, the
Company, Estridge, or the Builder before any court or any governmental, administrative,
regulatory, adjudicatory or arbitrational body or agency of any kind (including, without
limitation, any actions or petitions to alter or declare invalid any laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, permits, certificates, restrictions, leases or agreements authorizing or relating to the
Project or the Property). None of the foregoing is subject to the terms of any previously entered
and final orders, writs, injunctions, decrees or arbitration awards which continue to be binding
and in full force and effect. :

‘Potential Litigation. No notices have been received that this Agreement, any Related
Document, the Government Commitments, the Permits, the Property, the Project, the Company,
Estridge, or the Builder is the subject of any threatened investigation, action, litigation, or
proceeding, either judicial or administrative. No notices have been received or process served or
other action taken with respect to the existence or enforcement of any outstanding orders, writs,
injunctions, or decree of any court, government, govemnmental authority, or arbitration against or
affecting all or any portion of the Property, the Project, the Company, Estridge, or the Builder.

Compliance. The Property and the Project are in compliance with all Permits, laws,
ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations, restrictions, and orders applicable thereto. No notice has
been received from any governmental authority that the Project or Property is in violation of any
of the foregoing or that remedial action is required to regain compliance. There is no pending or
threatened investigation or inquiry by any governmental authority with respect to the Property
and the Project. No law, ordinance, statute, rule, regulation, restriction, or order is pending
which, if enacted, would adversely affect the Property and the Project. Neither the Property nor
the construction of the Project on the Property nor the use of the Project when completed will
then violate, any presently existing applicable statute, law, regulation, rule, ordinance or order of
any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any presently existing zoning or building
laws or ordinances, any presently existing environmental protection laws or regulations, or any
presently existing rules, regulations or orders of any governmental agency), or any permit issued
with respect to the Project or any condition, easement, right-of-way, covenant or restriction of
record affecting the Property.



Utilities. The Company has entered into binding agreements with the providers of water,
storm and sanitary sewer, gas, electric and telephone services to provide such services in
sufficient quantities for the construction and the operation of __ Lots in the Project and nothing
will prevent the Company from entering into similar agreements for such services in sufficient
quantity to complete the remainder of the Project. The Company has obtained all permits and
approvals necessary to extend such lines and mains to bring such utility services to the Property.
Such permits and approvals are in full force and effect. The Company holds all rights to such
permits and approvals, has assigned no interests therein to others and has not contracted to assign
or grant rights therein to others. Such agreements provide for no extraordinary or special (unique
to the Property) tap-on charges and user fees. The plat of subdivision as recorded or separate
recorded instruments provide recorded easements to service every lot within the Project with all
utilities. No easement for technology services (e.g. telephones, cable television, alarm systems,
and intra/internet service) shall be granted unless the form of such easement has received the
prior written approval of BCA II and no such easement shall be granted across unsubdivided
portions of the Property.

Documents furnished. Neither this Agreement, nor any Related Document, nor any
exhibit or Schedule thereto or any document, report, financial statement, schedule, certificate, or
other statement required herein or therein furnished or to be fumished contains any untrue
statement of a material fact or omits to state a matenal fact relating to the Property, the Project,
the Purchase Contract, Government Commitments, Permits, or to , the Company, Estridge, or
the Builder.

Zoning. The Property is duly and validly zoned for the construction of the Project as a
mixed-use planned community with single-family residences and town homes.
Such zoning is unconditional, in full force and effect, and no attacks are pending or threatened
with respect thereto. The transfer of the Property will cause no change in such zoning.

Contracts. There are no contracts or agreements (either oral or written) affecting the
Property and the Project, including, without limitation, leases, tenancies or other contracts or
agreements relating to the design, engineering, construction, maintenance, development or
management thereof (collectively “Contracts™) other than those listed in Exhibit C. All right title
and interest in the Contracts is owned by the Company, free and clear of any liens or rightsand
interests of third parties, Estridge, and the Builder (except for Estridge’s and the Builder’s rights
expressly contemplated by this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement). Heretofore true,
correct, and complete copies of all of such Contracts have been furnished, such Contracts are in
full force and effect, are unamended and no defaults or potential claims for default exist
thereunder. The Company has not previously assigned or contracted to assign the Contracts or
any interests therein..

Brokerage Commissions and Finders Fees. No brokerage fees or commissions are
payable by or due from the purchaser at the closing of the Purchase Contract other than any
commissions due to pursuant to the Commission Agreement dated
, by and between Estridge and from the purchaser at closing,
which commissions are included in the Proforma.  All brokerage commissions and finder’s fees
due as a result of the purchase of the portion of the Property described in the Purchase Contract
have been fully paid. The transfer of Estridge’s rights in and to the Property to the Company as




well as the assignment of the Purchase Contract by Estridge to the Company will not give nise to
any additional rights to or claims for additional comumissions or finder’s fees. Excluded from the
foregoing are broker’s commissions due in connection with the sale or leasing of single family
and town home units constructed on the Property.

Condemnation. No notices have been received from any governmental or quasi-
governmental body or agency or from any person or entity with respect to (and none are
expected or contemplated) any actual or threatened taking of the Property, or any portion thereof,
for any public or quasi-public purpose by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent
domain.

Proforma. The Proforma sets forth all expenses and costs incurred or estimated to be
incurred, in connection with the acquisition of the Property and the completion of the Project,
including all costs and expenses incurred or estimated to be incurred, established and maintained
in connection with the construction of the Improvements

Existing Permits and Applications. All building, zoning and other permits (“Permits™)
heretofore issued for the Project and all applications submitted and pending for the Project are
listed and described on Schedule E. All of the Permits are issued in favor of and are owned
solely by the Company. The Permits may be assigned and transferred without the imposition of
additional conditions except for the payment of a scheduled re-issue fee. All issued Permits are
in full force and effect, all fees required for the issuance thereof have been paid, and no actions
to revoke such Permits are pending or threatened. The Company has entered into no other
agreements to assign and transfer the Permits or to grant other rights to use the Penmits.

Claims. There are no claims or liabilities (whether accrued, contingent, or otherwise)
relating to the Property and the Project, including recaptures and impact fees, other than those
that will be fully discharged pursuant to the closing escrow agreement approved by BCA 1I and
Estridge and those described on Schedule F. There are no facts in existence that might
reasonably serve as the basis now or in the future for any liabilities or obligations with respect to
the Property and the Project, other than as described in Schedule F.

Taxes. All federal, state, local, and other govemmental agencies, tax returns, information
returns, and reports required to be filed that relate to any tax or assessment levied, assessed, or
due have been filed with respect to the Property and the Project, and all taxes, assessments and
penalties, or deficiencies have been paid. There is no pending action or proceeding by any
governmental authority for assessment or collection of taxes and no claim for assessment or
collection of taxes has been asserted against the Company or the Property or the Project.

Not a Foreign Person. Neither the Company nor the Builder are a “foreign person”
under Section 1445 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and each of them shall
satisfy the requirements of said statute.




Name, Logos, Trademarks and Trade names. The Company has
exclusive rights to use the name “ ,” in connection with the Property and the
Project, which it can assign and transfer so that such name may be used without the payment of
fees, royalties or charges. The Company owns and has authority to assign all rights to use the
logos, trademarks and trade names, plus any applications filed or pending, previously obtained or
filed for the Project and the Property.

Assessments. The Property is not subject to any existing or proposed assessment liens
and s not now or in the future to be included in any utility, drainage, service or other assessment
district affecting the Property, other than assessments that may be levied by the Centennial
Homeowner’s Association, Inc.

Governmental Commitments. Except as listed on Schedule G, no commitments,
undertakings, or agreements have been made with any governmental authority, utility company,
or any other person or entity that would require any contribution or dedication of money or land,
annexation or disconnection of any portion of the Property into any municipality, district, or
governmental unit or construction and installation of improvements of a public or private nature
on or off of the Property. The foregoing are collectively called the “Governmental
Commitments.”

Environmental Matters. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has ever
caused or permitted anyone to store, place, dump or bury any materials or substances, mncluding
hazardous matenal (as hereinafter defined), on, under or into the Property or used the Property as
a treatment, storage, or disposal (whether permanent or temporary) site for any hazardous
material. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has or has permitted others to
store, place, dump, or bury any hazardous materials on the Property. To the knowledge of
Estridge and the Builder, the Property contains no underground storage tanks and no
underground storage tanks have been removed from the Property.

For purposes hereof, “hazardous material” means (i} “hazardous substances” as defined
in 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (ii) petroleum, including but not limited to crude oil or any
fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees
Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute); (iii) asbestos in any form or condition, and
(1v) any radioactive matenal, including but not limited in any source, special nuclear, or by-
product matenal as defined at 42 U.S.C. et seq. and (v) urea formaldehyde foam insulation and
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs).

The Schedules attached to this Exhibit are an integral part hereof.




SCHEDULE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule A - Legal Description of Property owned
Schedule C - Permitted Exceptions

Schedule E - Permits

Schedule F - Liabilities

‘Schedule G - Government Commitments




Schedule A

Legal Description of Property owned

(See __ pages attached.)



Schedule C

Permitted Exceptions

[to be inserted]



Schedule E
Permits -

[to be inserted)




Schedule F
Liabilities

[to be inserted]
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Schedule G
Government Commitrnents
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BCE ASSOCIATES III, LLC,
an Indiana limited liability company
OPERATING AGREEMENT
among

Estridge Development Company, Inc.
an Indiana corporation

as a Member and the Manager
and

Billy Creek Associates, LP,
an Indiana limited partnership

as a Member




BCE ASSOCIATES III, LLC

OPERATING AGREEMENT

This Operating Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of January 18, 2006 by and
between Estndge Development Company, Inc., (“Estridge”), and Billy Creek Associates, LP, an
Indiana limited partnership (“Billy Creek™)(Billy Creek, collectively with its Permitted
Transferees, referred to as the “Investors™).

Definitions of certain terms used in this Agreement are sct forth in the Glossary of
Defined Terms attached to and forming a part of this Agreement.

On December 19, 2005, Estridge formed the Company to develop a planned residential
community located in Hamilton County, Indiana, known as Centennial North (as further defined
below, the “Project’”), on property previously owned by Estridge. Estridge has previously
contributed all of its nght, title and interest in and to the Project to the Company. Substantially
all of the stock of Estridge and The Estridge Group, Inc. (“Builder”) is owned by Paul E.
Estridge, Jr. (the “Guarantor”). As of the date of this Agreement, the Company and Builder are
entering into a Residential Lot Sales Agreement (the “Lot Sales Agreement”) pursuant to which
Builder will purchase from the Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Lot Sales
Agreement all of the lots developed by the Company (the “Lots”) in accordance with the
Proforma Financial Information attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Proforma”). Estridge and
Builder have represented and warranted to the Investors on Exhibit G hereto that each of the
Investors will receive an Internal Rate of Retumn on its investment in the Company of 19.5%
based on the distributions the Company will make to the Investors hereunder from the Revenues
the Company will receive from Builder. Builder and Estridge acknowledge that their covenants
and other obligations under this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement, the representations and
warranties set forth on Exhibit G, and the personal guaranty of the Guarantor, are the primary
inducement for the Investors' investment in the Company.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Agreement and
intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1
The Company

Section 1.1  Organization and Continuation. The Members hereby agree to continue
the Company as a limited liability company under the Act as of the day and year first above
written, for the purposes and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Section 1.2 Name. The name of the Company shall continue to be BCE Associates
III, LLC and all business of the Company shall continue to be conducted in such name. The
Manager shall cause to be filed such certificates as may be required to ensure that the Company
is in compliance with the Act, any relevant assumed or trade name laws and other applicable
laws. '




Section 1.3 Place of Business. The principal office of the Company shall be located at
1041 West Main Street, Carmel, Indiana, or at such other place as may be approved by the
Manager.

Section 1.4  Purpose. The sole purposes of the Company shall be to acquire that
certain real estate located in Hamilton County, Indiana described on Exhibit B (the “Property™),
and to improve, own, and dispose of the Property in accordance with the Plans and
Specifications and the Business Plan attached as Exhibit D) and as otherwise provided in this

Agreement (the “Project™).

Section 1.5  Purposes Limited. The Company’s activities shall be only for the
purposes specified in Section 1.4. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the
Company shall not engage in any other activity or business and no Member shall have any
authority to hold itself out as an agent of another Member in any other business or activity.

Section 1.6 No Payments of Individual Obligations. The Company’s credit and assets
shall be used solely for the benefit of the Company. No asset of the Company shall be
transferred or encumbered for or in payment of any individual obligation of a Member.

Section 1.7  Statutory Compliance.

(a) The Company shall exist under and be governed by, and this Agreement
shall be construed in accordance with, the applicable laws of the State of Indiana. The
Manager shall make all filings and disclosures required by, and shall otherwise comply
with, all such laws. Additionally, the Company shall make all filings and pay all fees
required to qualify the Company as a foreign limited liability company in each state in
which the Company conducts any business and such qualification is necessary for the
Members to maintain limited liability status.

(b}  The Manager shall execute and file in the appropriate records any assumed
or fictitious name certificate or certificates required by law to be filed in connection with
the formation, qualification and continuation of the Company as a limited liability
company, and shall execute and file such other documents and instruments and pay such
fees as may be necessary or appropriate with respect to such formation, qualification and
continuation of, and conduct of business by, the Company.

Section 1.8 Title to Property. All real and personal property owned by the Company
shall be owned by the Company as an entity and, insofar as permitted by applicable law, no
Member shall have any ownership inferest in such property in its individual name or right except
as expressly provided in this Agreement and each Member’s interest in the Company shall be
personal property for all purposes.

Section 1.9  Duration. The duration of the Company shall be perpetual, until dissolved
pursuant to Article 9 of this Agreement.




Section 1.10 Registered Office and Registered Agent. The Company’s initial registered
agent for service of process and the registered office shall be that Person and location reflected in
the Articles of Organization filed with the Indiana Secretary of State. The registered office and
registered agent may be changed from time to time by filing the address of the new registered
office and/or the name of the new registered agent with the Indiana Secretary of State pursuant to
the Act.

Article 2
The Members

Section2.1  Identification. Estridge and Billy Creek shall be the initial Members of
the Company. No other Person may become a Member except by way of a Transfer specifically
permitted under and effected in compliance with Article 8 of this Agreement.

Section 2.2 Withdrawals. A Member may not withdraw from the Company except
upon lhiquidation of the Company pursuant to Article 9 or by a permitted Transfer pursuant to
Article 8. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Member shall not have the right to demand or
withdraw all or any portion of its capital contributions or any other distribution until the time of
{and on the same terms as) any such return or distribution is required to be made pursuant to
Section 4.1. In no event shall a Member have a right to demand or receive property other than
cash in return for capital contributions or otherwise.

Section 2.3  Conflicts.

(a) The Members and their Affiliates may conduct any business or activity
whatsoever that is unrelated to the Property or the Project (including the acquisition,
development, leasing, operation and sale of other real property) without any
accountability to the Company or to any Member even if such business or activity
competes with the business of the Company. Each Member understands that the other
Members and their Affiliates may be interested, directly or indirectly, in various other
such businesses and undertakings and each Member waives any rights it might otherwise
have to share or participate in such other interests or activities of the other Members and
their Affihates.

) No Member or its Affiliates shall enter into any transaction with the
Company or related to the Property or the Project unless the material facts of the
transaction and the Member's (or its Affiliate's) interest is disclosed to the other Members
and the transaction is authorized, approved or ratified by the Majority Investors and
Estridge.

Section 2.4  Reimbursement and Fees. Unless expressly provided for in the Proforma
or in this Agreement, no Member and no Affiliate of a Member shall be paid any compensation
by the Company for services to the Company or be reimbursed by the Company for any expenses
whatsoever including, without limitation, overhead or general administrative expenses; provided,
however, that the Company will reimburse the Investors for (a) all reasonable legal, accounting
and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with (i) enforcing or defending
(or determining whether or how to enforce or defend) any rights of the Investors under this
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Agreement, the Lot Sales Agreement or any Related Document or (i1} any insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company, Estridge or the Builder or in connection with any work-out or
restructuring of the transactions contemplated hereby and (b) one-half of all reasonable legal,
accounting and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the
structuring, negotiation and documentation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
the Lot Sales Agreement, any Related Document or the Project, or any subsequent amendments
thereof.

. Section2.5  No Liability of Members. No Member shall be liable as such for any acts,
debts or habilities of the Company. The failure of the Company to observe any formalities or
requirements relating to the exercise of its powers or management of its business or affairs under
this Agreement or the Act shall not be grounds for imposing personal liability on the Members
for any acts, debts or liabilities of the Company.

Section 2.6  Duties of Members. Each Member shall have the duties (a) to act openly,
honestly and reasonably with each other Member and with the Company; (b) not to misap-
propriate any property or assets of the Company for such Member's own benefit or for the
benefit of any other Person; and (c) not to make any willful misrepresentation, or any statement
that effectively constitutes a willful misrepresentation because of misleading omissions, to any
other Member of the Company that could reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect
the business, properties, assets, condition (financial or other) or prospects of the Company.
Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, no Member, as such, shall have any duty of loyalty,
duty of care or any other fiduciary duty of any character whatsoever to the Company or to any
other Member. No Member as such shall be required to devote any time to the business of the
Company.

Section 2.7  Indemnmification of Investors. The Company shall indemnify, to the fullest
extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as the same may hereafter be amended, any
Person made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether criminal,
civil, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such Person is or was an Investor
or an Affiliate of any Investor. To the fullest extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as
the same may hereafter be amended, expenses incurred by any such Person in defending any
such action, suit or proceeding shall be paid or reimbursed by the Company promptly upon
receipt by it of an undertaking of such Person to repay such expenses if it shall ultimately be
determined that such Person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Company. The rights
provided to any Person by this Section shall be enforceable against the Company by such Person,
who shall be presumed to have relied upon it in continuing to be a Member of the Company.

The indemnification provided by this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights
to which a Person seeking indemnification may be entitled. No amendment of this Section shall
impair the rights of any Person arising at any time with respect to events occurring prior to such
amendment.




Article 3
Capital of the Company

Section 3.1  Initial Capital Contributions. The Members have made or shall make
contributions to the capital of the Company of cash and property in the amounts, at the agreed
values and at the times set forth opposite their respective names on Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference. No interest shall accrue on any contributions to the capital of
the Company, and no Member shall have the right to withdraw or to be repaid any capital
contnbuted by it, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 3.2 Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the capital contributions made
by the Investors to immediately repay in full the Company's debt to Community Bank set forth
on Schedule C to Exhibit G hereto (an shall immediately obtain a release of Community Bank's
mortgage on the Property), and otherwise solely to pay other Project Expenses provided for in
the Proforma.

Section 3.3  No Further Capital Contributions. Except for the cash and property !
required to be contributed pursuant to Section 3.1, the Members shall not be required to '

contnbute additional capital to the Company.

Section 3.4  Member Loans. In the event that funds are needed by the Company for its
operations, any Member may (but shall not be required to) loan such funds to the Company
under such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the Member and the Company,
with the prior written consent of the Majority Investors.

Article 4
Distributions

Section 4.1  Distribution of Available Cash. All Available Cash shall be distributed at
least quarterly on the first business day of each calendar quarter in the following order of

priority:

(a) First, to the Investors in an amount, if any, equal to the Quarterly
Distribution Payment;

(b) Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Capital
Contributions as of the date of such distribution;

(c)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Priority Return
as of the date of such distribution; and

(d) Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

All distributions to the Investors hereunder shall be payable to them pro rata in
proportion to the capital contributions made by them (or their predecessors) to the Company
pursuant to this Agreement.




Section 4.3  In-Kind Distribution. Assets of the Company shall not be distributed in
kind to the Members, without the prior written approval of the Manager and the Majonty
Investors.

Section 4.4  Restriction on Distributions. The Company shall not make any
distribution to the Members unless (a) immediately after giving effect to the distribution, the
Company shall have sufficient cash available to meet the reasonably anticipated needs of the
Company; and (b) such distribution is made in compliance with the Act.

Article 5
Allocations and Tax Matters

Section 5.1  Allocation of Net Profits and Net Loss in General. Except as otherwise
provided in this Article 5, Net Profits or Net Loss of the Company (and each item thereof) for
each Fiscal Year or other period shall be allocated to the Members as follows:

(a) Net Profits shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

() First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(b)(iv) exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(a)(i);

(1)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(b)(iii)
exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(i1);

(i)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their
accrued Net Priority Return for all years of the Company’s operations exceeds the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to the Investors pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(ii1) for all years of the Company’s operations; and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.
(b)  Net Loss shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

() First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(iv), exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(i);

(ii)  Next, to the Investors, and to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(iii),
exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Sectton 5.1(b)(i1);




(iit)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their
Undistributed Capital Contributions exceed the excess of (1) the aggregate Net
Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this Section 5.1{b)(1ii), over (2) the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(ii);
and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.

Section 5.2  Income Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
no Net Loss or item of deduction or loss shall be allocated to a Member to the extent such
allocation would cause or increase a deficit balance in such Member’s capital account. In
determining the extent to which the previous sentence is applicable in any Fiscal Year, each
Member’s capital account also shall be reduced by (i} allocations of loss and deduction that, as of
the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are expected to be made to such Member pursuant to
Section 704{e)(2) of the Code, Section 706(d) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section
1.751-1(b)(2)(i1), and (ii) distributions that, as of the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are
expected to be made to such Member to the extent they exceed offsetting increases to such
Member’s capital account that reasonably are expected to occur during (or prior to) the Company
taxable years in which such distributions reasonably are expected to be made. Any deduction
denied to a Member because of this Section 5.2 shall be allocated to the other Members in
proportion to their respective Interests. If any Member unexpectedly receives an allocation or
distribution described in clause (i) or (ii) above, which causes a deficit balance in such Member’s
capital account (as modified pursuant to this Section 5.2), such Member will be allocated items
of income and gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income and gain
for such year) in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate such deficit, as quickly as
possible.

Section 5.3  Compliance with Regulations. The foregoing provisions of this
Agreement relating to the allocation of Net Profit and Net Loss are intended to comply with
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner
consistent with such regulations. The Members expect and intend that upon the liquidation of
the Company, after giving effect to all contributions and all atlocations for all periods, and to
distributions of the Undistributed Capital Contributions plus all Undistributed Priority Returns,
the Members’ capital accounts will have positive balances in proportions that are consistent with
the manner in which distributions will be made under Section 4.1. If at any time it becomes
apparent that this would not be the result, then the allocations provided for in this Article 5 shall
be modified in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and 1.704-2(b)
and Approved by the Members to the extent necessary to cause the Members’ capital account
balances to be in such proportions.

Section 5.4  Special Basis Adjustment. In connection with any Transfer of an Interest
permitted by the terms of this Agreement, or any distribution of Company property tc a Member,
the Company (at the written request of any Member) shall elect under Section 754 of the Code,
at the time and in the manner provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.754-1(b) (or any like
statute or regulation then in effect), to adjust the basis of the Company’s assets, provided that in
the case of a Transfer the transferee pays all costs incurred by the Company in connection
therewith, including reasonable attorneys’ and accountants’ fees.
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Section 5.5  Tax Matters Partner. The Manager is hereby designated as the “Tax
Matters Partner” pursuant to the Code and, to the extent authorized or permitted under applicable
law, the Tax Matters Partner shall represent the Company in connection with all examinations of
Company affairs by taxing authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial
proceedings.

Article 6
Accounting and Records

Section 6.1  Books and Records.

(@)  The Manager shall keep at the Company’s principal office separate books
of account for the Company which shall show a true and accurate record (including bills
and invoices) of all costs and expenses incurred, all charges made, all credits made and
received and all income derived in connection with the operation of the Company
business. Such books and records shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied.

(b)  Each Member shall, at its sole expense, have the right, at any time during
normal business hours and without notice to the others, to examine, copy and audit the
Company’s books and records. As often as may be reasonably requested, the Manager
shall permit any authorized representative designated by any Member, at such Member's
own expense, to visit and inspect the Project and to discuss the Company's affairs,
finances and accounts with the Manager and its representatives and the Accountants, all
upon reasonable advance notice and at reasonable times during normal business hours.

Section 6.2  Reports.

(a) The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a sales report to be prepared
on a quarterly basis which contains traffic information and a sales analysis of the Project.
The Manager shall distribute these quarterly reports to each Investor by within thirty (30)
days afier the end of each quarter.

(b)  The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a report to be prepared on a
quarterly basis which contains relevant information regarding the Project, including
summaries of significant actions and events taken by the Company, a statement of
sources and uses of funds, income statement and balance sheet, a comparison of the
Company’s financial results from the inception of the Company to the date of the report
with those in the Proforma, a schedule of projected taxable income for the Company and
any other information the Majority Investors may reasonably request and which can be
obtained and presented without undue effort and expense. The Manager shall distribute
these quarterly reports to the Investors within thirty (30) days after the end of each
quarter.




(c) Within forty five (45) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, the Manager
shall furnish each Member with financial statements of the Company which shall contain
a balance sheet as of the end of the Fiscal Year, statements of profit and loss, Available
Cash, and a statement of changes in the capital accounts and financial position for the
Fiscal Year then ended.

(d) The Manager shall promptly deliver to the Investors such additional
financial and other information regarding the business and affairs of the Company and
the Project as the Majority Investors may reasonably request.

Section 6.3  Proforma. Attached as Exhibit C is a “Proforma” setting forth, on a
monthly basis, among other information, the anticipated costs of completing the Project in
accordance with the Business Plan and anticipated Revenues from sales of Lots pursuant to the
Lot Sales Agreement.

Section 6.4  IRR Analysis.

(a) The Manager and the Builder have prepared an analysis of the expected
Internal Rate of Return on the capital to be contributed by the Investors (the “Original
IRR Analysis”), which is included in the Proforma. The Original IRR Analysis projects
that, over the life of the Project the Investors will receive at a 19.5% Internal Rate of
Return on the capital to be contributed by them hereunder. Not later than thirty (30) days
after the end of each calendar quarter or more frequently as required in Section 6.4(b), the
Manager shall prepare and deliver, at its own expense, to the Investors a revised analysis
of the projected Intemal Rate of Return to the Investors, as of the last day of that calendar
quarter, prepared in accordance with this Section (a “Revised JRR Analysis™). Each
Revised IRR Analysis shall calculate the expected Internal Rate of Return to the .
Investors (the “Projected IRR™) using (i} Revenues actually received from closed sales of
Lots as of the effective date of the report, (ii) Revenues projected for unsold Lots to be
sold in accordance with the Proforma, (iii) Project Expenses paid as of the effective date
of the report, (iv) unpaid Project Expenses which will be required to complete the Project
in accordance with the Proforma, Each Revised IRR Analysis shall contain at least as
much detail about incurred and projected Project Expenses and sales of Lots, as the
Original IRR Analysis contains.

(b) At any time that the Manager believes that a Revised IRR Analysis will
show a Projected IRR of less than a 19.5%, it shall immediately notify the Investors and
deliver a Revised IRR Analysis, together with a calculation of the Projected Increased
Sales Prices for Lots which are scheduled to be purchased by the Builder during the
remainder of the Project, and such other information reasonably necessary to understand :,
the cause or causes for the decrease in the Projected IRR. Nothing in this paragraph shall
relieve the Manager from delivering the regularly scheduled Revised IRR Analysis i
required above. :




Section 6.5  Tax Retums. The Manager shall cause the Accountants to prepare, at the
Company’s expense, on a cash or accrual basis, as Approved by the Members, all income and
other tax returns of the Company and, subject to the provisions of Section 7.5, cause the same to
be filed in a timely manner. Within 60 days after the end of each tax year of the Company, the
Manager shall deliver to each Person that is or was a Member at any time during such tax year,
such tax information as shall be necessary for the preparation by such Persons of their federal’
income tax returns. Upon the reasonable request of any such Person, the Manager shall furnish

to such Person such additional information as is reasonably available to the Manager with respect

to the Company as may be necessary to file other required returns or reports with governmental
agencies. The Manager shall notify the Members and Assignees of any available tax refunds,
credits or exemptions promptly in writing afier the Manager becomes aware thereof.

Section 6.6  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company (its “Fiscal Year”) shall be
the calendar year or any other period approved by the Manager. As used in this Agreement, a
Fiscal Year shall include any partial Fiscal Year at the beginning or end of the term of the
Company.

Section 6.7  Bank Accounts.

(a) The Manager shall have responsibility for the safekeeping and use of all
funds and assets of the Company. The funds of the Company shall not be commingled
with the funds of any other Person and the Manager shall not employ, or permit any other
Person to employ, such funds in any manner except for the benefit of the Company.

(b)  The bank accounts of the Company shall be maintained in such banking
institutions selected by the Manager, and withdrawals shall be made only in the regular
course of Company business and as otherwise authorized in this Agreement on such
signature or signatures as the Manager may determine.

(c)  All funds of the Company shall be invested in such investments as are
Approved by the Members other than for cash management in the normal course of
business.

Article 7
Management and Operations

Section 7.1 Management. The day to day business and affairs of the Company
including, site planning and engineering, and completion of infrastructure, hardscape and
landscape on or ahead of schedule and at or below costs in the Proforma, shall be managed by its
Manager. The Manager shall direct, manage, and control the day to day business of the
Company to the best of its ability. Except for situations in which the approval of the Investors or
the Members is required by this Agreement or by nonwaivable provisions of applicable law, the
Manager shall have the authority, power, and discretion to manage and control the business,
affairs, and properties of the Company, to make all decisions regarding those matters and to
perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incident to the management of the
Company’s business and to otherwise implement the Proforma, including, but not limited to:
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(a) To do and perform all acts as may be necessary or appropriate to the
conduct of the Company’s business;

(b)  To purchase liability and other insurance to protect the Company’s
property and business;

(c)  To execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents,
including, without limitation, checks, drafis, notes and other negotiable instruments,
mortgages or deeds of trust, security agreements, financing statements, documents
providing for the acquisition, mortgage or disposition of the Company’s property,
assignments, bills of sale, leases, partnership agreements, operating agreements of other
limited liability companies and any other instruments or documents necessary to the
business of the Company; and

(d)  To enter into any and all other agreements on behalf of the Company, with
any other person for any purpose, in such forms as the Manager may approve; provided,
that any such agreements (whether or not written) between the Manager and any of its
Affiliates shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Majority Investors.

Section7.2  Standard of Care. The Manager shall use its best efforts to cause the
Company to timely complete the Project in accordance with the Business Plan, the Plans and
Specifications and the Proforma. The Manager shall discharge its duties as Manager in good
faith, with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar
circumstances, and in a manner the Manager reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the
Company.

Section 7.3  Insurance.

(a) Coverage. The Manager shall procure and maintain, or cause to be
procured and maintained, at its expense, insurance in amounts that are customary and
reasonable for the Company’s business and in any event in amounts sufficient to enable
the Company to comply with applicable laws, regulations and requirements, provided
that the Company shall be responsible for the costs of liability insurance to the extent set
forth in the Proforma.

(b)  Policy Standards. All policies of insurance shall be issued by an insurer,
shail be in form and for amounts (including deductible and/or indemnity provisions)
approved by the Majority Investors, and shall name the Members and the Manager as
additional insureds.

(c)  Administration. The Manager shall act on behalf of all named insureds
under each such insurance policy with respect to all matters pertaining to the insurance
afforded by each such policy, including the giving and receipt of notice of cancellation,
the payment of premiums and the receipt of return premiums, if any, and of such
dividends as may be declared by any of the insurance companies issuing any of such
policies.
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Section 7.4  Personnel. The Manager is authorized to exercise its powers and
discharge its duties hereunder through its officers and/or employees and representatives. Neither
-the Manager nor any Affiliate of the Manager shall be required to devote its full time to the
business of the Company, but shall only be obligated to devote such time and attention to the
conduct of the business of the Company as shall be reasonably required for the conduct of such
business.

Section 7.5  Major Decisions.

(a) Unless specifically set forth in the Proforma, the Manager shall have no
authority to do any of the following acts on behaif of the Company without the prior
written approval of the Majority Investors:

)] acquire, by purchase, lease, or otherwise, any direct or indirect
interest in any property in addition to the Property, or make any capital
improvements;

(it)  sell or convey the Project or any portion thereof or any interest
therein;

(iii)  confess a judgment against the Company, submit a Company claim
to litigation or arbitration, or settle any litigation or arbitration;

(iv)  enterinto any lease or other occupancy arrangement;

(v)  admit a new Member to the Company or issue any profits interest
in the Company to any Person;

(vi)  do any act in contravention of this Agreement or which would
make it impossible or unreasonably burdensome to carry on the business of the
Company;

{vi1) enter into, modify, terminate, or waive any breach of or default
under or give any consent under any agreement with the Manager or any Affiliate
of the Manager, including the Lot Sales Agreement;

(viil) acquire an interest in or transfer property to another Person, except
pursuant to the Lot Sales Agreement;

(ix)  give any consent or approval under any contract or agreement if
the subject of such consent or approval would require approval of the Investors
under this Section were it to be undertaken directly by the Company;

(x) effect any reorganization of the Company into any other legal
form, or any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other
Person;
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(xi)  incur any debt for borrowed money other than as provided in the
Proforma; or

(xii)  petition or apply to any tribunal for the appointment of a trustee or
receiver or for the liquidation of any of its assets or commence any proceeding on
behalf of the Company under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debts law of any jurisdiction or consent to the filing
of any such proceedings by any other person.

Section 7.6  Fees. The Company shall pay to the Manager a fee equal to three
thousand ($3,000) at the time of closing of each Lot from the proceeds received by the Company
from the Builder under the Lot Sales Agreement. This fee shall be used by the Manager solely to
pay Administrative Expenses; provided, however, that if the Projected IRR for any Revised IRR
Analysis 1s less than 19.5%, the Manager shall not be paid any fee unless the Projected IRR
calculated for the next quarter has been increased to 19.5% in accordance with Section 10.3.

Section 7.6. No Resignation by Estridge. Estridge may not resign as Manager without
the prior written consent of the Majority Investors in their sole discretion.

Article 8
Transfer of Interests

Section 8.1  Restrictions on Transfer. Except as expressly provided for in this
Agreement, no Member may Transfer all or any portion of its Interest or withdraw from the
Company. Any such attempted Transfer, withdrawal or retirement not permitted hereunder shall
be null and void.

Section 8.2  Permitted Transfers. Subject to Section 8.4 below, the following
Transfers of Interests are permitted by this Agreement:

(a)  a Transfer made by an Investor to its Affiliates;

(b)  aTransfer made by an Investor who is a natural person, (i} upon the death
or disability of the Investor his personal representatives, guardians, executors,
administrators, testamentary trustees, legatees or beneficiaries (the “Estate”); (ii) to a
trust, partnership, limited liability company or other estate planning vehicle the
beneficiaries, partners or members of which are only the Investor and his spouse,
siblings, stepchildren or direct lineal ancestors or descendants (a “Trust™); (iii) made as a
gift to the Investor's spouse, lineal descendants or stepchildren (the “Family™); or (iv) by
the Estate, a Trust or the Family (the “Family Group”) to any other member of that
Family Group; or

(c)  a Transfer made with the prior written consent of the Manager and the
Majority Investors in their discretion.
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Section 8.3  Assignee Not A Member in Absence of Approval. Notwithstanding
Section 8.2 or anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any transferee of an Interest shall be
an assignee and have no right to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the
Company, to exercise any voting power with respect to the transferred Interest, or to become a
Member, unless the Manager and the Majority Investors approve the admission of the transferee
as a Member; provided, however, that no approval for such admission shall be required if the
transferee is an existing Member, or an Affiliate or the member of the Family Group of an
existing Member, at the time of such Transfer (uniess such Transfer is to a Family Group
member in connection with a divorce proceeding).

Section 8.4  General Transfer and Compliance Provisions.

(a) All permitted Transfers shall be by instrument in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to counsel for the Manager, shall contain an expression by the
assignee of its intention to accept the assignment and to accept and adopt all of the terms
and provisions of this Agreement, as the same may have been amended, and shall provide
for the payment by the assignor of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Company in
connection with such assignment, including the amendments to this Agreement necessary
to reflect such Transfer.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in no event shall any
Member Transfer an Interest or permit any Transfers by its direct and indirect owners if,
as a result, the Company would terminate under Section 708 of the Code if such
termination would cause any Member or the Company to recognize a material amount of
income or gain or incur a material amount of expense.

Section 8.5  Tax Allocations and Cash Distributions. If any Interest is Transferred
duning any Fiscal Year, Net Profits and Net Loss, or each item thereof, and all other items
attributable to such Interest for such Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the transferee in accordance
with Section 706(d) of the Code, using any conventions permitted by law and selected by the
Manager. All distributions paid on or before the date of a Transfer shall be paid to the transferor,
and all distributions paid thereafter shall be made to the transferee. Any reference in this
Agreement to a capital contribution of, or distribution to, a Person shall include all capital
contributions or distributions previously made by or to any predecessor of such Person on
account of its Interest so transferred. If a Transfer does not comply with the provisions of this
Article 8, then all of such items shall be allocated to the Person who attempted to make the
Transfer.

Article 9
Termination of the Company

Section 9.1 Events of Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve upon the first to occur
of the following events:

(a) at the election of the Majority Investors at any time after the Majority
Investors notify Estridge that an Event of Default has occurred, whether or not the
Majority Investors have exercised their right to remove Estridge;
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(b) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company with the prior written approval of the Majority Investors, unless such sale or
other disposition involves any deferred payment of the consideration for such sale or
disposition, in which case the Company shall not dissolve until the last day of the
calendar year during which the Company shall receive the balance of such deferred

payment;

(c) the mutual written determination of the Manager and the Majority
Investors to dissolve the Company;

(d) at any time that there ceases to be at least one Member; or

(e) the issuance of a decree of dissolution by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Section 9.2  Effect of Dissolution. Upon dissolution of the Company pursuant to

Section 9.1, the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of liquidating all of the assets
owned by the Company (until all such assets have been sold or liquidated) and collecting the
proceeds from such sales and all receivables of the Company or until the same have been written
off as uncollectible. Upon such dissolution, the Company shall engage in no business thereafter
other than that necessary to cause the Project to be operated on an interim basis and for the
Company to collect its receivables, liquidate its assets and pay or discharge its liabilities.

Section 9.3  Sale of Assets by Liquidating Trustee.

(a) Upon dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall, as “Liquidating
Trustee”, proceed diligently to wind up the affairs of the Company and distribute its
assets, unless the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a) in
which case the Majority Investors may, in their discretion, designate another Person to be
Liquidating Trustee. Another Person may be selected by the Majority Investors to
succeed the original Liquidating Trustee, or to succeed any subsequently selected
successor, whenever the Person originally selected or any such subsequently selected
successor, as the case may be, fails for any reason to carry out such purpose. The
Liquidating Trustee may be an individual or Entity.

(b)  The Liquidating Trustee shall i)romptly after dissolution offer all of the
assets of the Company, other than cash, (either as an entirety or on an asset-by-asset
basis) promptly for sale, upon such terms as the Liquidating Trustee shall determine.

{c) The fact that a Person is a Member or its Affiliates shall not preclude the
Person from bidding for any or all of the assets being offered for sale.

(d)  The decision to accept or reject an offer to purchase assets of the
Company (a “Purchase Offer”) shall be made solely by the Liquidating Trustee, provided,
however, that if the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a)
the Liquidating Trustee shall not accept a Purchase Offer without the approval of the
Majority Investors.
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(e) In winding up the affairs of the Company, the Liquidating Trustee shall
pay the liabilities of the Company in such order of priority as provided by law.
Distributions to the Members shall be made 1n accordance with their positive capital
account balances, taking into account all capital account adjustments for the Company's
taxable year in which the liquidation occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
distributions made pursuant to this Article 9 are intended to be in strict comphance with
the priority of distributions required by Section 4.1 hereof and if distributions pursuant to
this Article 9 do not comply with the requirements Section 4.1, the capital account
balances of the Members will be adjusted by reallocating allocations of gross income and
deductions to the full extent permitted under Section 704 of the Code until such capital
account balances are in such amounts to cause the final distribution pursuant to this
Article 9 to conform to the requirements of Section 4.1.

H Liquidation proceeds shall be paid within 60 days of the end of the
Company's taxable year or, if later, within 90 days after the “date of liquidation™ (as such
term is defined in the Treasury Regulations). Such distributions shall be in cash unless
the Majority Investors agree otherwise.

{g) The Builder’s obligations under Section 10.3 shall terminate upon the
Majority Investors' election to dissolve the Company under Section 9.1(a), as provided in
the Lot Sales Agreement.

Article 10
Removal of Estridge

Section 10.1 Removal of Estridge. Notwithstanding anything contained in this

Agreement to the contrary:

(a)  The Majority Investors shall have the right to remove Estridge pursuant to
this Section at any time after the occurrence of any of the following events (each an
“Event of Default”):

(1) the Majority Investors have issued an Unmatured Event of Default
Notice to Estridge and Builder has failed to pay the entire Projected Increased
Sales Prices when due in accordance with Section 10.3;

(i)  Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor has failed to cure an
Unmatured Event of Default (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within
thirty (30) days after the Majority Investors have notified Estridge that the default
must be cured (the “Cure Period™);

(i1i)  Estndge, the Builder or the Guarantor (i) is generally not paying,
and admits in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due, (ii) files, or
consents by answer or otherwise to the filing against it of, a petition for relief or
reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation
or to take advantage of any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or other similar law of any jurisdiction, (iti) makes an assignment for the benefit
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of its creditors, (iv) consents to the appointment of a custodian, recetver, trustee or
other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any
substantial part of its property, (v) is adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated,
or (v1) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

(iv)  acourt or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters
an order appointing, without consent by Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor, as
applicable, a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with
respect to it or with respect to any substantial part of its property, or constituting
an order for relief or approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other
petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or
insolvency law of any jurisdiction, or ordering its dissolution, winding up or
liquidation, or any such petition shall be filed against Estridge, the Builder or the
Guarantor and such petition shall not be dismissed within thirty (30) days.

(b) The Majority Investors may exercise their right to remove Estridge at any
time after the occurrence of any Event of Default, by giving Estridge notice of the
exercise of this right, which notice will set forth the basis for removal and the effective
date, which may be immediately upon delivery of the notice (the “Removal Notice™).

(©) Unless the Removal Notice specifies otherwise, upon delivery of the
Removal Notice Estridge shall cease to be the Manager and a Member of the Company
and shall have no further right to participate in the Company’s business, Net Profits, Net
Loss or distributions. Upon removal of Estridge, Estridge’s entire Interest in the
Company and its rights under this Agreement shall automatically and immediately cease
without the payment of any consideration therefore. Such removal shall not relieve
Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their Affiliates from any liability that any
of them may have for breach of this Agreement, the Lot Sales Agreement, the Guaranty
of the Guarantor or any other Related Document. Upon such removal, Estridge shall
immediately turn over to the Majority Investors or their designee possession of all of the
Company's books, records, properties and assets.

Section 10.2 Unmatured Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following
shall constitute an “Unmatured Event of Default”:

(a) Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their respective Affiliates
has breached or otherwise failed to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Lot
Sales Agreement, the Guaranty of the Guarantor or any of the other Related Documents;
or

(b)  the Guarantor dies, ceases to own a controlling interest in Estridge or the
Builder, or ceases to be the chief executive officer of Estridge and the Builder active in
the full time management of their business.
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Estridge shall notify the Investors immediately upon learning that any Unmatured Event
of Default has occurred. At any time after learning that an Unmatured Event of Default has
occurred, the Majonty Investors may notify Estridge that they intend to remove Estridge if the
Unmatured Event of Default is not cured (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within the
Cure Period (an “Unmatured Event of Default Notice™).

Section 10.3 Obligation to Cure Projected IRR Deficiency. If any Revised IRR
Analysis shows a Projected IRR of less than 19.5%, then Builder shall acquire Lots during the
remainder of the Project for purchase prices which will cause that Revised IRR Analysis to yield
a 19.5% Projected IRR (the purchase prices as increased are referred to in this Agreement as the

“Projected Increased Sales Prices”).

Section 10.4 No Waiver. Failure of any Member to insist upon compliance with any
provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the rights of such Member to
subsequently insist upon compliance with that proviston or any other provision of this
Agreement.

Article 11
Miscellaneous

Section 11.1 Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in
writing and may be delivered in person to any party or may be sent by registered or certified
mail, with postage prepaid, retumn receipt requested and with a copy by telefacsimile, or may be
transmitted by telegraph, commercial overnight carrier service, personal delivery, telefacsimile
or other commercially reasonable means and addressed:

in the case of Estridge, to:

The Estridge Development Company, Inc.
1041 West Main Street

Carmel, indiana 46032

Attention: Michael J. Keller

Fax number: 317/582-2452

with a copy to:

Krieg DeVault LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Attention: Michael J. Messaglia, Esq.
Fax number: 317/636-1507
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and in the case any Investor, to such Investor:

c/o Brian J. Brunner
CenterPoint Consulting LLC
P.O. Box 280

56 North Main Street
Zionsville, IN 46077

Fax number: 317/733-3555

with copies to:

Baker & Daniels LLP

600 East 96™ Street, Suite 600
Indianapolis, IN 46240
Attention: J. Jeffrey Brown
Fax number: 317/569-4613

or to such other address as shall, from time to time be supplied i writing by any party to the
others. Notice sent by registered or certified mail, postpaid, with return receipt requested,
addressed as above provided, shall be deemed given on the day of actual receipt or four (4)
business days after deposit in the United States mail, whichever is earlier. If notice is
telegraphed or faxed the same shall be deemed given the first business day after the transmission
thereof. If notice is sent by commercial overnight carrier, the same shall be deemed given the
first business day after such notice is receipted by such carrier for next day delivery. Any notice
or other document sent or delivered in any other manner shall be deemed given only if and when
received.

Section 11.2  Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on Transfer set forth
herein, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.

Section 11.3 No Oral Modifications; Amendments. No oral amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding on the Members. This Agreement may be amended only by a
written instrument executed by Estridge and the Majority Investors.

Section 11.4 Captions. Any article, section or paragraph title or caption contained in
this Agreement and the table of contents are for convenience of reference only and shall not be
deemed a part of this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the Person or Entity may in the
context require. Any reference to the Code, Act or other statutes or laws shall include all
amendments, modifications or replacements of the specific sections and provisions concerned.
The term “include” and derivatives thereof shall be construed in an illustrative and not a
limitative sense.

-19-




Section 11.6 Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invahd, it
shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.

Section 11.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in the original or by
telecopy in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Members, and the
signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended
to, any other counterpart.

Section 11.8  Further Assurances. The parties hereto agree that they will cooperate with
each other in good faith and will execute and deliver, or cause to be delivered, all such other
instruments, and will take all such other actions, as either party hereto may reasonably request
from time to time in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes hereof.

Section 11.9 Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and
exclusive statement of the agreement between the Members with respect to the matters covered
hereby. This Agreement supersedes all prior written and oral statements and no representation,
statement, condition or warranty not contained in this Agreement shall be binding on the
Members or have any force or effect whatsoever.

Section 11.10 Enforcement Rights. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges and
agrees that the agreements set forth herein are fundamental to the other parties’ willingness to
enter into and be bound by this Agreement. Accordingly, each party hereby agrees that each
other party, jointly and/or severally, may institute and maintain any action, suit or proceeding, at
law or in equity-(including, without limitation, specific performance or temporary and permanent
injunctive relief (without any requirement to post any bond or other security)), against any party
to enforce, or otherwise act in respect of, the agreements of such party set forth in this
Agreement. Such relief shall not be exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in additton to
damages and any other rights or remedies otherwise available at law or in equuty.

Section 11.11 Attomeys’ Fees. If any proceeding is brought by one Member against
another to enforce, or for breach of, any of the provisions in this Agreement, the prevailing
Member shall be entitled in such proceeding to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees together with
the costs of such proceeding therein incurred from the nonprevailing Member. Except as
provided in Section 2.4 hereof, each Member shall pay its own attorneys’ fees and expenses in
connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Agreement.

Section 11.12 Govering Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

Section 11.13 No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement and any other agreement
among the Members to pay any amount and any assumption of liability herein or therein
contained, express or implied, shall be only for the benefit of the Members and their respective
heirs, successors and assigns, and neither this Agreement nor such other agreement or
assumption shall inure to the benefit of the obligees of any indebtedness or any other party
whomsoever, it being the intention of the Members that no one shall be deemed to be a third
party beneficiary of this Agreement or such other agreement.
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Section 11.14 Exhibits and Glossary. Each of the Exhibits and the Glossary attached
hereto are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes, and references
thereto in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation.

Section 11.15 Estoppels. Each Member shall, upon not less than fifteen (15) days’
written notice from another Member specifying the purpose for and the addressee of such
statement, execute and deliver to that other Member a statement stating whether or not there are,
to such Member’s knowledge without independent investigation, any uncured defaults under this
Agreement on the part of any other Member and its Affiliates and specifying such defaults if any
are clatmed. Any such statement may be relied upon by third parties, but shall not otherwise
release the Member for whose benefit such statement is delivered from the consequences of any
uncured defaults hereunder whether or not disclosed in such statement.

Section 11.16 References to this Agreement. Numbered or lettered articles, sections and
subsections herein contained refer to articles, sections and subsections of this Agreement unless
otherwise expressly stated. The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “this
Agreement” and other similar references shall be construed to mean and include this Agreement
and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto unless the context shall clearly indicate or
require otherwise.

Section 11.17 Consents and Approvals. Whenever the consent or approval of a Member
is required by this Agreement, such Member shall have the right to give or withhold such
consent or approval in its sole discretion, unless otherwise specified.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first above written.

Estﬁdge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its president

Billy Creek Associates, LP

By: , its general partner
Otto N. Frenzel 11

By: , it general partner
Eleanor F. Bookwalter

For purpose of joining in making the representations attached as Exhibit G and agreeing to be
bound to the terms of this Agreement the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the
date and year first above written.

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President

The Estridge Group, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its Prestdent
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

BCE Associates III, LLC
Operating Agreement

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings set forth in this
Glossary or in the sections of this Agreement referred to after each term.

Accountants: Somerset CPAs, P.C. or such other firm of nationally-recognized independent
certified public accountants as may be Approved by the Members.

Act: The Indiana Business Flexibility Act as from time to time in force.
Administrative Expenses: Expenses described on Exhibit F.

Affiliate: A Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermedianies, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Person in question and any officer, director,
manager, managing member, partner, trustee, employee, stockholder (fifteen percent (15%) or
more) or direct or indirect owner of any Person referred to in the preceding clause or their
respective family members, which includes children of a spouse and of a former spouse. For
purposes of this definition, the term “control” means the ownership of beneficial interests in an
Entity which in the aggregate give the owner thereof the right to cast fifteen percent (15%) or
more of the votes with respect to any question that may be decided by owners of interests in such
Entity. However, in no event shall any Investor or its Affiliates be decemed an Affiliate of the
Company, Estridge or their Affiliates and in no event shall Estridge or its Affiliates be deemed
an Affiliate of any Investor or its Affiliates.

Agreement: As defined in the Preamble.

Approved by (or Approval of) the Members: That the action in question has been approved in
writing by Estridge and the Majority Investors.

Available Cash: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, Revenues plus any proceeds
from debt used to fund the payment of the Quarterly Distribution Payment less the sum of the
following:

(a)  Project Expenses paid during such period; plus

(b)  aprovision for reasonable working capital reserves and a reserve for projected
Project Expenses, in each case in the amount set forth in the Proforma.

Code: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time and all published
rules, rulings and regulations thereunder at the time of reference thereto.

Company: The limited liability company governed by the Agreement as said limited liability
company may from time to time be constituted and amended.




Entity: Any general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited
liability company, corporation, joint venture, trust, business trust, cooperative or association.

Events of Default; Section 10.1(a).

Fiscal Year: Section 6.6.
Improvements: As defined in Exhibit C.

Interest: The entire interest {which may be segmented into and/or expressed as a percentage of
various rights and/or liabilities, as applicable) of a Member in the Company at any particular
time, including the right of a Member to any and all benefits to which 2 Member may be entitled
as provided in this Agreement and in the Act, together with the obligations of such Member to
comply with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement and of the Act.

Internal Rate of Retumn or IRR: The annual discount rate that results in a net present value equal
to zero when the discount rate is applied to all capital contributions made by, and all distributions
received by, a Person (with all cash flows recorded on the actual day that such funds were
disbursed), all calculated in accordance with accepted financial practice.

Ligquidating Trustee: Section 9.3.

Lot Sales Agreement: That certain agreement between the Company, as seller, and the Builder,
as buyer, pursuant to which the Builder has the exclusive right and obligation to purchase the
Lots at the prices set forth therein and herein for the sole purpose of constructing single family
residences and selling them to the public.

Maijority Investors: Those Investors that have made a majority of the capital contributions made
by the Investors.

Manager: Estridge, provided that, if Estridge is removed in accordance with Section 10.1, the
Majority Investors shall have the right, in their sole discretion, to appoint any other Person to
become a successor Manager hereunder.

Member: Estridge, Billy Creek and such successors, assigns or additional members as may be
admitted as members of the Company, from time to time, pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.

Net Priority Return: The amount by which an Investor's Priority Return exceeds the Investor's
capital contributions to the Company.

Net Profits and Net Loss: ‘“Net Profit” and “Net Loss” shall mean, for each Fiscal Year or other
period, an amount equali to the Company’s taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year or period,
determined in accordance with Code Section 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of income, gain,
loss or deduction required to be stated separately pursuant to Code Section 703(a)(1) shall be
included in taxable income or loss), with the following adjustments:




(@ any income of the Company that is exempt from Federal income tax and not
otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be added
to such taxable income or loss;

(b)  any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)}(B) or
treated as Code Section 705(a)}(2){B) expenditures under Code Section 704(b) and
not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be
subtracted from such taxable income or loss; and

(c)  any amount that is allocated pursuant to Section 5.2 shall be excluded from the
determination of Net Profit and Net Loss.

Person: Any individual or Entity, and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns of such Person where the context so admits.

Permitted Transferee. A transferee in a Transfer of an Interest permitted by Section 8.2 hereof.

Plans and Specifications: All architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working
drawings, designs, models and other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for
or in connection with the Project (or any portion thereof).

Priority Return: The amount of cash distributions which, if received by the applicable Investor

on the date of determination, would resuit in an Internal Rate of Return to the Investor of 19.5%
(computed in accordance with the definition of “Internal Rate of Return” herein and taking into

consideration the timing and amounts of all capital contributions and distributions in respect of

such Investor's Interest in the Company).

Proforma: The Proforma attached as Exhibit C with such revisions as are approved in
accordance with Section 6.4.

Project Expenses: All expenditures, expenses and charges relating to the acquisition,
improvement or development of the Property, or any portion thereof, and the operations of the
Company, including the fee payable pursuant to Section 7.6.

Projected Increased Sales Prices: Section 10.3.

Projected IRR: Section 6.4(a).

Purchase Offer: Section 9.3(d).

Quarterly Distribution Payment: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the product
of (x) 3% per quarter (i1.€., a rate of 12% per annum) multiplied by (y) the amount of the
Investor's Undistributed Capital Contributions (calculated prior to giving effect to any
distribution pursuant to Section 4.1(b) for such quarter).

Revenues: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, the total cash receipts of the
Company from sales of Lots or otherwise.




Revised IRR Analysis: The reports required under Section 6.4.

Tax Matters Partner: Section 5.5.

Transfer: Any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, gift, conveyance, security
interest or other encumbrance, or any contract therefor, any voting trust or other agreement with
respect to the transfer of voting rights or any other beneficial interest in, or any other transfer or
disposition (including, without limitation, any disposition that would constitute a “sale’” within
the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) whatsoever affecting the right, title,
interest or possession in or to any Interest, whether direct or indirect, voluntary, involuntary, by
operation of law or otherwise.

Treasury Regulations: Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Code by the United States
Treasury Department, as amended from time to time.

Undistributed Capital Contributions: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the
excess of (a) the aggregate capital contributions to the Company made by such Investor (or its
predecessors), minus (b) the sum of all previous distributions received by such Investor (or its
predecessors) pursuant to Section 4.1(b).

Undistributed Priority Return: With respect to each Investor, the remaining amount the Investor
would need to receive on the date of determination in order to achieve the Priority Return on the
date of determination, taking into account the sum of all distributions received by such Investor
(or its predecessor) pursuant to Section 4.1 for all periods up to the date the determination is
being made.

Unmatured Event of Default: Section 10.2.

Unmatured Event of Default Notice: Section 10.2.
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Member
Billy Creek Associates, LP

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

EXHIBIT A

Capital Contributions

Capital Contribution

$3,500,000

Estridge has contributed to the Company the
Property and its entire right, title and interest in the
Project, including those assets described on Exhibit
E. In addition, Estridge will contribute to the
Company from time to time 100% of the cash equity
required to complete the Project in excess of the
capital contributions of the other Members set forth
above. :




EXHIBIT B
Legal Description of Property

See attached one (1) page.
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Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 18 North, Range 3 East, In Washington Township,
Hamilton County, Indlana, being more panicudany described as follows:

Baginning at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence North 00 degrees 09 minges 24 seconds East
{assumed baearing) aforg the West fine of said Quarter Section a distance of 131251 et 1o the Norihesest comer
ol the South Haff of sald Quarter Section; thence North 89 degreas 22 minutes 30 seconds East aloryg the Noith
{ina of sald Hall Quarter Section a distance of 2,264,682 feet: thenca South 00 degrees 02 minutes 51 seconds
‘West 1,302.38 feel to the South line of said Guarter Section; thence South 89 deqgraes 17 minutes 48 seoonds
West alang said South line 2,2687.36 feet to the place of beginning.

Pares I1;

Pant of the Southwast Quarter of Section 10, Township 18 North, Range 3 East in Washington Tovmship, HamBton
County, Indiana. being more particidarty described as follows:

Commencing at tha HNortheast comer of sald Quarter Section; thence Seuth 89 degrees 27 minutes 13 seconds
West {assumed bearing) along tha North line of sald Quexrter Section 440,00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING of
this dascription: thence corttinuing South 89 degrees 27 minites 13 saconds Wost along said North fing 560.00
foet: thence Soteh 00 degrees 00 minutes 39 seconds West parafte with tha East fine of said Quarter Secton
1320.00 fget; thence North 89 degrees 27 minutes 13 seconds East paralel with the atoresald North &ne 6580.00
feet; thance North 00 degraes 00 minutes 39 seconds East paralial with the aforesaid Ezst lIne 1320.00 feet to the
Pace of beginning.



EXHIBIT C
Proforma

The Company will engage in the acquisition and development of 118 acres located in
Hamilton County, Indiana (see Exhibit B). The Project will be developed for lots suitable for
single family residential construction. The Company will not engage in the business of
constructing residences and townhouses and, consequently, the capital requirements of the
Company do not and will not include or reflect any costs incurred or to be incurred in connection
with such stage of development.

The Property currently includes a total of 293 Lots which the Company presently intends
to sell to the Builder on an “as-is” basis for the prices determined in the Lot Sales Agreement.
The Builder is acquiring the Lots for the sole purpose of constructing residential dwelling units
thereon. Each residence will fall into one of the following product types: Estridge 900 Series,
600 Series and Town Homes. The sale of the Lots to the Builder will take place in one or more
takedowns in accordance with the schedules attached to the Proforma.

The Company will provide the Builder a building pad that will include water, sewer, gas
and electric hook-up. The Company will also be responsible for roads, entry ways, entry walls
and common area landscaping and the development of the community’s amenity center and
parkway, as outlined in the Proforma (the utility improvements, amenity center and parkway are
referred to as the “Improvements™).

The Builder will provide and maintain merchandised models within the Project for each
product type, will construct all roads and provide all other infrastructure for the Project.

The Proforma attached as Exhibit C sets forth costs previously incurred and Estridge’s
and the Builder’s current estimate of the costs anticipated to be incurred with respect to the
acquisition of the Property and the construction of the Improvements on the Property and the
anticipated sales proceeds to be derived from the sale of the Property.




EXHIBITD
Business Plan

{See Exhibit C and Proforma)




EXHIBIT E

List of Contracts and other Personal Property
Assigned to the Company by Estndge

. All nghts to use the name “Centennial North.”

. All rights of Estridge and its Affiliates in any master plans, land use plans/models,
architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working drawings, designs, models and
other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for the Project (or any portion
thereof).

. All nghts or benefits of Estridge and its Affiliates in and to all prior discussions with
governmental bodies, entities and agencies with respect to the Project (or any portion thereof)
and the Development Plan.

. All right, title and interest of Estridge and its Affiliates to continue the negotiations,
discusstons and business arrangements with respect to the Project (or any portion thereof)
and the Development Plan,

. All agreements for utility services for the Project (or any portion thereof).
. All other rights, licenses and permits related to the Project (or any portion thereof).

. All rights or benefits in all professional studies on evaluating the Project (or any portion
thereof).

. All nights or benefits on bonds, security deposit or letters of credit required in connection -
with the Project (or any portion thereof).

. The following Contracts: (See attached list)




List of Contracts

Description of Work

Site Work (excavation of ponds, balance site, construct pads)
Storm & Sanitary Sewer Installation

Water Installation

Erosion Control

Curbs

Vendor

To be awarded
To be awarded
To be awarded
To be awarded

To be awarded




EXHIBITF
Admimstrative Expenses
{to be paid by Estridge out of its Fee)

All costs of administering this Project shall be paid by Estridge except to the extent
otherwise specifically provided in the Proforma. Administrative expenses to be paid by Estridge
include:

1. general office expenses, including overhead and compensation of office employees,

2. on site project supervision.




EXHIBITG
Estnidge and the Builder Representations and Warranties

As an inducement to Billy Creek to enter into this Agreement, Estridge and the Builder,
jointly and severally with Estridge, represent and warrant to the investors that:

Warranty of Title. The Company is the record and beneficial owner in fee simple of the
Property, together with all easements appurtenant and all land use, development, water, drainage
and zoning rights applicable thereto, free and clear of all liens, charges, easements, covenants,
conditions, restrictions and encumbrances whatsoever, other than those set forth in Schedule A
(“Permitted Exceptions™). The Company has the power and authority to convey, transfer and
assign fee simple title to the Property. Neither the Company, nor Estridge, nor the Builder has
granted any options, rights of first refusal or rights of first opportunity to purchase fee simple
title or any other interest in the Property, except that the Company has agreed to sell the Lots to
the Builder in accordance with the terms of the Lot Sales Agreement.

Authority. The Company, Estridge, and the Builder each have full right, power and
authority to execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and all
other documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by it pursuant to this Agreement
or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Related
Documents”). This Agreement and the Related Documents, when executed and delivered, will
constitute the duly authorized, valid and legally binding obligation of the Company, Estridge,
and the Builder and will be enforceable strictly in accordance with their respective terms. All
action, including the obtainment of consents and approvals required to authorize execution and
performance of this Agreement and the other instruments herein provided, have been obtained.

Conflicts. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Documents, the
consummation of the transactions herein or therein contemplated, and compliance with the terms
and provisions hereof or thereof, will not (i) violate any presently existing provisions of law or
any presently existing applicable regulation, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, or {it) conflict
or be inconsistent with, or result in any breach of, any of the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, instrument,
document, agreement or contract of any kind to whlch the Company, Estridge or the Builder is a
party or by which it may be bound.

Pending Litigation. There are no petitions, actions, suits, proceedings or investigations
pending against the Company, Estridge or the Builder relating to the execution and delivery of
this Agreement or any Related Document, the Property, the Project, the Govermmental
Commitments, Permits or that could otherwise affect the Project or the Property, before any
court or any governmental, administrative, regulatory, adjudicatory or arbitrational body or
agency of any kind (including, without limitation, any actions or petitions to alter or declare
invalid any laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, permits, certificates, restrictions, leases or
agreements authorizing or relating to the Project or the Property). None of the foregoing is
subject to the terms of any previously entered and final orders, writs, injunctions, decrees or
arbitration awards which continue to be binding and in full force and effect.



Potential Litigation. No notices have been received that this Agreement, any Related
Document, the Government Commitments, the Permits, the Property, the Project, the Company,
Estridge, or the Builder is the subject of any threatened investigation, action, litigation, or
proceeding, either judicial or administrative. No notices have been received or process served or
other action taken with respect to the existence or enforcement of any outstanding orders, writs,
injunctions, or decree of any court, government, governmental authority, or arbitration against or
affecting all or any portion of the Property, the Project, the Company, Estridge, or the Builder.

Compliance. The Property and the Project are in compliance with all Permits, laws,
ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations, restrictions, and orders applicable thereto. No notice has
been received from any governmental authority that the Project or Property is in violation of any
of the foregoing or that remedial action is required to regain compliiance. There is no pending or
threatened investigation or inquiry by any governmental authority with respect to the Property
and the Project. No law, ordinance, statute, rule, regulation, restriction, or order is pending
which, if enacted, would adversely affect the Property and the Project. Neither the Property nor
the construction of the Project on the Property nor the use of the Project when completed will
then violate, any presently existing applicable statute, law, regulation, rule, ordinance or order of
any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any presently existing zoning or building
laws or ordinances, any presently existing environmental protection laws or regulations, or any
presently existing rules, regulations or orders of any governmental agency), or any Permit issued
with respect to the Project or any condition, easement, right-of-way, covenant or restriction of
record affecting the Property.

Utilities. The Company has entered into binding agreements with the providers of water,
storm and sanitary sewer, gas, electric and telephone services to provide such services in
sufficient quantities for the construction and the operation of 293 Lots in the Project and nothing
will prevent the Company from entering into similar agreements for such services in sufficient
quantity to complete the remainder of the Project. The Company has obtained all Permits and
approvals necessary to extend such lines and mains to bring such utility services to the Property.
Such Permits and approvals are in full force and effect. The Company holds all rights to such
Permits and approvals, has assigned no interests therein to others and has not contracted to assign
or grant rights therein to others. Such agreements and Permits provide for no extraordinary or
- special (unique to the Property) tap-on charges and user fees. The plat of subdivision as
recorded or separate recorded instruments provide recorded easements to service every Lot
within the Project with all utilities.

Documents furnished. Neither this Agreement, nor any Related Document, nor any
exhibit or Schedule thereto or any document, report, financial statement, schedule, certificate, or
other statement required herein or therein furnished or to be furnished contains any untrue
statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact relating to the Property, the Project,
the Purchase Contract, Government Commitments, Permits, the Company, Estridge, the Builder
or otherwise, and each of the foregoing is true and correct in all material respects. The financial
statements of Estridge and the Builder previously delivered to the Investors have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied (except as may
be noted therein) and fairly reflect the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
Estridge and the Builder for the periods presented.




Zoning. The Property is duly and validly zoned for the construction of the Project. Such
zoning is unconditional, in full force and effect, and no attacks are pending or threatened with
respect thereto. The transfer of the Property will cause no change in such zoning.

Contracts. There are no contracts or agreements {either oral or written) affecting the
Property and the Project, including, without limitation, leases, tenancies or other contracts or
agreements relating to the design, engineering, construction, maintenance, development or
management thereof (collectively “Contracts”) other than those listed in Exhibit E. All right
title and interest in the Contracts is owned by the Company, free and clear of any liens or rights
and interests of third parties, Estridge, and the Builder (except for Estridge’s and the Builder’s
rights expressly contemplated by this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement). Heretofore true,
correct, and complete copies of all of such Contracts and all of the Plans and Specifications have
been fumished to Billy Creek. Such Contracts are in full force and effect, are unamended and no
defaults or potential claims for default exist thereunder. The Company has not previously
assigned or contracted to assign the Contracts or any interests therein.

Brokerage Commissions and Finders Fees. No person is entitled to any brokerage fees
or comunissions in connection with the Property, the Project or the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement and the Lot Sales Agreement which have not previously been paid in full.

Condemnation. No notices have been received from any governmental or quasi-
governmental body or agency or from any person or entity with respect to (and none are
expected or contemplated) any actual or threatened taking of the Property, or any portion thereof,
for any public or quasi-public purpose by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent
domain.

Proforma. The Proforma sets forth all expenses and costs incurred or estimated to be
incurred, in connection with the acquisition of the Property and the completion of the Project,
including all costs and expenses incurred or estimated to be incurred, established and maintained
in connection with the construction of the Improvements. All estimates set forth in the Proforma
are based on reasonable assumptions in light of the prior experience of Estridge and the Builder
in connection with other projects similar to the Project.

Priority Return. Each of the Investors will receive an Intemal Rate of Return on its
investment in the Company of 19.5% based on the distributions the Company will make to the
Investors hereunder from the Revenues the Company will receive from Builder.

Existing Permits and Applications. All building, zoning and other permits (“Permits™)
heretofore issued for the Project and all applications submitted and pending for the Project are
listed and described on Schedule B. All of the Permits are tssued in favor of and are owned
solety by the Company. The Permits may be assigned and transferred without the imposition of
additional conditions except for the payment of a scheduled re-issue fee. All issued Permits are
in full force and effect, all fees required for the issuance thereof have been paid, and no actions
to revoke such Permits are pending or threatened. The Company has entered into no other
agreements to assign and transfer the Permits or to grant other rights to use the Permits.




Claims. There are no claims or liabilities (whether accrued, contingent, or otherwise)
relating to the Property and the Project, including recaptures and impact fees, other than those
descnbed on Schedule C. There are no facts in existence that might reasonably serve as the
basis now or in the future for any liabilities or obligations with respect to the Property and the
Project, other than as described in Schedule C.

Taxes. All federal, state, local, and other governmental agencies, tax returns, information
returns, and reports required to be filed that relate to any tax or assessment levied, assessed, or
due have been filed with respect to the Property and the Project, and all taxes, assessments and
penalties, or deficiencies have been paid. There is no pending action or proceeding by any
governmental authority for assessment or collection of taxes and no claim for assessment or
collection of taxes has been asserted against the Company or the Property or the Project.

Not a Foreign Person. Neither the Company nor the Builder are a “foreign person”
under Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and each of them shall
satisfy the requirements of said statute.

Name, Logos, Trademarks and Trade names. The Company has exclusive rights to
use the name “Centennial North,” in connection with the Property and the Project, which it can
assign and transfer so that such naine may be used without the payment of fees, royalties or
charges. The Company owns and has authority to assign all rights to use the logos, trademarks
and trade names, plus any applications filed or pending, previously obtained or filed for the
Project and the Property.

Assessments. The Property is not subject to any existing or proposed assessment liens
and is not now or in the future to be included in any utility, drainage, service or other assessment
district affecting the Property, other than assessments that may be levied by the Centennial North
Homeowner’s Association, Inc.

Governmental Commitments. Except as listed on Schedule D, no commitments,
undertakings, or agreements have been made (or will be made or are required to be made) with
any governmental authority, utility company, or any other person or entity that would require any
contribution or dedication of money or land, annexation or disconnection of any portion of the
Property into any municipality, district, or governmental unit or construction and installation of
improvements of a public or private nature on or off of the Property. The foregoing are
collectively called the “Governmental Commitments.”

Environmental Matters. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has ever
caused or permitted anyone to store, place, dump, release or bury any materials or substances,
including hazardous material {as hereinafter defined), on, under or into the Property or used the
Property as a treatment, storage, or disposal (whether permanent or temporary) site for any
hazardous material. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has or has permitted
others to store, place, dump, release or bury any hazardous materials on the Property. To the
knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, the Property contains no underground storage tanks and
no underground storage tanks have been removed from the Property.



For purposes hereof, “hazardous material” means (i) “hazardous substances” as defined
in 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (ii} petroleum, including but not limited to crude oil or any
fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees
Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute); (iii) asbestos in any form or condition, and
(iv) any radioactive material, including but not limited in any source, special nuclear, or by-
product material as defined at 42 U.S.C. et seq. and (v) urea formaldehyde foam insulation and
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs).

The Schedules attached to this Exhibit are an integral part hereof.

SCHEDULE OF SCHEDULES
Schedule A - Permitted Exceptions
Scheduie B - Permits
Schedule C - Liabilities

Schedule D - Government Commitments




10.

11.

12.

13.

Schedule A
Permitted Exceptions

Taxes for the year 2005, due and payable May and November 2006. Parcel Number:
(18-09-10-00-00-023.000; Township: Washington;, Assessed Value: Land - $55,800;
Improvements - $0; Exemptions - $0 (Parcel I)

John Edwards Drain assessment for annual maintenance in the amount of $14.00 each
installment.

Taxes for the year 2005, due and payable May and November 2006. Parcel Number:
08-09-10-00-00-025.000; Township: Washington; Assessed Value: Land - $15,500;
Improvements - $0; Exemptions - $0 (Parcel I}

Taxes for the year 2005, due and payable May and November 2006.  Parcel Number:
08-09-10-00-00-026.000; Township: Washington; Assessed Value: Land - $12,100;
Improvements - $0; Exemptions - $0 (Parcel I)

John Edward Drain assessment for annual maintenance in the amount of $10.00 is paid.

Taxes for the year 2005, due and payable May and November 2006.  Parcel Number:
08-09-10-00-00-027.000; Township: Washington; Assessed Value: Land - $35,900;
Improvements - $0; Exemptions - $0 (Parcel I)

Taxes for the year 2003, due and payable May and November 2006.  Parcel Number:
08-09-10-00-00-024.000; Township: Washington; Assessed Value: Land - $24,000;
Improvements - $0; Exemptions - $0 (Parcel II)

John Edward Drain assessment for annual maintenance in the amount of $19.00 each
installment.

Taxes for the year 2005 due and payable in 2006 are a lien not yet due and payable.

Possible municipal assessments, sewer use charges and/or impact fees levied by City of
Carmel.

Rights of the public, the State of Indiana and/or the municipality, and others entitled
thereto, in and to that part of the land taken or used for road purposes.

Rights of way for drainage tiles, ditches, feeders and laterals, if any.

Pipe line easement granted to Socony-Vacuum il Company, Inc. dated May 23, 1939
and recorded June 24, 1939 in Miscellaneous Record 34, page 277, transferred to
Marathon Pipe Line Company by Assignment recorded March 14, 1967 in Miscellaneous
Record 97, page 11, as Instrument Number 6033.




14.

15.

16.

7.

i8.

Pipe line easement granted to Socony-Vacuum Oil Company, Inc. dated May 23, 1939
and recorded June 24, 1939 in Miscellaneous Record 34, page 271, transferred to
Marathon Pipe Line Company by Assignment recorded March 14, 1967 in Miscellaneous
Record 97, page 11, as Instrument Number 6033.

Blanket easement for pipeline granted to Buckeye Pipeline Company recorded September
13, 1962 in Deed Record 175 page 315, as assigned and assumed by Assignment and
Assumption of Rights of way in favor of Buckeye Pipe Line Company recorded in
Easement Record 4, page 734.

Permanent non-exclusive utility easement granted to Hamilton Western Ultilities, Inc.
dated April 22, 1995 and recorded April 24, 95-22669.

Mortgage from Estridge Development Company, Inc. to Community Bank in the
principal amount of $1,746,000.00 dated January 12, 2005 and recorded February 2, 2005
as Instrument No. 200500006533. (Parcel I)

Mortgage from Estridge Development Company, Inc. to Community Bank in the
principal amount of $1,312,000.00 dated July 18, 2004 and recorded July 19, 2004 as
instrument No. 200400050300. (Parce! II)




Schedule B

Permits




Schedule C

Liabilities
Community Bank Loan $3,080,106.79 (as of January 4, 2006)
Estridge Development Co. $ 986,344.00
Total Liabilities $4,066,450.79

*Per diem amount to Community Bank equals $658.33 per day.




Schedule D

Government Commitments

1. Centennial North Planned Unit Development Ordinance

KD_IM-663626_1.DOC
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Operating Agreement of BCE Associates IV, LLC




BCE ASSOCIATES IV, LLC,
an Indiana limited liability company
OPERATING AGREEMENT
among

Estridge Development Company, Inc.
an Indiana corporation

as a Member and the Manager
and

Billy Creek Associates, LP,
an Indiana limited partnership

as a Member




BCE ASSOCIATES IV, LLC
OPERATING AGREEMENT

This Operating Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of November 3, 2006 by and
between Estridge Development Company, Inc., (“Estridge™), and Billy Creek Associates, LP, an
Indiana limited partnership (“Billy Creek™)(Billy Creek, collectively with its Permitted
Transferees, referred to as the “Investors™).

Definitions of certain terms used in this Agreement are set forth in the Glossary of
Defined Terms attached to and forming a part of this Agreement.

On October 30, 2006, Estridge formed the Company to acquire and hold real estate for
the future development of planned residential communities located in Hamilton County, Indiana,
known as Symphony and Sunny Meadows. Substantially all of the stock of Estridge and The
Estridge Group, Inc. (“Builder”) is owned by Paul E. Estridge, Jr. (the “Guarantor”). As of the
date of this Agreement, the Company and Builder are entering into 4 Real Estate Purchase
Agreement related to the Symphony Real Estate and a Real Estate Purchase Agreement related to
the Sunny Mcadows Real Estate (collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which
Builder will purchase the Property from the Company upon the terms and conditions set forth in
the Purchase Agreement. Estridge and Builder have represented and warranted to the Investors
on Exhibit D hereto that cach of the Investors will receive an Internal Rate of Return on its
investment in the Company of 19.5% based on the distributions the Company wilt make to the
Investors hereunder from the Revenues the Company will receive from Builder pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement. Builder and Estridge acknowledge that their covenants and other
obligations under this Agreement and the Purchase Agreement, the representations and
warranties set forth on Exhibit D, and the personal guaranty of the Guarantor, are the primary
inducement for the Investors' investment in the Company.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Agreement and
intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1
The Company

Section1.1  Organization and Continuation. The Members hereby agree to continue
the Company as a limited liability company under the Act as of the day and year first above
written, for the purposes and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Section 1.2 Name. The name of the Company shail continue to be BCE Associates
IV, LLC and all business of the Company shali continue to be conducted in such name. The
Manager shall cause to be filed such certificates as may be required to ensure that the Company
is in compliance with the Act, any relevant assumed or trade name laws and other applicable
laws.




Section 1.3 Place of Business. The principal office of the Company shall be located at
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200, Carmel, Indiana, or at such other place as may be
approved by the Manager.

Section 1.4 Purpose. The sole purposes of the Company shall be to acquire that
certain real estate located in Hamilton County, Indiana described on Exhibit B (the “Property”),
and to own and dispose of the Property pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The acquisition of
real estate will be accomplished in two separate transactions. The first transaction will be the
acquisition of the Symphony Real Estate (as described on Exhibit B) which will be on or about
October 31, 2006. The second transaction will be the acquisition of the Sunny Meadows Real
Estate (as described on Exhibit B) which will close on or about December 15, 2006, unless
Estridge secures development financing prior thereto and then the Company will not purchase
the Sunny Meadows Real Estate.

Section 1.5 Purposes Limited. The Company’s activities shall be only for the
purposes specified in Section 1.4. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the
Company shall not engage in any other activity or business and no Member shall have any
authonty to hold itself out as an agent of another Member in any other business or activity.

Section 1.6  No Payments of Individual Obligations. The Company’s credit and assets
shall be used solely for the benefit of the Company. No asset of the Company shall be
transferred or encumbered for or in payment of any individual obligation of a Member.

Section 1.7  Statutory Compliance.

(a) The Company shall exist under and be governed by, and this Agreement
shall be construed in accordance with, the applicable laws of the State of Indiana. The
Manager shall make all filings and disclosures required by, and shall otherwise comply
with, all such laws. Additionally, the Company shall make all filings and pay all fees
required to qualify the Company as a foreign limited liability company in each state in
which the Company conducts any business and such qualification is necessary for the
Members to maintain limited liability status.

(b)  The Manager shall execute and file in the appropriate records any assumed
or fictitious name certificate or certificates required by law to be filed in connection with
the formation, qualification and continuation of the Company as a limited liability
company, and shall execute and file such other documents and instruments and pay such
fees as may be necessary or appropriate with respect to such formation, qualification and
continuation of, and conduct of business by, the Company.

Section 1.8 Title to Property. All real and personal property owned by the Company
shall be owned by the Company as an entity and, insofar as permitted by applicable law, no
Member shall have any ownership interest in such property in its individual name or right except
as expressly provided in this Agreement and each Member’s interest in the Company shall be
personal property for all purposes.

Section 1.9 Duration. The duration of the Company shall be perpetual, until dissolved
pursuant to Article 9 of this Agreement.




Section 1.10 Registered Office and Registered Agent. The Company’s initial registered
agent for service of process and the registered office shall be that Person and location reflected in
the Articles of Organization filed with the Indiana Secretary of State. The registered office and
registered agent may be changed from time to time by filing the address of the new registered
office and/or the name of the new registered agent with the Indiana Secretary of State pursuant to
the Act.

Article 2
The Members

Section 2.1  Identification. Estridge and Billy Creek shall be the initial Members of
the Company. No other Person may become a Member except by way of a Transfer specifically
permitted under and effected in compliance with Article 8 of this Agreement.

Section 2.2  Withdrawals. A Member may not withdraw from the Company except
upon liguidation of the Company pursuant to Article 9 or by a permitted Transfer pursuant to
- Article 8. Except as otherwise provided herein, a Member shall not have the right to demand or
withdraw all or any portion of its capital contributions or any other distribution until the time of
(and on the same terms as) any such return or distribution is required to be made pursuant to
Section 4.1. In no event shall a Member have a right to demand or receive property other than
cash in return for capital contributions or otherwise.

Section2.3  Conflicts.

(a) The Members and their Affiliates may conduct any business or activity
whatsoever that is unrelated to the Property (including the acquisition, development,
leasing, operation and sale of other real property) without any accountability to the
Company or to any Member even if such business or activity competes with the business
of the Company. Each Member understands that the other Members and their Affiliates
may be interested, directly or indirectly, in various other such businesses and
undertakings and each Member waives any rights it might otherwise have to share or
participate in such other interests or activities of the other Members and their Affiliates.

(b) No Member or its Affiliates shall enter into any transaction with the
Company or related to the Property unless the material facts of the transaction and the
Member's (or its Affiliate’s) interest is disclosed to the other Members and the transaction
is authorized, approved or ratified by the Majority Investors and Estridge.

Section 2.4  Reimbursement and Fees. No Member and no Affiliate of a Member shail
be paid any compensation by the Company for services to the Company or be reimbursed by the
Company for any expenses whatsoever including, without limitation, overhead or general
administrative expenses; provided, however, that the Company will reimburse the Investors for
(a) all reasonable legal, accounting and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with (i) enforcing or defending (or determining whether or how to enforce or defend)
any rights of the Investors under this Agreement, the Purchase Agreement or any Related
Document or (11) any insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company, Estridge or the Butlder or in
connection with any work-out or restructuring of the transactions contemplated hereby and (b)




one-half of all reasonable legal, accounting and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with the structuring, negotiation and documentation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement, the Purchase Agreement and any Related Document, or any subsequent
amendments thereof.

Section 2.5  No Liability of Members. No Member shall be liable as such for any acts,
debts or liabilities of the Company. The failure of the Company to observe any formalities or
requirements relating to the exercise of its powers or management of its business or affairs under
this Agreement or the Act shall not be grounds for imposing personal liability on the Members
for any acts, debts or liabilities of the Company.

Section 2.6  Duties of Members. Each Member shall have the duties (a) to act openly,
honestly and reasonably with each other Member and with the Company; (b) not to misap-
propriate any property or assets of the Company for such Member's own benefit or for the
benefit of any other Person; and (c¢) not to make any willful misrepresentation, or any statement
that effectively constitutes a willful misrepresentation because of misleading omissions, to any
other Member of the Company that could reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect
the business, properties, assets, condition (financial or other) or prospects of the Company.
Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, no Member, as such, shall have any duty of loyalty,
duty of care or any other fiduciary duty of any character whatsoever to the Company or to any
other Member. No Member as such shall be required to devote any time to the business of the
Company.

Section 2.7  Indemnification of Investors. The Company shall indemnify, to the fullest
extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as the same may hereafter be amended, any
Person made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether criminal,
civil, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such Person is or was an Investor
or an Affiliate of any Investor. To the fullest extent permitted by law as currently in effect or as
the same may hereafter be amended, expenses incurred by any such Person in defending any
such action, suit or proceeding shall be patd or reimbursed by the Company promptiy upon
receipt by it of an undertaking of such Person to repay such expenses if it shall ultimately be
determined that such Person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Company. The rights
provided to any Person by this Section shall be enforceable against the Company by such Person,
who shall be presumed to have relied upon it in continuing to be a Member of the Company.

The indemnification provided by this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights
to which a Person seeking indemnification may be entitled. No amendment of this Section shall
impair the rights of any Person arising at any time with respect to events occurring prior to such
amendment,

Article 3
Capital of the Compan

Section 3.1  Initial Capital Contributions. The Members have made or shall make
contributions to the capital of the Company of cash and property in the amounts, at the agreed
values and at the times set forth opposite their respective names on Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference. No interest shall accrue on any contributions to the capital of




the Company, and no Member shall have the right to withdraw or to be repaid any capital
contributed by it, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 3.2 Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the capital contributions made
by the Investors to tmmediately purchase the Property in addition to the financing provided by
Monroe Bank as set forth on Schedule C to Exhibit D.

Section 3.3 No Further Capital Contributions. Except for the cash and property
required to be contributed pursuant to Section 3.1, the Members shall not be required to
contribute additional capital to the Company.

Section 3.4  Member Loans. In the event that funds are needed by the Company for its
operations, any Member may (but shall not be required to) loan such funds to the Company
under such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the Member and the Company, .
with the prior written consent of the Majority Investors.

Article 4
Distributions

Section4.1  Distribution of Available Cash. All Available Cash shall be distributed at
least quarterly on the first business day of each calendar quarter in the following order of
priority:

(a) First, to the Investors in an amount equal to the Quarterly Distribution
Payment;

(b) Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Capital
Contributions as of the date of such distribution;

(©) Next, to the Investors to the extent of their Undistributed Priority Return
as of the date of such distribution; and }

(d)  Thereafier, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge. | '|

All distributions to the Investors hereunder shall be payable to them pro rata in "
proportion to the capital contributions made by them (or their predecessors) to the Company
pursuant to this Agreement. Except for Section 4.1(a) above, the Members do not expect a
distribution until ail or part of the Property is sold.

Section4.2  In-Kind Distribution. Assets of the Company shall not be distributed in
kind to the Members, without the prior written approval of the Manager and the Majority
Investors.

Section4.3  Restriction on Distributions. The Company shall not make any
distribution to the Members unless (a) immediately after giving effect to the distribution, the
Company shall have sufficient cash available to meet the reasonably anticipated needs of the
Company; and (b) such distribution is made in compliance with the Act.




Article 5
Allocations and Tax Matters

Section 5.1  Allocation of Net Profits and Net Loss in General. Except as otherwise
provided in this Article 5, Net Profits or Net Loss of the Company (and each item thereof) for
each Fiscal Year or other period shall be allocated to the Members as follows:

(a) Net Profits shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

(1) First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of, the amount
by which the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(b)(iv) exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(a)(i);

(ii)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5. 1(b)(iii)
exceeds the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(ii);

(1)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their
accrued Net Priority Retum for all years of the Company’s operations exceeds the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to the Investors pursuant to this
Section 5.1(a)(ii1) for all years of the Company’s operations; and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent {100%) to Estridge.
(b)  Net Loss shall be allocated in the following order of priority:

(1) First, to Estridge in proportion to, and to the extent of| the amount
by which the aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to Estridge pursuant to
Section 5.1(a)(1v), exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to
Estridge pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(i);

(if)  Next, to the Investors, and to the extent of the amount by which the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(iii),
exceeds the aggregate Net Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this
Section 5.1(b)(ii);

(ii1)  Next, to the Investors to the extent of the amount by which their
Undistributed Capital Contributions exceed the excess of (1) the aggregate Net
Loss previously allocated to them pursuant to this Section 5.1(b)(iii), over (2) the
aggregate Net Profits previously allocated to them pursuant to Section 5.1(a)(ii);
and

(iv)  Thereafter, one hundred percent (100%) to Estridge.




Section 5.2  Income Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
no Net Loss or item of deduction or loss shall be allocated to a Member to the extent such
allocation would cause or increase a deficit balance in such Member’s capital account. In
determining the extent to which the previous sentence is applicable in any Fiscal Year, each
Member’s capital account also shall be reduced by (i) allocations of loss and deduction that, as of
the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are expected to be made to such Member pursuant to
Section 704(e)(2) of the Code, Section 706(d) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section
1.751-1(b)(2)(11), and (ii) distributions that, as of the end of such Fiscal Year, reasonably are
expected to be made to such Member to the extent they exceed offsetting increases to such
Member’s capital account that reasonably are expected to occur during (or prior to) the Company
taxable years in which such distributions reasonably are expected to be made. Any deduction
denied to a Member because of this Section 5.2 shall be allocated to the other Members in
proportion to their respective Interests. If any Member unexpectedly receives an allocation or
distribution described in clause (i) or (ii) above, which causes a deficit balance in such Member’s
capital account (as modified pursuant to this Section 5.2), such Member will be allocated items
of income and gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income and gain
for such year) in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate such deficit, as quickly as
possible.

Section 5.3  Compliance with Regulations. The foregoing provisions of this
Agreement relating to the allocation of Net Profit and Net Loss are intended to comply with
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner
consistent with such regulations. The Members expect and intend that upon the liquidation of ‘
the Company, after giving effect to all contributions and all allocations for all periods, and to i
distributions of the Undistributed Capital Contributions plus all Undistributed Priority Retumns, :
the Members’ capital accounts will have positive balances in proportions that are consistent with
the manner in which distributions will be made under Section 4.1. If at any time it becomes
apparent that this would not be the result, then the allocations provided for in this Article 5 shail
be modified in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b) and 1.704-2(b)
and Approved by the Members to the extent necessary to cause the Members’ capital account
balances to be in such proportions.

Section 5.4  Special Basis Adjustment. In connection with any Transfer of an Interest
permitted by the terms of this Agreement, or any distribution of Company property to a Member,
the Company (at the written request of any Member) shall elect under Section 754 of the Code,
at the time and in the manner provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.754-1(b) (or any like
statute or regulation then in effect), to adjust the basis of the Company’s assets, provided that in ,
the case of a Transfer the transferee pays all costs incurred by the Company in connection '
therewith, including reasonable attorneys’ and accountants’ fees.

Section 5.5  Tax Matters Partner. The Manager is hereby designated as the “Tax
Matters Partner” pursuant to the Code and, to the extent authorized or permitted under applicable
law, the Tax Matters Partner shall represent the Company in connection with all examinations of
Company affairs by taxing authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial
proceedings.




Article 6
Accounting and Records

Section 6.1 Books and Records.

(a) The Manager shall keep at the Company’s principal office separate books
of account for the Company which shall show a true and accurate record (including bills
and invoices) of all costs and expenses incurred, all charges made, all credits made and
received and all income derived in connection with the operation of the Company
business. Such books and records shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied.

(b)  Each Member shall, at its sole expense, have the right, at any time during
normal business hours and without notice to the others, to examine, copy and audit the
Company’s books and records. As often as may be reasonably requested, the Manager
shall permit any authorized representative designated by any Member, at such Member's
own expense, to visit and inspect the Property and to discuss the Company's affairs,
finances and accounts with the Manager and its representatives and the Accountants, ali
upon reasonable advance notice and at reasonable times during normal business hours.

Section 6.2  Reports.

(@)  The Manager, at its own expense, shall cause a report to be prepared on a
quarterly basis which contains relevant information regarding the Property, including
summaries of significant actions and events taken by the Company, a statement of
sources and uses of funds, income statement and balance sheet, a schedule of projected
taxable income for the Company and any other information the Majority Investors may
reasonably request and which can be obtained and presented without undue effort and
expense. The Manager shall distribute these quarterly reports to the Investors within
thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter.

(b)  Within forty five (45) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, the Manager
shall furnish each Member with financial statements of the Company which shall contain
a balance sheet as of the end of the Fiscal Year, statements of profit and loss, Available
Cash, and a statement of changes in the capital accounts and financial position for the
Fiscal Year then ended.

(¢}  The Manager shali promptly deliver to the Investors such additional
financial and other information regarding the business and affairs of the Company and
the Property as the Majority Investors may reasonably request.

Section 6.3  [Intentionally omitted].

Section 6.4  [Intentionally omitted].




Section 6.5  Tax Returns. The Manager shall cause the Accountants to prepare, at the
Company’s expense, on a cash or accrual basis, as Approved by the Members, all income and
other tax returns of the Company and, subject to the provisions of Section 7.5, cause the same to
be filed in a timely manner. Within 60 days after the end of each tax year of the Company, the
Manager shall deliver to each Person that is or was a Member at any time during such tax year,
such tax information as shall be necessary for the preparation by such Persons of their federal
income tax returns. Upon the reasonable request of any such Person, the Manager shall furnish
to such Person such additional information as is reasonably available to the Manager with respect
to the Company as may be necessary to file other required returns or reports with governmental
agencies. The Manager shall notify the Members and Assignees of any available tax refunds,
credits or exemptions promptly in writing after the Manager becomes aware thereof.

Section 6.6  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company (its “Fiscal Year”) shall be
the calendar year or any other period approved by the Manager. As used in this Agreement, a
Fiscal Year shall include any partial Fiscal Year at the beginning or end of the term of the
Company.

Section 6.7  Bank Accounts.

(a) The Manager shall have responsibility for the safekeeping and use of all
funds and assets of the Company. The funds of the Company shall not be commingled
with the funds of any other Person and the Manager shall not employ, or permit any other
Person to employ, such funds in any manner except for the benefit of the Company.

(b) The bank accounts of the Company shall be maintained in such banking
institutions selected by the Manager, and withdrawals shall be made only in the regular
course of Company business and as otherwise authorized in this Agreement on such
signature or signatures as the Manager may determine.

(c) All funds of the Company shall be invested in such investments as are
Approved by the Members other than for cash management in the normal course of
business.

Article 7
Management and Operations

Section 7.1  Management. The day to day business and affairs of the Company shall
be managed by its Manager. The Manager shall direct, manage, and control the day to day
business of the Company to the best of its ability. Except for situations in which the approval of
the Investors or the Members is required by this Agreement or by nonwaivable provisions of
applicable law, the Manager shall have the authority, power, and discretion to manage and
control the business, affairs, and properties of the Company, to make all decisions regarding
those matters and to perform any and all other acts or activities customary or incident to the
management of the Company’s business, including, but not limited to:

(a) To do and perform all acts as may be necessary or appropriate to the
conduct of the Company’s business;



b) To purchase liability and other insurance to protect the Company’s
property and business;

(c) To execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents,
including, without limitation, checks, drafis, notes and other. negotiable instruments,
mortgages or deeds of trust, security agreements, financing statements, documents
providing for the acquisition, mortgage or disposition of the Company’s property,
assignments, bills of sale, leases, partnership agreements, operating agreements of other
limited liability companies and any other instruments or documents necessary to the
business of the Company; and

(d) To enter into any and all other agreements on behalf of the Company, with
any other person for any purpose, in such forms as the Manager may approve; provided,
that any such agreements (whether or not written) between the Manager and any of its
Affiliates shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Majority Investors.

Section 7.2 Standard of Care. The Manager shall discharge its duties as Manager in
good faith, with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under
similar circumstances, and in a manner the Manager reasonably believes to be in the best
interests of the Company.

Section 7.3  Insurance.

(a) Coverage. The Manager shall procure and maintain, or cause to be
procured and maintained, at its expense, insurance in amounts that are customary and
reasonable for the Company’s business and in any event in amounts sufficient to enable
the Company to comply with applicable laws, regulations and requirements, provided
that the Company shall be responsible for the costs of liability insurance.

(b) Policy Standards. All policies of insurance shall be issued by an insurer,
shall be in form and for amounts (including deductible and/or indemnity provisions)
approved by the Majority Investors, and shall name the Members and the Manager as
additional insureds.

(c) Administration. The Manager shall act on behalf of all named insureds
under each such insurance policy with respect to all matters pertaining to the insurance
afforded by each such policy, including the giving and receipt of notice of cancellation,
the payment of premiums and the receipt of return premiums, if any, and of such
dividends as may be declared by any of the insurance companies issuing any of such
policies.

Section 7.4 Personnel. The Manager is authorized to exercise its powers and
discharge its duties hereunder through its officers and/or employees and representatives. Neither
the Manager nor any Affiliate of the Manager shall be required to devote its full time to the
business of the Company, but shall only be obligated to devote such time and attention to the
conduct of the business of the Company as shall be reasonably required for the conduct of such
business.
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Section 7.5  Major Decisions.

(a) The Manager shall have no authority to do any of the following acts on
behalf of the Company without the prior written approval of the Majority Investors:

(1) acquire, by purchase, lease, or otherwise, any direct or indirect
interest in any property in addition to the Property, or make any capital
improvements;

(it)  confess a judgment against the Company, submit a Company claim-
to litigation or arbitration, or settle any litigatton or arbitration;

(1ii)  enter into any lease or other occupancy arrangement;

{iv)  admit a new Member to the Company or issue any profits interest
in the Company to any Person;

(v)  doany act in contravention of this Agreement or which would
make it impossible or unreasonably burdensome to carry on the business of the
Company;

(vi)  enter into, modify, terminate, or waive any breach of or default
under or give any consent under any agreement with the Manager or any Affiliate
of the Manager;

(vii)) acquire an interest in property, or transfer the Property to another
Person, except pursuant to the Purchase Agreement;

(vili) give any consent or approval under any contract or agreement if
the subject of such consent or approval would require approval of the Investors
under this Section were it to be undertaken directly by the Company;

, (ix)  effect any reorganization of the Company into any other legal
form, or any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other
Person;

(x)  incur any debt for borrowed money other than to Monroe Bank in
an amount not to exceed $7,135,202 in connection with the financing of the
acquisition of the Property; or

(xi)  petition or apply to any tribunal for the appointment of a trustee or
receiver or for the liquidation of any of its assets or commence any proceeding on
behalf of the Company under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debts law of any jurisdiction or consent to the filing
of any such proceedings by any other person.

Section 7.6  Fees. No fee shall be paid by the Company to the Manager.
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Section 7.7  No Resignation by Estridge. Estridge may not resign as Manager without
the prior written consent of the Majority Investors in their sole discretion.

Article 8
Transfer of Interests

Section 8.1  Restrictions on Transfer. Except as expressly provided for in this
Agreement, no Member may Transfer all or any portion of its Interest or withdraw from the
Company. Any such attempted Transfer, withdrawal or retirement not permitted hereunder shall
be null and void.

Section 8.2  Permutted Transfers. Subject to Section 8.4 below, the following
Transfers of Interests are permitted by this Agreement:

(a) a Transfer made by an Investor to its Affiliates;

(b) a Transfer made by an Investor who is a natural person, (1) upon the death
or disability of the Investor his personal representatives, guardians, executors,
administrators, testamentary trustees, legatees or beneficiaries (the “Estate”); (1i) to a
trust, partnership, limited liability company or other estate planning vehicle the
beneficianes, partners or members of which are only the Investor and his spouse,
siblings, stepchildren or direct lineal ancestors or descendants (a “Trust”); (iii) made as a
gift to the Investor's spouse, lineal descendants or stepchildren (the “Family”); or (iv) by

~ the Estate, a Trust or the Family (the “Family Group”) to any other member of that
Family Group; or

(<) a Transfer made with the prior written consent of the Manager and the
Majority Investors in their discretion.

Section 8.3  Assignee Not A Member in Absence of Approval. Notwithstanding
Section 8.2 or anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any transferee of an Interest shall be
an assignee and have no right to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the
Company, to exercise any voting power with respect to the transferred Interest, or to become a
Member, unless the Manager and the Majonity Investors approve the admission of the transferee
as a Member; provided, however, that no approval for such admission shall be required if the
transferee is an existing Member, or an Affiliate or the member of the Family Group of an
existing Member, at the time of such Transfer (unless such Transfer is to a Family Group
member in connection with a divorce proceeding).

Section 8.4  General Transfer and Compliance Provisions.

(a) All permitted Transfers shall be by instrument in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to counsel for the Manager, shall contain an expression by the
assignee of its intention to accept the assignment and to accept and adopt all of the terms
and provisions of this Agreement, as the same may have been amended, and shall provide
for the payment by the assignor of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Company in
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connection with such assignment, including the amendments to this Agreement necessary
to reflect such Transfer.

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in no event shall any
Member Transfer an Interest or permit any Transfers by its direct and indirect owners if,
as a result, the Company would terminate under Section 708 of the Code if such
termination would cause any Member or the Company to recognize a material amount of
income or gain or incur a material amount of expense.

Section 8.5  Tax Allocations and Cash Distributions. 1f any Interest is Transferred
during any Fiscal Year, Net Profits and Net Loss, or each item thereof, and all other items
attributable to such Interest for such Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the transferee in accordance
with Section 706(d) of the Code, using any conventions permitted by law and selected by the
Manager. All distributions paid on or before the date of a Transfer shall be paid to the transferor,
and all distributions paid thereafter shall be made to the transferee. Any reference in this
Agreement to a capital contribution of, or distribution to, a Person shall include all capital
contributions or distributions previously made by or to any predecessor of such Person on
account of its Interest so transferred. If a Transfer does not comply with the provisions of this
Article 8, then all of such items shall be allocated to the Person who attempted to make the
Transfer.

Article 9
Termination of the Company

Section 9.1  Events of Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve upon the first to occur
of the following events:

(a) at the election of the Majority Investors at any time after the Majority
Investors notify Estridge that an Event of Default has occurred, whether or not the
Majority Investors have exercised their right to remove Estridge;

(b)  the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company with the pnior written approval of the Majority Investors, unless such sale or
other disposition involves any deferred payment of the consideration for such sale or
disposition, in which case the Company shall not dissolve until the last day of the
calendar year during which the Company shall receive the balance of such deferred

payment;

(c)  the mutual written determination of the Manager and the Majority
Investors to dissolve the Company;

(d) at any time that there ceases to be at least one Member; or

(e) the issuance of a decree of dissolution by a court of competent
jurisdiction.
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Section 9.2 Effect of Dissolution. Upon dissolution of the Company pursuant to
Section 9.1, the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of liquidating all of the assets
owned by the Company (until all such assets have been sold or liquidated) and collecting the
proceeds from such sales and all receivables of the Company or until the same have been written
off as uncollectible. Upon such dissolution, the Company shall engage in no business thereafter
other than that necessary with respect to the Property on an interim basis and for the Company to
collect iis receivables, liquidate its assets and pay or discharge its liabilities.

Section 9.3  Sale of Assets by Liquidating Trustee.

(a) Upon dissolution of the Company, the Manager shall, as “Liquidating
Trustee”, proceed diligently to wind up the affairs of the Company and distribute its
assets, unless the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a) in
which case the Majority Investors may, in their discretion, designate another Person to be
Liquidating Trustee. Another Person may be selected by the Majority Investors to
succeed the original Liquidating Trustee, or to succeed any subsequently selected
successor, whenever the Person originally selected or any such subsequently selected
successor, as the case may be, fails for any reason to carry out such purpose. The
Liquidating Trustee may be an individual or Entity.

(b)  The Liquidating Trustee shall promptly after dissolution offer all of the
assets of the Company, other than cash, (either as an entirety or on an asset-by-asset
basis) promptly for sale, upon such terms as the Liquidating Trustee shalil determine.

() The fact that a Person is a Member or its Affiliates shall not preclude the
Person from bidding for any or all of the assets being offered for sale.

(d)  The decision to accept or reject an offer to purchase assets of the
Company (a “Purchase Offer”) shall be made soiely by the Liquidating Trustee, provided,
however, that if the dissolution occurred because of an event described in Section 9.1(a)
the Liquidating Trustee shall not accept a Purchase Offer without the approval of the
Majority Investors.

(e) In winding up the affairs of the Company, the Liquidating Trustee shall
pay the liabilities of the Company in such order of priority as provided by law.
Distrnibutions to the Members shall be made in accordance with their positive capital
account balances, taking into account all capital account adjustments for the Company's
taxable year in which the liquidation occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
distributions made pursuant to this Article 9 are intended to be in strict compliance with
the prionty of distributions required by Section 4.1 hereof and if distributions pursuant to
this Article 9 do not comply with the requirements Section 4.1, the capital account
balances of the Members will be adjusted by reallocating allocations of gross income and
deductions to the full extent permitted under Section 704 of the Code until such capital
account balances are in such amounts to cause the final distribution pursuant to this
Article 9 to conform to the requirements of Section 4.1.
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® Liquidation proceeds shall be paid within 60 days of the end of the
Company's taxable year or, if later, within 90 days after the “date of liquidation” (as such
term is defined in the Treasury Regulations). Such distributions shall be in cash unless
the Majority Investors agree otherwise.

Article 10
Removal of Estridege

Section 10.1 Removal of Estridge. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Agreement to the contrary:

(a) The Majority Investors shall have the right to remove Estridge pursuant to
this Section at any time after the occurrence of any of the following events (each an
“Event of Default™):

(1) Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor has failed to cure an
Unmatured Event of Default (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within
thirty (30) days after the Majority Investors have notified Estridge that the defanlt
must be cured (the “Cure Peniod”);

()  Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor (i) is generally not paying,
and admtts in writing its inability to pay, its debts as they become due, (ii) files, or
consents by answer or otherwise to the filing against it of, a petition for relief or
reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy, for liquidation
or to take advantage of any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or other similar law of any jurisdiction, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit
of its creditors, (iv) consents to the appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or
other officer with similar powers with respect to it or with respect to any
substantial part of its property, (v) is adjudicated as insolvent or to be liquidated,
or (vi) takes corporate action for the purpose of any of the foregoing; or

(i11)  a court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction enters
an order appointing, without consent by Estridge, the Builder or the Guarantor, as
applicable, a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powers with
respect to it or with respect to any substantiat part of its property, or constituting
an order for relief or approving a petition for relief or reorganization or any other
petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy or
insolvency law of any jurisdiction, or ordering its dissolution, winding up or
liquidation, or any such petition shall be filed against Estridge, the Builder or the
Guarantor and such petition shall not be dismissed within thirty (30) days.

(b)  The Majority Investors may exercise their right to remove Estridge at any -
time after the occurrence of any Event of Default, by giving Estridge notice of the
exercise of this right, which notice will set forth the basis for removal and the effective
date, which may be immediately upon delivery of the notice (the “Removal Notice™).
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(c) Unless the Removal Notice specifies otherwise, upon delivery of the
Removal Notice Estridge shall cease to be the Manager and a Member of the Company
and shall have no further right to participate in the Company’s business, Net Profits, Net
Loss or distributions. Upon removal of Estridge, Estridge’s entire Interest in the
Company and its rights under this Agreement shall automatically and immediately cease
without the payment of any consideration therefore. Such removal shall not relieve
Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their Affiliates from any liability that any
of them may have for breach of this Agreement, the Purchase Agreement, the Guaranty
of the Guarantor or any other Related Document. Upon such removal, Estridge shall
immediately turn over to the Majority Investors or their designee possession of all of the
Company's books, records, properties and assets. '

Section 10.2 Unmatured Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following
shall constitute an “Unmatured Event of Default™

(a) Estridge, the Builder, the Guarantor or any of their respective Affiliates
has breached or otherwise failed to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the
Purchase Agreement, the Guaranty of the Guarantor or any of the other Related
Documents; or

(b) the Guarantor dies, ceases to own a controlling interest in Estridge or the
Builder, or ceases to be the chief executive officer of Estridge and the Builder active in
the full time management of their business.

Estridge shall notify the Investors immediately upon learning that any Unmatured Event
of Default has occurred. At any time after learning that an Unmatured Event of Default has
occurred, the Majority Investors may notify Estridge that they intend to remove Estridge if the
Unmatured Event of Default is not cured (whether or not it is capable of being cured) within the
Cure Period (an “Unmatured Event of Default Notice™).

Section 10.3 No Waiver. Failure of any Member to insist upon compliance with any
provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the rights of such Member to
subsequently insist upon compliance with that prov1smn or any other provision of this
Agreement.

Article 11
Miscellaneous

Section 11.1 Notices. All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in
writing and may be delivered in person to any party or may be sent by registered or certified
mail, with postage prepaid, return receipt requested and with a copy by telefacsimile, or may be
transmitted by telegraph, commercial overnight carrier service, personal delivery, telefacsimile
or other commercially reasonable means and addressed: '
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in the case of Estridge, to:

The Estridge Development Company, Inc.
14300 Clay Terrace Boulevard, Suite 200
Carmel, Indiana 46032

Attention: Paul Hayes

Fax number: 317/582-2452

with a copy to:

Krieg DeVault LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 2800
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Attentton: Michael J. Messaglia, Esq.
Fax number: 317/636-1507

and in the case any Investor, to such Investor:

¢/o Brian J. Brunner
CenterPoint Consulting LLC
P.O. Box 280

56 North Main Street
Zionsville, IN 46077

Fax number: 317/733-3555

with copies to:

Baker & Daniels LLP

600 East 96™ Street, Suite 600
Indianapolis, IN 46240
Attention: J. Jeffrey Brown
Fax number: 317/569-4613

or to such other address as shall, from time to time be supplied in writing by any party to the
others. Notice sent by registered or certified mail, postpaid, with return receipt requested,
addressed as above provided, shall be deemed given on the day of actual receipt or four (4)
business days after deposit in the United States mail, whichever is earlier. If notice is
telegraphed or faxed the same shall be deemed given the first business day after the transmission
thereof. If notice is sent by commercial overnight carrier, the same shall be deemed given the
first business day after such notice is receipted by such carrier for next day delivery. Any notice
or other document sent or delivered in any other manner shall be deemed given only if and when
received.

Section 11.2  Successors and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on Transfer set forth

herein, this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.
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Section 11.3  No Oral Modifications; Amendments. No oral amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding on the Members. This Agreement may be amended only by a
written instrument executed by Estridge and the Majority Investors.

Section 11.4 Captions. Any article, section or paragraph title or caption contained in
this Agreement and the table of contents are for convenience of reference only and shall not be
deemed a part of this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the Person or Entity may in the
context require. Any reference to the Code, Act or other statutes or laws shall include all
amendments, modifications or replacements of the specific sections and provisions concerned.
The term “include” and derivatives thereof shall be construed in an illustrative and not a
limitative sense,.

Section 11.6 Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, it
shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.

Section 11.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in the onginal or by
telecopy in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an onginal and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Members, and the
signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended
to, any other counterpart.

Section 11.8 Further Assurances. The parties hereto agree that they will cooperate with
each other in good faith and will execute and deliver, or cause to be delivered, all such other
instruments, and will take all such other actions, as either party hereto may reasonably request
from time to time in order to effectuate the provisions and purposes hereof.

Section 11.9 Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and
exclusive statement of the agreement between the Members with respect to the matters covered
hereby. This Agreement supersedes all prior written and oral statements and no representation,
statement, condition or warranty not contained in this Agreement shall be binding on the
Members or have any force or effect whatsoever.

Section 11.10 Enforcement Rights. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges and
agrees that the agreements set forth herein are fundamental to the other parties' willingness to
enter into and be bound by this Agreement. Accordingly, each party hereby agrees that each
other party, jointly and/or severaily, may institute and maintain any action, suit or proceeding, at
law or in equity (including, without limitation, specific performance or temporary and permanent
injunctive relief {(without any requirement to post any bond or other security)), against any party
to enforce, or otherwise act in respect of, the agreements of such party set forth in this
Agreement. Such relief shall not be exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
damages and any other rights or remedies otherwise available at law or in equity.




Section 11.11 Attorneys’ Fees. If any proceeding is brought by one Member against
another to enforce, or for breach of, any of the provisions in this Agreement, the prevailing
Member shall be entitled in such proceeding to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees together with
the costs of such proceeding therein incurred from the nonprevailing Member. Except as
provided in Section 2.4 hereof, each Member shall pay its own attorneys’ fees and expenses in
connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Agreement.

Section 11.12 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

Section 11.13 No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement and any other agreement
among the Members to pay any amount and any assumption of lability herein or therein
contained, express or implied, shall be only for the benefit of the Members and their respective
heirs, successors and assigns, and neither this Agreement nor such other agreement or
assumption shall inure to the benefit of the obligees of any indebtedness or any other party
whomsoever, it being the intention of the Members that no one shall be deemed to be a third
party beneficiary of this Agreement or such other agreement.

Section 11.14 Exhibits and Glossary. Each of the Exhibits and the Glossary attached
hereto are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes, and references
thereto in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation.

Section 11.15 Estoppels. Each Member shall, upon not less than fifteen (15) days’
written notice from another Member specifying the purpose for and the addressee of such
statement, execute and deliver to that other Member a statement stating whether or not there are,
to such Member’s knowledge without independent investigation, any uncured defaults under this
Agreement on the part of any other Member and its Affiliates and specifying such defaults if any
are claimed. Any such statement may be relied upon by third parties, but shal! not otherwise
release the Member for whose benefit such statement is delivered from the consequences of any
uncured defaults hereunder whether or not disclosed in such statement.

Section 11.16 References to this Agreement. Numbered or lettered articles, sections and
subsections herein contained refer to articles, sections and subsections of this Agreement unless
otherwise expressly stated. The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “this
Agreement” and other similar references shall be construed to mean and include this Agreement
and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto unless the context shall clearly indicate or
require otherwise.

Section 11.17 Consents and Approvals. Whenever the consent or approval of a Member
1s required by this Agreement, such Member shall have the right to give or withhold such
consent or approval in its sole discretion, unless otherwise specified.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE)]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
and year first above written.

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its president

Billy Creek Associates, LP

By: , its general partner
Otto N. Frenzel 111

By: , 1t general partner
Eleanor F. Bookwalter

For purpose of joining in making the representations attached as Exhibit D and agreeing to be
bound to the terms of this Agreement the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the
date and year first above written.

Estridge Development Company, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President

The Estridge Group, Inc.

By:

Paul E. Estridge, Jr. its President
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

BCE Associates IV, LLC
Operating Agreement

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings set forth in this
Glossary or in the sections of this Agreement referred to after each term.

Accountants: Somerset CPAs, P.C. or such other firm of nationally-recognized independent
certified public accountants as may be Approved by the Members.

Act: The Indiana Business Flexibility Act as from time to time in force.

Affiliate: A Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Person in question and any officer, director,
manager, managing member, partner, trustee, employee, stockholder (fifteen percent (15%) or
more) or direct or indirect owner of any Person referred to in the preceding clause or their
respective family members, which includes children of a spouse and of a former spouse. For
purposes of this definition, the term “control” means the ownership of beneficial interests in an
Entity which in the aggregate give the owner thereof the right to cast fifteen percent (15%) or
more of the votes with respect to any question that may be decided by owners of interests in such
Entity. However, in no event shall any Investor or its Affiliates be deemed an Affiliate of the
Company, Estridge or their Affiliates and in no event shail Estridge or its Affiliates be deemed
an Affiliate of any Investor or its Affiliates.

Agreement: As defined in the Preamble.

Approved by (or Approval of) the Members: That the action in question has been approved in
writing by Estnidge and the Majority Investors.

Available Cash: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, Revenues plus any capital
contributions by Estridge used to fund the Quarterly Distribution Payment less the sum of any
expense of the Company, the payment of the debt to Monroe Bank and a reasonable reserve.

Code: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time and all published
rules, rulings and regulations thereunder at the time of reference thereto.

Company: The limited liability company governed by the Agreement as said limited hability
company may from time to time be constituted and amended.

Entity: Any general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, limited
liability company, corporation, joint venture, trust, business trust, cooperative or assoctation.

Events of Default: Section 10.1(a).

Fiscal Year: Section 6.6.




Interest: The entire interest (which may be segmented into and/or expressed as a percentage of
various rights and/or liabilities, as applicable) of a Member in the Company at any particular

time, including the right of a Member to any and all benefits to which a Member may be entitled |
as provided in this Agreement and in the Act, together with the obligations of such Member to
comply with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement and of the Act. !

Internal Rate of Return or IRR: The annual discount rate that results in a net present value equal
to zero when the discount rate is applied to all capital contributions made by, and all distributions
received by, a Person (with all cash flows recorded on the actual day that such funds were

disbursed), all calculated in accordance with accepted financial practice. ;

Liquidating Trustee: Section 9.3.

Majority Investors: Those Investors that have made a majority of the capital contributions made
by the Investors.

Manager: Estridge, provided that, if Estridge is removed in accordance with Section 10.1, the
Majority Investors shall have the right, in their sole discretion, to appoint any other Person to
become a successor Manager hereunder.

Member: Estridge, Billy Creek and such successors, assigns or additional members as may be i
admitted as members of the Company, from time to tirne, pursuant to the terms of this )
Agreement. '

Net Priority Return: The amount by which an Investor's Priority Return exceeds the Investor's
capital contributions to the Company.

Net Profits and Net Loss: “Net Profit” and “Net Loss” shall mean, for each Fiscal Year or other
period, an amount equal to the Company’s taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year or period,
determined 1n accordance with Code Section 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of income, gain,
loss or deduction required to be stated separately pursuant to Code Section 703(2)(1) shall be
included in taxable income or loss), with the following adjustments:

(a)  any income of the Company that is exempt from Federal income tax and not
otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be added
to such taxable income or loss;

(b)  any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) or
treated as Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) expenditures under Code Section 704(b) and
not otherwise taken into account in computing Net Profit or Net Loss shall be
subtracted from such taxable income or loss; and

(c) any amount that is allocated pursuant to Section 5.2 shall be excluded from the
determination of Net Profit and Net Loss.

Person: Any individual or Entity, and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns of such Person where the context so admits.




Permitted Transferee. A transferee in a Transfer of an Interest permttted by Section 8.2 hereof.

Plans and Specifications: All architectural or engineering plans, specifications, working
drawings, designs, models and other similar architectural or engineering materials prepared for
or in connection with the Property (or any portion thereof).

Priority Return: The amount of cash distributions which, if received by the applicable Investor

on the date of determination, would result in an Internai Rate of Retumn to the Investor of 19.5%
(computed in accordance with the definition of “Internal Rate of Return” herein and taking into

consideration the timing and amounts of all capital contributions and distributions in respect of

such Investor's Interest in the Company).

Purchase Agreement: As defined in the Preamble.

Purchase Offer: Section 9.3(d).

Quarterly Distribution Payment: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the product
of (x) 1.75% per quarter (i.e., a rate of 7.0% per annum} multiplied by (y) the amount of the
Investor’s Undistributed Capital Contributions (calculated prior to giving effect to any
distribution pursuant to Section 4.1(b) for such quarter).

Revenues: As to any particular Fiscal Year or portion thereof, the total cash receipts of the
Company from the sale all or part of the Property.

Sunny Meadows Real Estate: As defined in Exhibit B.

Symphony Real Estate: As defined in Exhibit B.

Tax Matters Partner: Section 5.5.

Transfer: Any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation, gift, conveyance, security
interest or other encumbrance, or any contract therefor, any voting trust or other agreement with
respect to the transfer of voting rights or any other beneficial interest in, or any other transfer or
disposition (including, without limitation, any disposition that would constitute a *sale” within
the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) whatsoever affecting the right, title,
interest or possession in or to any Interest, whether direct or indirect, voluntary, involuntary, by
operation of law or otherwise.

Treasury Regulations: Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Code by the United States
Treasury Department, as amended from time to time.

Undistributed Capital Contributions: With respect to each Investor, an amount equal to the
excess of (a) the aggregate capital contributions to the Company made by such Investor (or its
predecessors), minus (b) the sum of all previous distributions received by such Investor (or its
predecessors) pursuant to Section 4.1(b).




Undistributed Priority Return: With respect to each Investor, the remaining amount the Investor
would need to recetve on the date of determination in order to achieve the Priority Return on the
date of determination, taking into account the sum of all distributions received by such Investor
(or its predecessor) pursuant to Section 4.1 for all periods up to the date the determination is
being made.

Unmatured Event of Default: Section 10.2.

Unmatured Event of Default Notice: Section 10.2.




EXHIBIT A
EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT D

Exhibit List
Capital Contributions
Legal Description of Property

List of Contracts and other Personal Property Assigned to the Company by
Estridge

Estridge and the Builder Representations and Warranties




EXHIBIT A

Capital Contributions

Member Capital Contribution
Billy Creek Associates, LP ~ $4,000,000"
Estridge Development Company, Inc. Estridge has contnibuted or will contribute to the

Company all of its rights, title and interest to the
purchase agreements to acquire the Property. In
addition, if the funds of the Company are
insufficient, Estridge will contribute to the
Company from time to time 100% of the cash equity
required to fund the expenses of the Company and
the Quarterly Distribution Payment.

' $3,330,000 shall be contributed upon the acquisition of the Symphony Real Estate and up to $670,000 shall be
contributed upon the acquisition of the Sunny Meadows Real Estate to fund the equity needs related thereto.




EXHIBIT B
Legal Description of Property

See attached four (4) pages.




Symphony Real Estate

" Schedule A

Ve I':'XHIBlTA ‘ _
. paﬂ of the Southweat Ouaner (114) of the Norﬂmast Quamar (1!4) of Section Sixteen (18). Tcwmshp Eightaen
{18) North, Range Threa (3) East, Washingion Township, Hamilton County. Indiana, described as follows:

- Baglinning at the Southwest comer of sald Northwest Quarter (1/4); thence North 00°16'57™ West (assumad basls of .

bearings} along tha West line of sald Narthwest Quarter (1/4) a distance of 850.00 feet, thenca North 89°0152" East

parale! with the South fine of sald Northwest Quarter (1/4} a distance of 1375.00 feet; thence South 00*16'57 East’ . -

.+ paralel with sald West Iine a distance of 950.00 feet to the South line of sald Northwest Quarter (1/4); thence South
- 89°01'52" Wastalong said South Itna g dlstance ol 1375 00 feet to the Polnt of Beglnnlng. comain!ng 30.00 acres, -

T more of less.

Chicago Titla Insurance Company . I3

This Commitment s vall orly f Schedule B Is aftached. _ =
" Sehackfo A consiss of 2 pagels) : :




T ExcEPT
’ The East 100.00 I'eatbypm'allal Enes offﬂ'temﬂre North 100.00 featbyparal’lel fnes ofmefollomng described

Schedule A

EXH]B!TA -

m&mnommmnwmmmmsmm TomshIpmNorm RangaaEast,aIsomaWBSI
Half of the Southeast Quartar of the Narthwest Quartar of Section 18, Township 18, Hanga:iEasthWash!rmon

.Tmh!p.HamltonComly Incﬂmomﬂaiﬁ)genmwes.moraorless

A}so,theEaslHaﬂoimeNommmommmeEastHaﬁomeaﬂmastdemeNmﬁwaleWh
Sectbnﬂ' Tarmshbwﬂorm Rameal'ﬁ.st.contailﬂnngOOacru moreurless. A

»

tract: The East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 17, Township 18 North, RangeSEastofhaSecond

] Pﬂncipa! Meridlan, Washington Tmmship. Hamilton Coumy Indiana.

ALSO EXCE’TINB

’ lpaﬂofﬂweSouhmstQuanetoimaNorﬂmstQmﬂarolSecﬂon!BTmumrprodh.HangeaEast. R
- Washington Township, Hamilton County, Indiana described ag follows: Beginning af the Southwest comer of sakd .
Northwest Quarter; thence North 00*16°57" West {assumed basls of bearings) along the West fne of said Northwest

- Quarter a distance of 850.00 feet; thenca North 89701'52" East parallel with the South ne of sald Northwast Quarter

a distance of 1375.00 feet; thence South 00™16°57™ East parallel with sald West Ine a distance of 850.00 feet to tha

._SouthIineolsahNorﬂmestmebarﬂmSnummi'sz‘Wasta!ongsaidSouthﬂneadlstameoH:ﬂsuoroei

) mmepahnafbegimhm.contahmsoooauasmmoﬂecs

Chlcago Tie Insurance Company 3

This Communitment ks valid anly if Schedule B Is attached. - '
. Schedule A consists of 2 page{s) ’ o .




Schedule A

EXHIBIT A

TRACT L
A part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Seclion 18, Township 18 North, Range 3 East, located
in Clay Township, Hamiiton County, Indiana being moce particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a Harrlson mmmmnmw:mmmaomdm 16,
Township 18 Narth, Ranga 3 East; thence along the North line of sakd Quaster Quarter Section South 88*22'65°
West {(assumed bea:hgatﬂhasisbfﬂ'nisdesdipﬂon)fnrad‘stanoeofseg.sahelmasuway markes set this
mwey.sahpohﬁbehgﬂnh‘ue?nbndaaghuﬁng: thence confinuing eleng said North line of said Quarter Quarter
smmwsywwfwamdwwmwmmﬂmm@mmm
mmmabmﬂmEaQMofuhﬂmm&cﬁmSumWM'fuamdﬁwMhthe
WwdmmmmmmmmaMdemm&m
South B9*17'44" West for a distance of 1358.48 feet to the Southwest comer of s2d Quarter Quarter Section;
!henoeabngﬂanedheofsaidQuaﬂanﬂerSwﬂonﬂthu'Eastforad‘:slaneaufﬁo.zﬁteettoa
mveymmmsewﬂammmpmﬂummsaummmmnmqmsmmmrw
East for a distance of 888 59 feet to an tron pin set this survey; thence parallel with the East Bne of said Quarter
Quarter Secfion North 00°02'44" West of a distance of 847 27 fect to the point of beginning. Containing 23.810
acres, more of 859, -
TRACT Il

A part of the Northwest Quarter of the Norftwest Quarter of Section 18, Township 18 North, Range 3 Easl, located
mctamimp.Hmmmnmmy,mlmm.bdngmparﬂwhdydam'bedaahm

mmmmamwmmmmmMmadmmmmmdsm 18,
Tmhlpﬂﬂoﬂh.wammmmnmmmmmmmmwﬁ'm
(assumedbeamgmdbmisfmﬁﬁsdesuipﬂm)fwadstmcadﬂsmhelmﬂnmmw&dmofhm
described in Deed Instrument Number S800800402 In the Recorder’s Offics of Hamitton County, Indiana, belng
mafkadby.aslmymrkefeetﬂﬂssuwey.saidpdmbelngﬂletmePotﬂofBeginnhg:ﬂ‘nmoeomﬂnuhgabng
sauncmmmmmmmumww&mwamdw&&mmaw
mﬂkﬂsathiasumﬂmmpmaﬂd%ﬁﬂ&sthsdsaﬁ&mﬁﬂmﬂar&dbnmm 00°02'44" East fora
dlslmmof&?Z?feetbankmphsethmpamﬂelmﬂmSoumllnaofsaldeax‘terQuarterSec&on
South 89*17'44° Wast for a distanca of B8 50 feet fo the West line of sald Quarter Quartsr Secflor; thence along
tha West ina of said Quarter Quaster Secfion North D0°06'12° West for a distance of 333 60 feet Io a survey marker
sot this survey; thence paraliel with the North ne of sald Quarter Quarter Section North 89°22'56” East for a
dlstamaof315.00feetbmknnplnsetmbswvay:mmpamhlmﬁnwmumofmldQna:teromlw
smmmmmwemumfmmmmmmmummmsmmmm
Retordes’s Offica of Hamifion County, Indkna, North 00°06'12" West for a distance of 515 00 feet to the point of
beginning. Containing 13.528 acres, mors of less. -

um_mgzagzn J
This Commitment is valid only if Schedule B s aitnched .

Schedule A consists of 2 page(s)




Sunny Meadows Real Estate

Such real estate equal to forty (40) acres as reasonably agreed to by the Members of the
following described real estate:

The West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 21 and the East Half of the Southeast
Quarter of Section 20, both being in Township 18 North, Range 5 East in Hamilton
County, Indizna, desciibed as follows: .

Beginning at the Northwest comer of said West Half; thence North 89 degrees 35 minutes
00 seconds Bast (bearing based on NAD 83 Indiana State Plane Coordinate System) along
the north line of said 'West Half a distance of 1323.60 feet to the Northeast comer of said
West Half, thence Soath 00 degrees 19 minmtes 40 seconds East along tho cast lino of
said 'West Hsalf a distance of 265834 feet to the southeast comer of said West Half,
thenice Sonth 89 degroes 41 minutes 44 secoiids West along the south line of snid West
Half a distonce of 1320.68 fect to tho southwest comer of said West Half, point also being
the southeast corner of said East Half; thente South 89 degrees 15 minutes 06 eeconds
‘West along the south line of said Bast Half a distance of 1316.74 feet to tho southwest
comer.of said Bast Hailft thence North 00 degrecs 08 mimates 37 seconds West along the
west lino. of said East Half a distance of 266422 fect to the northwest comer of said East
Half: thence North 89 degrees 37 mimites (9 scconds East along the north line of said
Bast Half a distance of 1305.23 fect to the Point of Beginning, containing 160.701 acres,
more or less.

EXCEPT

A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 138 North. Range 5 Bast,
Hamilton County, Indiana described as foliows:

Commencing at the Northeast cornex of aaid Southoast Quarter; thence South 89 degrees
37 minutes 09 seconds West {bearings based on NAD 83 Indisna State Plane Coordinate
System) along the North lins of said Southeast Quarter a distanco of 50.00 foct to the

PomtofBegmnmgﬂ:mcoeunhnmngalongsmdeththomh89degmuB7mmm
09 seconds West a distanco of 670.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 23 niinutes 27
seconds Bast parallel with the East line of said Southeast Quartér a distance of 275.00
feet; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 09 seconds Bast parallel with said North Yine
distimco of 670.00 feet; thance Marth 00 degrees 23 minntes 27 seconds West parailel
with said East line a distance of 275.00 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 423
acres, more or less.




EXHIBIT C

List of Contracts and other Personal Property
Assigned to the Company by Estridge

. Real Estate Purchase Agreement between Estridge and Brenwick Development Company,
Inc. for 30 acres tn Hamilton County, Indiana.

. Real Estate Purchase Agreement between Estridge and Brenwick Development Company,
Inc. for 131.4 acres in Hamilton County, Indiana.

. Real Estate Purchase Agreement between Estridge and Justus at Westfield, LLC for 37 acres
in Hamilton County, Indiana.

Assumption Agreement between Brenwick Development Company, Inc. and the Company )



EXHIBIT D
Estridge and the Builder Representations and Warranties

As an inducement to Billy Creek to enter into this Agreement, Estridge and the Builder,
Jjointly and severally with Estridge, represent and warrant to the Investors that:

Warranty of Title. The Company is the record and beneficial owner in fee simpie of the
Property, together with all ecasements appurtenant and all land use, development, water, drainage
and zoning rights applicable thereto, free and clear of all liens, charges, easements, covenants,
conditions, restrictions and encumbrances whatsoever, other than those set forth in Schedule A
(“Permitted Exceptions™). The Company has the power and authority to convey, transfer and
assign fee simple title to the Property. Neither the Company, nor Estridge, nor the Builder has
granted any options, rights of first refusal or rights of first opportunity to purchase fee simple
title or any other interest in the Property, except that the Company has the Purchase Agreement.

Authority. The Company, Estridge, and the Builder each have full right, power and
authority to execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and all
other documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by it pursuant to this Agreement
or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Related
Documents”}. This Agreement and the Related Documents, when executed and delivered, will
constitute the duly authorized, valid and legally binding obligation of the Company, Estridge,
and the Builder and will be enforceable strictly in accordance with their respective terms. All
action, including the obtainment of consents and approvals required to authorize execution and
performance of this Agreement and the other instruments herein provided, have been obtained.

Conflicts. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Documents, the
consumimation of the transactions herein or therein contemplated, and compliance with the terms
and provisions hereof or thereof, will not (i) violate any presently existing provisions of law or
any presently existing applicable regulation, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, or (ii) conflict
or be inconsistent with, or resuit in any breach of, any of the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, instrument,
document, agreement or contract of any kind to which the Company, Estridge or the Builder is a
party or by which it may be bound.

Pending Litigation. There are no petitions, actions, suits, proceedings or investigations
pending against the Company, Estridge or the Builder relating to the execution and delivery of
this Agreement or any Related Document, the Property, the Governmental Commitments,
Permits or that could otherwise affect the Property, before any court or any governmental,
administrative, regulatory, adjudicatory or arbitrational body or agency of any kind (including,
without limitation, any actions or petitions to alter or declare invalid any laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, permits, certificates, restrictions, leases or agreements authorizing or relating to the -
Property). None of the foregoing is subject to the terms of any previously entered and final
orders, writs, injunctions, decrees or arbitration awards which continue to be binding and in full
force and effect.




Potential Litigation. No notices have been received that this Agreement, any Related
Document, the Government Commitments, the Permits, the Property, the Company, Estridge, or
the Builder is the subject of any threatened investigation, action, litigation, or proceeding, either
judicial or administrative. No notices have been received or process served or other action taken
with respect to the existence or enforcement of any outstanding orders, writs, injunctions, or
decree of any court, goverment, governmental authority, or arbitration against or affecting all or
any portion of the Property, the Company, Estridge, or the Builder.

Compliance. The Property is in compliance with all Permits, laws, ordinances, statutes,
rules, regulations, restrictions, and orders applicable thereto. No notice has been received from
any governmental authority that the Property is in violation of any of the foregoing or that
remedial action is required to regain comphance. There is no pending or threatened investigation
or inquiry by any governmental authority with respect to the Property. No law, ordinance,
statute, rule, regulation, restriction, or order is pending which, if enacted, would adversely affect
the Property. The Property does not violate, any presently existing applicable statute, law,
regulation, rule, ordinance or order of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any
presently existing zoning or building laws or ordinances, any presently existing environmental
protection laws or regulations, or any presently existing rules, regulations or orders of any
governmental agency), or any Permit issued with respect to the Property or any condition,
easement, right-of-way, covenant or restriction of record affecting the Property.

Documents furnished. Neither this Agreement, nor any Related Document, nor any, -
exhibit or Schedule thereto or any document, report, financial statement, schedule, certificate, or
other statement required herein or theretn furnished or to be furnished contains any untrue
statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact relating to the Property, the Purchase
Agreement, Government Commitments, Permits, the Company, Estridge, the Builder or
otherwise, and each of the foregoing is true and correct in all material respects. The financial
statements of Estridge and the Builder previously delivered to the Investors have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied (except as may
be noted therein) and fairly reflect the financial condition, resuits of operations and cash flows of
Estridge and the Builder for the periods presented.

Contracts. There are no contracts or agreements (either oral or wntten) affecting the
Property, including, without limitation, leases, tenancies or other contracts or agreements relating
to the design, engineering, construction, maintenance, development or management thereof
(collectively “Contracts”) other than those listed in Exhibit C. All right title and interest in the
Contracts is owned by the Company, free and clear of any liens or rights and interests of third
parties, Estridge, and the Builder. Such Contracts are in full force and effect, are unamended and
no defaults or potential claims for default exist thereunder. The Company has not previously
assigned or contracted to assign the Contracts or any interests therein.

Brokerage Commissions and Finders Fees. No person is entitled to any brokerage fees
or commisstons in connection with the Property or the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the Purchase Agreement which have not previously been paid in full.




Condemnation. No notices have been received from any governmental or quasi-
governmental body or agency or from any person or entity with respect to (and none are
expected or contemplated) any actual or threatened taking of the Property, or any portion thereof,
for any public or quasi-public purpose by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent
domain.

Priority Return. Each of the Investors will receive an Internal Rate of Return on its
investment in the Company of 19.5% based on the distributions the Company will make to the
Investors hereunder.

Claims. There are no claims or liabilities (whether accrued, contingent, or otherwise)
relating to the Property, including recaptures and impact fees, other than those described on
Schedule C. There are no facts in existence that might reasonably serve as the basis now or in
the future for any liabilities or obligations with respect to the Property, other than as described in
Schedule C.

Taxes. All federal, state, local, and other governmental agencies, tax retums, information
returns, and reports required to be filed that relate to any tax or assessment levied, assessed, or
due have been filed with respect to the Property, and all taxes, assessments and penalties, or
deficiencies have been paid. There is no pending action or proceeding by any governmental
authority for assessment or collection of taxes and no claim for assessment or collection of taxes
has been asserted against the Company or the Property.

Not a Foreign Persdn. Neither the Company nor the Builder are a “foreign person”
under Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and each of them shall
satisfy the requirements of said statute.

Assessments. The Property is not subject to any existing or proposed assessment liens
and is not now or in the future to be included in any utility, drainage, service or other assessment
district affecting the Property.

Governmental Commitments. Except as listed on Schedule D, no commitments,
undertakings, or agreements have been made (or will be made or are required to be made) with
any governmental authority, utility company, or any other person or entity that would require any
contribution or dedication of money or land, annexation or disconnection of any portion of the
Property into any municipality, district, or governmental unit or construction and installation of
improvements of a public or private nature on or off of the Property. The foregoing are
collectively called the “Governmental Commitments.”

Environmental Matters. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has ever
caused or permitted anyone to store, place, dump, release or bury any materials or substances,
including hazardous material (as hereinafter defined), on, under or into the Property or used the
Property as a treatment, storage, or disposal (whether permanent or temporary) site for any
hazardous material. To the knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, no one has or has permitted
others to store, place, dump, release or bury any hazardous materials on the Property. To the
knowledge of Estridge and the Builder, the Property contains no underground storage tanks and
no underground storage tanks have been removed from the Property.

|
|
|




For purposes hereof, “hazardous material” means (i) “hazardous substances” as defined
in 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (ii) petroleum, including but not limited to crude oil or any
fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees
Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute); (iti) asbestos in any form or condition, and
(tv) any radioactive material, including but not limited in any source, special nuclear, or by-
product material as defined at 42 U.S.C. et seq. and (v) urea formaldehyde foam insulation and
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs).

The Schedules attached to this Exhibit are an integral part hereof.

SCHEDULE OF SCHEDULES
Schedule A - Permitted Exceptions
Schedule B - Permits
Schedule C - Liabilities

Schedule D - Government Commitments




See attached seven (7) pages.

Schedule A

Permitted Exceptions




Fila No.;. 9050h06 - 'Pann.sbl'fEDULEB

.THE POLICY OR POLICIES TO 8E ISSUED WILL CONTAIN EXCEF'TIONS -TO THE FOLLOWING MA'ITERS .
- UNLESS THE SAME ARE DISPOSED OF TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE GOMPANY. - -

. 1. . Defects, ﬁens.enmnbranees,adversedaims.oroﬂ'lermamlfmw uea!nd,ﬁstappeaxinghtheptm

“2 " Standard Exceptions:

records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date the proposed Insured.
acquires fof valus of racurd the eslata or interest or moﬁgage thereon covered by this Commitment. - ’

© a) nghtsordaknsoipa:ﬂeshposmsbnnotshownbyﬂwptbl’nm
b} 'Easemem.v. orda.lmsoteasernarrfs nol shown by the public records. . - .
- c) Encroadunenb overlaps, bmmda:ylhadkptﬂes,oroﬂ:efmaﬂmﬁﬂd:mmdbadlsclosedbyan
- mwratesuvaycrinspecﬁonnfﬂ‘lepremlsas.

d) Anylimnnlgmmanen,farsorvicealabaotma:mfalheremfomurhereaﬂ.erhmlshed.h'nposad
- bylawandno!shownbymeptmﬂc ) oo

.. 3. - Special Exceplions:

a Taxasformeyaar2006payableln2007araaﬂennulyetdueandpayable

’ TaxesfmheyearNﬁSpaydﬂehzooaareaafom
Koy No. 08-09-16-00-00-021.001 - W,
1st instaliment due May 10, 2006 $1,289.76 - Paid,
aidhslalknemdue Nov 10, 2006 $1,288.76— Unpa!d. .

Assessed Vauatons: 0508

Land - - S 7400000

Improvements $ - 52100.00°,

Exemption (Morigage)  § 0.00 - . o L
Exemption (Homeownars) $.000 . co - ; R
Exemption . $ 000 . . ) L -

Net Vatuations =N 12810000 : ' -

NOTE. Taxhrwmaﬁmsmlslkmmmmedalaotﬂamoslamnwmp\mhpmwonnaﬂm
. In the Treasurer's Offica and not necessarly the effective date horeof. Ad»eckwimme'rrammefs

Office should be made to determine the exact amount of taxes due, ¥ any, " -

PLEASE NOTE EXEMPTION YALUATION iNFORMATION MAY NOT BE FULLY POSTED -

b mmhmmmaﬂmmmyauemmny toeminzted or changed by order
of the Dralnage Boar. Nmmmmmmmnozommmmmmmmma .
{Unpald) . .

c) 'AssesmemhmeJdeduwﬂsﬂaSDmhpayabb'mmﬂy.mmmmmdwdnngedby
ordér of the Dralnage Board. Next installment due May 10, 2007 In the amount of $21.00; principal.

d)  Assessmentfor the O.F. Henley #102 Drain payable annually, untl terminated of by ordor”
- 7 of the Drainage Board. delnstaﬂmen! dua Nov10, 2008 ln Hmamotmtafsu.so :
(U"Pﬂid)

€) memmMolmmmwmnwmmmmwm
v . * shown above pursuant to Arficle 8, Section 33 of the Indlana Drainage Code. Sald easement to
. aﬂeﬂmmmthmmwmma@mmmewpbmkdmhmmmm .
o omwardadistamaoﬂsteet .

TmsComnﬂunenllsvalIdonlyi!SchadNas Aandaareaﬂadmd.
Scheduls B2 consists of 2 page(s} -




. FleNo:gosehos © - - ° .+ " - Partl,SCHEDULEB

-

. NOTE: Upon Ieceipt of a survey which saﬁsfactorﬂy evidentces that the prcperly desc:ibed In

Schadule 4 Is notwilhlnihe easement area Ihls exception sha!lbedeleted_ _ L.
Hight of Waygranted to Socony-v:.wuum o] Cmnpany, Inc In an instrument dated Apri 25, 1939

" and recorded June 17, 1939 In Miscellaneous Record 34, page 262, and assigned to Marathon

PpeLhabyanmgnmentreeorded March 14, 1967hMlsceIIaneous RecondS? pageii aIHn 7

the Office of e Racorder of Hamilton Gounty,Indiana.
. RIghtofWaygranhedtoSocony—VacuumOﬂGwnpany.lmhanlrmtumentdatedJunea 1939 :

and recorded June 17, 1939 in Miscellaneous Record 34, page 290, and assigned to Marathon

. PIpeLlnebyanassIgnmerttrecomedMath lsmhmscdlmeousﬁecords‘l mgeﬂa!ln
: meOfﬂceol the RecolderafHamﬂtm County, lndia.rla.

" Right of Wiy grantsd to Buckeye Pipa Line In an instrument recorded August a0, ssszm Deed

Reoord 175 page 214 in the Office of lhe Hacordarcf Hamilton Counly, Indiana. -

' Easement and assoclated rights granled o Hamilmn Woestern Utilities, lnc. by Pro-Cam Pmpemes.'

an Indiana General Parinership In an Instrument dated March 20, 1998 and recorded March 24,
1988 as Instrument Number 9809814472 In me Ofiice of the Fteoorder of Hamiiton County, Indjana.

- SLb]eCltDﬂ" leqalhighwaysandﬂght;ol’way
. Pussb!eeasementsforlega!dralnsarﬂcﬁht:es ifany,arﬂaﬂﬁgmgmemln

TthommnerR!svalidorﬂyitdedlﬂesAmﬁBareaMed.
Sdtedulaaaoonslstsof 2 Paﬂe(s)




" File No.: 9051h06 _ R .. Partll, SCHEDULEB'.

“THE POLICY OR POLICIES TO BE ISSUED WILL CONTAIN EKCEPTIONS TO THE FQLLOWING MATTERS

UNLESS THE SAME ARE DISPOSED OF TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE COMPANY. .

1

C

Dsfects, iens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other mattars, i any, cmamd,fhstappeazingmmpubﬁc‘
. records or .attaching subsequent 1o the effective date hereof but prior o the date the proposed nsured
. accp!resforva!u&ofreoordthaeslateorhterastu'momagelheraoncovaredbymcmnmiunent

Sw:dard Exceptions;
a) .

c) Emroadu'nems. overlaps, bomdarylhe disputes, or other ma.ttersmwwoukibe dIscloSedbyan
- ma!emayorhspecﬁonotmepmmisa& . .
” Anvy Ben, otrighltnauen. lursefvbas.labor or material heretuforeorhereaner ﬁxrrdshed, 1mposed -
bylawmdmtshownbyﬂ:aptbﬂcrsoords. - o - )
SpecIaIExcepﬁons - ' - -
: Taxasfmmeyoarzooepayablamzmﬂareallennolyatduam\dpayaue

.- )

2nd instaliment due Nov 10, 2006 8203.54 urpald. )

nglﬁscrdalmsolparﬂeshmassimmtslwwnbymapubli:mm

| Easements, or caims of easements, mlshownbymapdﬂcracords.

Taxesforhayearao%payablalnzooﬁamasfoﬂm
Ksy No. 08-09-17-00-00-006.000 — Washington (Affeclspartof caplinn)

* 1stinstaliment due May 10, 2006 - $149.33 - paid.

2nd Installment due Nov 10, 2006 - S14{!._33 Lnpaid.

Asseas_edVaiuaﬂans: : " 0508 .
Land ' $ 1460000

- improvements $ 0.00 -

“ Examption (Mortgage) =~ $ 0.00 . e
Exemption {[Homeowners)  § 0.00 - .-
‘Exemption § o.o0 - A .

Net Vatuations R +14600.00 -

'Taxasfameyaarzoospayab!amzoosamasloaows

Key No. 08-08-17-00-00-007.000 — Washington {Affects part of mpﬁon)

. 1stinsialiment due May 10, 2008 - $774.26 - pald.

2nd installment dus Nov 10, 2008 - $774.26 - unpald.

’ Assessed Vahmations: - . 0508

Land ’ $ 7570000 . :
Improvements $ 000 ) : '
Exemption {Mortgage) $ 000 : '
Exemption (Homeowners) . § 0.00

"Exemption '§ 000

Nat\!aluaﬂons s 's.'moooo'

Tmceslormeyearzowpayaliehzmﬁmasroaows. ’
Kay No, 08-09-16-00-00-020.000 — Washlngtm(Aﬂecisparlofeapﬁon)
1st Installment due May 10, 2006 - $203.54 - paid.

IAssassad Valuaﬁoﬂs . 05-08

Th!sCommﬂmentisvaﬂdodylfSchecMesAmdBaremdwd.
. swmaamursmaem :




 FiloNo.: 905108 - R == "+ . Panll, SCHEDULEB

b)

B} Taxestwmamzoospamemzoosmasfom .
** Key No. 08-09-16-00-00-022.000 — Washington (Aﬂec!spanofcapﬂon)

"Land $ 19900.00
o improvements $ 0.0
. Exemption {(Mortgage) $ 000
Exemplon: (Homsowners) $ 0.00
- Exempion $- 0.00
Net Valuations $ 119900.00 -

Taxesfmmeyeaxzoospayabhh'zoosmasfodm ’
Key No. 08-09-16-00-00-021.000 - Washington (Aﬂactspanolmpﬂon)
15t Instafimont duo May 10, 2006 - $46.03 - pakl,
mdmtaﬂmentdueﬂwio 2006 $46.03 - uﬁpﬂd.

Assossod\famaﬁons . . 05-06

CLtamd o § 450000 )
tmprovements . % o000 -
Exemption (Mortgaga) $ 000 ",
Exemption (Homedwners) - §  0.00
Exemptlon . ) $- 0.00 3
Na:\famaﬂons ’ $ 4500.00-

15t instaliment due May 10, 2006 - $46.03 - pakd.
a'pdkmtalh'nmdueNoHDmoe $4603 - unpaid,

_Assemed\'ah:aﬂons ) ns-os

* Land : _°$ 450000

_lmprqvemma ‘$ 0.00

. "Exemption (Moftgage) - - 3 0.00 - o -
Exemption (Homeamm) $ 000 . o .ot
E(emp!lun $ too . . .
Net Valuations '_ - $ 450000

" .- NOTE: Taxhlmmaﬂonsupralsﬂmlmdmﬂwdateoimemaslmwﬂmputermnmmaﬂm -
"+ In the Treasurer's Office and not necessarily the effectiva data hereof, Ad\adwﬂmmeTreaStMs

. Office should ba mads to determine the exact amount of taxes due, if any.
' PLEASE NQTE EXEMP']'ION VALUAT[ON INFOHMATION MAYNOT BE FULLYPOSTED

.Possible assessments I’orthaOrrisE_andeHDrahﬂTQ Mhldlmaybecomoaﬂanatalalw
data.(AﬂedsO&OQ—ﬂ-OO-OO—OU&OOO} X

'Possﬂ:leameasmenhfmﬂan‘lsE. Brendeanm#m Midlmybecanaaﬁanmalaim
.; date. {Affacts 08-09-17-00-00-007.000) - .

'mmmmmmmn&swﬁbﬁs'

semi-ammany.mﬂtermtmedordmg'ed
by order of the Drainage Board, Naxt instaliment due November 10, mmmeammofszsﬂ

. prindpal. (Unpa!d) (Afl‘acts 08-09-17-00-00-007.00)

This Commitment s vaid crily If Schecles A and B are attached.
Schedule B2 consists of 3 pagels)




- Flla No. 9051h06 L K " . . .. . Patl,SCHEDULEB -

a)

h)-.

k)

o

o)

2}

' T}

Assessment for the O.F. Henley Drain # 102 payabla semi-annually, untll terminated of '
order of the Dralnage Board. Next instafltment due November 10, 2006 in the amount of $15.00,
principal. (Unpald) (Affects 08-09-17-00-00-007.000) .

'Assessmentfor!heJohnEdrmrBDlhﬁpayaﬂawnl—amﬂy mﬂlteunhatador vd by
' ordar of the Drainage Board. Next instaliment dus November 10, 2006hﬂ16arnmmtof$‘l7.00
" principai. (Unpaid) {Alfocts 08-09-16-00-00-020.000) ‘

Assessment for th Hinshaw & Horley Ditch payable annuall, unth terminated or changed by order
. of the Drainage Board. Next instaliment dueMay 10, 2007hu1eammmt01515.00 pdmlpal.
{Unpaid) (Affocts 08-09-16-00-00-0720.000)

'AssessmamturumJahnEdwardsDithpayauemmny tmill terminated or

d'langedby -
arder of the Drainage Board. Next nstaliment dua May 10, 2007h&mamwﬁcf$1000 principal.
: (Unpaid) (Affects 08-09-16-00-00-021.000)

Assessnenlfm&mdohnmmwhﬂ%paraﬂemwly mlﬂ!armhatedordwngedhy
ardar of the Dralnage Board. Next Instaliment due May 10, 2007hﬂmammluf$1ooo pdndpal.
(Unpald) (Aﬂects 08~09-16-00-00-022.000)

. "Asessmemrornwmﬁuemsynramwzpayabhmmany untl teminatod or changed by
*-- order of the Dralnage Board. Nexthstailmentme May1o 2007lnu1oammxrﬂol$5.00.pmdpai
 (Unpaic) (Afocts 08-09-16-00-00.022.000)

HigMofWaygrantadﬁSocmw—VacuwnOﬂcompany !nchanhsmmentdahedﬁ.ptias 1939
and recorded June 17, 1939 in Miscellansous Retord 34, page 262, and assigned to Marathon

. Pipe Line by an assignmertt rocorded March 14, 1967hM!soananeuusHebord97pageﬁaIIh :
__-_meomcaormaﬂoeorderofﬂamﬂwnc«mtylrdlana. Lo R

-'HigMofWaygmntathOmny-VacumnOlCompany lnclrlanhs‘tlwnemda:edmzi 1939 -
and racorded

June 17, 1939 In Miscellanecus Record 34, pagezso.mxdsssmadtohﬂaraﬂm

T PbeLInabyanasslgnmen!mcordedMa:d\ﬂ 1967hMlscellanaomHecom97pageﬂa!!h .

the Office ol the Recorder of Hamilton Coc.mly. Indiana.

Right of Wey grantad to Socony-Vacuum, Ol Company, Inc in an istument dated June 21, 1939 -
Marathon

and recorded June 17, 1839 It Miscellanecus Record 34, page 291, and assigned to
Pipe Line by an assignment recorded March 14, 1967hmscellanoomﬂecord97 pageﬂa!th

. _Imomceofme Raoorderol'Hamilmn County, Indllana,

nghlofWaygtantadtnBuck P!pel.lnehanlmtnmenlraeardedh:gmlao 1962hDeed
Record 175, paga214mme0fﬂceofmanwordaromamlhoncom!y

’ EasementandassoclamddghtsgrarﬂadmﬂamﬂmﬂW%mUﬂﬁﬁes.lnc bme—CarnProperﬂaa.

an IndBana General Partnership In an instrument dated March 20, 1998 and recorded March 24,
1998 as Instrument Number 8809814472 In the Office of the Recorder of Hamilton County, Indiana.

Subject 1o anl'egal highways and rights of way.

" Possitie eassments fot legal dins and diches, ary, and o rights therein

k NOTE FOR INFORMATION: Fences do not colnclde with Souih and Scmﬂy

apparentgasﬂnaeasemetﬂdmg%pmpeﬂyhawmdbya
Juna11 ZOMasJobNo.MQZT-oot. .

: INFORMATION NOTE: The acreage !n malagaldescrlpﬂmlssl'lm Enteonvaﬂmonlyam
. should mtbeconstruedsslmm the quaniity of land sell‘orﬂmsalddesmpﬂm.

TNBCommlhnentlsvaﬂdmlyH‘demnesAmamm
Sd’ed&ﬁaBacmslstsot 3 page(s)
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THE POLICY OR POLICIES TO BE ISSUED WILL CONTAIN EXCEPTIONS TO THE FOLLOWING MATTERS

UNLESS THE SAME ARE DISPOSED OF TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE COMPANY.

1. mmemmmmm.mmmwam.m.wmmum
records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior 1o the date the proposed Insured
acqulres for value of record the estats or interest or morigage therson covered by this Commitment.

2 Standand Exceplions:
: a) Rights or clalms of parties in possession not shown by the public reconds
b) Easoments, or clalms of easements, not shown by the public records.
c) Encroachiments, overiaps, boundary line disputes, or other matters which would ba disciosed by an
acourate survey or inspection of the premises
d) Ay llen, or.right fo a Hen, for services, kbor, or material heretofore or hereafier fumished, imposad
by kaw and not shown by the public records.

3 Spedal Exceptions:
a) Taxes for the year 2006 payabic In 2007 are a flen not yet dua and payable.

Taxes for the yedr 2005 payable In 2006 are as follows:

Kew No. 08-09-18-00-00-001.002 — Washington {Affects Tract 1)
1stinstaliment due May 10, 2006 $236.27 - pald.

2nd instoiment due Nov 10, 2008 $236 27 - unpald.

Assessaed Valuations: 05-06
Land $ 23100.00
Improvernents 3 0.00
Exemption (Mortgage) $ 0.00
Exemption (Homeowners) § 000
Exemption $ 000
Met Valuationa 5 23100.00

Teoces for the year 2005 payable In 2006 are es follows:

Key No 08-08-16-00-00-001.000 — Washington (Affects Tract I and other real estats)
1st Instaliment due May 10, 2006 $151.26 - pald :
anhsta:'h'nantdueﬂwm.mmmzﬁ-unpald

Key No. 08-09-16-00-00-001.003 (Affects Tract [l for 2008 payable in 2007)

Assessed Vatuations: 0508
Land $ 10200.00
Improvements $ 7800.00
Exemption (Mortgage) $ 000
Exemplion {Homeowners) § and
Exernption H 0.00
Net Vahsations 3 18700.00

NOTE: Tax information supm s Emited to the date of the most turment cemputer Input information
tn tha Treasurer's Office and not hecassarlly the effective dats hereof. A check with the Treasurer's
Office should b mada to determine the exact amount of taxes due, if any.

PLEASE NOTE £XEMPTION VALUATION INFORMATION MAY NOT BE FULLY POSTED.

This Commitment is valld only if Schedules A and B are attached.
Schedule B2 consists of 2 page(s)
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b}

¢

e}

NOTE:

Effective July 1, 2008, any
Indiana must contain the following afil

Amsnmforﬁaxm Ecwards #2685 Ditch payable sami-annually, untll tarminated or changed
by order of the Drainage Board. Neot Instaliment due November 10, 2008 In the amount of $23.81,

printipal. (Unpaid) (Affacts Tract )

Assessment for the John Edwards #2856 Ditch payableml-mmuaﬂy,'unﬂtennmmda'd\amed
by order of the Drainage Bowrd. Next Installment due November 10, 2006 i the amount of $13 58,

 princlpal (Unpaid) (Affects Tract )

Easement for watar ines and Incidertal purposes In favor of Hamilton Westem Utifiies, Inc,
recorded November 6, 1998 as instrument Number 98-83167 in the Office of the Recorder of

Hamilton County, Indiana

nght-cf—wayforwb" Street on the North side of subject real estats and Towne Road along the
Westsldedmb]adraalwmeasshwumsuweyeafﬁﬂedoeoemberza.zmd.mdmm
January 4, 2006, by Andrew D. Baxtar Jr. of Evans, Mechwart, Hambleton & Tifton, Inc., Job No.
2004-2320

Subject to all legal highways and rights of way.
Possible easements for legal drains and ditches, If any, and all rights thereln

Iaw’s Inception in 2005 and wil continue to be coflected until further nolice

This Commitment Is valid oty if Schedules A and B are attached.
Schedule B2 consists of 2 pags(s}

documents requiing 8 preparation staternent which are exacuted or acknowledged In
rmation statement as required by IG 36-2-11-15: *] affirm, under the penafties
forperluggmallhavatalcsnreasmablecarabredadeadlSodalSewmynumba'hmlsdomunenlunw
cquired by law "

Additionally, pursuant to 1C 3:
into the “County tdentification

5-2-7.5-8, a $2 00 fee for each recorded document must be colfected and deposited
Protection Fee® fund Salkd fos has been collected by the county recorder since the

e i b b i b s b e e e




None.

Schedule B

Permits




Monroe Bank Loan
Estridge Development Co.

Total Liabtlities

Schedule C
Liabilities
$ 4,995,000
$ 130,000

$ 5,125,000




None

KD_IM-842661_4.DOC

Schedule D

Government Commitments




Exhibit 3.4

‘Form of Reimbursement Agreement




REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

This REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of
, 2007 by and between Paul E. Estridge, Jr. (“P. Estndge”) and , an
Indiana corporation (the “Guarantor™).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, P. Estridge is the largest shareholder of The Estridge Group, Inc. and the
Guarantor;

WHEREAS, the Guarantor is an affiliate of The Estridge Group, Inc.;

WHEREAS, The Estridge Group, Inc. is offering 2 minimum of $2,650,000 and a
maximum of $5,000,000 in the aggregate principal amount of Series 2007 Subordinated Notes
due 2010, Series 2007 Subordinated Notes due 2012 and Series 2007 Subordinated Notes due
2015 (collectively the “Notes™),

WHEREAS, the Guarantor has agreed to guaranty the Notes upon the terms and
conditions described in that certain Guaranty Agreement, dated , 2007, by and between
the Guarantor and MainSource Bank, as Trustee for the purchasers of the Notes (the
“Noteholders™); and

WHEREAS, P. Estridge wishes to provide for a reimbursement arrangement with the
Guarantor in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement in the event that
Guarantor incurs any costs, expenses, liabilities or other obligations associated with the Guaranty
Agreement, which the Guarantor is unable or unwilling to satisfy.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, representations, warranties and
agreements herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto, for themselves, their heirs, successors and assigns, agree as follows:

SECTION 1. REIMBURSEMENT.

Section 1.1. Reimbursement. From and after the date of this Agreement, P. Estridge
agrees to reimburse the Guarantor and to hold the Guarantor harmless from and against all
losses, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses (including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) which the Guarantor may incur arising out
of or relating to the Guaranty Agreement and which the Guarantor is unable or unwilling to
satisfy for any reason. In the event that the Guarantor 1s unable to satisfy its obligations under
the Guaranty Agreement, P. Estridge shall assume and satisfy such obligations as if he were
primarily liable for such obligations under the Guaranty Agreement.

Section 1.2. Claims for Reimbursement. Upon receipt of any demand or claim for
payment received by the Guarantor arising under or pursuant to the Guaranty Agreement, in the
event Guarantor is unable or unwilling to satisfy such demand or claim, the Guarantor shall




(unless waived pursuant to the provisions of Section 3 hereof) promptly provide written notice
and demand for payment to P. Estridge, setting forth a description of the outstanding and
unsatisfied demand or claim received by the Guarantor from under the Guaranty Agreement.
Upon receipt of such notice from Guarantor, P. Estridge shall immediately satisfy any unpaid
demand or claim by payment in full to the Trustee.

SECTION 2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF P. ESTRIDGE.
P. Estridge represents and warrants to the Guarantor that:

Section 2.1. Power; Authorization; and Enforceability. P. Estridge has the requisite
capacity and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform his obligations hereunder. P.
Estridge has the sole and full right, capacity and authority to enter this Agreement and perform
his respective obligations without the consent, authorization, release or waiver of any third
party. This Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of P. Estridge, enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited by general principles of equity and public
policy and by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, liquidation, moratorium, readjustment of
debt or other laws of general application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’

rights.

Section 2.2. Compliance with Laws, Other Instruments, Etc. The execution, delivery
and performance by P. Estridge of this Agreement will not (a) contravene, result in any breach
of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien in respect of any property of
P. Estridge under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan, purchase or credit agreement,
lease, or any other material agreement or instrument to which P. Estnidge is bound or by which
P. Estridge or any of his properties may be bound or affected, (b) conflict with or resuit in a
breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any order, judgment, decree or ruling of
any court, arbitrator or governmental authority applicable to P. Estridge or (¢} violate any
provision of any statute or other rule or regulation of any governmental authority applicable to
P. Estridge.

SECTION 3. SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES; ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

All representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the execution and
delivery of this Agreement.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER.

This Agreement may be amended, and the observance of any term hereof may be waived
(either retroactively or prospectively), with (and only with) the written consent of the Guarantor.
Provided, however, that the obligations of P. Estridge under Section 1.1 may only be waived in
the event that the obligations arising under the Guaranty Agreement to the Trustee and the
Noteholders have been satisfied in full by the Guarantor, or any other guarantor of the Notes.




SECTION 5.© NOTICES.

All notices and communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing and sent (a)
by facsimile if the sender on the same day sends a confirming copy of such notice by a
recognized overnight delivery service (charges prepaid), or (b) by registered or certified mail
with retum receipt requested (postage prepaid}, or (c) by a recognized overnight delivery service
(charges prepaid). Any such notice must be sent:

(1}  ifto the Guarantor, to: ,

(2) ifto P. Estridge, to

Notices under this Section will be deemed given only when actually received.

SECTION 6. SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION, JUDGMENTS, ETC.

P. Estridge hereby irrevocably consents and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of any
court located within the State of Indiana sitting in Hamilton County and the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Indiana and irrevocably agrees that all actions or
proceedings relating to this Agreement may be litigated in such courts and P. Estridge
irrevocably waives any objection which he may have based on improper venue or forum non
conveniens to the conduct of any proceeding in any such court.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS.

Section 7.1. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and other agreements contained in
this Agreement by or on behalf of any of the parties hereto bind and inure to the benefit of their
respective successors and assigns whether so expressed or not. o

Section 7.2. Payments Due on Non-Business Days. Anything in this Agreement to the
contrary notwithstanding, any payment due under this Agreement that is due on a date other
than a business day shall be made on the next succeeding business day.

Section 7.3. Severability. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of
such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and
any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall (to the full extent permitted by
law) not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 7.4. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which together shall constitute one
instrument. Each counterpart may consist of a number of copies hereof, each signed by less than
all, but together signed by all, of the parties hereto.

Section 7.5. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the law of the State of




Indiana excluding any choice-of-law principles that would require the application of the laws of
a jurisdiction other than the State of Indiana.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, this Agreement has been duly executed by P. Estridge as of
the date first set forth above.

“P. ESTRIDGE”

“GUARANTOR”

KD_IM-856868_3.DOC




Exhibit 6.13

Form of Lot Sales Agreement




RESIDENTIAL LOT SALES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

and

THE ESTRIDGE GROUP, INC.




RESIDENTIAL LOT SALES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of , 2007 (the “Effective Date™)
by and between the undersigned parties.’
BACKGROUND STATEMENT
(“Seller”) is a company formed and

managed by Estridge Development Company, Inc. (“‘EDC”). EDC and The Estridge Group, Inc.
(“Builder™) are owned by Paul E. Estridge, Jr. (“Estridge”). Seller acquired the rights to develop
a planned community located in County, Indiana, known
(“Development™) from EDC, on property previously owned by EDC which has also been
acquired by Seller. As of the date of this Agreement, EDC is entering into Seller’s Operating
Agreement (as amended from time to time, the “Operating Agreement”) with
(the “Investors™) pursuant to which the Investors will make aggregate capital contributions of
$ to Seller to enable Seller to complete the Development in accordance with the
Proforma attached to the Operating Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise
defined in this Agreement have the meanings given to them in the Operating Agreement.

In the Operating Agreement, EDC and Builder have represented and warranted to each
Investor that the Investor will receive an Internal Rate of Return on its capital contributions to
Seller of % based on the distributions Seller will make to the Investor under the
Operating Agreement from the revenues it will receive from Builder under this Agreement and
the costs set forth in the Proforma. Builder acknowledges that its covenants and other
obligations under this Agreement and the Operating Agreement and the representations and
warranties in Exhibit G to the Operating Agreement are a primary inducement for the Investors
investment in Seller.

k]

Seller desires to sell to Builder all of the Lots in the Development and Builder desires to
purchase all of the Lots in the Development from Seiler upon the terms and conditions set forth
below.

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten ($10.00) Dollars paid by Builder to Seller, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Seller, the mutual covenants and benefits contained
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, Seller hereby agrees to sell and Builder hereby agrees to purchase the Property
on the following terms and conditions.

1. PROPERTY. Seller hereby agrees to sell and Builder hereby agrees to purchase
from Seller those Lots within the Development which are described on Exhibit *A”, attached
hereto (collectively the “Property”).

2. DEVELOPMENT DATA. Builder acknowledges that Builder has received copies
of and materially participated in the preparation of all plats, maps, plans, specifications and
documents relating to the Development, including those listed on Exhibit “C” (the “Development
Data”).

Builder agrees that Builder shall undertake all activities on the Property in accordance
with the terms and provisions of the Development Data.




3. PURCHASE PRICE, METHOD OF PAYMENT AND ADJUSTMENTS
THEREOF

3.1.  The Purchase Price of the Property shall be the aggregate of the initial
individual Lot prices set forth on Exhibit “B” (the “Base Minimum Lot Price”) plus the
additional amounts described in Section 3.3. The Purchase Price shall be paid as provided in
Sections 3.2 and shall be adjusted as described in Section 3.3.

3.2.  The portion of the Purchase Price due pursuant to Exhibit “B” for the Lots
conveyed at each closing hereunder (such closings are referred to collectively as “Closings” and
individually as a “Closing”) plus the additional amounts described in Section 3.3 and all closing
costs which are the responsibility of Builder under Section 5 shall be paid by Builder at each
Closing by (a) cash, (b) certified check drawn on a national bank, (c) cashier’s check drawn on a
national bank, (d) bank wire transfer directly to an account designated by Seller, or (€) check
drawn by a national bank on a Federal Reserve Bank.

3.3, The initial price for each Lot is set forth on Exhibit “B”. If any Revised

IRR Analy51s (as defined in the Operating Agreement) shows a Projected IRR of less than

% (1.e. projects an Internal Rate of Return over the life of the Project on the capital
contributed by the Investors, of less than %), then Builder shall acquire Lots during the
remainder of the Project for Purchase Prices which will cause that Revised IRR Analysis to yield
a % Projected IRR (the purchase prices as increased are referred to in this Agreement as
the “Projected Increased Sales Prices”), as provided for herein and in Section 10.3 of the
Operating Agreement.

4. CLOSINGS.

4.1.  Subject to the terms and conditions herein, Builder agrees to purchase '
from Seller each quarter not less than the quantity of Lots specified on Exhibit “D” (with respect
to each quarter, the “Minimum Number of Lots”). There shall be Closings each quarter
hereunder, beginning with the first Closing no later than , 2007 and with
subsequent Closings held no later than the last business day of each calendar quarter, for the
Minimum Number of Lots. Builder shall have no unilateral right to delay the dates for any
Closing herein provided and acknowledges that the prior written consent of the Majority
Investors is required for any such delay and that such consent may be withheld by the Majority
Investors in their sole discretion.

4.2.  All Closings shall be held through escrow with the Title Company
(hereinafter defined).

5. COSTS AND PRORATIONS.

5.1.  Ateach Closing, Butlder shall be responsible for all closing costs (except
those title costs payable by Seller referred to in Section 6.2 below).

5.2.  Seller shall be responsible for payment of real estate taxes up to §
in the aggregate for all Lots (which are the real estate taxes contemplated to be paid by Seller
under the Proforma). Builder shall be responsible for all other real estate taxes.




6. TITLE.

6.1.  Ateach Closing, Seller shatl convey title to the Lots being purchased by
Builder by special warranty deed, subject only to the matters set forth on Exhibit “E” (which
includes all matters affecting title prior to acquisition by Seller and those due to acts and deeds of
Builder) and matters approved or waived by Builder as provided below (“Permitted
Exceptions™).

6.2.  Within thirty (30) days of each Closing hereunder, Seller shall deliver to
Builder an owner’s title insurance commitment for an ALTA owner’s title insurance policy for
the portion of the Property then being conveyed, with extended coverage in the amount of the
applicable Base Minimum Lot Price (the “Commitment”), which shall be issued by Chicago
Title Insurance Company or another title company reasonably acceptable to the parties (“Title
Company”). Seller shall pay title costsup to $ in the aggregate for all Lots (which are
the title costs contemplated to be paid by Seller under the Proforma). All other title related costs
shall be paid by Builder.

If Builder objects to title exceptions set forth on any Commitment (other than Permitted
Exceptions under subsection 6.1 above), such objection shall be specified in writing and shall be
delivered to Seller within five (5} days of the date that the Commitment is delivered to Builder.
If Builder fails to so notify Seller, Builder shall be deemed to have waived its right to object to
title exceptions. If Builder does so notify Seller, Seller shall then have the right, but not the
obligation, for a period of fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice, to have such exception
waived or insured over. If the exception is not waived or insured over by the Title Company
within such fifteen (15) day period, then (a) if the amounts necessary to cure the title exception
are included in the Proforma, Seller shall be responsible to pay the amounts necessary to cure the
title exception (but not in excess of the amounts included in the Proforma, and (b} if the amounts
necessary to cure the title exception are not included in the Proforma, Builder must accept the
title as is. Builder acknowledges that if Seller were required to cure any title exceptions not
included in the Proforma, the cost to cure would cause the Projected IRR to fall below %,
requiring a corresponding increase in the Purchase Price, and that requiring Builder to bear the
cost of cure (or to waive cure and accept title as is) in lieu of increasing the price is fair and
equitable.

7. DOCUMENTS. Ateach Closing, Seller shall deliver to Builder a special warranty
deed conveying the portion of Property then being acquired. The parties shall also execute and
deliver at Closing such other documents reasonably necessary or appropriate to complete and
evidence the transaction contemplated hereby; provided however, that any expenses in excess of
those set forth in the Proforma shall be paid by Builder.

8. PROPERTY TO BE PURCHASED AS IS. Builder hereby acknowledges and
affirms that, except as provided in Section 10, Seller does not, by the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, and Seller shall not, by the execution and delivery of any document or
instrument executed and delivered in connection with the Closing, make any warranty, express
or implied, of any kind or any nature whatsoever, with respect to the Property, other than as
provided in the special warranty deed, and all such other warranties are hereby disclaimed.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, SELLER MAKES, AND SHALL MAKE, NO
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF SUITABILITY OR FITNESS OF ANY OF THE




PROPERTY FOR ANY PURPOSE, OR AS TO THE MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, VALUE,
QUALITY, CONDITION OR SALABILITY OF ANY OF THE PROPERTY. The sale of the
Property by Seller to Builder shall be “AS IS and “WHERE 1S”.

9, SUBDIVISION AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS.

9.1.  Builder shall be responsible for installing sidewalks and street trees on
cach Lot comprising the Property. Prior to or at each Closing hereunder, Builder shall post all
letters of credit or bonds for the sidewalks and street trees for the Lots then purchased with the
governmental authorities.

9.2.  Builder shall be responsible for extending sanitary sewer and water service
lines from the sanitary sewers and water mains providing such services to the Development to all
the dwelling units Builder constructs on the Lots purchased.

9.3.  Builder shall be responsible for and shall pay all fees and charges due to
the governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Property which are due and payable in
connection with the issuance of building permits plus all impact fees, tap-on and installation
charges, and other fees, costs and expenses related to obtaining water, sanitary sewer and other
utility services for the Property.

9.4.  Builder shall be responsible for providing all labor and materials required
to perform the grading contemplated by the grading plans for the Lots comprising the Property.
In connection therewith, Builder shall preserve the drainage patterns shown on the grading plans
for the Lots.

9.5.  Asilt fence shali be installed by Builder along the lot line of any Lot
which adjoins a park area, or any other landscape area prior to beginning any construction
activities thereon. The silt fence shall be maintained by Builder until the government authorities
determine it is no longer necessary. Builder shall be responsible for repairing any damage to
other Lots or landscape areas on or adjacent to or occurring as a result of the construction within
the Development.

10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

In addition to its representations and warranties under Exhibit G to the Operating
Agreement, Builder represents and warrants to Seller and the Investors as follows:

(a)  The Builder is duly organized and validly existing as a corporation under
the laws of the State of Indiana and has the full right, power and authority to conduct its business
and fo execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement. This
Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Builder and constitutes a
valid and legally binding obligation of the Builder enforceable in accordance with its terms. All
action, including the obtainment of consents and approvals required to authorize execution and
performance of this Agreement, have been obtained.

(b)  The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Builder, the
consummation of the transactions herein contemplated, and compliance with the terms and
provisions hereof or thereof, will not (i) violate any presently existing provisions of law or any

4




presently existing applicable regulation, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, or (i1) conflict
or be inconsistent with, or result in any breach of, any of the terms, covenants, conditions or
provisions of, or constitute a default under, the Builder’s articles of incorporation or by-laws or
any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, instrument, document, agreement or contract of any kind
to which the Builder is a party or by which it may be bound.

11. CONDEMNATION. If, after the Effective Date and prior to the final Closing
hereunder, Seller shall receive notice of the commencement or threatened commencement of
eminent domain or other like proceedings against the Property or any portion thereof, Seller shall
immediately notify Builder in writing and Builder shall continue to close on the purchase of the
Property but subject to such proceedings, in which event the Purchase Price shall remain the
same and Seller shall transfer and assign to Builder at each Closing all condemnation proceeds
and rights to additional condemnation proceeds, if any, with respect to the Lots then purchased.
All actions taken by Seller with regard to such eminent domain proceedings, including, but not
limited to, negotiations, litigation, settlement, appraisals and appeals, shall be subject to the
approval of Builder, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

12. STATUTORY COMPLIANCE. Builder acknowledges that the property within the

Development is not registered under any land sales acts including the Interstate Land Sales Full
Disclosure Act. Builder agrees to cooperate fully with Seller in taking any action necessary to
preserve any exemptions from such registrations, and to comply with federal and state law.

Builder acknowledges that it is Builder’s duty and obligation to comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and all regulations promulgated thereunder including
without limitation the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 and the regulations promulgated
thereunder including, but not limited to, those regulations dealing with the use of human models
and the equal housing opportunity logotype, statement and slogan in advertisements and sales
materials,

13. NO RELIANCE. Builder acknowledges that the purchase contemplated by this
Agreement is made by Builder without reliance on any representations or agreements of Seller,
either written or oral, other than those set forth herein, and Builder warrants and represents that
its decision to purchase hereunder is based solely on its own inspection of the Property and its
independent investigation and evaluation of the merits of entering into this Agreement.

14. PLAN APPROVAL.

14.1. Prior to the Effective Date, Builder submitted to Seller, and Seller gave its
written approval for the site plans, elevations, floor plans, and landscaping plans for the
construction to be done on the Lots by Builder (“Plans™).

14.2. Builder shall promptly submit to Seller, and Seller shall have the right to
review and approve, any and all modifications to the approved Plans (“Modified Plans™) which
Builder proposes to make in the Plans prior to the time that dwelling units have been completed
on all Lots.

Unless Seller shall deliver notice to Builder of Seller’s approval or disapproval within
twenty (20) days after receipt of Modified Plans, Seller shall be deemed to have approved the

5




Modified Plans submitted by Builder. Any notice of disapproval by Seller shall be accompanied
by the changes that Seller has determined should be made. Builder shall resubmit the Modified
Plans and the foregoing procedure shall be repeated until Seller’s approval is obtained or deemed
to be obtained.

14.3. Builder shall perform all construction and development on the Property
substantially in accordance with the approved Plans or Modified Plans.

15. EASEMENTS. Builder shall grant Seller any easements over the Lots as may be
reasonably necessary for an orderly and logical development of the Development.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. Builder agrees to defend and hold Seller and each of the
Investors and their respective Affiliates harmless from (a) any breach by Builder of its
representations, warranties, and agreements set forth herein or in the Operating Agreement or
any of the Related Documents and (b) any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of action,
demands, and proceedings arising out of, or directly or indirectly related to, Builder’s
construction activities and the activities of its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the
Development, including, without limitation, claims or liens by mechanics and materialmen,
claims by the Association for assessments or violations of covenants or rules and regulations,
claims by any third party arising out of any contract with Builder relating to the Property, claims
predicated upon Builder’s failure to comply with applicable fair-housing legislation and
regulations promulgated thereunder including, but not limited to, those related to Builder’s
advertising and promotional materials, and claims for a commission or finders fee made by
anyone claiming to have acted as a broker or finder for Builder in connection with the purchase
and sale of the Property. This indemnity shall include reasonable attorney’s fees and
investigation costs and all other costs, expenses, and liabilities incurred by any indemnified
person. Without limitation of the foregoing, the Builder shall reimburse Seller and the Investors
for all reasonable legal, accounting and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with (i) enforcing or defending {or determining whether or how to enforce or defend)
any of their rights under this Agreement, or (b) any insolvency or bankruptcy of the Builder or in
connection with any work-out or restructuring of the transactions contemplated hereby.

17. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.

17.1. Default by the Builder.

(a)  Upon the Builder’s default hereunder, Seller shall, at its option, be released
and relieved of all further obligations hereunder to sell additional Lots to Builder.

(b)  The Builder acknowledges and agrees that its agreements set forth herein are
fundamental to the other parties’ willingness to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.
Accordingly, the Builder hereby agrees that each other party, jointly and/or severally, may
institute and maintain any action, suit or proceeding, at law or in equity (including, without
limitation, specific performance or temporary and permanent injunctive relief (without any
requirement to post any bond or other security)), against the Builder to enforce, or otherwise act
in respect of, the agreements of the Builder set forth in this Agreement. Such relief shall not be
exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to damages and any other rights or
remedies otherwise available at law or in equity.




(¢)  The Builder agrees that no failure or delay on the part of any other party to
exercise any of their rights under this Agreement shall be a wavier of such rights or a waiver of
any default, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any rights preclude other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, or be construed as a waiver of any default.
The enumeration of rights and remedies set forth in this Agreement is not intended to be
exhaustive and the exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other
rights or remedies, all of which shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other right or
remedy given hereunder or under any other agreement among the parties or which may now or
hereafter exist at law or in equity.

17.2. Default by Seller,

If Seller defaults under this Agreement, Builder, at its election, may as its sole
and exclusive remedy avail itself of the equitable remedy of specific performance. In no event
shall Builder have the right to seek damages from Seller by reason of a default hereunder and
Builder hereby expressly waives such nght.

17.3. Rjghts of the Investors; Cross-Defaults.

(a)  Any Event of Default under the Operating Agreement shall constitute a
default under this Agreement and shall give the Majority Investors the right to terminate this
Agreement on behalf of Seller, and thereafter be released and relieved of all obligation to make
further sales of Lots to Builder under this Agreement. In the event of any Event of Default under
the Operating Agreement, the Majority Investors shall also have the right on behalf of Seller to
enforce all of Seller’s rights and remedies under this Agreement (including, without limitation,
its equitable rights of specific performance or otherwise).

(b)  The Majority Investors may exercise their right to terminate this Agreement
pursuant to subsection (a) above by giving Seller and the Builder written notice of such
termination, which notice will set forth the effective date, which may be immediately upon
delivery of the notice or any date thereafter. If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein,
no party hereto shall have any further obligation hereunder to any other party, except that (i)
nothing herein shall relieve any party from liability for any breach of this Agreement or
otherwise as a result of the applicable Event of Defauit, (ii) the Builder’s indemnification
obligations under Section 16 hereof shall survive such termination and (iii) such termination
shall not relieve Builder from the obligation to pay Seller all amounts accrued through the date of
termination under this Agreement, including all amounts due prior to termination under
Section 3.3.

17.3. Attorneys’ Fees. '

In any action at law or in equity between the parties hereto occasioned by a default
hereunder, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect its reasonable attorney’s fees actually
incurred in the action from the non-prevailing party. '

18. NOTICE. Each notice or document (collectively referred to in this section as
“notice’) required or permitted to be given hereunder must comply with the requirements of this
section. Each such notice shall be in writing and shall be delivered by personally delivering it, or
by depositing it with the United States Postal Service or any official successor thereto, certified
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mail, return receipt requested, with adequate postage prepaid, or by overnight courter delivery
service with delivery charges paid by the sender, addressed to the appropriate party (and marked
to a particular individual’s attention).

Notices shall be deemed delivered: at the time of delivery when personally delivered or
after seven business days when deposited with the United States Postal Service, or on the next
business day when sent by overnight courier delivery service. A refusal by an addressee to
accept the notice shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice. The inability of the United States
Postal Service or an overnight courier delivery service to deliver the notice because of a change
of address of the party of which no notice was given to the other party as provided below shall be
deemed to be the receipt of the notice sent.

The addresses of the parties to which notice is to be sent shall be those set forth on the
signature page of this Agreement. Either party may change its address by written notice to the
other party designating the new address in accordance with this section.

For purposes hereof, the term “business day” shall refer to a Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday or Friday which is not a holiday for which the Title Company closes its
offices in County, Indiana.

19. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of the parties’ successors and assigns. Builder shall not assign this Agreement or
any interest hereunder, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Seller, which
consent may be withheld for any reason or for no reason. Seller may assign its rights and
obligations hereunder without the approval or consent of Builder.

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and other Agreements referred to herein
embody the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and
cannot be waived or amended except by written instrument executed by the Builder, Seller and
the Majority Investors.

21. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted under the
laws of the State of Indiana. :

22. SURVIVAL. All provisions of this Agreement shall survive the Closing.

23. NO WAIVER. Failure of either party to insist upon compliance with any provision
hereof shall not constitute a waiver of the rights of such party to subsequently insist upon
compliance with that provision or any other provision of this Agreement.

24, EXHIBITS. The exhibits referred to in and attached to this Agreement or the
Operating Agreement are incorporated herein in full by reference. The term “include” and
derivatives thereof shall be construed in an illustrative and not a limitative sense.

25. CAPTIONS. Titles or captions of sections contained in this Agreement are inserted
only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit, extend or describe
the scope of this Agreement or the intent of any provision thereof.

26. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. Should any provision of this Agreement
require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the court interpreting or construing the provisions
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shall not apply the rule of construction that a document is to be construed more strictly against
the party who itself or through its agent prepared the document. Typewritten or handwritten
provisions inserted in this Agreement which are initialed by the parties shall control over all
printed provisions of this Agreement in conflict therewith.

27. NON-RECORDATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. The parties agree that neither
this Agreement nor a memorandum of this Agreement shall ever be filed of record. If either
party does so record, the other party may avail itself of any remedies available to it at law or in
equity.

28. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for this Agreement.

29. FORCE MAJEURE. Either party hereto shall be excused for the period of delay in
the performance of any obligations hereunder when such delay is occasioned by cause or causes
beyond the control of the party whose performance is so delayed, provided current written notice
thereof be given, and the time for performance shall be automatically extended for a like period.
Such causes shall include, without limitation: all Iabor disputes; civil commotion; war; war-like
operations; sabotage; governmental or judicial regulations, legislation or controls; inability to
obtain any necessary materials or services; and acts of God including storms, floods, and other
weather conditions which preclude or prevent construction activities.

30. POSSESSION. Seller shall deliver actual possession of the Lots purchased at
Closing.

31. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in the original or by telecopy
in separate counterparts. It shall be fully executed when each party whose signature is required
has signed at least one counterpart even though no one counterpart contains the signatures of all
the parties.

32. LOCAL TIME. Any references to the time of day in this Agreement shall refer to
the time of day in County, Indiana.

33. AMENDMENTS TO DECLARATION. Builder acknowledges that the Declarant
under the Declaration has certain rights to amend which may be made without the consent of
other owners.

34, CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENT.

34.1. Prior to undertaking any construction activities on the Property, Builder and
its contractors shall obtain a public liability insurance policy in the amount of One Million
($1,000,000.00) Dollars or such other amount as may be acceptable to Seller covering all losses,
damages and claims arising out of occupation, use of, activities on and ownership of property
within the Development, including property damage, bodily injury and death during
construction. The policy shall name Builder as the insured party and Seller and its Members and
those other Persons designated by Seller as additional insureds. Certificates evidencing such
insurance shall be provided to Seller prior to commencing construction and such insurance shall
be maintained in effect until construction is complete on all Lots comprising the Property.

34.2. Builder acknowledges and accepts responsibility for exercising its best efforts
to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement by all contractors and




subcontractors of Builder. Seller reserves the right to direct Builder to cease using the violating
contractors or subcontractors. Builder shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless against all
claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to, attorney’s fees and court
costs that may be incurred or suffered by Seller as a result of its taking action pursuant to this
section.

34.3. Builder hereby agrees that Builder shall use its best efforts to cause its
contractors, its agents and subcontractors to comply fully with the Declaration and regulations of
the Association.

34.4. Builder shall maintain all single family homes constructed on the Property and
all landscaping installed thereon for so long as they are owned by Builder.

34.5. Builder agrees to maintain all job sites on the Property in a neat and orderly
condition throughout construction and not to allow trash and debris to accumulate on the
Property. Builder agrees that Builder shall not store construction materials of it except in
locations approved by Seller and in compliance with the conditions, rules, and regulations
imposed by Seller. Builder agrees to keep all streets, roadways, easements, open space, and
other land within the Development free and clear of mud, dirt, debris, trash and construction
materials resulting from Builder’s construction activities on the Property.

34.6. Builder agrees to use its best efforts to avoid causing damage to the
subdivision improvements, the Development’s entry features, and landscaping while conducting
construction on the Property and hereby assumes full responsibility for the costs incurred for
repairs within the Development which are necessitated by Builder’s activities or the activities of
its contractors and subcontractors.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;
SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands and seals hereto as of
the day and year indicated under their signature.

BUILDER:  The Estridge Group, Inc.
By:

Title:

Address: 1041 West Main Street
Carmel, IN 46032

Telephone Number: 317-846-7311
Fax Number: 317-582-2452

SELLER:

By:

Title:

Address:

Telephone Number:

Fax Number:

[SIGNATURE PAGE CONTINUES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)]




[SIGNATURE PAGE TO LOT SALES AGREEMENT CONT’D]

THE INVESTORS:

By:

By:

Address:

Telephone Number:

Fax Number:

KD_IM-913686_1.DOC
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EXHIBIT “A”
EXHIBIT “B”
EXHIBIT «“C”
EXHIBIT “D”

EXHIBIT “E”

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS

Legal Description of the Property
Base Minimum Lot Price of Each Lot Comprising the Property
Development Data

The minimum number of Lots the Builder must acquire each
quarter

Title Exceptions




Exhibit 10.1

Consent of Krieg DeVault LLP (contained in 11.1)
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Opinion of Krieg DeVault LLP




KRIEG - DEVAULT..

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

March 1, 2007

MainSource Bank, Trustee

For the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2007 Subordinated
Notes Due 2010, 2012 and 2015

112 N. Meridian St. '

Portland, Indiana 47371

RE:  Issuance of up to $5 Million of Offered Securities
Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have represented The Estridge Group, Inc. (“TEG”), Estridge Development
Company, Inc. (“EDC”) and Paul E. Estridge Corp. (“P Corp”) (collectively, the “Company”) as
special counsel in connection with the preparation and filing of an Offering Statement on Form
1-A (the “Offering Statement”™) with the Securities and Exchange Commission, under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose of issuing up to an aggregate of
$5,000,000 of (i) unsecured debt securities of TEG (the “Notes™) and (i) guarantees by EDC and
P Corp of the Notes pursuant to a Guarantee Agreement to be executed by TEG and P Corp (the
“Guarantees”). The Notes and Guarantees are collectively referred to herein as the “Offered
Securities.”

The Offered Securities will be sold and issued in accordance with the Offering Statement.

In connection with this opinion, we have reviewed (a)the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation and By-Laws, and (b) such other records, documents, instruments and information
as we have in our judgment deemed relevant. In our review, we have assumed the following:
(i) the authenticity of original documents and the genuineness of all signatures, (ii)the
conformity to the originals of all documents submitted to us as copies, and (iii) the truth,
accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, instruments, certificates and information
which we have reviewed. We have also assumed that the Offering Statement, and any applicable
amendments thereto (including post-effective amendments), will have become effective under
the Act.

Based upon the foregoing, and subject to the exceptions, qualifications and limitations
stated herein, we advise you that, in our opinion, when (i) the Offering Statement has become
qualified under the Act, (ii) the terms of any class or series of Offered Securitics have been
authorized by appropriate action of the Company in a manner that would not violate any
applicable law or result in default under or breach of any agreement or instrument binding upon
the Company and so as to comply with any requirement or restriction imposed by a court or a
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KRIEG -DEVAULT..

MainSource Bank, Trustee
March 1, 2007
Page 2

governmental or regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Company, (iii} any such class or
series of Offered Securities has been duly issued and sold, and payment has been received for
such Offered Securities in the manner contemplated in the Offering Statement and any applicable
amendments thereto (including any post-effective amendments), (iv) the Indenture of Trust and
Guarantee Agreements relating to the Notes have been duly executed and delivered, and (v} the
Notes have been duly executed and authenticated in accordance with the Indenture of Trust and
issued and sold as contemplated in the Offering Statement; then the Notes and the Guarantees
will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Company enforceable in accordance with
their respective terms subject to (x) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent transfer,
moratorium and other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to or affecting creditors’
rights generally, (y) general principals of equity (regardless of whether considered in a
proceeding at law or in equity) and (2) the qualification that the remedy of specific performance
and injunctive or other forms of equitable relief may be subject to equitable defenses and to the
discretion of the court before which any proceeding may be brought.

This opinion is limited to the matters stated herein, and no opinion is to be implied or
may be inferred beyond the matters expressly stated. This opinion is addressed to you and is
solely for your use in connection with the Offering Statement, and we assume no professional
responsibility to any other party whatsoever. Accordingly, the opinion expressed herein is not to
be relied upon, utilized or quoted by or delivered or disclosed to, in whole or in part, any other
person, corporation, entity or governmental authority without, in each instance, the prior written
consent of this firm.

We hereby consent to the use of this opinion as an exhibit to the Offering Statement and
to the reference made to us in the Offering Statement and in the Prospectus under the caption
“Legal Matters.” In giving this consent, we .do not thereby admit that we come within the
category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act, or the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission promulgated thereunder.

Very truly yours,

,&? Dot JALLS

KRIEG DeVAULT LLP
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